
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JANUARY 5, 2016 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to issue a
recommendation to the Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control regarding Gila
County Order No. LL-15-06, a new Series 12
restaurant license application submitted by
Mark Allen Moppin for M&M Reno Creek Cafe
located at 270 S. Old Hwy. 188, Tonto Basin,
Arizona.  (Marian Sheppard)

Approved

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider
approving a Memorandum of Understanding
establishing a partnership between the
Industrial Development Authority of Gila
County and Gila County government to make
application and promote the designation of the
Central Arizona Transformation Corridor
Promise Zone.  (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider
adopting an Order to call for a Special Election
to be held May 17, 2016, to elect a new Board
of Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic
Water Improvement District.   (Eric Mariscal)

Adopted

 



 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept the
Victims of Crimes Act grant submitted by the
Court Appointed Special Advocate Program of
Gila County.  (Dan McKeen and Jonathan
Bearup)

Accepted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
on-going Intergovernmental Agreement
between Gila County Superior Court
Administration and the Arizona Department of
Economic Security to provide additional
resources that facilitate access and visitation
for non-custodial parents and their children.  
(Jonathan Bearup)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the advertisement of Request for Proposals No.
110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program Education Support Services.  (Jeff
Hessenius and Michael O'Driscoll)

Authorized

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 16-01-01 authorizing the
disposal of an unnecessary public roadway
being a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka
Miami Street) adjacent to Lots 22, 23, and
24, Block 43, as shown on Miami Map No. 3,
Plat Map No. 25, Gila County Records, Gila
County, Arizona and authorize the Chairman
of the Board of Supervisors to execute and
deliver in the name and under the seal of
County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying
the abandoned roadway to John R.
Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm.  (Steve
Sanders)

Adopted

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Approved



G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No.
110415-Economic Development Grant
between Gila County and the City of Globe,
whereby the County will disburse $20,000 to
the Globe Active Adult Center to assist in
providing and delivering meals to senior
citizens in the community through the Meals
on Wheels program; and further the Board
determines this is for the benefit of the public
and will improve or enhance the economic
welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.  
(Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
use of the State of Arizona, State Procurement
Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD
Crane Builders, Inc. for the construction of
interior improvements, exterior improvements
and all associated facets of construction on
the Copper Administration Building in the
amount of $2,271,632.21 with estimated
completion 240 days from the date of the
"Notice to Proceed" issued by the County to
SD Crane Builders.  (Jeff Hessenius and
Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
following six Countywide policies to be
included in the Countywide Policy Manual that
are currently Merit System Rules and Policies: 
BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct (replaces
Rule 6); BOS-HRS-215 Probationary
Employment Period (replaces Rule 19);
BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal
(replaces Rule 20); BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary
Action (replaces Rule 21); BOS-HRS-615
Grievance Process [replaces Rule 22(a)]; and,
BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission
(replaces Rule 3).  (Don McDaniel)

Approved



 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement
between Tonto Apache Tribe and the Gila
County Sheriff's Office regarding the Arizona
Criminal Justice Information System Holder of
Record Agreement.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of Cooperative Law Enforcement
Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 replacing
Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004 between
the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service in
the amount of $74,400 for the performance
period of December 31, 2015, through
December 31, 2016.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of the adjustment to the appointment
of John Perlman as Justice of the Peace Pro
Tempore, specifically, the termination of
appointment in the Globe Regional Justice
Court and the affirmation of appointment in
the Payson Regional Justice Court.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of FY 2016 Victims' Rights Program
Award Agreement No. AG No. 2016-004
between the Gila County Attorney's Office and
the Arizona Attorney General's Office in the
amount of $33,890 to cover the existing salary
and employee-related expenses for a full-time
advocate, with no cash match funds required,
for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2016.

Approved



 

E.   Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADES14-055408) between Gila County and
the Arizona Department of Economic Security
which will decrease the un-obligated fund
balances and will change this contract end
date to December 31, 2016, all of which
pertain to funding for the former Gila/Pinal
Counties Workforce Investment Area.

Approved

 

F.   Approval of Arizona Department of Housing
(ADOH) Community Development Block
Grant Contract No. 108-15 Closeout Report to
finalize the contract between the ADOH and
the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Housing Services, which will
successfully end the contract and ensure that
Gila County Housing Services has met all
requirements of said contract.

Approved

 

G.   Approval of Arizona Department of Housing
(ADOH) Community Development Block
Grant Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report to
finalize the contract between the ADOH and
the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Housing Services, which will
successfully end the contract and ensure that
Gila County Housing Services has met all
requirements of said contract.

Approved

 

H.   Approval of revised Amendment No. 2 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADES15-089113) between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security and Gila
County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program, revising the
Itemized Service Budget for Case Management
and Community Services whereby the
cumulative reimbursement ceiling has been

Approved



cumulative reimbursement ceiling has been
increased from $451,731 to $477,916 for the
period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the November 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk
of the Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the November 2015
monthly activity report submitted by Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the November 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the November 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

M.   Approval of the November 24, 2015, December
1, 2015, and December 15, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

N.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of November 23, 2015,
through November 27, 2015; November 30,
2015, through December 04, 2015;
and, December 07, 2015, through December
11, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

O. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
December 22, 2015, December 29, 2015, and
January 5, 2016.

Approved

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is No Comments



5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board
of Supervisors may vote to go into
executive session on one or all of the items
listed in this section.  No action will be
taken by the Board while in executive
session.)

 

 

A.   Move to go into executive session pursuant to
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4)
in order to receive legal advice from its
attorney regarding a Notice of Claim from
Carson Construction regarding the Pine Creek
Canyon Road Construction Project and to
discuss or consult with the attorney of the
public body in order to consider its position
and instruct its attorney regarding the public
body's position in order to avoid or resolve
litigation.  Then, after executive session has

Authorized



concluded move to direct the County
Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in
executive session.  (Jefferson Dalton)

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-3536     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Order No. LL-15-06 - M&M Reno Creek Cafe Liquor License
Application

Background Information
On November 19, 2015, Mark Allen Moppin submitted an application to
the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for a new
Series 12 restaurant license for M&M Reno Creek Cafe located at 270 S.
Old Hwy. 188, Tonto Basin, Arizona.

The purpose of a Series 12 restaurant license is defined as follows: 
"Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous
liquor solely for consumption on the premises of an establishment which
derives at least 40% of its gross revenue from the sale of food.  Failure to
meet the 40% food requirement shall result in revocation of the
license.  4-213(C)"

Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and processes the
license application, it is sent to the local governing body in which city,
town, or county the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing
body's review of the application, a recommendation is then issued by the
local governing body, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors
(Board), to the DLLC to return one of the following recommendations,
"approval", "disapproval" or "no recommendation."

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted
at the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any
person residing, owning, or leasing property within a one-mile radius of
the establishment of the application. To date, the Clerk of the Board's
Department has not received any written objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board



This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors' Department for submission to the Board. An internal
review has been conducted by both the Gila County Building
Safety Department, the Health Department, and the Treasurer's Office. 
These departments have submitted paperwork stating there are no issues
related to this application with regard to their departmental policies
and/or procedures.  Additionally, an "Affidavit of Posting" has been signed
by a Gila County Sheriff's Deputy verifying that the application was
posted and removed per statutory time frame requirements.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this
application; and, no written objections have been received; therefore, a
public hearing should be held by the Board to entertain any comments
from the public with regard to this application before the Board takes an
action to issue its recommendation to the DLLC.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue
an approval recommendation to the DLLC for this liquor license; or,
consider issuing a different recommendation to the DLLC should any
person appear before the Board during the public hearing, who is in
opposition to this liquor license application.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to issue a recommendation to the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control regarding Gila County Order
No. LL-15-06, a new Series 12 restaurant license application submitted
by Mark Allen Moppin for M&M Reno Creek Cafe located at 270 S. Old
Hwy. 188, Tonto Basin, Arizona.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
LL-15-06 Local Governing Body Recommendation
LL-15-06 Affidavit of Posting
LL-15-06 Interoffice Memos
GC Order LL-15-06 Liquor License Application































   
ARF-3526     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Promise Zone Initiative Memorandum of Understanding with the
Industrial Development Authority of Gila County

Background Information
This item was considered at the Board of Supervisors' Regular meeting of
December 15, 2015 and continued to the January 5, 2016 Regular
meeting. The County Attorney had expressed concerns about whether or
not the Industrial Development Authority (IDA)  is enabled by Arizona
Revised Statutes to enter into this agreement. The IDA's attorney had
responded with a letter indicating that they did, however the County
Attorney had not had sufficient time to review the letter or discuss it with
their attorney. 

In 2013, the federal government established an initiative to designate a
number of high-poverty urban, rural and tribal communities as Promise
Zones, where they would partner with and invest in communities to
accomplish the following goals: create jobs, leverage private investment,
increase economic activity, expand educational opportunities, and reduce
violent crime.
In 2015, the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County (IDA)
announced their interest in pursuing the application process to establish
a Promise Zone designation for the Central Arizona Transformation
Corridor which includes Superior, Globe, Miami, San Carlos and Canyon
Day on the San Carlos Indian Reservation, Hayden, Winkelman,
Young/Pleasant Valley, and Tonto Basin.

Evaluation
It is important for the effort by the IDA to be collaborative involving all



It is important for the effort by the IDA to be collaborative involving all
governmental jurisdictions, private sector and not for profit interests.

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Gila County and the
IDA establishing a partnership to make application and promote the
designation of the Central Arizona Transformation Corridor Promise Zone
designation is attached for Board of Supervisors' consideration.

Conclusion
Staff considers this proposal to be of great value to the citizens,
businesses, and tax payers of Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board approve the attached MOU with the
Industrial Development Authority of Gila County and commit to a funding
partnership of $25,000 per year for the first five (5) years of the Promise
Zone designation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider approving a Memorandum of
Understanding establishing a partnership between the Industrial
Development Authority of Gila County and Gila County government to
make application and promote the designation of the Central Arizona
Transformation Corridor Promise Zone.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Memorandum of Understanding with the IDA for Promise Zone
IDA-Promise Zone Overview
IDA-Promise Zone PowerPoint Presentation



PROMISE ZONE DESIGNATION INITIATIVE 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

between
GILA COUNTY 

and   
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

OF GILA COUNTY 
Part I  

General Information 

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as MOU) establishes the terms and 
conditions between Gila County and the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County 
(hereinafter referred to as IDA) for the Promise Zone Designation Initiative. This MOU is 
entered into for the purpose of delineating the respective roles and responsibilities of the Promise 
Zone Designation Initiative as a required partner in the implementation of the Promise Zone 
Designation Initiative. By signatures to this MOU, the parties agree to abide by the terms, 
conditions, goals, policies, principles and regulations of the Promise Zone.  

This agreement is to ensure the effective and efficient delivery of services to prevent duplication 
and coordinate resources in the Promise Zone Corridor. In addition, the MOU establishes joint 
process and procedures that will enable partners to integrate the current service delivery system, 
resulting in a seamless and comprehensive array of educational opportunities, job training and 
other workforce development services; health and human services; safe, affordable housing; 
initiatives to reduce serious and violent crimes; job creation and economic development 
opportunities being accessible throughout the Promise Zone. 

Part II 
Services to be Provided 

The Promise Zone Partners agree to the following: 

The IDA agrees to the following: 
• Increase awareness of Promise Zone Initiative and programs to achieve regional

transformation.
• Work with local units of government, school boards, businesses, chambers of 

commerce, business associations, foundations, and other partners.
• Serve as the point of contact for the Promise Zone, communicating with partners and

federal departments as necessary including coordinating monthly meetings, meeting
minutes, task lists, and regular written updates.



• Ensure that appropriate reporting requirements are met. Examples may include grant
reporting requirements, Promise Zone reporting requirements.

• Coordinate federal, state and local resources with the needs of Promise Zone partners.
• Partner in the assessment, development, and implementation of programs and initiatives

with the goal of regional transformation.
• Maintain comprehensive knowledge of all Promise Zone Initiative programs, policies;

state, federal and local services ensuring appropriate referrals or solutions can be made.
• Support the Promise Zone by participating in joint planning and continuous improvement

efforts throughout the Promise Zone region.
• Provide information such as brochures, literature, etc., for distribution in each of the

Promise Zone regions to encourage support and participation in achieving regional
transformation throughout the Central Arizona Transformation Corridor.

Gila County agrees to do the following: 

• Appoint a County representative to the Promise Zone Governing Board.
• Appoint a County representative from departments such as education, housing, health and

human services, and law enforcement to each focus area consortium.
• Encourage participation in programs and initiatives sponsored by the Promise Zone.

Part III 
Funding of Services and Operating Costs 

Gila County and the IDA are the entities responsible for regional transformation in the Central 
Arizona Transformation Corridor Promise Zone. Program decisions are the responsibility of Gila 
County, IDA, and Promise Zone Governing Board in consultation with the other partners. Each 
entity will share equally in the benefits of the collaboration.  

Under the MOU, Gila County will provide up to $25,000 per calendar year for the first five years 
to cover costs toward the Promise Zone Coordinator, overhead and associated program costs.  

Under the MOU, IDA will provide up to $25,000 per calendar year for the first five years to 
cover costs toward the Promise Zone Coordinator, overhead and associated program costs.  

For partners located within the Promise Zone whose funding source is administered through the 
Promise Zone Lead Applicant, overhead costs shall be deducted from the grant before the award 
is made to the selected program contractor.  



Part IV 
Duration of Agreement 

This MOU is entered into this 5th day of January 2016, by and between the IDA and Gila 
County, as Promise Zone Initiative partners. This MOU shall remain in effect until 2026, or 
unless otherwise terminated by mutual agreement of all parties, under the following 
conditions.  

Any party may withdraw from this MOU by giving written notice of intent to withdraw at least 
120 calendar days in advance of the effective withdrawal date. Notice of withdrawal shall be 
given to all parties covered by this agreement. Should any partner withdraw, this MOU shall 
remain in effect with respect to the remaining parties until a new MOU is executed or the end of 
the duration of this agreement.  

Notice: Participation in similar activities. This instrument in no way restricts Gila County/IDA 
from participating in similar activities with other public or private agencies, organizations and 
individuals.    

Part V  
Procedure for Amendment or Assignment 

This MOU may be modified at any time by written agreement of the parties. Such amendments 
will require the signature of all parties affected by such amendment. Assignment of 
responsibilities under this MOU by any of the parties shall be effective upon written notice to the 
other parties. Any assignee shall also commit in writing to the terms of this MOU.  

Part VII 
Certification 

An amendment to this MOU can be offered at any time by either of the partners.  Such 
amendments will require the signatures of both parties signifying their agreement.  

Approval on behalf of Gila County: Approval on behalf of IDA: 

__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Michael A.  Pastor, Chairman   Cliff Potts, President  
Gila County Board of Supervisors  Industrial Development Authority  









Central Arizona
Transformation Corridor



What is the Promise Zone Initiative? 
The Promise Zone Initiative seeks to revitalize 
high-poverty communities across the country by 
creating jobs, increasing economic activity, 
improving educational opportunities, reducing 
serious and violent crime, leveraging private 
capital, and assisting local leaders in navigating 
federal programs. 



The Promise Zone partners Federal 
government with local leaders who are 
addressing multiple community 
revitalization challenges in a collaborative 
way and have demonstrated a 
commitment to achieving regional 
transformation. 



Promise Zone Designees will receive: 
• Opportunity to engage five AmeriCorps VISTA 

members

• A liaison from each federal department assigned to 
assist with navigating federal programs

• Priority for competitive federal programs through 
bonus points

• Promise Zone tax incentives, if enacted by Congress



AmeriCorps VISTA
VISTA members will assist with coordinating efforts, 
overcoming obstacles, launching programs/initiatives, and 
administrative duties throughout PZ region.  
Bonus Points 
Bonus points range from 5 to 50 points, each federal department 
determines their own point system. 
Federal Liaisons
Each federal department will assign a point of contact to help the 
PZ region identify and apply for grants and navigate federal 
hurdles. 



Altogether, this package of assistance will 
help local leaders accelerate efforts to 
revitalize their communities. The Promise 
Zone designation is for a term of 10 years, 
and may be extended as necessary to capture 
the full term of tax incentives, if enacted by 
Congress.



• In 2016, five urban, one rural and one 
tribal designation will be awarded. 

• To date, nine urban, two rural and two 
tribal communities have received a PZ 
designation. 

• By the end of 2016, there will be a total of 
20 Promise Zone designations across the 
United States. 



Participating Federal Departments 

Dept. of Education 

Dept. of Labor 

Dept. of Transportation

Dept. of Justice 

Dept. of Commerce 

Dept. of the Treasury 

Small Business Administration

National Endowment of the Arts

Health & Human Services 

Corp. for National & Community Service 

HUD 

USDA 



The first round Promise Zone designees 
have already achieved monumental strides: 

• In its first year, San Antonio Promise Zone 
received $32 million in grants for education, 
economic development, health and wellness 
programs, housing and neighborhood safety. 



• In its first year, Los Angeles Promise Zone 
received $38 million in grants for 
education, access to healthy food, teenage 
pregnancy prevention, lead hazardous 
reduction, healthy home intervention, and 
health and wellness. 



• In its first year, Philadelphia Promise Zone 
received $30 million in grant funds to support 
health services for pregnant women and families 
with children; mentoring, tutoring, college 
awareness for middle schools; improvements in 
early childhood education and childcare quality; 
career training and placement for at-risk youth; 
loans for entrepreneurs; and rehabilitation of 
homes. 



• The Promise Zone must be comprised 
of a contiguous geographical region 
that meets the poverty threshold 
requirements set forth by the Promise 
Zone Initiative.  



Central Arizona
Transformation Corridor
Partners: 
Gila County, Miami, Globe, 
San Carlos, Bylas, Hayden-
Winkelman, Superior, Tonto Basin, 
Young 



The Central Arizona Transformation 
Corridor will apply for a rural designation.

The Tribe will be part of the rural 
designation, yet continue to function  
independently as a Sovereign Nation.   



PZ Governing Structure

PZ Governing 
Board  
Key Stakeholders   

Housing 

Housing Consortium 

Education 

Edu Consortium 

Economic 
Development 

ED Consortium 

Health & 
Human Services 

HHS Consortium 

IDA 

Lead Applicant 



Regional transformation requires a team effort:
• The PZ Governing Board will be comprised of designated 

representative(s) from each PZ partner.

• Each focus group consortium will be comprised of key 
stakeholders in education, housing, economic 
development, health & human services, and drug & 
violent crime.  

• Focus groups will meet monthly with federal department 
liaisons to devise and implement programs and initiatives. 



The Industrial Development Authority will 
apply for the Promise Zone Designation as the 
lead applicant, which includes the duties of: 
writing the application, coordinating monthly 
meetings, keeping meeting minutes, 
communicating with liaisons and partners, 
administrative and reporting duties as set forth 
by the Promise Zone. 



Why is the IDA the best choice for lead 
applicant? 
• The lead applicant must have a preexisting governing 

structure, with a focus on economic development and 
regional transformation. 

• The flexibility to cross city/town/county boundary lines.

• The IDA has a stellar grant execution and reporting rating 
with USDA.

• The IDA has received Promise Zone Initiative mentorship 
from HUD.



Section IV– Part C: Promise Zone 
Sustainability and Financial Feasibility 

requires a narrative outlining the budget projection 
for funding project coordination for the first five 
years of designation. 



To satisfy this requirement, the IDA needs to show 
financial commitment from Promise Zone partners 
to sustain the Promise Zone Program for up to five 
years, or until grant funds cover related costs.

It’s likely that most of the PZ partners lack the 
wherewithal to make a financial commitment, at 
this time.   



The federal departments reviewing applications 
must ensure the Promise Zone designation will be 
awarded to a region that will utilize the full 
potential of the Promise Zone Initiative for the 
entire ten year term. A financial commitment from 
PZ partners demonstrates an appreciation of the 
program and commitment to regional 
transformation. 



The Promise Zone is a highly coveted 
designation. The application process will 
be fiercely competitive for the ONE
remaining rural designation. By 
partnering together, we can demonstrate 
our commitment to achieving regional 
transformation. 



   
ARF-3527     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of an Order to call a Special Election to be held on May 17,
2016, for the purpose of electing the Board of Directors for the Solitude
Trails Domestic Water Improvement District (STDWID).

Background Information
On November 14, 2015, at a meeting of the Solitude Trails Domestic
Water Improvement District (STDWID) Board of Directors, Mark J.
Fumusa and Mark Peschman both tendered their written resignations
effective immediately. The simultaneous resignation of two members
of the three member board effectively dissolved the STDWID Board of
Directors, requiring the Board of Supervisors to step in and take over as
the Board of Directors until an election could be called to elect new
members. 

At their Regular meeting of December 15, 2015, the Gila County Board of
Supervisors, acting in compliance with Arizona Revised Statute §48-1011
through §48-1017 and by unanimous vote, accepted the two resignations,
revoked the authority of the STDWID, named the Gila County Board of
Supervisors as the STDWID Board of Directors, and reserved the right to
call for an election of new Board of Directors members.

In addition, at the Regular meeting of December 15, 2015, the Board of
Supervisors continued this item to call for an election until the January 5,
2016 meeting because the deadline to call for a May election is January
18, 2016.

Evaluation
A.R.S. §48-1016 provides for the Board of Supervisors to call a Special



A.R.S. §48-1016 provides for the Board of Supervisors to call a Special
Election to elect Board of Directors members for the STDWID.  The
earliest the Special Election can be held is May 17, 2016, which is the
next consolidated election date pursuant to A.R.S. §16-204.

Conclusion
Based upon A.R.S. §48-1016 and A.R.S. §16-204, the Board of
Supervisors is statutorily authorized to call for a Special Election to elect
governing board members to the Solitude Trails Domestic Water
Improvement District. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors approve the Order
calling for a May 17, 2016, Special Election to elect a new Board of
Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider adopting an Order to call for a
Special Election to be held May 17, 2016, to elect a new Board of
Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement
District.  (Eric Mariscal)

Attachments
Order to Call Election
Arizona Revised Statute 48-1016
Arizona Revised Statute 16-204



 
 

ORDER 

AN ORDER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, PURSUANT 
TO ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES §48-1012 and §48-1016 CALLING FOR A SPECIAL 
ELECTION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SOLITUDE TRAILS DOMESTIC 
WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT; DESIGNATING THE DATE FOR THE ELECTION; 
DESIGNATING THE FILING PERIOD FOR RECEIPT OF THE CANDIDATE NOMINATION 
PETITIONS; DESIGNATING THE LAST DAY FOR VOTER REGISTRATION; AND INVITING 
NOMINATION PETITIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, on December 15, 2015, the Gila County Board of Supervisors accepted the 

resignations of   Directors  Mark J. Fumusa and Mark Peschman; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2015, the Gila County Board of Supervisors revoked the 
authority of the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District and assumed the governance of the 
District. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

 
1. A special election is called f o r  M a y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 6  to elect a three member Board of 

Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District; 
2. The deadline for voter registration shall be April 18, 2016; and, 
3. The ballot replacement site shall be located at the First Baptist Church of Pine. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that notice is hereby given as follows: 
Qualified electors who own property within the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District are 
hereby invited to submit a candidate nomination petition for the position of district board of directors 
member ; a n d  , 

 
Nomination packets shall be available in the Gila County Department of Elections Office at 5515 
S. Apache Avenue, Suite 1200, Globe, AZ 85501 or the Gila County Complex in Payson at 610 
E. Highway 260, Payson, AZ 85541. The filing period for candidate nomination petitions shall 
begin on January 18, 2016, and end at 5:00 p.m. on February 17, 2016. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of January 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

Marian Sheppard Michael A. Pastor 
Clerk of the Board Chairman 

 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 

Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 









   

ARF-3540     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
The Court Appointed Special Advocate ("C.A.S.A.") Program of Gila County, with the
support of the Gila County Superior Court and the approval of Presiding Judge
Timothy Wright, has successfully applied for grant monies from the Victims of Crimes
Act ("V.O.C.A.") through the Arizona Department of Public Safety.

Background Information
The Court Appointed Special Advocate Program, or "C.A.S.A.", provides guardian ad
litem advocacy through volunteer service for children that have been removed for their
homes due to substantiated allegations of neglect, abuse, or abandonment.  These
volunteer advocates provide a voice for these children in court and advocate on their
behalf in matters such as services and placement.  Throughout the State of Arizona,
C.A.S.A. programs are established in every county and funded through the proceeds of
unclaimed lottery winnings and supplemented by the Administrative Office of the
Courts - Court Improvement Program.  Funding is allocated at the discretion of the
Administrative Office of the Courts - Dependent Childrens Services Division.  The
C.A.S.A. program of Gila County has requested budgetary increases over the past two
years but those requests has not been approved.

Evaluation
Currently, there are fourteen (14) Court Appointed Special Advocates, or "C.A.S.A.s" in
northern Gila County.  There are four (4) C.A.S.A.s in southern Gila County.  Northern
Gila County has fifty-six (56) children in out-of-home care while southern Gila County
has one hundred and one (101) children in out-of-home placements. The C.A.S.A.
Coordinator and the Support Staff are located in Payson.  These figures, so grossly
inverted, were the primary motivator for increased budgetary requests as Superior
Court staff and C.A.S.A. staff attempted to establish a permanent presence in Globe to
facilitate recruitment of volunteers.

In March 2015, the Director of State C.A.S.A. advised county programs of a potential
grant program to improve their local programs - the Victims of Crime Act Grant
managed by the Department of Public Safety.  C.A.S.A. of Gila County and Superior
Court Administration identified the V.O.C.A. grant as an alternative means of funding
recruitment efforts in southern Gila County. With the approval of the Presiding Judge,
Hon. Timothy Wright, C.A.S.A. Coordinator Dan McKeen developed a project initiative
and successfully applied for the grant - the application was approved for $61,790. The
grant requires a twenty-percent (20%) "in-kind" match of $15,448; working with State
C.A.S.A., appropriate "in-kind" match contributors were identified and there will be no
cost to the County.



The V.O.C.A. initiative will enable the C.A.S.A. Program to establish a presence in
Globe. Office space, office equipment, and other intangibles have been arranged (also
without cost to the County). The grant does require the establishment of a separate
fund for deposit. This grant would fund one FTE to operate as a recruiter in Globe and
provide for some travel expenses.  The ultimate goal of Gila's V.O.C.A. grant would be
to build the number of C.A.S.A.s in Globe to better serve the dependent children in
southern Gila County.

While the application was submitted consistent with A.R.S. 11-952(J), C.A.S.A. of Gila
County and Superior Court Administration wish to promote transparency and share
with citizens and stakeholders this exciting opportunity to expand and enhance
services.

Conclusion
In order to provide a much-needed, larger presence of C.A.S.A. volunteers in southern
Gila County, where the majority of dependent children are located, C.A.S.A. of Gila
County has successfully applied for $61,790 in grant monies through the Victims of
Crimes Act.

Recommendation
The Presiding Judge of Gila County Superior Court recommends that the Gila County
Board of Supervisors approve the Victims of Crimes Act grant submitted by the Court
Appointed Special Advocate Program of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept the Victims of Crimes Act grant submitted by
the Court Appointed Special Advocate Program of Gila County.  (Dan McKeen and
Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
VOCA Grant Application
VOCA Guidelines

































Effective 7/2013 

 
Arizona Department of Public Safety 

Victims of Crime Act 
Crime Victim Assistance Grant 

 
GUIDELINES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Crime Victim Assistance Grant 
Arizona Department of Public Safety 

VOCA Administration, Mail Drop 1320 
PO Box 6638 

Phoenix, Arizona 85005-6638 
 
 
 
 

THIS DOCUMENT SHOULD BE RETAINED ALONG WITH 
PERMANENT AGENCY VOCA GRANT RECORDS. 

 



 

 

Table of Contents 

I. Background ............................................................................................................................... 1 

a. Definitions: ........................................................................................................................... 1 

b. Primary Purpose: ................................................................................................................... 3 

c. Eligible services are further defined: .................................................................................... 3 

II. Allocation of VOCA Victim Assistance Funds ........................................................................ 5 

III. VOCA Victim Assistance Application Process ........................................................................ 5 

a. Subrecipient Application Process: ........................................................................................ 5 

b. Protest of Funding Decisions: ............................................................................................... 6 

c. Applicant Organization Eligibility Requirements: ............................................................... 7 

d. Eligible Subrecipient Organizations: .................................................................................. 11 

e. Ineligible Recipients of VOCA Funds: ............................................................................... 13 

f. Services, Activities, and Costs at the Subrecipient Level ................................................... 13 

g. Other Allowable Costs and Services: ................................................................................. 15 

h. Non-Allowable Costs and Activities: ................................................................................. 20 

IV. Subrecipient Responsibilities .................................................................................................. 21 

a. Financial and Program Reporting: ...................................................................................... 21 

b. Amendments: ...................................................................................................................... 22 

c. Beginning the Project:......................................................................................................... 22 

d. Funding Acknowledgement: ............................................................................................... 23 

e. Notice of Crime Victim Service Availability: .................................................................... 23 

f. Civil Rights Policy and Disclosure of Findings of Discrimination: ................................... 23 

g. Reporting Suspected Fraud, Waste and Abuse: .................................................................. 24 

h. Audit Responsibilities for Subrecipients: ........................................................................... 24 

V. State and Federal Financial and Programmatic Monitoring ................................................... 25 

VI. Suspension and Termination of Funding ................................................................................ 26 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 1 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

VOCA ADMINISTRATION 
 

VICTIMS OF CRIME ACT (VOCA) 
CRIME VICTIM ASSISTANCE GRANT 

VOCA GUIDELINES 
 
The Department of Public Safety (DPS), VOCA Administration (VOCA), is issuing VOCA 
Guidelines to implement the VOCA victim assistance grant program as authorized by the 
Victims of Crime Act of 1984, Section 1404(a)(2), and 1404(b)(1) and (2), 42 U.S.C. 
10603(a)(2) and (b)(1) and (2).  The VOCA Guidelines provide information on the 
administration and implementation of the VOCA assistance grant program for the state of 
Arizona pursuant to ARS § 41-1711, as amended.  These guidelines are all inclusive and 
effective upon publication for the VOCA victim assistance grant program, until further revised 
by DPS-VOCA. 
 
DPS-VOCA supports and promotes quality services for crime victims by partnering with local 
agencies throughout Arizona that perform the essential work of victim assistance.  The provision 
of rights and mandated services outlined in Arizona’s Constitution and the Victims’ Rights Act 
provide the beginning of a foundation of important services to crime victims. 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:  The Arizona Department of Public Safety, 
VOCA Administration, Mail Drop 1320, PO Box 6638, Phoenix, Arizona 85005. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  These guidelines are in effect for grants beginning July 1, 2013, until 
further revised by DPS.  These guidelines should be adhered to when completing an application 
for funding for the FY 13/14 Request for Grant Application process. 
 
 
GUIDELINES FOR CRIME VICTIM ASSISTANCE GRANTS 
 

I. Background 
 

In 1984, VOCA established the Crime Victims Fund (Fund) in the US Treasury and 
authorized the Fund to receive deposits of fines and penalties levied against criminals 
convicted of federal crimes.  This Fund provides the source of funding for carrying 
out all the activities authorized by VOCA for the award of crime victim compensation 
and crime victim assistance funds to the states.  VOCA gives the states sole authority 
to determine the best use of VOCA victim assistance grant funds within each state. 
 
a. Definitions: 

For the purpose of the VOCA grant program, the following definitions apply: 
 

i. Crime Victim is anyone of any age who has suffered financial, physical, 
sexual or emotional harm as a result of the commission of a crime.  Each 
person and each situation has varying circumstances with different 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 2 

personal reactions, problems, and needs.  A victim is defined as the person 
against whom the crime was committed, except in the case of homicide 
and DUI/DWI deaths where the “victims” are survivors.  In domestic 
violence situations, children of spouse/partner abuse victims are 
considered victims.  The immediate family members of a rape victim who 
receive counseling, non-offending parents of child abuse victims and 
surviving family members of homicide and DUI/DWI victims are 
considered victims for purposes of the crime victim assistance grant 
program. 

 
ii. Child is any person under the age of 18 or as otherwise defined by State 

law. 
 

iii. Elder Abuse is defined as abuse of vulnerable adults including the 
mistreatment of older persons through physical, sexual, psychological or 
physical violence; neglect; or economic exploitation and fraud. 

 
iv. Federal Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an offense that violates a 

federal criminal statute or regulation.  Federal crimes also include crimes 
that occur in an area where the federal government has jurisdiction, such 
as Indian reservations, some national parks, some federal buildings, and 
military installations. 

 
v. Native American Tribe/Organization is defined as any tribe, band, nation, 

or other organized group or community, which is recognized as eligible 
for the special programs and services provided by the US to Native 
Americans because of their status as Native Americans.  A reservation is 
defined as a tract of land set aside for use of, and occupancy by, Native 
Americans. 

 
vi. Hate Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an act of intimidation, 

harassment, physical force, or threat of physical force directed against any 
person, or family, or their property, or advocate, motivated either in whole 
or in part by hostility because of race, color, ethnic background, national 
origin, religion, sex, age, disability, or sexual orientation, real or 
perceived, with the intention of causing fear or intimidation, or of 
deterring the free exercise or enjoyment of any rights or privileges secured 
by the Constitution or laws of the United States or the state of Arizona. 

 
vii. Economic Exploitation and Fraud Victim is defined as an individual 

victimized by the perpetrators of bogus vacation opportunities, fly-by-
night home repair companies, advance fee schemes, mail fraud, computer 
fraud, health care fraud, insurance fraud, pension and trust fund fraud, 
credit card fraud, check fraud, charity fraud, home repair schemes, identity 
theft, land schemes, embezzlement, securities and investment fraud 
(including commodities fraud), telemarketing fraud, and reverse mortgage 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 3 

fraud.  Fraud crimes can be prosecuted at either the state or federal level, 
depending on a number of factors:  type of fraud scheme and amount of 
money stolen, laws violated (federal, state or both), method of operation, 
use of public services (such as the US Postal Service, telecommunications 
systems, and Medicare) that fall under federal or state regulation and 
authority, location of the crime (within state or across state or national 
borders). 

 
Although VOCA-funded programs cannot restore the financial losses 
suffered by victims of fraud, victims are eligible for counseling, criminal 
justice advocacy, and other support services offered by VOCA-funded 
victim assistance programs. 
 

b. Primary Purpose: 
 

The primary purpose of these grants is to support agency staff who provide direct 
services to victims of crime in Arizona.  Priority will be given to projects serving 
victims of sexual assault, domestic violence, child physical and sexual abuse, and 
previously underserved victims of violent crime such as drunk driving crashes, 
elder abuse, adults molested as children, survivors of homicide victims, robbery 
or bank robbery, assault, stalking, kidnapping, identity theft, hate crimes and 
victims of exploitation and fraud.  For the purpose of the VOCA guidelines, 
services are defined as those efforts that (1) respond to the emotional and 
physical needs [healing] of crime victims; (2) assist primary and secondary 
victims of crime to stabilize [restitution/economic restabilization] their lives 
after a victimization; (3) assist victims to understand and participate in the 
criminal [justice] system; and (4) provide victims of crime with a measure of 
[safety] and security such as boarding up broken windows and replacing or 
repairing locks. 

 
c. Eligible services are further defined: 

 
i. Crisis Counseling is defined as in-person crisis intervention, emotional 

support, and guidance and counseling on an individual basis provided by 
advocates, counselors, mental health professionals or peers.  Such 
counseling may occur:  a) at the scene of a crime; b) immediately after a 
crime; c) at the first, in-person contact between a counselor and victim 
(this would include meeting the victim in an emergency room, at a police 
station, or at a prosecuting attorney’s office, etc.); d) during in-person 
contact for the duration of the crisis experience; or e) in the case of 
survivors of homicide victims or DUI/DWI, counseling may occur months 
after the victimization. 

 
ii. Follow-up Contact is defined as in-person contacts, telephone contacts 

and written communication with the victims to offer individual emotional 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 4 

support, provide empathetic listening, check on victim’s progress, and 
offer guidance for other-than-crisis reactions after the victimization. 

 
iii. Therapy is defined as intensive professional psychological and/or 

psychiatric treatment for individuals, couples, and family members, 
related to counseling, to provide emotional support in crisis arising from 
the occurrence of crime.  This includes the evaluation of mental health 
needs, as well as the actual delivery of psychotherapy. 

 
iv. Crisis Counseling via phone/hotline is defined as telephone contact to 

provide crisis counseling after a victimization. 
 

v. Group Treatment/Support is defined as the coordination and provision of 
supportive group activities.  This includes self-help, peer, social support, 
drop-in groups, and community crisis intervention in a group setting. 

 
vi. Shelter/Safe House is defined as short-term and long-term housing and 

related support services provided to victims and non-offending members 
of their family following a victimization. 

 
vii. Information, Referral, and Connection is defined as in-person contacts 

with the victim, identifying services offered and support available by 
network and other community agencies, and/or completing linkage (actual 
personal or telephonic introduction) of a victim to other continuum service 
providers. 

 
viii. Criminal Justice Support/Advocacy is defined as support, assistance and 

advocacy provided to crime victims at any stage of the criminal justice 
process.  Included in this definition are: court related support, i.e. court 
orientation, court escort, case status and disposition information, victim 
impact statements, assistance with restitution, transportation for legal 
proceedings, child care while participating in legal proceedings, property 
return, and post-sentencing services and support following the disposition 
of a criminal court proceeding. 

 
ix. Emergency Financial Assistance is defined as the utilization of VOCA or 

matching funds for security measures (replacement of locks, and 
temporary repair of doors and windows to prevent revictimization), and 
payment for taxis, buses, food, shelter and clothing.  The agency must 
have written policies and maintain detailed records regarding distribution 
of funds under this provision. 

 
x. Emergency Legal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in filing 

temporary restraining orders (injunctions and other protective orders), and 
elder or child abuse petitions.  This does not include criminal prosecution 
or the use of VOCA funds in the employment of private attorneys for 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 5 

non-emergency legal representation purposes such as custody disputes, 
civil suits, civil restitution recovery efforts, and divorce actions. 

 
xi. Assistance in Filing Compensation Claims is defined as making victims 

aware of the availability of crime victim compensation and/or assisting the 
victim in completing the required forms and in gathering the needed 
documentation.  (Provision of this service is a grant eligibility 
requirement.)  It may also include follow-up contact with the victim 
compensation agency on behalf of the victim. 

 
xii. Personal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in securing rights, 

remedies, and services from other agencies, locating financial support, 
intervening with employers, creditors and others on behalf of the victim; 
assistance with filing for losses covered by public and private insurance 
programs including workman’s compensation, unemployment benefits, 
welfare, Medicare, etc., and accompanying the victim to the hospital.  This 
includes case management services, domestic violence education, 
assistance with safety planning, life skills, translation, transportation for 
other than legal proceedings, child care (for reasons other than 
participation in criminal justice proceedings), job search, education 
assistance, assistance with immigration issues (if not criminal justice 
related). 

 
xiii. Telephone Contact (information & referral) is defined as contacts with 

victims during which time services and available support are identified 
and provided over the telephone.  This does not include calls during which 
counseling is the primary function of the telephone call. 

 
xiv. Other is defined as other VOCA allowable services not previously listed. 

 
II. Allocation of VOCA Victim Assistance Funds 
 

VOCA requires that priority shall be given to victims of sexual abuse, domestic 
abuse, child abuse, and previously underserved populations with a minimum of 10% 
of each federal fiscal year’s grant being allocated to each of these crime victim 
categories.  VOCA funds are intended to enhance and expand services to crime 
victims in the state of Arizona.  Services already provided through state, local and 
federal sources other than VOCA will not be eligible for funding, for example shelter 
beds, forensic exams, and victim notification and other mandated services.  This is 
not an all-inclusive list; for questions regarding service eligibility, contact DPS-
VOCA. 
 

III. VOCA Victim Assistance Application Process 
 

a. Subrecipient Application Process: 
 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 6 

DPS-VOCA issues a funding notice outlining the availability of grant program 
funding.  Applicants will verify eligibility and submit applications through the 
Web-based Automated Grant System via the internet.  Applications must be 
submitted on or before the stated deadline as determined by DPS-VOCA.  
Applications are reviewed and evaluated based upon: 

 
i. Compliance with the Victims of Crime Act and state program guidelines; 

 
ii. Completeness and clarity with which it addresses each section of the 

application; 
 

iii. Scope of the proposal in terms of the potential number of victims to be 
provided with appropriate services; 

 
iv. The overall concept, feasibility and likelihood of success of the proposal 

through the applicant’s program and fiscal structure; 
 

v. Accountability within the organization leading to quality service delivery; 
and 

 
vi. A budget which represents responsible grant expenditures and a cost-

effective proposal. 
 

An applicant’s past financial/program reporting history and program compliance 
may impact the final funding decision. 

 
Applicants will receive notice of award or denial via the internet.  If an agreement 
is issued, the subrecipient must return a signed subgrant award agreement prior to 
the beginning of the project period. 
 

b. Protest of Funding Decisions: 
 

An appeal shall comply with and be resolved according to A.R.S. 41-2704 and 
rules adopted there under.  Protests shall be made in writing to the DPS Director 
within ten (10) calendar days from the date of the email notification.  The protests 
shall include: 
 

1. The name, address and telephone number of the protester; 
2. The signature of the protester or its representative; 
3. A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest 

including copies of relevant documents; and  
4. the form of relief requested. 

 
The applicant agency cannot provide additional information that was not included 
in the original application. 
 

Administrator
Highlight



 

 7 

 
c. Applicant Organization Eligibility Requirements: 
 

VOCA establishes eligibility criteria which must be met by all organizations that 
receive VOCA funds.  Funds will only be awarded to applicants to provide 
services to victims of crime through their staff.  To be eligible for funding, each 
applicant agency shall meet the following requirements: 

 
i. Public Agency or Nonprofit Organization:  Applicant agency must be 

operated by a public agency or nonprofit organization, or a combination of 
such agencies or organizations, and provide services to crime victims. 

 
ii. Record of Effective Services:  Demonstrate a record of providing effective 

services to crime victims for at least one year.  This includes having the 
support and approval of its services by the community, a history of 
providing direct services in a cost-effective manner, and financial support 
from other sources.  Applicants are encouraged to promote the 
development of consistent, professional standards for recruitment, 
training, supervision, and delegation of crime victim service assignments 
to agency staff, regardless of funding source, and volunteers. 

 
New Programs:  Those agencies which have not yet demonstrated a record 
of providing victim services and have been operating less than one year 
from the submission of the grant application may be eligible to receive 
VOCA funding, if they can demonstrate that 25-50 percent of their 
financial support comes from non-federal sources, with the exception of 
funds appropriated by Congress for the activities of any agency of a tribal 
government as allowed for in the OJP Financial Guide.  It is important that 
agencies have a variety of funding sources besides federal funding in order 
to ensure their financial stability.  DPS-VOCA staff will establish the base 
level of non-federal financial support required within the 25-50 percent 
range for each applicant. 

 
iii. Program Match Requirements:  The purpose of matching contributions is 

to increase the amount of resources available to the projects supported by 
grant funds.  Matching contributions of 20 percent (cash or in-kind) of the 
total cost of each VOCA project (VOCA grant plus match) are required 
for each VOCA-funded project and must be derived from non-federal 
sources.  All funds designated as match are restricted to the same uses as 
the VOCA victim assistance grant funds and must be expended within the 
grant period.  Match must be provided on a project-by-project basis.  
Funds from other federal programs may not be used as sources of match 
for VOCA grants such as:  Department of Justice, VOCA, Byrne, COPS, 
STOP (Violence Against Women Act), FEMA, Health and Human 
Services (Rape Prevention, Family Violence), VOCA Children’s Justice 
Act, Americorps, and Housing and Urban Development grants. 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 8 

 
For the purposes of this program, in-kind match may include donations of 
expendable equipment, office supplies, workshop or classroom materials, 
work space, or the monetary value of time contributed by professionals 
and technical personnel and other skilled and unskilled labor, if the 
services they provide are an integral and necessary part of a funded 
project.  The value placed on donated services must be consistent with the 
rate of compensation paid for similar work in the subrecipient’s 
organization.  If the required skills are not found in the subrecipient’s 
organization, the rate of compensation must be consistent with the labor 
market.  In either case, fringe benefits may be included in the valuation.  
The value placed on loaned or donated equipment may not exceed its fair 
market value.  The value of donated space may not exceed the fair rental 
value of comparable space as established by an independent appraisal of 
comparable space and facilities in privately-owned buildings in the same 
locality.   
 
If volunteers are to be used as match, the salary rate should be consistent 
with those rates paid for similar professional work in the labor market in 
which the project operates or current minimum wage.  The rate for 
volunteers may not exceed the salary rate of grant paid staff doing the 
same type of work.  On-call time for volunteers may be included as match, 
at a rate not to exceed $2.00/hour.  Approval of on-call match will be 
considered by DPS-VOCA on a case-by-case basis based on the agency’s 
plan for tracking and reporting this time.  The actual time spent by on-call 
volunteers providing over-the-phone direct services may be claimed at an 
hourly rate consistent with those rates paid for similar professional work. 
 
Exceptions to the 20 percent Match:  VOCA sets a lower match 
requirement for Native American Tribes/Organizations located on 
Reservations.  The match for new or existing VOCA subrecipients 
meeting this requirement is 5 percent (cash or in-kind) of the total VOCA 
project. 
 
Record Keeping:  VOCA subrecipients must maintain records that clearly 
show the source, the amount, and the period during which the match was 
expended and reported to DPS-VOCA.  The basis for determining the 
value of personal services, materials, equipment, and space must be 
documented.  Volunteer services must be documented, and to the extent 
feasible, supported by the same methods used by the subrecipient for its 
own paid employees. 

 
iv. Volunteers:  Subrecipient organizations must use volunteers unless the 

state grantee determines there is a compelling reason to waive this 
requirement.  A “compelling reason” may be a statutory or contractual 
provision concerning liability or confidentiality of counselor/victim 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 9 

information, which bars using volunteers for certain positions, or the 
inability to recruit and maintain volunteers after a sustained and aggressive 
effort. 

 
v. Promote Community Efforts to Aid Crime Victims:  Promote, within the 

community, coordinated public and private efforts to aid crime victims.  
Coordination may include, but is not limited to, serving on state, federal, 
local, or Native American task forces, commissions, working groups, 
coalitions, and/or multi-disciplinary teams.  Coordination efforts also 
include developing written interagency agreements that contribute to 
better and more comprehensive services to crime victims.  Coordination 
efforts qualify an organization to receive VOCA victim assistance funds, 
but are not activities that can be supported with VOCA funds. 

 
vi. Help Victims Apply for Compensation Benefits:  Such assistance must 

include notifying crime victims of the availability of crime victim 
compensation, and/or assisting victims with application forms and 
procedures, obtaining necessary documentation, and/or checking on claim 
status. 

 
vii. Inform Victims of their Legal Rights:  To notify victims of their legal 

rights (A.R.S. 13-4401, et seq.) and offer to connect the victim with a 
representative from the prosecutor’s or county attorney’s office if the 
victim so chooses. 

 
viii. Comply with Federal Rules Regulating Grants:  Subrecipients must 

comply with the applicable provisions of the VOCA Guidelines and OJP 
Financial Guide, effective edition, which include maintaining appropriate 
programmatic and financial records that fully disclose the amount and 
disposition of VOCA funds received.  This includes:  financial 
documentation for disbursements; daily time and attendance records 
specifying time devoted to allowable VOCA victim services; client files; 
the portion of the project supplied by other sources of revenue; job 
descriptions; contracts for consultant services; and other records which 
facilitate an effective audit. 

 
ix. Ensure Access to Federally Assisted Programs:  Federal laws prohibit 

recipients (and subrecipients) of federal financial assistance from 
discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, 
disability or sex in funded programs or activities, not only in respect to 
employment practices but also in the delivery of services or benefits.  
Federal law also prohibits funded programs or activities from 
discriminating on the basis of age in the delivery of services or benefits.  
Recipients (and subrecipients) must also take reasonable steps to provide 
meaningful access to their programs and activities for persons with limited 
English proficiency (LEP). (For information on the civil rights 

Administrator
Highlight



 

 10 

responsibilities related to providing language services to LEP individuals, 
refer to http://www.lep.gov.) 

 
Certain VOCA subrecipients are required to provide civil rights 
certification to the US Department of Justice with a copy to DPS-VOCA.  
(Refer to http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/eeop.htm to determine your 
agency’s EEO requirement.) 

 
x. Maintain Civil Rights Information:  Subrecipient agencies must maintain 

statutorily required civil rights statistics on victims served by race, 
national origin, sex, age, and disability; and permit reasonable access to its 
books, documents, papers, and records to determine whether the 
subrecipient is complying with applicable civil rights laws.  This 
requirement is waived when providing a service, such as telephone 
counseling, where soliciting the information may be inappropriate or 
offensive to the crime victim.   

 
xi. Comply with State Criteria:  Subrecipients must abide by state eligibility 

or service criteria as established by DPS-VOCA including submission of 
monthly financial reports, quarterly statistical and programmatic reports, 
client feedback surveys utilized, annual narrative report, annual DPS-
VOCA survey, and other programmatic or service information requested 
by DPS on the use and impact of VOCA funds. 

 
xii. Services to Victims of Federal Crimes:  Subrecipients must provide 

services to victims of federal crimes on the same basis as victims of 
state/local crimes. 

 
xiii. No Charge to Victims for VOCA-funded Services:  Subrecipients must 

provide services to crime victims, at no charge, through the VOCA-funded 
project.  The purpose of the VOCA victim assistance grant program is to 
provide services to all crime victims regardless of their ability to pay for 
services rendered or availability of insurance or other third-party payment 
resources. Crime victims suffer tremendous emotional, physical, and 
financial losses.  It was never the intent of VOCA to exacerbate the impact 
of the crime by asking the victim to pay for services. 

 
xiv. Client-Counselor and Research Information Confidentiality:  

Subrecipients are required to maintain confidentiality of client-counselor 
information, as required by state and federal law. 

 
xv. Confidentiality of Research Information:  Except as otherwise provided by 

federal law, no recipient of monies under VOCA shall use or reveal any 
research or statistical information furnished under this program by any 
person and identifiable to any specific private person for any purpose 
other than the purpose for which such information was obtained in 

http://www.lep.gov/�
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/eeop.htm�
Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 11 

accordance with VOCA.  Such information, and any copy of such 
information, shall be immune from legal process and shall not, without the 
consent of the person furnishing such information, be admitted as 
evidence or used for any purpose in any action, suit, or other judicial, 
legislative, or administrative proceeding.  See Section 1407(d) of VOCA 
codified at 42 USC 10604. 

 
These provisions are intended, among other things, to ensure the 
confidentiality of information provided by crime victims to counselors 
working for victim service programs receiving VOCA funds.  Whatever 
the scope of application given this provision, it is clear that there is 
nothing in VOCA or its legislative history to indicate that Congress 
intended to override or repeal, in effect, a state’s existing law governing 
the disclosure of information which is supportive of VOCA’s fundamental 
goal of helping crime victims.  For example, this provision would not act 
to override or repeal, in effect, a state’s existing law pertaining to the 
mandatory reporting of suspected child abuse.  See Pennhurst School and 
Hospital v. Halderman, et al., 451 US 1 (1981).  Furthermore, this 
confidentiality provision should not be interpreted to thwart the legitimate 
informational needs of public agencies.  For example, this provision does 
not prohibit a domestic violence shelter from acknowledging, in response 
to an inquiry by a law enforcement agency conducting a missing person 
investigation, that the person is safe in the shelter.  Similarly, this 
provision does not prohibit access to a victim service project by a federal 
or state agency seeking to determine whether federal and state funds are 
being utilized in accordance with funding agreements. 

 
d. Eligible Subrecipient Organizations: 
 

VOCA specifies that an organization must provide direct services to crime 
victims and be operated by a public agency or non-profit organization, or a 
combination of such agencies or organizations in order to be eligible to receive 
VOCA funding.  Eligible organizations include victim services organizations 
whose sole mission is to provide direct services to crime victims.  These 
organizations include, but are not limited to, sexual assault and rape treatment 
centers, domestic violence programs and shelters, child abuse programs and 
children’s advocacy centers, mental health services, and other community-based 
victim organizations including those who serve survivors of homicide victims.  
Organizations whose sole purpose is to serve victims of crime will be given 
funding preference.  A public agency whose sole or principal purpose is the 
investigation, prosecution or adjudication of cases, or general criminal justice 
services, or which provides health and other services to the public at large, must 
demonstrate that the proposed project will provide a substantial increase in cost-
effective services to crime victims in its community.  A private non-profit 
organization whose sole purpose is to provide advocacy to the legislature for 
victims of crime or general community awareness of victims issues, will not be 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 12 

eligible for a VOCA victim assistance grant.  Occasional counseling or occasional 
victim assistance would not qualify for eligibility.   

 
In addition to victim services organizations, whose sole purpose is to serve crime 
victims, there are many other public and non-profit organizations that have 
components which offer services to crime victims.  These organizations are 
eligible to receive VOCA funds, if the funds are used to expand or enhance the 
delivery of crime victim services.  These organizations include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 
 

i. Criminal Justice Agencies:  Law enforcement agencies, prosecutors’ 
offices, courts, corrections departments, and probation and paroling 
authorities are eligible to receive VOCA funds to help pay for victim 
services.  For example, prosecutor-based victim services may include 
enhancements to victim-witness programs and assistance with victim 
impact statements, including statements of pecuniary damages for 
restitution.  Corrections-based victim services may include restitution 
advocacy, restorative justice programs such as victim-offender mediation 
and victim impact panels whose primary purpose is to benefit the victim.  
Police-based victim services may include victim crisis units or victim 
advocates, and cellular phone and alarm services for domestic abuse 
victims.  In general, VOCA funds may be used to provide crime victim 
services that exceed a law enforcement official’s normal duties.  Regular 
law enforcement duties such as crime scene intervention, questioning of 
victims and witnesses, investigation of the crime, and follow-up activities 
may not be paid for with VOCA funds.  The state Victims’ Rights 
program supports personnel in the prosecutor’s office whose day-to-day 
tasks and activities help fulfill the prosecutor’s obligation to victims with 
regards to the Crime Victim Rights Act.  VOCA grant funds may be 
awarded to prosecutors to support direct service positions that provide 
victim services that enhance and expand services beyond those mandated 
requirements under the Victim Rights Act; however, VOCA crime victim 
assistance funds cannot be used to supplant state and local funds that 
would otherwise be available for crime victim services. 

 
ii. Faith-Based Organizations:  Such organizations may receive VOCA funds 

but must ensure that services are offered to all crime victims without 
regard to religious affiliation and that the receipt of services is not 
contingent upon participation in a religious activity or event. 

 
iii. State Crime Victim Compensation Agencies:  Compensation programs, 

including both centralized and decentralized programs, may receive 
VOCA assistance funds if they offer direct services to crime victims that 
extend beyond the essential duties of compensation staff such as claims 
investigations, distribution of information about compensation and referral 
to other sources of public and private assistance.  Such services would 

Administrator
Highlight



 

 13 

include assisting victims in identifying and accessing needed services and 
resources. 

 
iv. Hospitals and Emergency Medical Facilities:  Such organizations must 

offer crisis counseling, support groups, and/or other types of victim 
services. 

 
v. Others:  State and local public agencies such as mental health service 

organizations, state/local public child and adult protective services, state 
grantees, legal services agencies and programs with a demonstrated 
history of advocacy on behalf of domestic violence victims, and public 
housing authorities that have components specifically trained to serve 
crime victims. 

 
e. Ineligible Recipients of VOCA Funds: 
 

Some public and non-profit organizations that offer services to crime victims are 
not eligible to receive VOCA victim assistance funding.  These organizations 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
i. Federal agencies:  This includes US Attorneys Offices and FBI Field 

Offices.  Receipt of VOCA funds would constitute an augmentation of the 
federal budget with money intended for state agencies.  However, private 
non-profit organizations that operate on federal land may be eligible 
subrecipients of VOCA victim assistance grant funds. 

 
ii. In-Patient Treatment Facilities:  For example, those designed to provide 

treatment to individuals with drug, alcohol, and/or mental health-related 
conditions. 

 
f. Services, Activities, and Costs at the Subrecipient Level 
 

i. Allowable Costs for Direct Services:  The following is a listing of 
services, activities, and costs that are eligible for support with VOCA 
victim assistance grant funds within a subrecipient’s organization: 

 
1. Immediate Health and Safety:  Those services which respond to the 

immediate emotional and physical needs (excluding medical care) 
of crime victims such as crisis intervention; accompaniment to 
hospitals for medical examinations; hotline counseling; emergency 
food; clothing for sexual assault victims after forensic medical 
examination; transportation; and shelter (including emergency, 
short-term nursing shelter for elder abuse victims for whom no 
other safe, short-term residence is available); and other emergency 
services that are intended to restore the victim’s sense of security.  
This includes services that offer an immediate measure of safety to 



 

 14 

crime victims such as boarding up broken windows and replacing 
or repairing locks.  Also allowable is emergency legal assistance 
such as filing personal protection orders and obtaining emergency 
custody/visitation rights when such actions are directly connected 
to family violence cases and are taken to ensure the health and 
safety of the victim. 

 
2. Mental Health Assistance:  Those services and activities that assist 

the primary and secondary victims of crime in understanding the 
dynamics of victimization and in stabilizing their lives after a 
victimization such as counseling, group treatment, and therapy. 

 
3. Assistance with Participation in Criminal Justice Proceedings:  In 

addition to the cost of emergency legal services noted above in 
section 1. “Immediate Health and Safety”, there are other costs 
associated with helping victims participate in the criminal justice 
system that also are allowable.  These services may include 
advocacy on behalf of crime victims; accompaniment to criminal 
justice offices and court; transportation to court; child care or 
respite care for a dependent adult to enable a victim to attend court; 
enhanced victim support services not covered by the Victims’ 
Rights Act, assistance with post sentencing parole consideration 
procedures; assistance with victim impact statements, and 
restitution advocacy on behalf of specific crime victims.  Victim 
notification and other legally mandated services are not VOCA 
eligible.  VOCA funds cannot be used to pay for non-emergency 
legal representation such as divorces, child custody disputes, or 
civil restitution recovery efforts. 

 
4. Forensic Examinations:  For sexual assault victims, forensic exams 

are allowable costs only to the extent that other funding sources 
(such as state compensation or private insurance or public benefits) 
are unavailable or insufficient and, such exams conform with state 
evidentiary collection requirements. 

 
5. Costs Necessary and Essential to Providing Direct Services:  This 

includes pro-rated costs of rent (mortgage costs are not allowed), 
telephone service, transportation costs for victims to receive 
services, emergency transportation costs that enable a victim to 
participate in the criminal justice system, and local travel expenses 
for service providers.  The VOCA grant application instructions 
may outline dollar limitations for these other costs. 

 
6. Special Services:  Services to assist crime victims with managing 

practical problems created by the victimization such as acting on 
behalf of the victim with other service providers, creditors, or 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 15 

employers; assisting the victim to recover property that is retained 
as evidence; assisting victims in filing for crime victims 
compensation; and helping victims to apply for public assistance. 

 
7. Personnel Costs:  Costs that are directly related to providing direct 

services, such as staff salaries and fringe benefits, including 
professional malpractice insurance; the cost of advertising to 
recruit VOCA-funded personnel; and the cost of training for paid 
and volunteer direct service staff.  Subrecipients may only request 
reimbursement from VOCA for leave hours accrued and taken 
during the current grant period.  Leave accruals and leave taken 
should be tracked, by position, throughout the year to ensure that 
leave charged to the grant does not exceed the annual accrual 
amount. 

 
8. Restorative Justice:  Opportunities for crime victims to meet with 

perpetrators, if such meetings are requested or voluntarily agreed 
to by the victim and have possible beneficial or therapeutic value 
to crime victims. 

 
Review of the criteria for conducting these meetings and 
discussion of the proposed application with federal officials will be 
undertaken prior to awarding VOCA funds for this type of activity.  
At a minimum, the following will be considered:  (1) the safety 
and security of the victim; (2) the benefit or therapeutic value to 
the victim; (3) the procedures for ensuring that participation of the 
victim and offender are voluntary and that everyone understands 
the nature of the meeting; (4) the provision of appropriate support 
and accompaniment for the victim; (5) appropriate “debriefing” 
opportunities for the victim after the meeting or panel; (6) the 
credentials of the facilitators; (7) the opportunity for a crime victim 
to withdraw from the process at any time.  VOCA assistance funds 
cannot be used for victim-offender meetings which serve to replace 
criminal justice proceedings. 

 
g. Other Allowable Costs and Services: 
 

The services, activities, and costs listed below are not generally considered direct 
crime victim services but are often a necessary and essential activity to ensure that 
quality direct services are provided.  Before these costs can be supported with 
VOCA funds, DPS-VOCA staff will determine that direct services to crime 
victims cannot be offered without support for these expenses; that the subrecipient 
has no other source of support for them; and that only limited amounts of VOCA 
funds will be used for these purposes.  The following list provides examples of 
such items: 

 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 16 

i. Skills Training for Staff:  VOCA funds designated for training are to be 
used exclusively for developing the skills of direct service providers 
including paid staff and volunteers, so that they are better able to offer 
quality services to crime victims.  An example of skills development is 
training focused on how to respond to a victim in crisis, to include CPR 
and first aid training. 

 
VOCA funds can be used for registration fees for training both VOCA-
funded and non VOCA-funded service providers who work within a 
VOCA subrecipient organization, but VOCA funds cannot be used for 
management and administrative training for executive directors, board 
members, and other individuals that do not provide direct services. 

 
1. Victim Compensation Training:  Subrecipients will designate a 

victim compensation coordinator within their agency.  This 
coordinator must have received victim compensation training from 
their county attorney’s office or completed the Arizona Criminal 
Justice Commission’s (ACJC) online Introduction to Crime Victim 
Compensation training module 
 (http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/victim/cbttraining.aspx). If this 
training has not been received, subrecipients will ensure training 
has been received within 90 days from the start of the subgrant 
award agreement or 90 days after re-assignment of new staff in this 
role.  DPS recommends that all direct service staff complete the 
ACJC online training, thereby enhancing each staff member’s 
ability to assist victims with the Crime Victim Compensation 
application process.  

 
2. Victims’ Rights Training:  Non-criminal justice agencies will 

ensure that all DPS VOCA-funded staff and their first line 
supervisor have received victims’ rights training from the Arizona 
Attorney General’s Office or another criminal justice agency. 

 
3. Civil Rights and Non-discrimination Training:  Subrecipients will 

designate a Civil Rights Contact Person within their agency.  This 
person must complete the on-line civil rights training program 
developed by the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice 
Programs (OJP), Department of Justice (DOJ).  The training must 
be completed within 90 days from the start of the subgrant award 
agreement.  If the Civil Rights Contact Person changes during the 
grant period, the new Civil Rights Contact Person has 90 days to 
complete this training requirement.  This training is required 
annually and can be accessed at    
www.azcjc.gov/Knowledge%20Presenter/OCR/Courses/index.html .  
DPS recommends that all employees complete the on-line civil 

http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/victim/cbttraining.aspx�
http://www.azcjc.gov/Knowledge%20Presenter/OCR/Courses/index.html�
Administrator
Highlight



 

 17 

rights training module, thereby enhancing each staff member’s 
understanding of civil rights and non-discrimination regulations. 

  
ii. Training Materials:  VOCA funds can be used to purchase materials such 

as books, training manuals, and videos for direct service providers, within 
the VOCA-funded organization, and can support the costs of a trainer for 
in-service staff development.  Staff from other organizations may attend 
in-service training activities that are held for the subrecipient staff 
provided that the number of outside trainees is minimal compared to those 
being trained for the agency. 

 
iii. Training Related Travel:  VOCA funds can support costs such as travel, 

meals, and lodging to attend skills building conference training within 
Arizona or a similar geographic area so that travel costs will be minimal.  
Rental car costs may be allowable with prior approval from DPS-VOCA 
and must follow the state travel policy.  Travel costs included in VOCA 
agreements may not exceed current state rates or agency Board approved 
travel rates, whichever is less.  Current state travel rates can be found in 
the Public Forms and Information Section of the Web-based Automated 
Grants System.  On-site supporting documentation of travel expenses 
charged to this agreement must be maintained. 

 
Travel costs associated with attendance at in-state skills building 
conferences offered by various Arizona coalitions, the Attorney General’s 
Office, and other established organizations are allowable skills 
development training opportunities for direct service staff.  When needed 
training is unavailable within the immediate geographical area, DPS-
VOCA may authorize, on an individual basis, the use of VOCA funds to 
support training outside of Arizona.  For example, VOCA subrecipients 
may benefit from attending national conferences that offer skills building 
training workshops for victim assistance providers, such as the National 
Organization for Victims Assistance (NOVA) Conference.  Although 
training may be a VOCA allowable cost, the specific training/conference 
agenda must be submitted to DPS for review and approval.  Agencies 
should not incur expenses until the training is approved by DPS.  

 
iv. Equipment and Furniture:  VOCA funds may be utilized to purchase 

furniture and equipment that supports or enhances direct services to crime 
victims, as demonstrated by the VOCA subrecipient.  VOCA funds cannot 
support the entire cost of an item that is not used exclusively for victim-
related activities.  However, VOCA funds can support a prorated share of 
such an item.  In addition, VOCA funds may not be used to purchase 
equipment for another organization or individual to perform a victim-
related service. 

 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 18 

Examples of allowable costs may include pagers, cell phones; video-tape 
cameras and players for interviewing children; two-way mirrors; TVs, 
VCRs, Polaroid cameras, equipment, furniture, desks, chairs and locking 
file cabinets for staff work spaces, personal computers and printers, chairs 
and tables for victim waiting rooms and children’s play areas.  The costs 
of furniture, equipment such as Braille equipment or TTY/TTD machines 
for the deaf, minor building alterations/improvements that make victim 
services more accessible to persons with disabilities are allowable.  Before 
decisions are made on approval of these items, these requests will be 
reviewed in accordance with the federal financial guidelines. 
 
Capital Equipment is any item in excess of $5,000.  Subrecipients are 
required to maintain capital equipment records and report periodically 
with the following:  a description of the property and a serial or other 
identifying number; identification of title holder; the acquisition date; the 
cost and the percentage of VOCA funds supporting the purchase; the 
location, use, and condition of the property; and any disposition data, 
including the date of disposal and sale price. 

 
v. Purchasing or Leasing Vehicles:  VOCA funds may be used to purchase or 

lease vehicles if it can be demonstrated to DPS-VOCA that such an 
expenditure is essential to delivering services to crime victims.   

 
vi. Advanced Technologies:  At times, technology may increase a 

subrecipient’s ability to reach and serve crime victims.  For example, 
satellite Orders of Protection locations have dramatically improved the 
efficiency of criminal justice participation and enhanced victim safety and 
security.  VOCA funds may not be able to support the entire cost of such 
technology. 

 
vii. Contracts for Professional Services:  VOCA funds generally should not be 

used to support contracted services, and subrecipients are prohibited from 
using a majority of VOCA funds for contracted services.  Principal 
activities of the project may not be subgranted or contracted out to another 
organization without the approval of DPS-VOCA staff.  At times, 
however, it may be necessary for VOCA subrecipients to use a portion of 
the VOCA grant to contract for specialized services.  Examples of these 
services include emergency legal assistance in filing personal protection 
orders or establishing emergency custody/visitation rights in family 
violence cases (the provider must have a demonstrated history of advocacy 
on behalf of domestic violence victims); forensic examinations on a sexual 
assault victim to the extent that other funding sources are unavailable or 
insufficient; emergency psychological or psychiatric services; or sign 
and/or interpretation for the deaf or for crime victims whose primary 
language is not English. 

 



 

 19 

Subrecipients are prohibited from using a majority of VOCA funds for 
contracted services, which contain administrative, overhead, and other 
indirect costs in the hourly or daily rate. 
 
Contractual fees may not exceed rates set by DPS-VOCA and agencies 
must maintain signed agreements for consultant/contractual services. 

 
viii. Operating Costs:  Examples of allowable operating costs include supplies; 

equipment use fees, when supported by usage logs; printing, 
photocopying, and postage; brochures which describe available services; 
and books and other victim related materials.  VOCA funds may support 
administrative time of the funded staff to complete VOCA-required time 
and attendance sheets and programmatic documentation, reports, statistics, 
and time to maintain crime victims’ records.  VOCA funds cannot support 
accounting or payroll processing service costs. 

 
ix. Supervision of Direct Service Providers:  VOCA funds may be used for 

supervision of direct service providers when it is determined by DPS-
VOCA personnel that such supervision is necessary and essential to 
providing direct services to crime victims.  For example, using VOCA 
funds to support a coordinator of volunteers or interns is a cost-effective 
way of serving more crime victims. 

 
x. Repair and/or Replacement of Essential Items:  VOCA funds may be used 

for repair and replacement of items that contribute to maintaining a 
healthy and/or safe environment for crime victims, such as a furnace in a 
shelter.  Each request for VOCA funds for such purposes will be 
scrutinized to ensure the following:  (1) that the building is owned by the 
subrecipient organization and not rented or leased, (2) all other sources of 
funding have been exhausted, (3) there is no available option for providing 
the service in another location, (4) the cost of the repair or replacement is 
reasonable considering the value of the building, and (5) the cost of the 
repair or replacement is pro-rated among all sources of income. 

 
xi. Public Presentations:  VOCA funds may be used to support presentations 

that are made in schools, community centers, or other public forums, and 
that are designed to identify crime victims and provide or refer them to 
needed services.  Specifically, activities and costs related to such programs 
including presentation materials, brochures, and newspaper notices can be 
supported by VOCA funds.  This activity may be an occasional duty of a 
VOCA-funded position. 

 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 20 

h. Non-Allowable Costs and Activities:   
 

The following services, activities, and costs, although not exhaustive, cannot be 
supported with VOCA victim assistance funds at the subrecipient level: 

 
i. Lobbying and Administrative Advocacy:  VOCA funds cannot support 

victim legislation or administrative reform, whether conducted directly or 
indirectly. 

 
ii. Perpetrator Rehabilitation and Counseling:  Subrecipients cannot use 

VOCA funds to offer rehabilitative services to offenders.  Likewise, 
VOCA funds cannot support services to incarcerated individuals, even 
when the service pertains to the victimization of that individual. 

 
iii. Needs Assessments, Surveys, Evaluations, and Studies:  VOCA program 

funds may not be used to pay for efforts conducted by individuals, 
organizations, task forces, or special commissions to study and/or research 
particular crime victim issues. 

 
iv. Prosecution Activities:  VOCA funds cannot be used to pay for activities 

that are directed at prosecuting an offender and/or improving the criminal 
justice system’s effectiveness and efficiency, such as witness notification 
and management activities and expert testimony at a trial.  VOCA funds 
cannot support the service of Orders of Protection.  In addition, victim 
witness protection costs and subsequent lodging and meal expenses are 
considered part of the criminal justice agency’s responsibility and cannot 
be supported with VOCA funds. 

 
v. Fundraising Activities. 

 
vi. Indirect Organizational Costs:  The costs of liability insurance on 

buildings; capital improvements; security guards and body guards; 
occupancy charges; property losses and expenses; real estate purchases; 
mortgage payments; and construction may not be supported with VOCA 
funds. 

 
vii. Property Loss:  Reimbursing crime victims for expenses incurred as a 

result of a crime such as insurance deductibles, replacement of stolen 
property, funeral expenses, lost wages, and medical bills is not allowed. 

 
viii. Most Medical Costs:  VOCA victim assistance funds cannot support 

medical costs resulting from a victimization, except for forensic medical 
examinations for sexual assault victims only to the extent that other 
funding sources (such as state compensation or private insurance, or 
public benefits) are unavailable or insufficient.  

 

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 21 

VOCA funds cannot pay for nursing home care, home healthcare costs, in-
patient treatment costs, hospital care, and other types of emergency and 
non-emergency medical and/or dental treatment. 

 
ix. Relocation Expenses:  VOCA funds cannot support relocation expenses 

for crime victims such as moving expenses, security deposits on housing, 
ongoing rent, and mortgage payments.  However, VOCA funds may be 
used to support staff time in locating resources to assist victims with these 
expenses. 

 
x. Administrative Staff Expenses:  VOCA funds may not support salaries, 

fees, and reimbursable expenses associated with administrators, board 
members, executive directors, consultants, coordinators, and other 
individuals, unless these expenses are incurred while providing direct 
services to crime victims. 

 
xi. Development of Protocols, Interagency Agreements, and Other Working 

Agreements:  These activities benefit crime victims, but are considered 
examples of the types of activities that subrecipients undertake as part of 
their role as a victim services organization, which in turn qualifies the 
agency as an eligible VOCA subrecipient. 

 
xii. Costs of Sending Individual Crime Victims to Conferences. 

 
xiii. Activities Exclusively Related to Crime Prevention. 

 
IV. Subrecipient Responsibilities 
 

a. Financial and Program Reporting: 
 

Subrecipients must adhere to all reporting requirements and timelines for 
submitting the required reports, as indicated below.  Failure to do so may result in 
a hold being placed on the reimbursement of all current year funds, a hold being 
placed on processing the next year’s grant award, or can result in the suspension 
or termination of a grant or denial of a grant application.  All required reports as 
outlined below are to be completed through the on-line grants management 
system at http://crime.azvictims.org/AZVOCA/default.asp . 

 
Subrecipients are required to submit the following reports by the dates noted 
below.  Failure to submit required reports by the deadline will result in the 
withholding of funds until the delinquency is cleared.  If an agency has more than 
one project funded by DPS-VOCA, a reporting or performance delinquency from 
one project will result in the withholding of payment for all current projects.  
Mailed and facsimile copies of reports will not be accepted for processing. 
 

http://crime.azvictims.org/AZVOCA/default.asp�
Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 22 

i. Monthly Financial Reports are due the 15th of each month following the 
end of the monthly report period.  This report must reflect actual federal 
and match expenditures. 

 
ii. Quarterly Statistical and Programmatic Reports are due no later than 30 

days following the end of the quarter.  This report includes quarterly 
victim service and performance measure activities. 

 
iii. Annual Narrative Report is due no later than 30 days following the end of 

the project period.   
 

iv. Year-end Agreement Amendment Request must be submitted on line 
when a subrecipient has remaining funds in their budgets to reflect actual 
expenditures.  This process will automatically revert unexpended funds to 
DPS.  Year-end amendments are due no later than 30 days following the 
end of the project period. 

 
v. DPS Annual Crime Victim Assistance survey is due annually upon 

request. 
 

Failure to submit complete, accurate and timely required reports may 
result in a reduction of the current award.  Any three combined 
occurrences of monthly or quarterly reports submitted over 15 days late 
and/or three combined occurrences relating to the submission of 
incomplete or inaccurate monthly or quarterly reports may result in up to a 
10% award reduction as determined by DPS. 

 
b. Amendments: 

 
To modify a current agreement, the subrecipient is required to use an Agreement 
Amendment Request form to notify and request changes.  This request must be 
completed on line and is required for all modifications to include:  (1) budget 
changes; (2) changes in funded staff; or (3) changes in scope of the programmatic 
activities or purpose of the project.  All changes must be justified with a detailed 
explanation. 
 
The following changes don’t require an Agreement Amendment and may be 
requested via email through the subrecipient’s grant coordinator:  (1) Project 
Contact; (2) Civil Rights Contact; (3) Crime Victim Compensation Coordinator; 
(4) Project Director; (5) Financial Contact; (6) Authorized Official; (7) telephone 
numbers; (8) email addresses; or (9) project address changes. 

 
c. Beginning the Project:   

 
If a project is not operational within 60 days of the original start date of the 
project period, the subrecipient must submit written documentation to DPS-

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight

Administrator
Highlight



 

 23 

VOCA explaining steps taken to initiate the project, the reasons for the delay, and 
the expected start date.  If a project is not operational within 90 days of the 
original start date of the project period, the subrecipient must submit a second 
written statement explaining the implementation delay.  DPS reserves the right to 
cancel the agreement if the proposed project is not operational within 90 days of 
the original start date. 

 
d. Funding Acknowledgement: 

 
If subrecipient receives VOCA funding for printing costs, to include materials 
publicizing award activities, press releases, program brochures and other 
information about the project, acknowledgement of VOCA support must be 
included on all publications in the following format: 

 
This project is supported by Grant No. 20__-VA-GX-00__ from the US 
Department of Justice - Office for Victims of Crime.  The opinions, 
findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this 
publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not 
necessarily reflect the views of the US DOJ or the Arizona Department of 
Public Safety. 

 
e. Notice of Crime Victim Service Availability: 
 

All non-profit subrecipients will provide formal notice of available project 
services to all law enforcement agencies and prosecuting attorneys within the 
service area of the funded project within 60 days of the project start date.  A copy 
of this notice and distribution list must be maintained and available upon request 
by DPS.  The notice will include: 

 
i. A brief project description containing the target clientele (victim groups), 

available services, hours of service, and area of services. 
 

ii. A telephone number to access services. 
 

iii. The name of the project director. 
 

iv. Acknowledgement that the project is funded through the DPS-VOCA 
program. 

 
f. Civil Rights Policy and Disclosure of Findings of Discrimination: 
 

As a recipient of VOCA funds, subrecipients must comply with federal and state 
statutes and regulations that prohibit discrimination in federally assisted programs 
or activities.  This includes hiring on the basis of race, color, religion, national 
origin, sex, age and disability, and the delivery of services or benefits.  (For a 
complete list of statutes and regulations, refer to the Federal and State Statutes 



 

 24 

and Regulations Governing the AZDPS VOCA Grant Program available on the 
Public Forms and Information page of the AZDPS Web-based Automated Grants 
System (http://crime.azvictims.org/azvoca/pdf/)). 
 
The AZDPS CVS Civil Rights Webpage 
(http://www.azdps.gov/Services/Crime_Victims/CivilRight/)  includes a link to 
the CVS policy which lays out the procedures U.S. Department of Justice grant 
program subrecipients must use to respond to discrimination complaints from 
their employees, clients, customers, program participants or consumers. For 
questions or help, please contact the AZDPS CVS Civil Rights Complaint 
Coordinator at: azvictims@azdps.gov.   
 
A subrecipient must inform DPS-VOCA in writing if any federal or state court or 
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination taken against the 
subrecipient on the grounds of race, religion, national origin, sex, disability or 
age.  A copy of the findings must be forwarded to DPS-VOCA for the state of 
Arizona and the Office for Civil Rights Compliance at Office of Justice Programs 
at the Department of Justice. 

 
g. Reporting Suspected Fraud, Waste and Abuse: 
 

In the event of a formal allegation or a finding of fraud, waste, and/or abuse of 
VOCA funds, subrecipients are required to immediately notify DPS-VOCA of 
said finding.  Subrecipients are also obligated to apprise DPS-VOCA of the status 
of any on-going investigations. 

 
h. Audit Responsibilities for Subrecipients: 
 

As a condition of receiving an agreement, subrecipients shall adhere to the 
financial and administrative provisions set forth in the VOCA Guidelines, OJP 
Financial Guide, and applicable OMB Circulars and Common Rules.  This section 
describes the audit requirements for subrecipients. 
 
Consistent with regulations set forth by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996, and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, revision, “Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” as revised, 
(www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants), the following is required: 
 

• All agencies which expend $500,000 or more in federal funding during a 
fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that 
year.   

• All agencies which expend $500,000 or more in federal funding during a 
fiscal year shall have a single audit conducted except when they elect to 
have a program specific audit conducted.  

• All agencies which expend less than $500,000 in federal funding during a 
fiscal year are exempt from audit requirements for that year, but records 

http://crime.azvictims.org/azvoca/pdf/�
http://crime.azvictims.org/azvoca/pdf/�
http://crime.azvictims.org/azvoca/pdf/�
http://www.azdps.gov/Services/Crime_Victims/CivilRight/�
http://www.azdps.gov/Services/Crime_Victims/CivilRight/�
mailto:azvictims@azdps.gov�
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants�


 

 25 

must be available for review or audit by DPS or federal agencies (i.e. 
Federal awarding agency or General Accounting Office).   

 
Each agency must apply the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996, and the revised OMB Circular A-133, to determine if it is subject to an 
organization-wide “single audit” or “program specific audit,” based on the level 
of federal expenditures.  If an organization-wide “single audit” is required, federal 
expenditures should be included in the scope of the auditor’s risk-based approach, 
as provided by the revised OMB Circular A-133.  A “program specific audit” may 
be performed when an agency expends $500,000 in federal funds under only one 
federal program (i.e. VOCA). 
 
All auditees shall submit a Reporting Package and Data Collection Form for 
Reporting on Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations  
to:  
 
 Federal Audit Clearinghouse 

Bureau of the Census 
1201 E. 10th Street  
Jeffersonville, IN 47132 

  
If the audit disclosed findings, the auditee shall prepare a corrective action plan to 
address each audit finding included in the auditor’s reports.  The corrective action 
plan shall provide the name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective 
action, the corrective action planned, and the anticipated completion date.  If the 
auditee does not agree with the audit findings or believes corrective action is not 
required, the corrective action plan shall include an explanation and specific 
reason.   

 
A copy of the corrective action plan, along with a copy of the audit report, must 
be mailed to: 
 
 Arizona Department of Public Safety 
 VOCA Administration – Mail Drop 1320 
 PO Box 6638 
 Phoenix, AZ 85005-6638 

 
V. State and Federal Financial and Programmatic Monitoring 
 

The state and federal financial and programmatic officials conduct periodic reviews 
of the financial policies, procedures, and records of VOCA subrecipients.  While on 
site, personnel will review various agreement documents and files such as:  (1) 
reports; (2) policies and procedures governing the organization and the VOCA funds; 
(3) programmatic records of victims’ services; and (4) volunteer logs and time and 
attendance records; and (5) supporting documentation for costs supported by VOCA 
funds.  Subrecipients will be subject to site inspections by state officials. 
 

Administrator
Highlight



 

 26 

The subrecipient shall retain all financial records, supporting documentation, 
statistical records and all other records pertinent to this award until March 31 of the 
seventh year following the year indicated in the Federal Grant Number of the 
Subgrant Award Agreement.  With a 24-hour notice, the subrecipient will allow DPS 
and the Department of Justice’s Office for Victims of Crime and/or the Office of the 
Chief Financial Officer (or their representatives) to review all of the subrecipients 
records concerning this grant project.  
 

VI. Suspension and Termination of Funding 
 

An agreement is in full force and effect for the period specified in the subgrant award 
agreement, but is subject to cancellation/termination as identified in General 
Conditions, 8.1 – 8.7. 
 
Failure of the Subrecipient to utilize DPS VOCA funds for direct services to crime 
victims or for training purposes as stated in the approved budget will be subject to 
immediate cancellation.  The Subrecipient will not utilize VOCA funds for projects 
which serve perpetrators of crime or crime prevention, and/or for any other non-
allowable cost or activity in accordance with DPS / VOCA guidelines.  The 
Subrecipient agrees to reimburse DPS for any VOCA funds the Subrecipient expends 
that are not in full compliance with this sub-grant award agreement.   
 
 
IMPORTANT NOTE: 
 
When completing the on-line application, always refer to the on-line instruction 
screens for all rules regarding variable rates and values referred to in these guidelines, 
(e.g. mileage rates, deadlines, contact information).  The on-line instruction screens 
are maintained by DPS-VOCA and are current for this funding year. 

 



   

ARF-3541     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
The Gila County Superior Court provides mediation services in domestic relations
cases involving children; as parental access and visitation are often the
focus, these particular services can be reimbursed through grant opportunities offered
by the Department of Economic Security - Division of Child Support Services.

Background Information
Since Federal Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Gila County Superior Court Administration has
participated in the "Access and Visitation Grant" offered through the Arizona
Department of Economic Security (A.Z.D.E.S.).  An Intergovernmental Agreement has
been executed, pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952 (J) every year thereafter.  The funds
provided by A.Z.D.E.S. reimburse Gila County for the costs of specific services like
Mediation, the Development of Parenting Plans, and Parenting Classes to improve
parenting time for the non-custodial parent in applicable domestic relations cases.

Evaluation
In Federal Fiscal Year 2015, Gila County Superior Court Administration applied for,
and qualified for, funds in the amount of $6,697.17.  As Court Administration
participated in the grant consistently and met all reporting requirements, an additional
$4,555.56 in Supplemental Funds was awarded.  In total, Gila County Superior Court
qualified for $11,252.73 to reimburse applicable service costs.

While the actual application for Federal Fiscal Year 2016 has been held due to legal
technicalities at Arizona Department of Economic Security - Division of Child Support
Services,  an Intergovernmental Agreement between AZDES and the Gila County
Superior Court has been executed and approved by the Attorney General.  Once the
application is presented, Superior Court Administration will once again apply for these
funds.

Conclusion
Continued participation in the Arizona Department of Economic Security's Access and
Visitation grant is in the best interest of Gila County Superior Court stakeholders and
citizens as Gila County is reimbursed for services which foster better relationships
between non-custodial parents and their children.

Recommendation
The Presiding Judge of the Gila County Superior Court, Hon. Timothy Wright,



The Presiding Judge of the Gila County Superior Court, Hon. Timothy Wright,
recommends that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the on-going
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County Superior Court Administration and
the Arizona Department of Economic Security's Division of Child Support Services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the on-going Intergovernmental Agreement
between Gila County Superior Court Administration and the Arizona Department of
Economic Security to provide additional resources that facilitate access and visitation
for non-custodial parents and their children.  (Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
DES A & V Grant FFY15
DES A & V Supplemental Funds FFY15
DES IGA FFY16



































































   

ARF-3486     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-01-15 to
06-30-16

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program Education Support Services.

Background Information
On March 3, 2015, the Board of Supervisors authorized the Gila County Health
Department to submit a Request for Grant Application (RFGA) No. ADHS15-00004836
to the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $201,572 in grant
funds from Arizona Nutrition Network for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance and
Education Program Grant.

The purpose of the grant is to develop and implement comprehensive nutrition and
physical activity programs. These comprehensive programs will address local needs
related to nutrition, physical activity, and obesity prevention, utilizing evidence-based
strategies, and resources as outlined in the AzNN Obesity Prevention Resource Guide.
In addition to direct education, Grantees must select one or more Policy, Systems, and
Environmental Change (PSE) strategies from at least two focus areas. Direct Education
is required and must compliment the selected PSE strategies.

On August 17, 2015, the Board approved Amendment numbers 1 through 4 to RFGA
No. ADHS15-00004836.  The amendments changed the application due date and
revised the verbiage in some sections within the application. 

On August 28, 2015, Gila County received notification from ADHS of a grant award in
the amount of $200,638 to provide AzNN Snap-Ed, Local Implementation Services
effective October 1, 2015, for federal fiscal year 2016.

Evaluation
For many years, health programs have focused on individual behavior, assuming that



For many years, health programs have focused on individual behavior, assuming that
if you teach people what will make them healthy, they will find a way to do it.
Unfortunately, being healthy is not just about individual choices. Where you live
affects how you live - you simply can’t make healthy decisions if healthy options aren’t
available to you.

The award of Grant No. ADHS15-00004836 for AzNN, SNAP-Ed and Local
Implementation Services has opened the door for the Gila County Health Department
to implement a policy, systems, and environmental change focus that makes healthier
choices a real, feasible option for every community member by looking at the laws,
rules and environments that impact our behavior. Policy, systems and environmental
change is a way of modifying the environment to make healthy choices practical and
available to all community members. By changing laws and shaping physical
landscapes, a big impact can be made with little time and resources. By changing
policies, systems and or environments, communities can help tackle health issues like
obesity, diabetes, cancer and other chronic diseases.

Conclusion
To meet grant requirements, Gila County is seeking contract support services for the
administration of food systems and active living services in alignment with the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed)/, Arizona Nutrition
Network (AzNN), and Policy System and Environmental (PSE) strategies.  Gila County
will contract with one Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian
Nutritionist (RDN) to collaborate with Gila County to support the implementation of
farmers' market strategies, promote participation in local physical activity resources
and support the implementation of wellness policies in schools and early childhood
programs.

Upon approval from the Board of Supervisors, the advertisement for Request for
Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services will run in the December 23, 2015, and December 30, 2015, editions
of the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper with a proposal due date of January 6, 2016.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health & Emergency Services
Division Director that the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of Request
for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services to be published for two consecutive weeks in the Arizona Silver Belt
newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services.  (Jeff Hessenius and Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
RFP NO. 110615-1-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services



Approved as to Form



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES  
 

 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a 
program for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      4:00 PM, MST, Wednesday, January 06, 2016 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
        GUERRERO COMPLEX 
        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the Finance 
Department Guerrero Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later 
than the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  
The prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Guerrero Complex building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the Request for Sealed Proposals forms included in this RFP No. 110615-1 
package, and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-8612 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this Request for Proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Jeannie Sgroi, 
Contracts Administrator, at jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-8612. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt:  December 23, 2015 and December 30, 2015 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
 for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 110615-1 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
John D. Marcanti, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a 
program for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      4:00 PM, MST, Wednesday, February 03, 2016 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
        GUERRERO COMPLEX 
        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Guerrero Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later 
than the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  
The prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Guerrero Complex building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 110615-1 
package, and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-8612 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Jeannie Sgroi, 
Contracts Administrator, at jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-8612. 
 
The board of supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the clerk of the board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt:  January 13, 2016 and January 20, 2016 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
 for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 
 

 

Notice of Solicitation ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................... 4-6 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders............................................................................................. 7-9 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ................................................................................................................... 7 
 Amendments ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Inquiries .............................................................................................................................................. 8 
 Late Proposals .................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Submittal Bid Format ..................................................................................................................... 8-9 

General Terms and Conditions .................................................................................................10-11 

 Award of Contract ............................................................................................................................ 10 
 Protests ............................................................................................................................................ 10 
 Laws & Ordinances ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ..................................................................................12-17 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ................................................................................................ 12 
 Authority to Contract ....................................................................................................................... 12 
 Contract Amendments ..................................................................................................................... 12 
 Contract Default ............................................................................................................................... 13 
 Right to Assurance ........................................................................................................................... 13 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ........................................................................... 13 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ..................................................................................................... 13 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 13-14 

Indemnification Clause ..................................................................................................................... 14 
Insurance Requirements ............................................................................................................ 15-17 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ..............................................................18-20 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose ........................................................................................................... 18 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ........................................................................................................ 19 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................... 19-20 
  

Qualification and Certification Forms .......................................................................................21-22 

Price Sheet ................................................................................................................................. 23 

Reference List ............................................................................................................................. 24 

No Collusion Form ...................................................................................................................... 25 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ......................................................................................... 26 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance ........................................................................................ 27 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ....................................................................................... 28 

Offer Page .................................................................................................................................. 29 

Acceptance of Offer Page ............................................................................................................ 30 

 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 3 
 

 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
INTENT 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services 
 

INTENT: 
 

The purpose of this request is to implement the Gila County Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program Education (SNAP-Ed) food systems, active living, school health, and early childhood strategies 
in collaboration with Gila County Health and Emergency Services. 
 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 4 
 

 
 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
The Contractor shall: 

 Implement the Gila County SNAP-Ed food systems and active living strategies in alignment with AzNN 
guidelines. 

 Provide technical assistance and subject matter expertise in SNAP-Ed administration, including, but not 
limited to, implementation of PSE strategies consistent with state and federal regulations. 

 Work directly with Gila County stakeholders in all aspect of SNAP-Ed implementation. 

 Maintain staffing requirements for a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN). 

 Attend and participate in AzNN trainings and Partner Meetings. 

 Abide by the most current AzNN Policies and Procedures Manual. 

 Utilize materials and messages as identified by the AzNN. 

 Follow the current USDA Dietary Guidelines for Americans and the USDA Food Guidance System. 

 Follow the current Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans. 

 Maintain at least 1 FTE dedicated to the fulfillment of Sub-Grant deliverables 

 
DELIVERABLES: 
The Contractor shall submit: 

 Prepare and submit a Contractor Expenditure Report (CER) utilizing the standard reporting form issued 
by the AzNN. All expenses requested for reimbursement must adhere to the allowable and 
unallowable guidelines outlined in the Federal SNAP-Ed Guidance and AzNN Policies and Procedures 
Manual. Final CERs are due in accordance with the current AzNN Policies and Procedures Manual. 

 Prepare and submit a Monthly Report utilizing the standard reporting form issued by the AzNN. 

 Prepare and submit a Quarterly Narrative report for the first three (3) quarters, utilizing the form 
provided by AZNN. 

 Prepare and submit a Quarterly Evaluation report, utilizing the form issued by the AzNN. 

 Prepare and submit a Fourth (4TH) Quarter Narrative report which summarizes the year’s program 
activities, any results from both quantitative and qualitative evaluations conducted, and any other 
relevant program information utilizing the form issued by AzNN. 
 
 
PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: 
A concise proposal narrative based on the following weighted criteria: 
 

 Description of Organization 

 Key Staff Qualifications and Resume or Curriculum Vitae (CV) outlining experience in the 
administration, implementation, and evaluation of SNAP-Ed programs, farmers’ market programs, 
active living programs, working on PSE strategies with school-based and early childhood programs, and 
experience in Gila County. 

 Annual Cost 
 

 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 5 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Scope of Work Continued… 

 
SELECTION CRITERIA: 
 

 Experience successfully completing similar projects 40 points 

 Experience and capability of principal applicant and key personnel 30 points 

 The proposal indicates a clear understanding of the project and is appropriate to the charge 20 points 
 The budget is appropriate for the scope of work submitted 10 points 

 
Total  100 points 

 

1.0 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:    
 
Qualifying experience includes: 

 Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN) 

 Experience working with Gila County communities 

 A minimum of three years of experience in the administration of SNAP-Ed and USDA nutrition 
programs 

 A minimum of three years of experience in food systems and active living policy, system, and 
environmental (PSE) approaches in public health programs  

 A minimum of two years’ experience completing AzNN CERT’s, quarterly reports, and evaluation 
matrices 

 

EXAMINATION INFORMATION:  
 
This examination utilizes an evaluation of Education and Experience (E&E) weighted 100%, and is 
based solely upon information provided within the application. Information provided with the 
application will be assessed in relation to the elements of the scope of work and linked to the 
knowledge, skills, and abilities required for the work.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 6 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Scope of Work Continued… 

 
Special care should be taken to submitting a complete description of educational qualifications and 
experience relevant to the typical tasks, scope, and minimum qualifications stated on this 
announcement. Supplemental information will be accepted but competitors should read the 
announcement carefully to determine what kind of information will be useful to those individuals 
completing the evaluation.  
 
The County reserves the right to revise the examination plan to better meet the needs of the service if 
the circumstances under which this examination was planned change. Competitors shall be notified of 
such revisions.  
 
SCOPE: Rankings will be determined based on the depth and breadth of professional education and 
experience beyond what is minimally required.  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Supplemental Nutrition 

Assistance Program Education Support Services.   

 

See page 23 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-8612,  jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 7 
 

 

 

 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE 
FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN 
EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE 
LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for 

proposal package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal 
and to be submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the 
proposal and qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of 
services as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price 
sheet and signature and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic 
disqualification of the Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on 
the proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or 

otherwise will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if 
initialed, the county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 8 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by 
all Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 28. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the 
notice.  The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence 
related to a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and 
paragraph number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the 
outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and 
may not be opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 
3:00 P.M., Wednesday, January 27, 2016 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written 
addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so 
notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of 
the proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the 
preparation of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is 
permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound 
proposals are not permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may 
invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 9 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at 

the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES”, Proposal No., “110615-1”, Date 
“February 03, 2016”, and time “4:00 PM” of proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The 
Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the notice.  Spiral 
bound proposals are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 10 
 

 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature, or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona  85501. 

 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 11 
 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 12 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of 
acceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 
21 through 30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the 
offer, as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The 
contract shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these 
requirements and shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, 
purchase orders, or master agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, 
or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila 
County in the form of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the 
Contractor or any agency is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal 
and contractual remedies available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, 
suspension and debarment of the Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 13 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may 
treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to 
purchase supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the 
terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and 
regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material 
received by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 14 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
county shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, 
state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties 
that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed 
that the Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 15 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to 
the bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work 
under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor 
may purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County 
of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 16 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

 
3. Automobile Liability 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 
 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage 
or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the 
County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., 
Globe, AZ, 85501 or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 17 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Contract Award Agreement  continued… 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 

1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract 
number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the 
right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for 
each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 
identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 
contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 18 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall 

be submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 21-22) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 23) 
1.3.4 References List (page 24) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 25) 
1.3.6 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 26) 
1.3.7 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance  (page 27) 
1.3.8 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  (page 28) 
1.3.9 Offer Page  (page 29) 
1.3.10 Acceptance of Offer (page 30) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 19 
 

 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Minimum Specifications continued…. 

 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 
2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from the 

date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for two (2) additional one (1) 
year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the request for proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set 
forth in the request for proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 20 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

 Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
 For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into 
exclusive negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the 
selection process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
 Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 21 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 110615-1 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT 
SERVICES 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 22 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
Qualification & Certification  continued…. 

 

 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ 
computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward 
policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 23 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 110615-1 SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 24 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor 
under consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and 
scope, as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further 
reference information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 25 
 

 
REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________  and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES, RFP NO. 110615-1 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2016. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 26 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 110615-1 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is 
as indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,   it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 27 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If 
the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall 
be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor 
further agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 28 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

BIDDER CHECKLIST  &  ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this 
RFP.  If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, 
the RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2016 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 110615-1 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance 
Department Division in the Guerrero Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before February 03, 2016, by 4:00 PM. 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 29 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other 
Contractor which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the 
contract has revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this 
proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  110615-1 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT 
SERVICES 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 110615-1/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 30 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 110615-1 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES   

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                         is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 110615-1, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 110615-1   . The Contractor has been 

cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until 

Contractor receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________, 2016. 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager    Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 
  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3505     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders,
Director 

Department: Public Works Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 16-01-01 authorizing the disposal of a unnecessary public
roadway, and authorizing the Chairman to sign quit claim deed to deed South Marion
Canyon (aka Miami Street) to John R. Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm.

Background Information
During the Regular meeting of the Gila County Board of Supervisors on December 1,
2015, the Board accepted a bid in the amount of $209 from John R. Stemm and
Barbara J. Stemm for that portion of South Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street)
adjacent to Lots 22, 23 and 24, Block 43, Miami Map No. 3, Plat Map No. 25.

Evaluation
The bidders have met all of the requirements of the current Gila County policy on
abandonment of roadways in Gila County.

Conclusion
The next and final step in the process is for the Board of Supervisors to adopt a
resolution which authorizes the disposal of said portion of South Marion Canyon (aka
Miami Street), and the Chairman's signature on the quit claim deed to deed the
abandoned roadway to John R. Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Public Works that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 16-01-01, and authorize the Chairman's signature on the quit
claim deed.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-01-01 authorizing the
disposal of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka
Miami Street) adjacent to Lots 22, 23, and 24, Block 43, as shown on Miami Map No.
3, Plat Map No. 25, Gila County Records, Gila County, Arizona and authorize the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors to execute and deliver in the name and under
the seal of County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying the abandoned roadway to
John R. Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution 16-01-01



Quit Claim Deed Stemm
Maps



Resolution 16-01-01  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-01-01 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF AN 
UNNECESSARY PUBLIC ROADWAY BEING A PORTION OF 
SOUTH MARION CANYON (AKA MIAMI STREET) AS SHOWN 
ON MIAMI MAP NO. 3, PLAT MAP NO 25, GILA COUNTY 
RECORDS, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 

 
WHEREAS, JOHN R. STEMM AND BARBARA J. STEMM, are owners of the land 

adjoining that parcel of land hereinbefore described; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the disposal of the unnecessary public roadway 

will not leave any property without access to public roads and streets of Gila County, and is no 
longer necessary for public use, and the same should be granted; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is to the best interest of the COUNTY OF GILA to be relieved of the 

obligation to maintain said parcel of land; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors: 

 
Section 1: That the portion of land described herein and constituting South Marion Canyon, 
aka Miami Street, as shown on Miami Map No. 3, Plat Map No. 25, Gila County Records, Gila 
County, Arizona, is hereby vacated and abandoned, subject, however, to all existing water, gas 
and utility easements now existing on said parcel of land. 
 
Section 2:   That the Chairman of the said Board of Supervisors, be, and he is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to make, execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the 
County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying John R. Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm as owners of 
the adjacent property, that parcel of land hereinbefore described, and to cause said Deed to be 
attested and the seal of the said County of Gila to be affixed thereto by the Clerk of the said 
Supervisors. 
 

The quit claim deed and legal description are attached for 
informational purposes only and will be recorded as separate 
documents 

 



Resolution 16-01-01  Page 2 of 2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of January 2016, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 
 

 



When recorded return to: 
GILA  COUNTY  PUBLIC  WORKS  DEPT. 
745  N.  ROSE  MOFFORD  WAY 
GLOBE,  AZ  85501 
 
 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: for the consideration of Two Hundred Nine 
Dollars ($209.00), and other valuable consideration, GILA COUNTY, a BODY 
POLITIC, does hereby release, devise, and forever quitclaim to JOHN R. STEMM and 
BARBARA J. STEMM, all rights, title and interest in that certain Real Property situated 
in Gila County, State of Arizona, and legally described as follows: 
 

See Exhibit “A” attached and made part hereof 
 

Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3 
 

Dated this ________ day of _________________ 2016 
 
 
Approved:                         Attest: 
 
 
_____________________________              ______________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman   Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors   
 
 
STATE OF (ARIZONA) 
                                      ) ss. 
COUNTY OF     (GILA) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

On this _____ day of _______________, 2016, before me, the undersigned Notary 
Public, personally appeared Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors, and Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, known to me to be the individuals 
who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act 
and deed. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

                                                                              
____________________________________ 

My Commission Expires:                                      Notary Public 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
VACATION  DESCRIPTION 

Portion of South Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) 
Adjacent to Lots 22, 23 and 24, Block 43, 

MIAMI MAP NO. 3, Plat Map No. 25 
 
 
Gila County Public Works                                               December 2, 2015 
Job No. GC2015-17                                                                       Page 1 of 2 
 
A parcel of land being a portion of South Marion Canyon (aka Miami 

Street), as shown on MIAMI MAP NO. 3, Official Plat Map Number 25, 

Gila County Records, being situate in the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) 

of Section 29, Township 1 North, Range 15 East, Gila and Salt River 

Meridian, Gila County, Arizona, having a boundary more particularly 

described as follows; 

BEGINNING at the South corner of Lot 24, Block 43 of MIAMI MAP 
NO. 3; 
 
THENCE Northwesterly, along the Westerly line of Lots 24, 23 and 22, 
Block 43, to the West corner of Lot 22, Block 43, said point also being 
on the Westerly line of South Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street); 
 
THENCE Southwesterly along the projection of the North line of Lot 22 
to the intersection of the centerline of said 75 feet wide South Marion 
Canyon (aka Miami Street); 
 
THENCE Southeasterly along said centerline of South Marion Canyon 
(aka Miami Street) to the intersection of a projection of the South line of 
Lot 24, Block 43; 
 
 
 
 



Gila County Public Works                                               December 2, 2015 
Job No. GC2015-17                                         Page 2 of 2 of EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
THENCE Northeasterly to the South corner of Lot 24, Block 43,  
and the POINT OF BEGINNING, having an area of 0.129 acres, more 
or less. 
 
 
 
SUBJECT TO: Arizona Revised Statute § 28-7210 all Rights of way or 
easements of existing sewer, gas, water, or similar pipelines and 
appurtenances and for canals, laterals or ditches and appurtenances, and for 
electric, telephone, and similar lines and appurtenances shall continue as 
they existed prior to the disposal or vacation thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







   

ARF-3459     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager, County Manager
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
City of Globe - Globe Active Adult Center (GAAC) Funding Request - Intergovernmental
Agreement No. 110415.

Background Information
The Globe Active Adult Center (GAAC) is a welcoming and safe environment for all
ages, but especially for the older adults in the community. The GAAC mission is to
enhance the quality of life for the older adults of Globe and the surrounding
community with diverse programs to meet educational, recreational, nutritional,
transportation and social service needs.

The GAAC Meals on Wheels (MOW) program serves 25 to 30 seniors and person with
disabilities Monday through Friday. During the last year, 41% of these homebound
older adults and disabled are located in Gila County, outside of the Globe City limits.
These meals provide 1/3 of the recommended daily nutritional allowance for a senior
and are often the only complete meal eaten on a daily basis. A wellness check is
conducted along with the meal. A meal donation of $2.50 is generally asked. In April
2015, the average MOW donation per meal was $0.98 and the raw food cost per meal
was $2.39, not including staffing and transportation.

On September 14, 2015, the Board of Supervisors received a letter from Dottie
Sanchez, Supervisor, GAAC, requesting a contribution from the County in the amount
of $20,000. The letter stated that the contribution would assist the GAAC in delivering
meals to senior citizens within the community through the MOW program.

Evaluation
On May 21, 2015, Supervisor Marcanti submitted a donation of $5,000 from the
District III Constituent Fund to assist the GAAC Meals on Wheels program. 

On May 25, 2015, Chairman Pastor submitted a donation of $2,500 from the District
II Constituent Fund to assist the GAAC Meals on Wheels program.

In addition to funds received from the two Supervisors, GAAC also receives $4,000



from the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens, $70,684 from the City of Globe, and
$66,850 the Federal Older Americans Act.

Conclusion
The Meals on Wheels program is a federally funded program administered by the City
of Globe. Since approximately 41% of the recipients of the meals are County residents
not city residents, it appears reasonable for the County to contribute funding. The
GAAC is requesting a contribution from the County in the amount of $20,000 to assist
in delivering meals to senior citizens within the community through the Meals on
Wheels program. Staff believes it is appropriate to make a contribution in the amount
of $20,000 to be paid out of the Community Agency Fund in order to assist this
extremely worthy program.

Recommendation
County staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Intergovernmental
Agreement No. 110415-Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the
City of Globe in an amount of $20,000 to assist the City of Globe's Active Adult Center
Meals on Wheels program that will aid in providing and delivering meals to senior
citizens within the community.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement No.
110415-Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the City of Globe,
whereby the County will disburse $20,000 to the Globe Active Adult Center to assist in
providing and delivering meals to senior citizens in the community through the Meals
on Wheels program; and further the Board determines this is for the benefit of the
public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila
County.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415
GAAC Request Letter
Approved as to Form













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3520     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Approximately
240 Calendar
Days from Notice
to Proceed Date

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane
Builders, Inc. for the renovation of the Copper Administration Building.

Background Information
In 2013, the Board of Supervisors asked staff to identify office space options in an
attempt to eliminate offices located in leased space. The County Probation Department
in Globe is in leased space at an annual cost of $160,729.92. Various alternatives for
acquiring additional office space have been explored.
 
Given no other viable office space options on County owned property, Gila County
purchased a used 20,160 SF modular structure building, which will have the capacity
to provide space for various Gila County departments, including the County Probation
Department, thereby eliminating the annual leased space cost of $160,729.92.  At
the October 6, 2015, Board of Supervisors' regular meeting, the Board approved
utilizing the Job Order Contract (JOC) method of construction.  

The Copper Administration Building Project Team (CABPT) has been working steadily
with The Gordian Group, through a JOC program, and SD Crane Builders, a JOC
Contractor, to create a proposal for all of the interior improvements, exterior (civil)
improvements and necessary construction related items for the successful completion
of the project.

Evaluation
The CABPT feels confident that the proposals SD Crane Builders submitted
on December 23, 2015 (attached to this agenda report), in the amount
of $2,271,632.21, are an accurate reflection of the work that will be required on the
project.  Some value engineering is reflected in this amount; however, staff and SD
Crane Builders feel there may be some additional areas to perform a minimal amount
of value engineering, thereby reducing the cost, without compromising the integrity of
the project.



Conclusion
The CABPT has concluded that the most viable, direct route of accomplishing the
County's objectives in completing a fully functional Copper Administration Building
and to help mitigate the County's need to lease costly private office space, can be
obtained by utilizing a cooperative contract with the State of Arizona, State
Procurement Office with SD Crane Builders, Inc., a General Contractor, for the
construction of interior improvements, exterior improvements and all associated facets
of construction.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director recommend that
the Board of Supervisors approve the use of the State of Arizona, State Procurement
Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, Inc. for the
construction of interior improvements, exterior improvements and all associated facets
of construction on the Copper Administration Building.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of Arizona, State
Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, Inc. for
the construction of interior improvements, exterior improvements and all associated
facets of construction on the Copper Administration Building in the amount of
$2,271,632.21 with estimated completion 240 days from the date of the "Notice to
Proceed" issued by the County to SD Crane Builders.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Contract Agreement Form
Summary of Costs
Interior Building Proposal
Site Work (Civil) Proposal
Security Access Proposal
Fiber and Data Proposal
Light Poles Proposal
CAB Expenses-Recap
CAB Expenses-Detailed
Approval as to Form





www.eziqc.com

Summary Of Costs 

Statewide General Contracting JOC

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJOC Project Name:

16-GilaCounty-0002.00JOC Project Number:

Amount of Proposal: $2,271,632.21 Purchase Order Amount to Contractor

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.Contractor:

Contractor:

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

1901 E University Drive                                                                                                                               

Suite 330                                                                                                                                             

Mesa, AZ 85203

(480) 832-1777

12/23/2015



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

December 23, 2015

The Copper Administration Building proposal by: Keith Burns Estimator/Project Manager o - 480-832-1777 

c - 480-466-1135 kburns@sdcranebuilders.com The Following Scope of Work has been put together 

using the Gila County Copper Admin Building plans dated 4/20/2015, the site plans prepared by EPS 

Group and dated December 8, 2015, the soils plan as prepared by Speedie and Associated, and also per 

job site visits and preconstruction progress meetings. The project will consist of SD Crane Builders 

repurposing the 12 modular trailers on the interior to fit the needs of the County as directed per the plans, 

specifications and direction per Gila County. Also included into this project is the site work that is shown 

per plan from the EPS Group, and the soils plan prepared by Speedie and Associates. At the Direction of 

Gila County we have included the demolition and installation of new windows at the existing. We have also 

included pricing to trench for site lighting to be provided by APS. We have also priced out the State 

approved fire alarm plans dated December 12, 2015. We have also included full supply and installation of 

fiber and data. The fiber installation will begin in the third floor of the County Courthouse. We have also 

included $100,000 owners contingency. Per Discussions with Bob Hickman Gila County will provide the 

construction and final cores for all of the doors on the project. Gila County will also provide traffic control as 

needed along Monroe Street. Exclusions: - Abatement - Hard dig - Hazardous materials testing/Abatement 

- Building permits and fees - Cost associated with general building inspections - Traffic control plan and 

/or plan fees - Any pad prep or dirt work not associated with any of the above mentioned scopes of work.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$1,053,801.63

01 - General Requirements: $80,353.92

02 - Site Work: $4,202.10

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $62,915.12

07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection: $15,556.71

08 - Openings: $103,881.70

09 - Finishes: $273,793.10

10 - Specialties: $12,140.83

12 - Furnishings: $8,680.48

13 - Special Construction: $2,229.43

21 - Fire Suppression: $18,248.52

22 - Plumbing: $61,142.35

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $158,438.98

26 - Electrical: $233,157.83

28 - Electronic Safety And Security: $18,058.05

32 - Exterior Improvements: $1,002.51

$1,053,801.63Proposal Total

 1.00

Page 1 of 2

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Summary - CSI Continues..

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 2 of 2

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

December 23, 2015

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

1.2075-Option 3 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working Hours, 1.0500-Option 3 - Non 

Pre-Priced

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$1,053,801.63

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $1,732.50EA

Installation =x x $1,732.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,650.00

User Note: Fire Sprinkler design fee.

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $2,625.00EA

Installation =x x $2,625.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 2,500.00

User Note: Fire sprinkler Permit

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $14,149.66EA

Installation =x x $14,149.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 13,475.87

User Note: Bond

 2.00

Page 1 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

4 $1,050.00EA

Installation =x x $1,050.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,000.00

User Note: Fire alarm Permit

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

5 $2,727.19EA

Installation =x x $2,727.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 2,597.32

User Note: Builders risk

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

6 $54,748.10EA

Installation =x x $54,748.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 52,141.05

User Note: Sales tax.

Page 2 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

7 $1,732.50EA

Installation =x x $1,732.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,650.00

User Note: Fire alarm design

01  71   13   00 0003 Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A Tractor 

Trailer With Up To 53' BedNote: For equipment such as bulldozers, motor 

scrapers, hydraulic excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, 

heavy duty construction loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, 

straight mast construction forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction 

forklifts, telescoping and articulating boom manlifts with > 40' boom lengths, etc.

8 $362.25EA

Installation =x x $362.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$300.00 1.00

User Note: This is for the backhoe to the digging for the plumbing scope of work.

01  95   06   00 0013 16" Wide Wood Shelving For Closets9 $1,226.72LF

Installation =x x $1,226.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.24 83.00

User Note: Custodial 113. closet I could find.

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $80,353.92

02 - Site Work

02  85   00   00 0075 Over 10000 SF Subflooring10 $4,202.10SF

Installation =x x $4,202.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Equipment  1.2075$0.58 6,000.00

User Note: Major Floor prep. There is still old flooring and glues stuck to the sub floor. We have cut down the floor prep 

to only 6000 SF from the 19980, if we go past the 600 SF we will use the owners contingency to cover the 

rest if this is acceptable to the County.

Subtotal for 02 - Site Work: $4,202.10

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  05   23   00 0019 1-1/2" Wide x 5-1/4" Long, 18 Gauge Rafter Anchor11 $2,744.04EA

Installation =x x $2,744.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.03 750.00

User Note: wood to wood attachments at top of framing.

06  05   23   00 0019 For Quantities > 500, Deduct12 Mod -$1,267.88EA

Installation =x x $-1,267.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-1.40 750.00

User Note: wood to wood attachments at top of framing.

Page 3 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  11   16   00 0048 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Stud Framing, Pressure Treated, For Partition Walls13 $175.52LF

Installation =x x $175.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.79 184.00

User Note: Additional framing at the doors.

06  11   16   00 0057 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Wall Framing At 16" On Center14 $16,320.39SF

Installation =x x $16,320.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.85 15,901.00

User Note: Additional 2x4 framing.

06  11   16   00 0061 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Wall Framing At 24" On Center15 $1,572.74SF

Installation =x x $1,572.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.67 1,944.00

User Note: For the double sound walls.

06  11   16   00 0122 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Wood Blocking To Wood16 $734.64LF

Installation =x x $734.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.17 520.00

User Note: blocking for millwork, bathroom accessories.

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

17 $600.97EA

Installation =x x $600.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$248.85 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0005 For Economy Grade, Deduct18 Mod -$202.18EA

Installation =x x $-202.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-83.72 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

19 $600.97EA

Installation =x x $600.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$248.85 2.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0005 For Economy Grade, Deduct20 Mod -$202.18EA

Installation =x x $-202.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-83.72 2.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

21 $300.49EA

Installation =x x $300.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$248.85 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0005 For Economy Grade, Deduct22 Mod -$101.09EA

Installation =x x $-101.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-83.72 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

Page 4 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0005 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

23 $3,605.84EA

Installation =x x $3,605.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$248.85 12.00

User Note: Library workroom 135 north and west wall.

06  41   13   00 0005 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add24 Mod $606.55EA

Installation =x x $606.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$41.86 12.00

User Note: Library workroom 135 north and west wall.

06  41   13   00 0005 For Economy Grade, Deduct25 Mod -$1,213.10EA

Installation =x x $-1,213.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-83.72 12.00

User Note: Library workroom 135 north and west wall.

06  41   13   00 0009 Up To 15" Width, 30" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with solid 

hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. Hardwood 

veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

26 $239.91EA

Installation =x x $239.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$198.68 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0009 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add27 Mod $40.20EA

Installation =x x $40.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$33.29 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0009 For Economy Grade, Deduct28 Mod -$80.38EA

Installation =x x $-80.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-66.57 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0010 >15"-18" Width, 30" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with solid 

hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. Hardwood 

veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

29 $525.17EA

Installation =x x $525.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$217.46 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0010 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add30 Mod $85.93EA

Installation =x x $85.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$35.58 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0010 For Economy Grade, Deduct31 Mod -$171.85EA

Installation =x x $-171.85
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-71.16 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0010 >15"-18" Width, 30" High x 24" Deep Base Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with solid 

hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. Hardwood 

veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

32 $2,888.41EA

Installation =x x $2,888.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$217.46 11.00

User Note: Reception 201

Page 5 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0010 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add33 Mod $472.59EA

Installation =x x $472.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$35.58 11.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0010 For Economy Grade, Deduct34 Mod -$945.18EA

Installation =x x $-945.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-71.16 11.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0015 >15"-18" Width, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep Built-In-Place Base Cabinet,Note: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

35 $647.78LF

Installation =x x $647.78
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$178.82 3.00

User Note: HR 122

06  41   13   00 0015 For Economy Grade, Deduct36 Mod -$202.17LF

Installation =x x $-202.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-55.81 3.00

User Note: HR 122

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

37 $477.25EA

Installation =x x $477.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct38 Mod -$158.70EA

Installation =x x $-158.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

39 $954.50EA

Installation =x x $954.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct40 Mod -$317.40EA

Installation =x x $-317.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

41 $477.25EA

Installation =x x $477.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 1.00

User Note: HR 122

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct42 Mod -$158.70EA

Installation =x x $-158.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 1.00

User Note: HR 122

Page 6 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

43 $477.25EA

Installation =x x $477.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 1.00

User Note: South library wall and office 132.

06  41   13   00 0022 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add44 Mod $79.36EA

Installation =x x $79.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$65.72 1.00

User Note: South library wall and office 132.

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct45 Mod -$158.70EA

Installation =x x $-158.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 1.00

User Note: South library wall and office 132.

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

46 $1,431.76EA

Installation =x x $1,431.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 3.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct47 Mod -$476.11EA

Installation =x x $-476.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 3.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

48 $954.50EA

Installation =x x $954.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct49 Mod -$317.40EA

Installation =x x $-317.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

50 $1,909.01EA

Installation =x x $1,909.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 4.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct51 Mod -$634.81EA

Installation =x x $-634.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 4.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

Page 7 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0022 >30"-33" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

52 $954.50EA

Installation =x x $954.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.24 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 129

06  41   13   00 0022 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add53 Mod $158.71EA

Installation =x x $158.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$65.72 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 129

06  41   13   00 0022 For Economy Grade, Deduct54 Mod -$317.40EA

Installation =x x $-317.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-131.43 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 129

06  41   13   00 0023 >33"-36" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

55 $980.10EA

Installation =x x $980.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$405.84 2.00

User Note: Library Office 134

06  41   13   00 0023 For Economy Grade, Deduct56 Mod -$326.10EA

Installation =x x $-326.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-135.03 2.00

User Note: Library Office 134

06  41   13   00 0023 >33"-36" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

57 $490.05EA

Installation =x x $490.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$405.84 1.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0023 For Economy Grade, Deduct58 Mod -$163.05EA

Installation =x x $-163.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-135.03 1.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0023 For Sink Base With Sink Front (No Drawer), Deduct59 Mod -$61.15EA

Installation =x x $-61.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-50.64 1.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0023 >33"-36" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

60 $490.05EA

Installation =x x $490.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$405.84 1.00

User Note: Break room  128

06  41   13   00 0023 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add61 Mod $81.53EA

Installation =x x $81.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$67.52 1.00

User Note: Break room  128

Page 8 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0023 For Economy Grade, Deduct62 Mod -$163.05EA

Installation =x x $-163.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-135.03 1.00

User Note: Break room  128

06  41   13   00 0023 For Sink Base With Sink Front (No Drawer), Deduct63 Mod -$61.15EA

Installation =x x $-61.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-50.64 1.00

User Note: Break room  128

06  41   13   00 0024 >36"-42" Wide, 34-1/2" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: 

Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and 

drawer fronts. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

64 $2,095.74EA

Installation =x x $2,095.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$433.90 4.00

User Note: Closest I could find for the Mailroom 136

06  41   13   00 0024 For Economy Grade, Deduct65 Mod -$695.71EA

Installation =x x $-695.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-144.04 4.00

User Note: Closest I could find for the Mailroom 136

06  41   13   00 0027 24" Wide, 30" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

66 $281.09EA

Installation =x x $281.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$232.79 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0027 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add67 Mod $41.97EA

Installation =x x $41.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$34.76 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0027 For Economy Grade, Deduct68 Mod -$83.93EA

Installation =x x $-83.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-69.51 1.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0027 24" Wide, 30" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

69 $281.09EA

Installation =x x $281.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$232.79 1.00

User Note: Mailroom 136 north wall.

06  41   13   00 0027 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add70 Mod $41.97EA

Installation =x x $41.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$34.76 1.00

User Note: Mailroom 136 north wall.

06  41   13   00 0027 For Economy Grade, Deduct71 Mod -$83.93EA

Installation =x x $-83.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-69.51 1.00

User Note: Mailroom 136 north wall.

Page 9 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0029 36" Wide, 30" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

72 $2,921.76EA

Installation =x x $2,921.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$403.28 6.00

User Note: Closest I could find for the Mailroom 136

06  41   13   00 0029 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add73 Mod $485.20EA

Installation =x x $485.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$66.97 6.00

User Note: Closest I could find for the Mailroom 136

06  41   13   00 0029 For Economy Grade, Deduct74 Mod -$970.40EA

Installation =x x $-970.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-133.94 6.00

User Note: Closest I could find for the Mailroom 136

06  41   13   00 0029 36" Wide, 30" High x 24" Deep 2-Drawer/2-Door CabinetNote: Prefinished with 

solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames and drawer fronts. 

Hardwood veneer on raised door panels. Excludes top.

75 $2,434.80EA

Installation =x x $2,434.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$403.28 5.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0029 For ADA Cabinet Units (Including All ADA Hardware), Add76 Mod $404.33EA

Installation =x x $404.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$66.97 5.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0029 For Economy Grade, Deduct77 Mod -$808.66EA

Installation =x x $-808.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-133.94 5.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0046 15"-18" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

78 $516.25EA

Installation =x x $516.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$213.77 2.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0046 For Economy Grade, Deduct79 Mod -$171.27EA

Installation =x x $-171.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-70.92 2.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0046 15"-18" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

80 $516.25EA

Installation =x x $516.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$213.77 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0046 For Economy Grade, Deduct81 Mod -$171.27EA

Installation =x x $-171.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-70.92 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

Page 10 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0048 24"-30" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

82 $2,057.80EA

Installation =x x $2,057.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$284.03 6.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0048 For Economy Grade, Deduct83 Mod -$704.36EA

Installation =x x $-704.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-97.22 6.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0050 Up To 24" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

84 $295.81EA

Installation =x x $295.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$244.98 1.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0050 For Economy Grade, Deduct85 Mod -$97.98EA

Installation =x x $-97.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-81.14 1.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0052 30"-36" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

86 $1,186.12EA

Installation =x x $1,186.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$327.43 3.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0052 For Economy Grade, Deduct87 Mod -$406.99EA

Installation =x x $-406.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-112.35 3.00

User Note: Breakroom 228

06  41   13   00 0052 30"-36" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

88 $1,186.12EA

Installation =x x $1,186.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$327.43 3.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0052 For Economy Grade, Deduct89 Mod -$406.99EA

Installation =x x $-406.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-112.35 3.00

User Note: Hallway 128

06  41   13   00 0052 30"-36" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

90 $3,162.97EA

Installation =x x $3,162.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$327.43 8.00

User Note: Reception 201

Page 11 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0052 For Economy Grade, Deduct91 Mod -$1,085.30EA

Installation =x x $-1,085.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-112.35 8.00

User Note: Reception 201

06  41   13   00 0059 15"-18" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

92 $445.74EA

Installation =x x $445.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$184.57 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0059 For Economy Grade, Deduct93 Mod -$148.91EA

Installation =x x $-148.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-61.66 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0059 15"-18" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

94 $445.74EA

Installation =x x $445.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$184.57 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 129

06  41   13   00 0059 For Economy Grade, Deduct95 Mod -$148.91EA

Installation =x x $-148.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-61.66 2.00

User Note: Breakroom 129

06  41   13   00 0059 15"-18" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Single Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

96 $222.87EA

Installation =x x $222.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$184.57 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0059 For Economy Grade, Deduct97 Mod -$74.45EA

Installation =x x $-74.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-61.66 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

98 $970.07EA

Installation =x x $970.07
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$267.79 3.00

User Note: Break Room 129

06  41   13   00 0064 For Economy Grade, Deduct99 Mod -$339.14EA

Installation =x x $-339.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-93.62 3.00

User Note: Break Room 129

Page 12 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

100 $323.36EA

Installation =x x $323.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$267.79 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0064 For Economy Grade, Deduct101 Mod -$113.05EA

Installation =x x $-113.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-93.62 1.00

User Note: Finance Hallway 116

06  41   13   00 0064 30"-36" Wide, 30" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

102 $646.71EA

Installation =x x $646.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$267.79 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0064 For Economy Grade, Deduct103 Mod -$226.09EA

Installation =x x $-226.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-93.62 2.00

User Note: HR 124

06  41   13   00 0071 30"-36" Wide, 24" High x 13" Deep Double Door Wall CabinetNote: Prefinished 

with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door frames. Hardwood veneer 

on raised door panels.

104 $835.71EA

Installation =x x $835.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$230.70 3.00

User Note: West Library office 132

06  41   13   00 0071 For Economy Grade, Deduct105 Mod -$293.50EA

Installation =x x $-293.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-81.02 3.00

User Note: West Library office 132

06  41   13   00 0089 Up To 24" Wide, 36" High x 13" Deep Built In Place Double Door Wall 

Cabinet,Note: Prefinished with solid hardwood face frames, hardwood door 

frames. Hardwood veneer on raised door panels.

106 $2,250.90LF

Installation =x x $2,250.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$133.15 14.00

User Note: Conference room 127

06  41   13   00 0089 For Economy Grade, Deduct107 Mod -$685.67LF

Installation =x x $-685.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-40.56 14.00

User Note: Conference room 127

06  41   13   00 0171 24" x 24" Wall Cabinet108 $759.28EA

Installation =x x $759.28
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$104.80 6.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0171 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct109 Mod -$203.44EA

Installation =x x $-203.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-28.08 6.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

Page 13 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0174 30" x 24" Wall Cabinet110 $3,417.90EA

Installation =x x $3,417.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$117.94 24.00

User Note: Library Workroom 135 south wall.

06  41   13   00 0174 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct111 Mod -$910.84EA

Installation =x x $-910.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-31.43 24.00

User Note: Library Workroom 135 south wall.

06  41   13   00 0174 30" x 24" Wall Cabinet112 $1,708.95EA

Installation =x x $1,708.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$117.94 12.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0174 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct113 Mod -$455.42EA

Installation =x x $-455.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-31.43 12.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131.

06  41   13   00 0176 36" x 24" Wall Cabinet114 $1,870.80EA

Installation =x x $1,870.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$129.11 12.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131 There are no 72"x36" cabinets.

06  41   13   00 0176 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct115 Mod -$491.79EA

Installation =x x $-491.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-33.94 12.00

User Note: Library Storage 130/Library Office 131 There are no 72"x36" cabinets.

06  41   13   00 0180 48" x 24" Wall Cabinet116 $1,562.79EA

Installation =x x $1,562.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$161.78 8.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0180 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct117 Mod -$425.04EA

Installation =x x $-425.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-44.00 8.00

User Note: Closet match I could find for the cabinets for Library Office 132

06  41   13   00 0180 48" x 24" Wall Cabinet118 $1,562.79EA

Installation =x x $1,562.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$161.78 8.00

User Note: Library office 134

06  41   13   00 0180 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct119 Mod -$425.04EA

Installation =x x $-425.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-44.00 8.00

User Note: Library office 134

06  41   13   00 0300 36" x 12" x 84" Broom Cabinet120 $1,259.33EA

Installation =x x $1,259.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$417.17 2.50

User Note: Closest match I could find for Finance 107

Page 14 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  41   13   00 0300 For Plastic Laminate On Particle Board, Deduct121 Mod -$399.74EA

Installation =x x $-399.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-132.42 2.50

User Note: Closest match I could find for Finance 107

06  83   00   00 0002 Fiberglass Reinforced Polyester (FRP) Paneling Including Adhesive And Trim122 $3,372.50SF

Installation =x x $3,372.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.56 1,091.00

User Note: FRP is the restrooms as shown per room schedule. Add 626 SF of FRP because the wall tile has been 

removed.

Subtotal for 06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $62,915.12

07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection

07  21   16   00 0011 3-1/2" Thick, Unfaced, R-11 Fiberglass Flexible Insulation123 $15,333.32SF

Installation =x x $15,333.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.74 17,160.00

User Note: 715 LF of double sound walls, walls go to deck at an estimated 12'.  1430'x12'=17160SF

07  21   16   00 0011 3-1/2" Thick, Unfaced, R-11 Fiberglass Flexible Insulation124 $223.39SF

Installation =x x $223.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.74 250.00

User Note: This is for the additional insulation for the areas that have had insulation installed already and some pieces 

are missing. This is per Bob's request.

Subtotal for 07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection: $15,556.71

08 - Openings

08  12   13   13 0007 3'x6'-8" Through 7'-2"x4-3/4" Deep Metal Door Frame, 16 Gauge125 $17,293.82EA

Installation =x x $17,293.82
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$190.96 75.00

User Note: Hollow metal door frames. Book does not offer 14GA door frames.

08  12   13   13 0007 For Welded Frames, Add126 Mod $4,075.31EA

Installation =x x $4,075.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$45.00 75.00

User Note: Hollow metal door frames. Book does not offer 14GA door frames. Welded frames called for in 

specifications.

08  12   13   13 0013 6'x6'-8" Through 7'-2"x4-3/4" Deep Metal Door Frame, 16 Gauge127 $284.02EA

Installation =x x $284.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$235.21 1.00

User Note: Door 125C

08  12   13   13 0013 For Welded Frames, Add128 Mod $54.34EA

Installation =x x $54.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$45.00 1.00

User Note: Door 125C

08  14   16   00 0129 3'x7'x1-3/4" Solid Core, Birch Faced Door129 $13,188.62EA

Installation =x x $13,188.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$145.63 75.00

User Note: Supply and install of the 78 solid core wood doors per specification.

Page 15 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  14   16   00 0129 For Solid Wood Staved Core (Glued Block), Add

(Note: Not to be used in conjunction with fire rating > 20 minutes.)

130 Mod $2,218.78EA

Installation =x x $2,218.78
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$24.50 75.00

User Note: Supply and install of the 78 solid core wood doors per specification.

08  14   16   00 0129 For Quantities > 50 To 100, Deduct131 Mod -$767.06EA

Installation =x x $-767.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-8.47 75.00

User Note: Supply and install of the 78 solid core wood doors per specification.

08  14   16   00 0134 Pair 3'x7'x1-3/4" Solid Core, Birch Faced Door132 $345.95PR

Installation =x x $345.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$286.50 1.00

User Note: Door 125C

08  14   16   00 0134 For Commercial Grade 20 Minute Fire Rated Door, Add133 Mod $28.40PR

Installation =x x $28.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.52 1.00

User Note: Door 125C

08  31   13   00 0029 12" x 12" Steel Access Door With Cam Latch134 $773.66EA

Installation =x x $773.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$71.19 9.00

User Note: Added access panels per Gordian/Owner direction during review.

08  31   13   00 0055 30" x 30" Steel Crawl Space Door With Cam Latch135 $225.43EA

Installation =x x $225.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$186.69 1.00

User Note: Access panel for the building.

08  41   00   00 0002 3'x7'x1-3/4" Medium Stile, Aluminum Framed Entrance Doors Including Glazing, 

Trim And Hardware (Special-Lite SL-14)

136 $2,769.11EA

Installation =x x $2,769.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,293.26 1.00

User Note: Door 125D

08  41   00   00 0003 3'-6"x7'x1-3/4" Medium Stile, Aluminum Framed Entrance Doors Including 

Glazing, Trim And Hardware (Special-Lite SL-14)

137 $8,346.67EA

Installation =x x $8,346.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,304.12 3.00

User Note: 207A and the waiting room 200A

08  41   00   00 0008 6'x7'x1-3/4" Wide Stile, Aluminum Framed Entrance Doors Including Glazing, 

Trim And Hardware (Special-Lite SL-15)

138 $5,142.28PR

Installation =x x $5,142.28
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4,258.62 1.00

User Note: 100A and 1 pair at 125a.

08  43   13   00 0002 Aluminum Storefront Framing139 $1,113.22SF

Installation =x x $1,113.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$13.40 68.80

User Note: Sidelights on door 100a, 200a, 207a, and 125d.

Page 16 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  51   13   00 0014 >15 To 20 SF, 3-1/4" Frame Depth, HC 40, Side Loading Sash, Single Hung 

Aluminum Window (Traco TR-9100)

140 $5,223.46EA

Installation =x x $5,223.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$480.65 9.00

User Note: 9 windows total.

08  51   13   00 0021 >15 To 20 SF, 3-1/4" Frame Depth, HC 40, Side Loading Sash, Single Hung 

Aluminum Window (Traco TR-9700)

141 $7,706.48EA

Installation =x x $6,941.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$522.62 11.00

Demolition x x = $764.78 1.2075$45.24 14.00

User Note: Per Bob's request during our phone conference we are to pull out all the old windows and install new 

windows.

08  52   13   00 0646 Up To 9 SF Windows, Fixed Grille Installed Between Glass Panes, Factory 

Installed Grilles For Metal Clad Wood Windows

142 $555.21EA

Installation =x x $555.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$20.90 22.00

User Note: Glass for side lites.

08  56   56   00 0028 3/4" #9, Thickness 0.12" Expanded Metal, Inoperable, Steel Security Window 

Screen

143 $2,844.39SF

Installation =x x $2,844.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.63 120.00

User Note: This is for the man access outside and the air vents at the CMU

08  56   56   00 0028 For Painted Steel, Add144 Mod $142.00SF

Installation =x x $142.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.49 240.00

User Note: to paint both sides.

08  71   16   00 0006 4-1/2" x 4-1/2" Standard Duty, Full Mortise, Plain Bearing, Brass/Bronze, Satin 

Chrome Finish Hinge

145 $6,136.32PR

Installation =x x $6,136.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$48.63 104.50

User Note: total of 234 hinges divided into pairs = 117. 11 pairs of hinges have been removed due to the installation of 

22 electric hinges.

08  71   16   00 0482 3-3/4" Projection, Rigid Type, Satin Aluminum Finish, Aluminum Wall Stop (Ives 

WS65)

146 $840.52EA

Installation =x x $840.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9.04 77.00

User Note: Wall stops.

08  71   16   00 0541 Satin Aluminum Finish, Aluminum Plunger Type Door Holder (Ives FS1153)147 $44.93EA

Installation =x x $44.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$37.21 1.00

User Note: One door holder

08  71   16   00 0709 Satin Chrome Finish, Brass Dust Proof Strike (Ives DP1)148 $2,215.65EA

Installation =x x $2,215.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.83 77.00

User Note: Strikes for each door.

08  71   16   00 0771 8" x 36", 0.050" Thick, Satin Aluminum Finish, Aluminum Kick Plate149 $1,584.24EA

Installation =x x $1,584.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$32.80 40.00

User Note: kick plates per specifications

Page 17 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  71   16   00 2154 Surface Mounted Heavy Duty Door Closer - LCN 4010/4020/4110 Series150 $4,086.90EA

Installation =x x $4,086.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$282.05 12.00

User Note: Heavy duty door closers per specifications.

08  71   16   00 2194 Heavy Duty Cylindrical Passage Or Closet Lockset F75Note: Satin chrome 

plated US 26D (BHMA 626) - BHMA 156.2-1989, Grade 1(Corbin Russwin CL 

3600)

151 $17,386.74EA

Installation =x x $17,386.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$189.46 76.00

User Note: Marks USA 175RAB Grade 2 Lockset. One lockset has been removed due to the installation of 1 electrified 

door hardware.

08  71   16   00 2330 1/2" Width, 3/16" Height, Edge Mount, Double Fin, Adhesive Backed Flexible 

Astragal (Pemko S772)

152 $22.31LF

Installation =x x $22.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.64 7.00

User Note: 1 astragal.

Subtotal for 08 - Openings: $103,881.70

09 - Finishes

09  29   00   00 0003 1/4" Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Existing Surface153 $10,366.15SF

Installation =x x $10,366.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.49 17,520.00

User Note: 1/4" drywall per plan page A5

09  29   00   00 0003 For Wall Height > 12', Add154 Mod $634.66SF

Installation =x x $634.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.03 17,520.00

User Note: 1/4" drywall per plan page A5

09  29   00   00 0005 1/2" Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Wood Or Metal Studs Or Furring155 $35,766.39SF

Installation =x x $35,766.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.60 49,367.00

User Note: Normal 1/2" drywall to be used throughout the building except in areas of sound proofing and wet areas.

09  29   00   00 0005 For Times When The Shortest Distance From Corner to Corner Is < 3', Add156 Mod $338.52SF

Installation =x x $338.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.21 1,335.00

User Note: There are 157 locations where this occurs.

09  29   00   00 0006 5/8" Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Wood Or Metal Studs Or Furring157 $2,353.18SF

Installation =x x $2,353.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.70 2,784.00

User Note: interior of the double sound wall not taped.

09  29   00   00 0017 1/2" Moisture Resistant Drywall, One Layer, One Face On Wood Or Metal Studs 

Or Furring

158 $1,443.28SF

Installation =x x $1,443.28
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.66 1,811.00

User Note: Drywall in the gang bathrooms.

Page 18 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  29   00   00 0046 Tape, Spackle And Finish Drywall Walls Up To 10' Height159 $17,883.20SF

Installation =x x $17,883.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.30 49,367.00

User Note: Tape and texture on Drywall

09  29   00   00 0071 Casing, J-Bead For Gypsum Wallboard160 $513.91LF

Installation =x x $513.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.52 280.00

User Note: There are 35 locations where this will be used. 8' x 35 = 280LF

09  51   13   00 0020 2' x 4' x 3/4" Mineral Fiber Acoustical Ceiling Panels161 $33,216.20SF

Installation =x x $33,216.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.42 19,372.00

User Note: Mineral acoustical ceiling per specifications.

09  51   13   00 0020 For Quantities > 5000, Deduct162 Mod -$1,871.34SF

Installation =x x $-1,871.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.08 19,372.00

User Note: Over 5000 SF.

09  51   13   00 0020 For Single Angled Tegular Edge (Reveal), Add163 Mod $11,228.01SF

Installation =x x $11,228.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.48 19,372.00

User Note: Angle tegular per specifications.

09  53   23   00 0004 T Bar Ceilings Suspension System 2'x 4', Standard 15/16"164 $35,321.45SF

Installation =x x $35,321.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.51 19,372.00

User Note: Per specifications.

09  53   23   00 0004 For Quantities > 5000, Deduct165 Mod -$2,105.25SF

Installation =x x $-2,105.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.09 19,372.00

User Note: Greater than 5000 SF

09  65   13   13 0007 4" High 1/8" Rubber Base, Group 2 All (Except White)166 $10,942.12LF

Installation =x x $10,942.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.65 5,492.00

User Note: Rubber base

09  65   19   00 0009 Solid Colors, Resilient Tile Floor Solid Vinyl Tile 1/8" Thick167 $1,969.37SF

Installation =x x $1,969.37
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.93 415.00

User Note: 5% stock for owner.

09  65   19   00 0009 For Extra Stock, Material Only, Deduct168 Mod -$430.96SF

Installation =x x $-430.96
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.86 415.00

User Note: 5% stock for owner.

09  65   19   00 0009 Solid Colors, Resilient Tile Floor Solid Vinyl Tile 1/8" Thick169 $39,439.64SF

Installation =x x $39,439.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.93 8,311.00

User Note: VCT

Page 19 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  65   19   00 0009 For Quantities > 6000 SF, Deduct170 Mod -$1,505.33SF

Installation =x x $-1,505.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.15 8,311.00

User Note: VCT

09  65   19   00 0012 Vinyl Transition Strip, Brown Or Black171 $252.13LF

Installation =x x $252.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.16 180.00

User Note: 50 transition strips.

09  68   13   00 0006 26 Ounce, Non-Patterned, Nylon Carpet Tile172 $9,466.80SY

Installation =x x $9,466.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$39.20 200.00

User Note: Carpet tile

09  68   13   00 0006 For Quantities > 200 To 400, Deduct173 Mod -$161.81SY

Installation =x x $-161.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.67 200.00

User Note: Carpet tile

09  68   13   00 0006 26 Ounce, Non-Patterned, Nylon Carpet Tile174 $946.68SY

Installation =x x $946.68
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$39.20 20.00

User Note: Owner's stock. 10%

09  68   16   00 0025 26 Ounce, Medium Traffic, Non-Patterned, Nylon Broadloom Carpet175 $29,621.62SY

Installation =x x $29,621.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.84 1,029.00

User Note: broadloom carpet

09  68   16   00 0025 For Quantities > 900, Deduct176 Mod -$1,739.52SY

Installation =x x $-1,739.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-1.40 1,029.00

User Note: broadloom carpet

09  68   16   00 0025 26 Ounce, Medium Traffic, Non-Patterned, Nylon Broadloom Carpet177 $2,965.04SY

Installation =x x $2,965.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.84 103.00

User Note: 10% owner stock.

09  91   23   00 0065 Paint Interior Plaster/Drywall, 1 Coat Primer, Sprayed178 $14,116.35SF

Installation =x x $14,116.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.28 41,752.00

User Note: 1 coat primer.

09  91   23   00 0065 For Quantities > 20000, Deduct179 Mod -$3,024.93SF

Installation =x x $-3,024.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.06 41,752.00

User Note: 1 coat primer.

09  91   23   00 0067 Paint Interior Plaster/Drywall, 2 Coats Paint, Sprayed180 $26,720.24SF

Installation =x x $26,720.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.53 41,752.00

User Note: Finish coat.

Page 20 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  91   23   00 0067 For Quantities > 20000, Deduct181 Mod -$5,545.71SF

Installation =x x $-5,545.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.11 41,752.00

User Note: Finish coat.

09  91   23   00 0246 Paint Interior Metal Frame And Trim, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work182 $633.70LF

Installation =x x $633.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.40 1,312.00

User Note: 76 frames.

09  91   23   00 0248 Paint Interior Metal Frame And Trim, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work183 $1,378.29LF

Installation =x x $1,378.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.87 1,312.00

User Note: 78 doors x 17 LF = 1326 LF.

09  93   00   00 0011 One Coat Shellac, Varnish Or Polyurethane Wood Door (Per Face)184 $2,661.02EA

Installation =x x $2,661.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$14.31 154.00

User Note: 77 doors both sides.

Subtotal for 09 - Finishes: $273,793.10

10 - Specialties

10  21   13   13 0008 36" x 60", Overhead Braced, Enamel Coated Steel, One Compartment Corner 

Unit, Complete Toilet Partition

185 $2,521.84EA

Installation =x x $2,521.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$522.12 4.00

User Note: 4 regular toilet and urinal compartments separating the stall from the bathroom sinks.

10  21   13   13 0009 60" x 60", Overhead Braced, Enamel Coated Steel, One Compartment Corner 

Unit, Complete ADA Compliant Toilet Partition

186 $2,956.25EA

Installation =x x $2,956.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$612.06 4.00

User Note: 4 ADA compartments

10  28   13   13 0121 18" Length, 1-1/2" Diameter, Stainless Steel Grab Bar (Bobrick B-6806x18)187 $405.00EA

Installation =x x $405.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$55.90 6.00

User Note: 4 ADA stalls and 2 UA bathrooms.

10  28   13   13 0124 36" Length, 1-1/2" Diameter, Stainless Steel Grab Bar (Bobrick B-6806x36)188 $433.25EA

Installation =x x $433.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$59.80 6.00

User Note: 4 ADA stalls and 2 UA bathrooms.

10  28   13   13 0125 42" Length, 1-1/2" Diameter, Stainless Steel Grab Bar (Bobrick B-6806x42)189 $445.13EA

Installation =x x $445.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$61.44 6.00

User Note: 4 ADA stalls and 2 UA bathrooms.

10  28   13   13 0227 24" x 36", Surface Mounted, Stainless Steel Channel Frame Glass Mirror 

(Bobrick B-165 2436)

190 $218.70EA

Installation =x x $218.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$90.56 2.00

User Note: For the UA bathrooms.

Page 21 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

10 - Specialties

10  28   13   13 0231 48" x 36", Surface Mounted, Stainless Steel Channel Frame Glass Mirror 

(Bobrick B-165 4836)

191 $982.95EA

Installation =x x $982.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$203.51 4.00

User Note: Mirrors at the gang bathrooms.

10  44   13   00 0069 15-3/16" x 30-3/16" x 8-1/4" Inside Dimensions, Surface Mount Aluminum Fire 

Extinguisher Cabinet

192 $4,177.71EA

Installation =x x $4,177.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$345.98 10.00

User Note: 10 cabinets

Subtotal for 10 - Specialties: $12,140.83

12 - Furnishings

12  36   23   13 0002 Field Cutout For Sinks And Lavatories193 $79.79EA

Installation =x x $79.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$33.04 2.00

User Note: Two Kitchen sinks.

12  36   23   13 0004 Plastic Laminate Counter Top With Backsplash, Up To 26" Deep194 $6,980.80LF

Installation =x x $6,980.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.84 242.50

User Note: For all the laminate countertops on the project.

12  36   61   16 0004 1/2" Solid Polyester (Corian) CountertopNote: Quantity based on area of 

counter, backsplash and apron. Includes drilling holes for fixtures and 1-1/2" 

drop edge with 1/8" radius edges (when apron not used).

195 $1,438.76SF

Installation =x x $1,438.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$27.08 44.00

User Note: countertops in all the gang restrooms.

12  36   61   16 0004 For Each Sink, Range Or Vanity Cutout, Add196 Mod $181.13SF

Installation =x x $181.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$15.00 10.00

User Note: countertops in all the gang restrooms.

Subtotal for 12 - Furnishings: $8,680.48

13 - Special Construction

13  01   11   00 0008 Coring For Wall Inlets197 $2,229.43EA

Installation =x x $2,229.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$76.93 24.00

User Note: 24 cores figured inside the building. 11 for the floor mounted toilets, 2 for the domestic water service into the 

building, 4 for HVAC scope, and7 for floor boxes.

Subtotal for 13 - Special Construction: $2,229.43

21 - Fire Suppression

21  01   10   00 0005 Refill Existing Lines With Water198 $1,026.38LF

Installation =x x $1,026.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.34 2,500.00

User Note: Refill existing lines.

Page 22 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

21 - Fire Suppression

21  01   30   00 0010 Hydrostatic Testing, All Sizes, All AgentsSee CSI section 23 05 93 00-0046 for 

testing existing piping systems.

199 $4,812.13EA

Installation =x x $4,812.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$22.14 180.00

User Note: Retest the entire system and the 180 newly install sprinkler heads.

21  09   00   00 0003 Double Zone Controller Panel Box200 $2,844.58EA

Installation =x x $2,844.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,355.76 1.00

User Note: Panel box per design.

21  11   19   00 0002 4" x 2-1/2" x 2-1/2" Siamese Connection, Polished Brass201 $556.27EA

Installation =x x $556.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$460.68 1.00

User Note: FDC

21  13   13   00 0013 Pendant Brass Sprinkler Heads With Escutcheon202 $9,009.16EA

Installation =x x $9,009.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$41.45 180.00

User Note: Add 180 new heads.

Subtotal for 21 - Fire Suppression: $18,248.52

22 - Plumbing

22  05   76   00 0018 7" Diameter Wall Cover For Cleanout, Screwed203 $1,068.84EA

Installation =x x $1,068.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$68.09 13.00

User Note: 2 in the gang bathrooms, one by the single toilets, one at each kitchen sink.

22  11   16   00 0571 2" Inside Diameter (50 mm) Copper Pipe/Tubing Type L AssemblyNote: Prices 

Include All Hangers And Couplings, Elbow, Tee, Reducer Fittings. All Hangers 

Are Complete Assemblies

204 $6,489.41LF

Installation =x x $6,489.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$30.71 175.00

User Note: This copper pipe is to tie new water into the building.

22  11   16   00 0571 For Type K Tubing Instead Of Type L, Add205 Mod $758.61LF

Installation =x x $758.61
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.59 175.00

User Note: underground copper is type K.

22  11   16   00 0571 2" Inside Diameter (50 mm) Copper Pipe/Tubing Type L AssemblyNote: Prices 

Include All Hangers And Couplings, Elbow, Tee, Reducer Fittings. All Hangers 

Are Complete Assemblies

206 $7,416.47LF

Installation =x x $7,416.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$30.71 200.00

User Note: Main domestic water line on the center and west main runs of the building.

22  11   16   00 0571 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add207 Mod $953.93LF

Installation =x x $953.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.95 200.00

User Note: Main domestic water line on the center and west main runs of the building. An additional 233 LF added for 

running the waste line as this modifier is not provided for the waste line, line item.

Page 23 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  11   16   00 0581 1/2" Pipe Schedule 80 CPVC208 $1,736.63LF

Installation =x x $1,736.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.06 470.00

User Note: 1/2 PEX waterlines per the review notes from Gordian in lieu of the copper originally price. Both hot and cold 

water lines. Additional 46 LF added for the 2 drinking fountains.

22  11   19   00 0123 3/4" Bellows Type (NPTF) Shock Absorber, For 11 Fixture Units209 $294.20EA

Installation =x x $294.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$60.91 4.00

User Note: One in every restroom.

22  11   19   00 0273 1/2" Threaded Double Check Valve Assembly With Quarter Turn Shut-offs 

(Watts 007 QT or 719 QT series)

210 $1,224.41EA

Installation =x x $1,224.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$169.00 6.00

User Note: 1 per restroom, 2 in the big restrooms, one for each sink, and one extra shut off to isolate the single toilet at 

the restroom 112.

22  11   19   00 0278 2" Threaded Double Check Valve Assembly With Quarter Turn Shut-offs (Watts 

007 QT or 719 QT series)

211 $1,114.91EA

Installation =x x $1,114.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$461.66 2.00

User Note: For the two main waterlines in the build, so they can be isolated.

22  11   19   00 0329 2-1/2" Flanged Double Check Valve Assembly With NRS Shut-offs (Watts 757 

NRS series)

212 $3,976.32EA

Installation =x x $3,976.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,646.51 2.00

User Note: Two shut off Vales for exterior copper lines.

22  13   13   00 0042 Rough-in Water Closet, Floor Mounted, Single Fixture, Includes PVC Waste Pipe 

And Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture Or Flush Valve

213 $2,911.40EA

Installation =x x $2,911.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$267.90 9.00

User Note: 9 toilets.

22  13   13   00 0045 Rough-in Urinal, Wall Mounted, Single Fixture, Includes PVC Waste Pipe And 

Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture, Flush Valve Or Wall 

Carrier

214 $348.24EA

Installation =x x $348.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$144.20 2.00

User Note: 2 urinals.

22  13   13   00 0047 Rough-in Kitchen Sink, (Counter), Single Fixture, Includes PVC Waste Pipe And 

Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture Or Faucet

215 $592.86EA

Installation =x x $592.86
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$245.49 2.00

User Note: 2 kitchen sinks shown per plan

22  13   13   00 0050 Rough-in Service Sink, Floor Mounted, Single Fixture, Includes PVC Waste Pipe 

And Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture Or Faucet

216 $619.23EA

Installation =x x $619.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$256.41 2.00

User Note: Mop sink rough in.

Page 24 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  13   13   00 0061 Rough-in Lavatory, Wall Mounted, Double Fixture, Includes PVC Waste Pipe 

And Vent And Copper Domestic Supply, Excludes Fixture, Faucet Or Wall 

Carrier

217 $1,145.58EA

Installation =x x $1,145.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$237.18 4.00

User Note: 4 double sinks total in all the gang restrooms.

22  13   16   00 0987 2" (51 mm) ABS-PVC DWV Pipe Schedule 40 Pipe AssemblyNote: Includes all 

fittings, couplings and hangers.  Fittings are assumed every 10'.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

218 $153.47LF

Installation =x x $153.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.71 10.00

User Note: Scaled per plan

22  13   16   00 0988 3" (76 mm) ABS-PVC DWV Pipe Schedule 40 Pipe AssemblyNote: Includes all 

fittings, couplings and hangers.  Fittings are assumed every 10'.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

219 $1,159.06LF

Installation =x x $1,159.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$16.84 57.00

User Note: Scaled per plan

22  13   16   00 0989 4" (10 cm) ABS-PVC DWV Pipe Schedule 40 Pipe AssemblyNote: Includes all 

fittings, couplings and hangers.  Fittings are assumed every 10'.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

220 $5,399.06LF

Installation =x x $5,399.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.19 233.00

User Note: Scaled per plan

22  33   33   00 0019 3 KW, 20 Gallon, Heavy Duty Electric Commercial Water Heater (DSE-20-3)221 $3,564.25EA

Installation =x x $3,564.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,951.76 1.00

User Note: Water heater.

22  42   13   00 0006 Flush Valve Type, Floor Outlet, Siphon Jet Water Closet, Floor Mounted, 

Elongated, (American Standard 2234.015)

222 $1,176.48EA

Installation =x x $1,176.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$324.77 3.00

User Note: Floor Mounted toilets

22  42   13   00 0014 Flush Valve Type, Siphon Jet Handicap Accessible Water Closet, Floor 

Mounted, Floor Outlet, Elongated (American Standard 3043.102)

223 $2,483.01EA

Installation =x x $2,483.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$342.72 6.00

User Note: ADA floor mounted toilets.

22  42   13   00 0018 Exposed Manual Water Closet Flush Valve (Sloan Regal-115)224 $2,327.63EA

Installation =x x $2,327.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$175.24 11.00

User Note: For 11 toilets.

22  42   13   00 0038 Washdown, Wall Hung Vitreous China Urinal (American Standard 

6501.010.020)

225 $905.96EA

Installation =x x $905.96
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$375.14 2.00

User Note: Flush valves per the specifications.

Page 25 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  42   16   00 0009 27"x20" Wheelchair Accessible, Vitreous China Wall Hung Lavatory (American 

Standard 9141.911.020)

226 $957.52EA

Installation =x x $957.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$396.49 2.00

User Note: Per specification.

22  42   16   00 0046 21"x17" Oval Vitreous China Undercounter Lavatory (Crane 1981)227 $2,759.77EA

Installation =x x $2,759.77
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$285.69 8.00

User Note: Sinks per specifications.

22  42   16   00 0069 17"x22"x10" Stainless Steel Kitchen Sink, Single Bowl, 18 Gauge (Elkay 

DLR172210)

228 $1,362.18EA

Installation =x x $1,362.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$564.05 2.00

User Note: 2 kitchen sinks per the plans

22  42   16   00 0102 36"x24"x10" Plastic Composite Mop Service Sink With Combination Dome 

Strainer And Stainless Steel Lint Basket (Fiat Products MSB3624)

229 $1,025.65EA

Installation =x x $1,025.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$424.70 2.00

User Note: Mop sinks

22  42   23   00 0010 Pressure-Balancing Mixing Valve With Lever Handle; Symmons # S-15-1-X230 $282.12EA

Installation =x x $282.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$233.64 1.00

User Note: Mixing valve

22  42   39   00 0023 Widespread Lavatory Faucet With Chrome Lever Handles, Delta 3543-LHP+H24231 $2,607.62EA

Installation =x x $2,607.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$179.96 12.00

User Note: Chicago faucets per specifications

22  42   39   00 0046 3" Spout With Vacuum Breaker, Wall Mount Service Sink Faucet, Lever 

Handles, American Standard 8340.243

232 $493.31EA

Installation =x x $493.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$204.27 2.00

User Note: Faucet at the mop sinks

22  47   16   00 0032 Stainless Steel, Wall Mounted, Barrier Free, Bi-Level, Vandal Resistant Indoor 

Water Cooler With Bubblers, 8 GPH (Halsey-Taylor HVR8BL-CHILD ADA-SS)

233 $3,834.22EA

Installation =x x $3,834.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,587.67 2.00

User Note: Per the requirements from Modular Solutions two drinking fountains are required.

Subtotal for 22 - Plumbing: $61,142.35

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  05   93   00 0015 Balancing HVAC Duct System, Ceiling Height To 12' Supply, Return, Exhaust, 

Register And Diffuser

234 $1,045.02EA

Installation =x x $1,045.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$36.06 24.00

User Note: Balancing of supply and return registers.

Page 26 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  07   13   00 0003 1" Type 75 (0.75 LB/CF) FSK Fiber Glass Duct Wrap Insulation235 $38,218.75SF

Installation =x x $38,218.75
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.77 17,882.00

User Note: Duct wrap in lieu of the  duct liner per the plans - per the Owners request.

23  09   23   00 0606 Electronic Programmable Two Heating/Two Cooling Heat Pump Or Conventional 

Unit Thermostat (Honeywell TH8321)

236 $6,005.82EA

Installation =x x $6,005.82
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$207.24 24.00

User Note: per note 3 and 4 on M2.1. looking up the KMC Flexstat this is the closest option I could find.

23  09   23   00 0760 Delta Style Surface Mounted AD592 Room Temperature Sensor (Kele 

BA/592-10K-R)

237 $1,453.64EA

Installation =x x $1,453.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$50.16 24.00

User Note: Remote temp sensors.

23  23   13   00 0004 1/2" Refrigeration Ball Valve, Sweated238 $658.14EA

Installation =x x $658.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$22.71 24.00

User Note: One valve for each unit so they can be isolated if they need to be worked on.

23  23   16   00 0007 1/2" Refrigeration Tubing Copper (Soft) Dehydrated239 $1,455.81LF

Installation =x x $1,455.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.94 306.00

User Note: Refrigerant piping is required per the plans. I did reduce the linear footage from 515 LF to 306LF.

23  31   13   13 0006 Sheet Metal Ductwork, Low Pressure, Shop Fabricated, Galvanized, Field 

Assemble And Install

240 $62,276.97LB

Installation =x x $62,276.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.69 13,977.00

User Note: this is for all the 22/10 ductwork throughout the building.

23  33   13   13 0018 8" x 8" Rectangular Opposed Blade Damper, Steel Construction, Manual 

Operation

241 $144.32EA

Installation =x x $144.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$39.84 3.00

User Note: In lieu of fire dampers per the review notes.

23  33   13   13 0021 10" x 10" Rectangular Opposed Blade Damper, Steel Construction, Manual 

Operation

242 $168.63EA

Installation =x x $168.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$46.55 3.00

User Note: In lieu of fire dampers per the review notes.

23  33   13   13 0046 20" x 10" Rectangular Opposed Blade Damper, Steel Construction, Manual 

Operation

243 $308.40EA

Installation =x x $308.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$63.85 4.00

User Note: In lieu of fire dampers per the review notes.

23  33   46   00 0006 8" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated244 $114.75LF

Installation =x x $114.75
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.31 13.00

User Note: EF 1-4

Page 27 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  33   46   00 0007 10" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated245 $18,950.31LF

Installation =x x $18,950.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9.21 1,704.00

User Note: 10" round flex duct work.

23  33   46   00 0008 12" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated246 $295.11LF

Installation =x x $295.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.22 20.00

User Note: HP 21

23  33   46   00 0009 14" Diameter Flexible Duct, Factory Fabricated, Preinsulated247 $231.54LF

Installation =x x $231.54
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$14.75 13.00

User Note: HP 21

23  34   16   00 0228 70 CFM Exhaust Fan, Ceiling/Wall Mounted, Light Duty248 $527.29EA

Installation =x x $527.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$145.56 3.00

User Note: Exhaust fans per plan.

23  34   16   00 0237 180 CFM - 225 SF Max Bathroom Exhaust Fan, 120V 60 Hz, Anodized 

Aluminum Finish

249 $250.88EA

Installation =x x $250.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$207.77 1.00

User Note: Exhaust fans per plan.

23  34   16   00 0238 210 CFM - 260 SF Max Bathroom Exhaust Fan, 120V 60 Hz, Anodized 

Aluminum Finish

250 $1,580.42EA

Installation =x x $1,580.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$327.21 4.00

User Note: Exhaust fans per plan.

23  37   13   00 0026 24" x 24" Ceiling Diffuser With Perforated Face, Flush Mount, Aluminum 

Construction With

Damper

251 $10,441.66EA

Installation =x x $10,441.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$109.46 79.00

User Note: 1PDDR Perforated Face Grille - Steel Construction.

23  37   13   00 0026 For Steel Construction, Deduct252 Mod -$911.00EA

Installation =x x $-911.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-9.55 79.00

User Note: 1PDDR Perforated Face Grille - Steel Construction.

23  37   13   00 0026 For Lay-In Mount, Deduct253 Mod -$728.80EA

Installation =x x $-728.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-7.64 79.00

User Note: 1PDDR Perforated Face Grille - Steel Construction.

23  37   13   00 0032 12" x 12" Ceiling Diffuser, Louver Face, Adjustable Pattern, Surface Mounted,

Aluminum Construction With

Damper

254 $80.90EA

Installation =x x $80.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$67.00 1.00

User Note: CSD-1 SDR Steel.

Page 28 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  37   13   00 0032 For Steel Construction, Deduct255 Mod -$6.73EA

Installation =x x $-6.73
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-5.57 1.00

User Note: CSD-1 SDR Steel.

23  37   13   00 0032 For Lay-In Mount, Add256 Mod $8.97EA

Installation =x x $8.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.43 1.00

User Note: CSD-1 SDR Steel.

23  37   13   00 0123 24" x 24" Adjustable Curved Blade Register, Ceiling Mounted, Aluminum 

Construction,

4-Way Pattern

257 $18,173.80EA

Installation =x x $18,173.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$118.51 127.00

User Note: Supply Grilles

23  37   13   00 0123 For Steel Construction, Deduct258 Mod -$1,821.83EA

Installation =x x $-1,821.83
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-11.88 127.00

User Note: Supply Grilles

23  37   13   00 0123 For Lay In Frame, Deduct259 Mod -$3,036.38EA

Installation =x x $-3,036.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-19.80 127.00

User Note: Supply Grilles

23  81   26   00 0007 24,200 BTU Wall Mounted Ductless Split System Air Conditioners, 17 

SEERIncludes indoor unit, outdoor unit, wireless thermostat and refrigerant 

charge.

260 $2,552.59EA

Installation =x x $2,552.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,113.95 1.00

User Note: For wall unit.

Subtotal for 23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $158,438.98

26 - Electrical

26  05   19   00 0056 #14 AWG Cable - Type THHN-THWN, 600 V Copper, Single Solid, Placed In 

Conduit

261 $330.30MLF

Installation =x x $330.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$273.54 1.00

User Note: This is for the 14-2 wiring for the Fire Alarm.

26  05   19   00 0314 #18 AWG Cable - Type TFFN 600 V Copper, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit262 $257.22MLF

Installation =x x $257.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$213.02 1.00

User Note: This is for the 18-2 wiring for the Fire Alarm.

26  05   19   00 0314 #18 AWG Cable - Type TFFN 600 V Copper, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit263 $257.22MLF

Installation =x x $257.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$213.02 1.00

User Note: Control Wire for the HVAC system.

Page 29 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   33   13 0006 1/2" EMT With 4 #10 THHN/THWN AssemblyNote:  Includes conduit, set screw 

connectors, set screw couplings, straps, wire as indicated.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

264 $14,341.48CLF

Installation =x x $14,341.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$395.90 30.00

User Note: The wiring for the #10 THHN is being done to cover the wire that will be required for the water heater that 

was added to the project through the addendums. Also on the longer runs of the wiring the wiring has to be 

change from the #12 to the #10 THHN because of the longer runs require the up size in the cable. Also being 

figured into this is the use of the office space and the need for multiple circuits to carry the load of 

computers. The average circuit can only carry 3 computers.

26  05   33   13 0009 3/4" EMT With 5 #12 THHN/THWN AssemblyNote:  Includes conduit, set screw 

connectors, set screw couplings, straps, wire as indicated.  Not for use 

where detail is available.

265 $107,938.43CLF

Installation =x x $107,938.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$446.95 200.00

User Note: The #12 THNN wiring that is being used here is the wire that will carry almost all of the electrical wiring 

throughout the building. This wiring will contain most of the home runs that are needed for wiring the 

building. Also figured into this wiring is the use of the office space and the number of computers that can be 

put on a circuit as was mentioned in the above line item. This will also handle the lighting throughout the 

building and the switches as well. Included is the wire of the 7 floor boxes as shown per the floor plan 

layout. The longer runs where the #12 wire will not be as effective and efficient will be up sized to a #10 

THHN

26  05   33   13 0025 1/2" RGS With 4 #12 THHN/THWN Wire AssemblyNote:  Includes conduit, 

terminations, straps, wire as indicated.  Not for use where detail is available.

266 $22,475.44CLF

Installation =x x $22,475.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$465.33 40.00

User Note: MC cable that was approve in the hard bid addendum

26  05   33   16 0005 4" Square Steel Box X 2-1/8" Deep With Cover267 $1,500.80EA

Installation =x x $1,500.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$13.81 90.00

User Note: Fire alarm plans call for a 4" square deep back box at every device. There are a total of 90 devices.

26  05   33   16 0011 3"-1/2"x3-3/4" Steel Masonry Box With Cover, 1 Gang, Flush Mount268 $808.54EA

Installation =x x $808.54
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$11.16 60.00

User Note: single light switches

26  05   33   16 0013 3"-1/2"x3-3/4" Steel Masonry Box With Cover, 3 Gang, Flush Mount269 $794.41EA

Installation =x x $794.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.35 34.00

User Note: 3 light switches

26  05   33   16 0014 3"-1/2"x3-3/4" Steel Masonry Box With Cover, 4 Gang, Flush Mount270 $316.26EA

Installation =x x $316.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.81 11.00

User Note: 4 light switches

26  05   33   16 0040 2-1/2" Deep Two Gang Sectional Box, With 15 A Duplex Receptacle - Complete271 $11,351.18EA

Installation =x x $11,351.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$31.44 299.00

User Note: Receptacles and GFIs

Page 30 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   33   16 0160 Floor Box, Multi Use, Embedded Cast Outlet Boxes272 $2,533.30EA

Installation =x x $2,533.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$299.71 7.00

User Note: There are seven floor boxes shown on the plans.

26  51   13   00 0107 2 T8 Lamps, 2' x 2', Prismatic Lensed, Lay-In/Troffer Fluorescent Fixture273 $4,441.80EA

Installation =x x $4,441.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$111.47 33.00

User Note: Per plans

26  51   13   00 0113 3 T8 Lamps, 2' x 4', Prismatic Lensed, Lay-In/Troffer Fluorescent Fixture274 $47,268.41EA

Installation =x x $47,268.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$120.82 324.00

User Note: Per plan specifications and manufacture specs.

26  53   00   00 0005 Double Face, Thermoplastic Housing, LED Exit Sign With Battery Back-Up275 $2,900.90EA

Installation =x x $2,900.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$120.12 20.00

User Note: Per plan specifications and manufacture specs.

26  56   23   00 0103 30 LEDs, 57 System Watts, 530 mA Drive Current, Full Cutoff, LED Wall Pack 

(Lithonia CSXW LED)

276 $15,642.14EA

Installation =x x $15,642.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$863.61 15.00

User Note: Closest match I could find to what is called for in the electrical specifications.

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $233,157.83

28 - Electronic Safety And Security

28  13   33   16 0178 Smarterm Relay Expander Board (Continental Instrument CICP1400RB)Note: 16 

Output relays, 8 alarm inputs.

277 $4,150.66EA

Installation =x x $4,150.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$859.35 4.00

User Note: Per fire alarm design there will be four fire alarm smoke relays.

28  31   23   00 0004 Remote LCD Command Module Annunciator (EST3 3-LCDANN)Includes LCD 

display, CPU and doors. Order surface or semi-flush mount wallbox separately.

278 $872.32EA

Installation =x x $872.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$722.42 1.00

User Note: Per fire alarm design there will be one annunciator per design.

28  31   23   00 0050 10 Amp. 110V Booster Power Supply (EST3 BPS10)279 $1,106.79EA

Installation =x x $1,106.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$458.30 2.00

User Note: 2 PAD boosters.

28  31   23   00 0052 Tamper Switch - For CAB7, 14 And 21 Series Cabinets (EST3 3-TAMP)280 $73.28EA

Installation =x x $73.28
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$60.69 1.00

User Note: per fire alarm design one taper switch.

28  31   23   00 0054 1.2Ah Sealed Lead Acid Battery - 12 Vdc (EST3 12V1A2 (1.2 Ah))281 $53.35EA

Installation =x x $53.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$44.18 1.00

User Note: battery backup.

Page 31 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

28 - Electronic Safety And Security

28  31   23   00 0074 Intelligent 4D Multisensor Detector - Ionization, Photoelectric, Heat (EST3 

SIGA-IPHS)

282 $526.23EA

Installation =x x $526.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$108.95 4.00

User Note: Per fire alarm design there will be four heat monitors.

28  31   23   00 0100 Class B Dual Input Module (One Gang Standard Mount) (EST3 SIGA-CT2)283 $4,418.16EA

Installation =x x $4,418.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$98.89 37.00

User Note: Per design 37 smoke detectors.

28  31   23   00 0120 Two Stage (Pre Signal) Fire Alarm Station, English Markings (EST3 SIGA-270P)284 $792.00EA

Installation =x x $792.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$131.18 5.00

User Note: One pull station per exit door.

28  31   23   00 0147 Horn-Strobe (15, 30, 75, Or 110 cd Output, High Or Low dB Output), White 

(EST3 G1-HDVM)

285 $3,442.93EA

Installation =x x $3,442.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$73.11 39.00

User Note: Per design.

28  31   23   00 0315 FACP, 1 Intelligent Loop Supporting 125 Detectors/125 Modules, 2nd Loop 

Optional, 4 Class B NAC's, 6.5A Power Supply, Gray Door, 115Vac, Capacity 

For Up (2) 18a/h Batteries, Includes Dual Line Dialer/Modem, English (EST3 

iO500GD)

286 $1,989.31EA

Installation =x x $1,989.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,647.46 1.00

User Note: 1 FACP.

28  31   23   00 1019 Intelligent Addressable 2-Wire Detector Monitor Module (Notifier NZM-100)287 $633.02EA

Installation =x x $633.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$131.06 4.00

User Note: This is to monitor the duct detectors.

Subtotal for 28 - Electronic Safety And Security: $18,058.05

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  31   13   00 0009 10" (25 cm) Diameter Hole, Auger By Machine Fence Post Hole In Soil288 $194.09VLF

Installation =x x $194.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$8.93 18.00

User Note: There is a fence called out to be placed around the wall mounted unit so I have figures for a 4' gate to 

access the unit and 2' of fence length off the building. This will require 6 fence posts.

32  31   13   00 0026 Concrete Fill, 10" (25 cm) Diameter Hole289 $224.31VLF

Installation =x x $224.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$10.32 18.00

User Note: There is a fence called out to be placed around the wall mounted unit so I have figures for a 4' gate to 

access the unit and 2' of fence length off the building. This will require 6 fence posts.

32  31   13   00 0039 Grout Fill, 10" (25 cm) Diameter Hole290 $245.17VLF

Installation =x x $245.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$11.28 18.00

User Note: There is a fence called out to be placed around the wall mounted unit so I have figures for a 4' gate to 

access the unit and 2' of fence length off the building. This will require 6 fence posts.

Page 32 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  31   13   00 0147 6' Galvanized Chain Link Fence, 9 Gauge Coiled Spring Mesh, Top And Bottom 

Rails, 2-1/2" Line Post At 10' O.C., 3" Corner Post

291 $91.72LF

Installation =x x $91.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$18.99 4.00

User Note: Fencing around the exterior wall unit.

32  31   13   00 0147 For Quantities Up To 100, Add292 Mod $16.66LF

Installation =x x $16.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.45 4.00

User Note: Fencing around the exterior wall unit.

32  31   13   00 0275 4' (1.2 m) Wide x 6' (1.6 m) High Single Gate Galvanized Steel Without Barbed 

Wire

293 $230.56EA

Installation =x x $230.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$190.94 1.00

User Note: Gate at exterior unit.

Subtotal for 32 - Exterior Improvements: $1,002.51

$1,053,801.63Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 33 of 33

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

December 23, 2015

The Copper Administration Building proposal by: Keith Burns Estimator/Project Manager o - 480-832-1777 

c - 480-466-1135 kburns@sdcranebuilders.com The Following Scope of Work has been put together 

using the Gila County Copper Admin Building plans dated 4/20/2015, the site plans prepared by EPS 

Group and dated December 8, 2015, the soils plan as prepared by Speedie and Associated, and also per 

job site visits and preconstruction progress meetings. The project will consist of SD Crane Builders 

repurposing the 12 modular trailers on the interior to fit the needs of the County as directed per the plans, 

specifications and direction per Gila County. Also included into this project is the site work that is shown 

per plan from the EPS Group, and the soils plan prepared by Speedie and Associates. At the Direction of 

Gila County we have included the demolition and installation of new windows at the existing. We have also 

included pricing to trench for site lighting to be provided by APS. We have also priced out the State 

approved fire alarm plans dated December 12, 2015. We have also included full supply and installation of 

fiber and data. The fiber installation will begin in the third floor of the County Courthouse. We have also 

included $100,000 owners contingency. Per Discussions with Bob Hickman Gila County will provide the 

construction and final cores for all of the doors on the project. Gila County will also provide traffic control as 

needed along Monroe Street. Exclusions: - Abatement - Hard dig - Hazardous materials testing/Abatement 

- Building permits and fees - Cost associated with general building inspections - Traffic control plan and 

/or plan fees - Any pad prep or dirt work not associated with any of the above mentioned scopes of work.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements Site

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$1,058,037.74

01 - General Requirements: $194,820.61

02 - Site Work: $10,051.34

03 - Concrete: $96,545.44

04 - Masonry: $98,255.60

05 - Metals: $6,317.85

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $1,286.93

07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection: $8,753.79

09 - Finishes: $65,678.13

10 - Specialties: $677.20

26 - Electrical: $209,521.48

31 - Earthwork: $74,707.95

32 - Exterior Improvements: $284,123.85

33 - Utilities: $7,297.57

$1,058,037.74Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

December 23, 2015

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

1.2075-Option 3 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working Hours, 1.0500-Option 3 - Non 

Pre-Priced

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements Site

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$1,058,037.74

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $105,000.00EA

Installation =x x $105,000.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 100,000.00

User Note: Owners Contingency

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $54,975.56EA

Installation =x x $54,975.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 52,357.68

User Note: Sales tax.

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $13,241.21EA

Installation =x x $13,241.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 12,610.68

User Note: Bond.

 2.00

Page 1 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

4 $2,685.14EA

Installation =x x $2,685.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 2,557.28

User Note: Builders risk.

01  22   20   00 0030 Sprinkler InstallerNote: Tasks in the CTC include appropriate costs to cover 

labor. These tasks will be requested specifically by the owner for 

miscellaneous work not covered in the CTC.

5 $2,112.84HR

Installation =x x $2,112.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$54.68 32.00

User Note: 2 workers figured to remove the existing FDC piping from the exterior of the building and also reinstall once 

the stucco has been finished. It is figured two men for 2 days.

01  22   23   00 0720 6 Ton Lift Hydraulic Crane With Full-Time Operator6 $831.15DAY

Installation =x x $831.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$688.32 1.00

User Note: Crane is to unload and place precast transformer pad.

01  56   26   00 0005 Temporary 6' High Chain Link Fence And Posts7 $899.35LF

Installation =x x $899.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.52 490.00

User Note: Minimal temp fencing to enclose the site.

01  71   13   00 0003 Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A Tractor 

Trailer With Up To 53' BedNote: For equipment such as bulldozers, motor 

scrapers, hydraulic excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, 

heavy duty construction loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, 

straight mast construction forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction 

forklifts, telescoping and articulating boom manlifts with > 40' boom lengths, etc.

8 $5,071.50EA

Installation =x x $5,071.50
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$300.00 14.00

User Note: One backhoe for the plumber, one backhoe for the concrete sub, one backhoe for the site utilities sub, 5 

pieces of equipment for the paver sub, and 5 pieces of equipment for the earthwork sub. 1 trencher.

01  71   23   16 0022 Survey Clear Area For Underground Utilities9 $5,768.14ACR

Installation =x x $5,768.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,985.58 1.60

User Note: Private locater to mark all utilities throughout the duration of the project as needed.

01  74   19   00 0026 Asphalt, Concrete, Gravel And Subgrade Material Landfill Dump Fee10 $2,136.12CY

Installation =x x $2,136.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.02 252.00

User Note: Dumping of all demoed materials.

Page 2 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  74   19   00 0029 Hauling On Paved Roads, First 15 Miles11 $2,099.60CYM

Installation =x x $2,099.60
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.46 3,780.00

User Note: Dumping of all demoed materials.

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $194,820.61

02 - Site Work

02  41   13   13 0002 Break-Up 1" To 3" Thick Bituminous Pavement12 $11,695.24SY

Installation =x x $11,695.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.30 2,935.00

User Note: Demo SY per plan.

02  41   13   13 0002 For Quantities > 2500 To 5000, Deduct13 Mod -$3,047.85SY

Installation =x x $-3,047.85
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.86 2,935.00

User Note: Demo LF per plan.

02  41   13   13 0006 Break-Up >3" To 6" Thick Concrete Pavement14 $94.66SY

Installation =x x $94.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$8.71 9.00

User Note: Remove 80 SF of sidewalk.

02  41   19   13 0016 Saw Cut Minimum ChargeNote: For projects where the total saw cutting charge 

is less than the minimum charge. Use this task exclusively. This task should not 

be used in conjunction with any other tasks in this section.

15 $902.41EA

Installation =x x $902.41
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$373.67 2.00

User Note: Saw cut for the removal of the catch basin. Also the saw cut of the pavement before demolition.

02  41   19   13 0151 1/2" Diameter Drilling In Concrete Per Inch Of Depth16 $406.88IN

Installation =x x $406.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.62 208.00

User Note: MAG 145 shows a 4 inch depth. We will be drilling into the CMU at each door way to prevent heaving from 

the sidewalk to the buildings entrances.

Subtotal for 02 - Site Work: $10,051.34

03 - Concrete

03  01   30   71 0088 Epoxy Injection, Over 1/4" Wide17 $627.73LF

Installation =x x $627.73
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$30.58 17.00

User Note: MAG 145 shows a 4 inch depth. We will be drilling into the CMU at each door way to prevent heaving from 

the sidewalk to the buildings entrances.

03  11   13   00 0009 Up To 6" High Slab Edge and Block-Out Wood Formwork18 $5,085.00LF

Installation =x x $5,085.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.39 1,762.00

User Note: Forming for the sidewalks and ramps. Per the new drawings 100 LF has been removed.

03  11   13   00 0009 For Curved Formwork, Add19 Mod $338.70LF

Installation =x x $338.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.85 330.00

User Note: The walk on the north side of the site.

Page 3 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

03 - Concrete

03  11   13   00 0010 >6" To 12" High Slab Edge and Block-Out Wood Formwork20 $1,580.62LF

Installation =x x $1,580.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.50 374.00

User Note: forming for the spillways, per the detail 113 LF. Also forming for the 9" thick valley gutter 261 LF.

03  11   23   00 0002 Cast On Grade Stairway Wood Formwork21 $1,890.95SF

Installation =x x $1,890.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.96 225.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

03  11   23   00 0002 For Quantities < 1000, Add22 Mod $364.06SF

Installation =x x $364.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.34 225.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

03  15   16   00 0012 1/2" x 4" Premolded Felt Asphalt Expansion Joint, In Slabs Or Walls23 $1,917.03LF

Installation =x x $1,917.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.40 1,134.00

User Note: expansion joint. per the site plans stair details.

03  15   16   00 0039 1" "Zip Strip", In Slabs Or Floors24 $1,341.92LF

Installation =x x $1,341.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.98 1,134.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

03  21   11   00 0006 Grade 60 Reinforcing Steel, Footings And Slabs, #3-#625 $8,361.38TON

Installation =x x $8,361.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,978.44 3.50

User Note: Rebar for the trash enclosure. Rebar attached to the angle iron per MAG 203 for the scuppers. Rebar for the 

retaining walls. vertical and horizontal rebar reinforcement at the combo wall. per the site plans stair details.

03  21   11   00 0025 Straight Dowels, 1/2" Diameter x 24" Long (13 mm Diameter x 61 cm Long), 

Deformed

26 $35.56EA

Installation =x x $35.56
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.55 19.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details. Dowels at all door ways.

03  21   11   00 0025 For Installation In Existing Concrete, Horizontal, Add Per Inch Of Depth

(Note: Includes Drilling Hole Into Concrete And Grout)

27 Mod $147.44EA

Installation =x x $147.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.11 110.00

User Note: 6" for every dowel

03  31   13   00 0009 Direct Chute, Place 3000 PSI Concrete Continuous Footings28 $8,175.45CY

Installation =x x $8,175.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$111.91 60.50

User Note: Footings and bollards at Trash enclosure. per the site plans stair details. Concrete for Small CMU wall at 

building. concrete for the footings at both walls.

Page 4 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

03 - Concrete

03  31   13   00 0026 Up To 6", By Direct Chute, Place 3000 PSI Concrete Slab On Grade29 $15,049.92CY

Installation =x x $15,049.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$108.38 115.00

User Note: From what I see on the plan for the underground utilities provided by Mark, there is 225 LF of existing fiber 

that we are to encase in concrete. I figured 2' wide by 1' thick by 225LF, this will be poured with 3000 PSI 

concrete because it will have the heavy equipment from the earthwork scope driving over it. Concrete slab 

at Trash enclosure. For both spillways. To pour all the sidewalks and handicap ramps. I minused 17 yards 

for the correction of the pour to encase the fiber line. I added 14 yards of concrete for the corrected 

dimensions for the valley gutter because it was not include per the previous notes. Per the new drawings 4 

CY has been removed.

03  31   13   00 0026 For Quantities > 100 To 200, Deduct30 Mod -$301.33CY

Installation =x x $-301.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-2.17 115.00

User Note: From what I see on the plan for the underground utilities provided by Mark, there is 225 LF of existing fiber 

that we are to encase in concrete. I figured 2' wide by 1' thick by 225LF, this will be poured with 3000 PSI 

concrete because it will have the heavy equipment from the earthwork scope driving over it. Concrete slab 

at Trash enclosure. For both spillways. To pour all the sidewalks and handicap ramps. I minused 17 yards 

for the correction of the pour to encase the fiber line. I added 14 yards of concrete for the corrected 

dimensions for the valley gutter because it was not include per the previous notes. Per the new drawings 4 

CY has been removed.

03  31   13   00 0035 Concrete Pump, Place 3000 PSI On Grade Concrete StairsExcludes pumping 

equipment.

31 $3,091.20CY

Installation =x x $3,091.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$160.00 16.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

03  31   13   00 0035 For Quantities Up To 20, Add32 Mod $462.91CY

Installation =x x $462.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.96 16.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

03  31   13   00 0040 Direct Chute, Place 1200 PSI Concrete Slurry33 $1,120.17CY

Installation =x x $1,120.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$115.96 8.00

User Note: Slurry backfill at new storm drain.

03  31   13   00 0093 Trailer Mounted Concrete PumpNote: Includes hoses.34 $6,943.03HR

Installation =x x $6,943.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$119.79 48.00

User Note: Pump truck for Masonry retaining walls. Five different pours figured. Also 1 trip figured to do the shotcrete.

03  35   16   00 0001 Concrete Floor Finishes, Screed35 $4,176.98SF

Installation =x x $4,176.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.40 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

Page 5 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

03 - Concrete

03  35   16   00 0001 For Quantities > 7500 SF, Deduct36 Mod -$835.40SF

Installation =x x $-835.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.08 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   16   00 0002 Concrete Floor Finishes, Darby37 $5,116.81SF

Installation =x x $5,116.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.49 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   16   00 0002 For Quantities > 7500 SF, Deduct38 Mod -$1,044.25SF

Installation =x x $-1,044.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.10 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   16   00 0004 Concrete Floor Finishes, Final Float39 $6,683.17SF

Installation =x x $6,683.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.64 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   16   00 0004 For Quantities > 7500 SF, Deduct40 Mod -$1,357.52SF

Installation =x x $-1,357.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.13 8,648.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

Page 6 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

03 - Concrete

03  35   16   00 0005 Concrete Floor Finishes, Steel Trowel41 $5,712.36SF

Installation =x x $5,712.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.71 6,663.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   16   00 0005 For Quantities > 2500 To 7500 SF, Deduct42 Mod -$563.19SF

Installation =x x $-563.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.07 6,663.00

User Note: This includes all the walks on the site and all the handicap ramps also. 2' by 166.6 LF has been deducted for 

the change at the building for the addition for the DG. Also finishing line items will include a screed, darby, 

final float, steel trowel, and a broom finish. Those line items are what are required to finish all of this 

specified concrete and they will be done in that order during the concrete finishing process. Finishing at the 

Trash enclosure. This line item includes the footing also. Finishing at the spillways. per the site plans stair 

details. Includes finishing the top of the footing. Finishing top of footing so it will be flat for the CMU wall. 

finishing of the footing to make sure its level for the CMU to go on top.

03  35   26   00 0002 Concrete Grooving For Handicapped Ramps43 $573.08SF

Installation =x x $573.08
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.26 210.00

User Note: At handicap ramps.

03  37   13   00 0004 3" Thick Shotcrete, Fiber Reinforced44 $19,461.52SF

Installation =x x $19,461.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.26 2,220.00

User Note: Per plan page 2 of 15

03  39   00   00 0009 Curing Compound, 200 To 400 SF /Gallon, 5 Gallon lots45 $511.32GAL

Installation =x x $511.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9.41 45.00

User Note: Vocomp 20 to be sprayed on the concrete after finishing.

03  48   16   00 0002 Precast Concrete Splash Blocks, Standard Size46 $36.13EA

Installation =x x $36.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.48 4.00

User Note: Added per the  new site plans.

03  48   49   00 0004 6" Thick Precast Landing47 $1,842.69SF

Installation =x x $1,842.69
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$42.39 36.00

User Note: Precast transformer pad.

Subtotal for 03 - Concrete: $96,545.44

04 - Masonry

04  05   13   26 0012 Brown Colored Admixture48 $4,610.14CF

Installation =x x $4,610.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.64 2,328.00

User Note: Color block per plan for all visible CMU walls. 378 CF removed per new plans. Added 224 CF for the raising 

of the block wall by 1'

Page 7 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

04 - Masonry

04  05   13   26 0016 Normal Portland Cement (Type I)49 $29,738.76CF

Installation =x x $29,738.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7.67 3,211.00

User Note: 2077 CF of grout at both site CMU walls. 1,288 CF for the small CMU wall that will become the building skirt. 

378 CF removed per new plans.  Added 224 CF for the raising of the block wall by 1'

04  05   16   26 0003 Grout Beams And Lintels - 8" Block Concrete Fill Only, 0.20 CF/LF, 8" Deep50 $1,016.58LF

Installation =x x $1,016.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.11 399.00

User Note: For grouting 3 bond beams. Quantity reduced from 954 LF.

04  05   19   13 0016 Horizontal Truss Joint Reinforcing In 8" Wall, Use 6" Wide Truss For 8" Wall51 $2,333.12CLF

Installation =x x $2,333.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$46.38 41.66

User Note: Wire reinforcing in all CMU walls. Reduce from 57.3.  Added 336 LF for the raising of the block wall by 1'

04  05   19   26 0003 Horizontal #5 And #6 Rebar Reinforcing52 $3,084.32LB

Installation =x x $3,084.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.82 3,115.00

User Note: Rebar for the 6' and combination wall footing. Reduced 300Lbs

04  05   19   26 0004 Vertical #3 And #4 Rebar Reinforcing53 $364.47LB

Installation =x x $364.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.54 196.00

User Note: Rebar in the CMU. Reduced by 100 lbs.

04  05   19   26 0005 Vertical #5 And #6 Rebar Reinforcing54 $2,433.98LB

Installation =x x $2,433.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.92 2,191.00

User Note: Rebar at the stairs.

04  05   23   13 0006 Rubber Control Joint For 8" Wall55 $809.63LF

Installation =x x $809.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4.50 149.00

User Note: Control joint every 24' standard.  Added 14 LF for the raising of the block wall by 1'

04  22   23   13 0012 8" x 16" x 8" (21 cm) Regular Foundation Wall Concrete Masonry Unit (Sand 

Aggregate)

56 $22,416.03SF

Installation =x x $22,416.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.00 3,094.00

User Note: for all visible CMU walls. Reduced by 567 SF.  Added 336 SF for the raising of the block wall by 1'

04  22   23   13 0012 For Special Color, Add57 Mod $5,604.01SF

Installation =x x $5,604.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.50 3,094.00

User Note: for all visible CMU walls. Reduced by 567 SF.  Added 336 SF for the raising of the block wall by 1'

04  22   23   13 0016 8" x 16" x 8" (21 cm) Solid Foundation Wall Concrete Masonry Unit (Sand 

Aggregate)

58 $12,583.31SF

Installation =x x $12,583.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.82 1,528.00

User Note: Block for small CMU wall.

04  22   23   13 0061 8" x 16" x 8" (21 cm) Regular Weight Bond Beam Or Lintel Block (Block Only)59 $10,503.51LF

Installation =x x $10,503.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.97 1,248.00

User Note: 3 bond beams in the 6' wall and 2 on 5' wall.

Page 8 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

04 - Masonry

04  22   23   13 0061 For Special Color, Add60 Mod $2,757.74LF

Installation =x x $2,757.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.83 1,248.00

User Note: 3 bond beams in the 6' wall and 2 on 5' wall.

Subtotal for 04 - Masonry: $98,255.60

05 - Metals

05  05   23   00 0125 3/8" Diameter x 5" Long Wedge Anchor Expansion Bolt61 $361.04EA

Installation =x x $361.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.75 52.00

User Note: Per MAG 145. 13 Post 4 bolts per post.

05  05   23   00 0125 For Quantities > 50 To 100, Deduct62 Mod -$31.40EA

Installation =x x $-31.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.50 52.00

User Note: Per MAG 145. 13 Post 4 bolts per post.

05  12   23   00 0392 2" x 2" x 3/16" Angle Iron63 $649.08LF

Installation =x x $649.08
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.27 102.00

User Note: Angle iron shown per the MAG 203 DTL for the 12 scuppers.

05  12   23   00 0392 For Quantities > 100 To 250, Deduct64 Mod -$25.86LF

Installation =x x $-25.86
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.21 102.00

User Note: Angle iron shown per the MAG 203 DTL for the 12 scuppers.

05  52   13   00 0014 1-1/2" Diameter (37 mm) Welded Pipe Handrail, 4 Rail, Up To 42" High (1.07 m) 

With Shop Paint

65 $3,383.72LF

Installation =x x $3,383.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$50.95 55.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

05  52   13   00 0014 For Additional Off Set Handrail, ADA Attachment, Add66 Mod $788.32LF

Installation =x x $788.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$11.87 55.00

User Note: I put the ADA rail in because it is a 5 rail system and the book only has a four rail system.

05  52   13   00 0014 For Mounting On Stairs, Add67 Mod $394.49LF

Installation =x x $394.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.94 55.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

05  52   13   00 0014 For Post Base Flange With Screws, Add Per Post68 Mod $301.24LF

Installation =x x $301.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.19 13.00

User Note: per MAG Detail 145. figured 13 posts.

05  54   00   00 0007 1/4" Steel Raised Or Diamond Pattern Floor Plates69 $497.22SF

Installation =x x $497.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.53 17.50

User Note: This is the closest I could find there is no 1/2" diamond plate the thickest given is 1/4". Per MAG 203 for the 

scuppers. This has been cut in half per the new drawings.

Subtotal for 05 - Metals: $6,317.85

Page 9 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  11   16   00 0156 1"x6" (2.5cm x 15cm) Light Framing And Furring70 $1,286.93LF

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.94 0.00

Demolition x x = $1,286.93 1.2075$0.93 1,146.00

User Note: This is to remove all the 1"x6" from the exterior of the building and the windows so the foam and stucco can 

be installed correctly.

Subtotal for 06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $1,286.93

07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection

07  92   00   00 0009 1/2" x 1/2" Joint, Silicone Sealant And Caulking71 $2,666.04CLF

Installation =x x $2,666.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$272.58 8.10

User Note: This caulking will happen around the HVAC units and the new stucco.

07  92   00   00 0009 For Coloring, Add72 Mod $457.15CLF

Installation =x x $457.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$46.74 8.10

User Note: To color match the building paint.

07  92   00   00 0010 1/2" x 5/8" Joint, Silicone Sealant And Caulking73 $5,440.14CLF

Installation =x x $5,440.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$320.89 14.04

User Note: Caulking for all expansion joints.

07  92   00   00 0010 For Coloring, Add74 Mod $190.46CLF

Installation =x x $190.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$58.42 2.70

User Note: For brown caulking in CMU wall.

Subtotal for 07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection: $8,753.79

09 - Finishes

09  22   36   23 0007 2.5#/SY, Self Furring, Flat Diamond, Expanded Metal Lath, Installed On Solid 

Surface

75 $11,689.61SF

Installation =x x $11,689.61
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.09 8,881.50

User Note: Stucco of the building and CMU wall under the building per the County's request.

09  22   36   23 0007 For Paper Backed Lath, Add76 Mod $643.46SF

Installation =x x $643.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.06 8,881.50

User Note: Stucco of the building and CMU wall under the building per the County's request.

09  22   36   23 0007 For Wall Height > 12', Add77 Mod $1,179.69SF

Installation =x x $1,179.69
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.11 8,881.50

User Note: Figured at 15 6"'

09  23   13   00 0008 "J" Trim, Galvanized Steel78 $1,460.59LF

Installation =x x $1,460.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.68 720.00

User Note: Metal trim to go around the stucco at the ac units and the electrical panels.

Page 10 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  23   13   00 0010 "U" Trim, Galvanized Steel79 $730.30LF

Installation =x x $730.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.68 360.00

User Note: Metal trim for the expansion joints in the stucco.

09  24   23   00 0002 Three Coat Troweled Stucco, Scratch/Brown/FinishNote: Excludes lath and 

felt. Interior or exterior, one side.

80 $40,431.03SF

Installation =x x $40,431.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.77 8,881.50

User Note: Stucco of the building and CMU wall under the building per the County's request.

09  24   23   00 0002 For Quantities > 5000, Deduct81 Mod -$3,324.57SF

Installation =x x $-3,324.57
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.31 8,881.50

User Note: Stucco of the building and CMU wall under the building per the County's request.

09  91   13   00 0092 Paint Exterior Stucco Surfaces One Coat Primer, Sprayed82 $4,397.01SF

Installation =x x $4,397.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.41 8,881.50

User Note: Primer for exterior Stucco.

09  91   13   00 0092 For Quantities > 5000 To 10000, Deduct83 Mod -$428.98SF

Installation =x x $-428.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.04 8,881.50

User Note: Primer for exterior Stucco.

09  91   13   00 0094 Paint Exterior Stucco Surfaces, Two Coats Paint, Sprayed84 $9,330.24SF

Installation =x x $9,330.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.87 8,881.50

User Note: Industry standard to paint rough surfaces like stucco, or CMU walls are to paint the walls with an initial 

spray of the paint and having painters follow be hind the sprayer to back roll the entire are to ensure good 

coverage of all the rough surfaces.

09  91   13   00 0094 For Quantities > 5000 To 10000, Deduct85 Mod -$965.20SF

Installation =x x $-965.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.09 8,881.50

User Note: Industry standard to paint rough surfaces like stucco, or CMU walls are to paint the walls with an initial 

spray of the paint and having painters follow be hind the sprayer to back roll the entire are to ensure good 

coverage of all the rough surfaces.

09  91   13   00 0357 Paint Stair Hand Rail And Bracket, 1 Rail Two Coats Alkyd Enamel86 $408.44LF

Installation =x x $408.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.23 275.00

User Note: Figured to paint the handrails at the stairs. Each rail is 55 LF and there are 5 rails per the plans.

09  91   13   00 0370 Prime And Paint 4" And Smaller Valve87 $30.21EA

Installation =x x $30.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.51 2.00

User Note: Exterior shut off valves that are a part of the interior plumbing. This is to help isolate the building water from 

outside the building.

09  91   43   00 0020 Hand Scraping And Sanding Of Metal88 $96.30SF

Installation =x x $96.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.29 275.00

User Note: Figured to do before painting the handrails at the stairs. Each rail is 55 LF and there are 5 rails per the plans.

Subtotal for 09 - Finishes: $65,678.13

Page 11 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

10 - Specialties

10  14   29   00 0086 Mounting On Ground With Base, Includes Bolts And Drilling For Bolts89 $677.20EA

Installation =x x $677.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$32.99 17.00

User Note: Per the new plans.

Subtotal for 10 - Specialties: $677.20

26 - Electrical

26  05   19   00 0069 #6 AWG Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit90 $1,418.15MLF

Installation =x x $1,418.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,174.45 1.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0072 #2 AWG Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit91 $594.68MLF

Installation =x x $594.68
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2,462.46 0.20

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0074 1/0 AWG Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit92 $9,382.90MLF

Installation =x x $9,382.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3,885.26 2.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0076 3/0 AWG Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit93 $21,016.59MLF

Installation =x x $21,016.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5,801.68 3.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0077 4/0 AWG Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit94 $42,907.00MLF

Installation =x x $42,907.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$7,106.75 5.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0080 350 MCM Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit95 $4,657.91MLF

Installation =x x $4,657.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9,643.71 0.40

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   19   00 0081 400 MCM Cable - XLP (XHHW), 600 V, Single Stranded, Placed In Conduit96 $26,301.06MLF

Installation =x x $26,301.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$10,890.71 2.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   33   13 1258 2" PVC Schedule 40 Conduit With Coupling, Direct Burial, Glued Coupling97 $2,749.48LF

Installation =x x $2,749.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.53 900.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   33   13 1259 2-1/2" PVC Schedule 40 Conduit With Coupling, Direct Burial, Glued Coupling98 $621.26LF

Installation =x x $621.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.43 150.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

Page 12 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   33   13 1260 3" PVC Schedule 40 Conduit With Coupling, Direct Burial, Glued Coupling99 $9,215.64LF

Installation =x x $9,215.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4.24 1,800.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  05   33   13 1262 4" PVC Schedule 40 Conduit With Coupling, Direct Burial, Glued Coupling100 $1,436.93LF

Installation =x x $1,436.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.95 200.00

User Note: Per the one line and also the changes for the placement for the electrical equipment.

26  11   16   00 0089 750 KVA, Substation, Secondary 480 Y / 277 V Or 480 V, Primary 13800 V, 

Dry Transformer

101 $26,261.99EA

Installation =x x $26,261.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$21,749.06 1.00

User Note: SES per the one line. This is the closet I could find for the SES.

26  12   13   00 0046 100 KVA Transformer Primary 24.9 KV Ground Y, Secondary 240/480 V, 2 

Taps, Oil Filled, 1 Phase

102 $12,041.67EA

Installation =x x $12,041.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4,986.20 2.00

User Note: Transformers per the one line.

26  12   13   00 0048 250 KVA Transformer Primary 24.9 KV Ground Y, Secondary 240/480 V, 2 

Taps, Oil Filled, 1 Phase

103 $19,389.62EA

Installation =x x $19,389.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$8,028.83 2.00

User Note: Transformers per the one line.

26  24   13   00 0009 400 Amp Distribution Switchboard With MC Main Breaker, 240 V, 3 Phase, 4 

Wire

104 $8,200.62EA

Installation =x x $8,200.62
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3,395.70 2.00

User Note: New distribution panels per the one line.

26  24   13   00 0012 1200 Amp Distribution Switchboard With MC Main Breaker, 240 V, 3 Phase, 4 

Wire

105 $23,325.98EA

Installation =x x $23,325.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9,658.79 2.00

User Note: New distribution panels per the one line.

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $209,521.48

31 - Earthwork

31  05   16   00 0003 #4 Stone Aggregate Fill (3/4" To 1-1/2" Clean)106 $2,348.35CY

Installation =x x $2,348.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$35.01 55.55

User Note: For the SWPP that was requested By Gila County we will have track out entering the site that is 30' wide by 

100' long by 6" thick.

31  05   16   00 0023 Crusher Run Aggregate Fill (3/4" Minus)107 $1,075.48CY

Installation =x x $1,075.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$33.61 26.50

User Note: For DG at the building. Additional drawings provide by Mark Guerena. Per the new plan 22 CY has been 

added.

Page 13 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

31 - Earthwork

31  05   16   00 0023 For Quantities Up To 10 (Up To 8 M3), Add108 Mod $52.60CY

Installation =x x $52.60
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$9.68 4.50

User Note: For DG at the building. Additional drawings provide by Mark Guerena.

31  05   16   00 0026 Aggregate PlacementNote: Includes Spreading, Grading, Compaction Rolling109 $1,283.18CY

Installation =x x $1,283.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.13 55.55

User Note: For the SWPP that was requested By Gila County we will have track out entering the site that is 30' wide by 

100' long by 6" thick.

31  05   16   00 0026 Aggregate PlacementNote: Includes Spreading, Grading, Compaction Rolling110 $612.14CY

Installation =x x $612.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.13 26.50

User Note: For DG at the building. Additional drawings provide by Mark Guerena. Added 22 CY per the new plans

31  11   00   00 0008 Clearing - Light Brush Without Grub111 $281.67ACR

Installation =x x $281.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$145.79 1.60

User Note: Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  11   00   00 0015 Machine Loading Of Cleared And Grubbed Material112 $1,688.18CY

Installation =x x $1,688.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.44 257.00

User Note: loading of all demoed materials. Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  23   16   13 0005 Over 12" Wide, Excavation for Trenching by Machine in Loose Rock113 $778.90CY

Installation =x x $778.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.79 95.00

User Note: Trenching for electrical.

31  23   16   13 0005 For Quantities > 50 To 250 (> 39 m3 To 191 m3), Add114 Mod $195.01CY

Installation =x x $195.01
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.70 95.00

User Note: Trenching for electrical.

31  23   16   13 0010 Backfilling or Placing Subbase for Trenches with Imported or Stockpiled 

Materials by Machine

115 $1,730.98CY

Installation =x x $1,730.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.81 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   16   13 0010 For Quantities > 500 To 1000 (> 382 To 765 M3), Deduct116 Mod -$258.21CY

Installation =x x $-258.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.27 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   16   13 0011 Backfilling or Placing Subbase for Trenches with Imported or Stockpiled 

Materials by Hand

117 $133.79CY

Installation =x x $133.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$13.85 8.00

User Note: Backfill after installation of waste and domestic water lines 5' out from the building.

Page 14 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

31 - Earthwork

31  23   16   13 0011 Backfilling or Placing Subbase for Trenches with Imported or Stockpiled 

Materials by Hand

118 $1,588.77CY

Installation =x x $1,588.77
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$13.85 95.00

User Note: Backfilling for the electrical trenching.

31  23   16   13 0013 Compaction of Fill or Subbase for Trenches by Vibratory Plate, Air Tamper, 

Etcetera

119 $929.71CY

Installation =x x $929.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.95 261.00

User Note: Compaction with a jumping jack. for all the ABC placed in the bottom of the footings at the 6' wall and the 

stairs. Also Backfill for the electrical trenching.

31  23   16   13 0013 Compaction of Fill or Subbase for Trenches by Vibratory Plate, Air Tamper, 

Etcetera

120 $2,821.20CY

Installation =x x $2,821.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.95 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   16   13 0013 For Quantities > 500 To 1000 (> 382 To 765 M3), Deduct121 Mod -$420.79CY

Installation =x x $-420.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.44 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   16   33 0009 Cutting, Shaping and Rough Grading Existing Elevations For Bulk Excavation by 

Machine

122 $10,194.80CY

Installation =x x $10,194.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.18 2,655.00

User Note: Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  23   16   33 0009 For Quantities > 1000, Deduct123 Mod -$1,538.84CY

Installation =x x $-1,538.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.48 2,655.00

User Note: Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  23   16   33 0016 Finish Grading for Bulk Excavation by Machine124 $2,051.78SY

Installation =x x $2,051.78
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.32 5,310.00

User Note: Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  23   16   33 0018 Compaction of Fill or Subbase for Bulk Excavation by MachineNote: Per Lift125 $467.91SY

Installation =x x $467.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.31 1,250.00

User Note: There will be 2 lifts of compaction at the combination wall, the 6' wall, the trash enclosure, and the CMU wall 

at the stairs that totals 1,100 SY. There is 3 lifts at the concrete wall at the stairs that totals 150 SY.

31  23   16   36 0006 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader in Soil

126 $3,538.46CY

Installation =x x $3,538.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.70 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

Page 15 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

31 - Earthwork

31  23   16   36 0007 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader in Loose Rock

127 $1,011.76CY

Installation =x x $1,011.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4.41 190.00

User Note: Digging of the sewer lines, water lines, fire lines, storm drain, and exposing of the fiber optic line.

31  23   16   36 0007 For Quantities > 50 To 250 (> 39 m3 To 191 m3), Add128 Mod $403.79CY

Installation =x x $403.79
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.76 190.00

User Note: Digging of the sewer lines, water lines, fire lines, storm drain, and exposing of the fiber optic line.

31  23   16   36 0007 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader in Loose Rock

129 $287.55CY

Installation =x x $287.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4.41 54.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details. excavation of waste and domestic water lines 5' out

31  23   16   36 0007 For Quantities > 50 To 250 (> 39 m3 To 191 m3), Add130 Mod $114.76CY

Installation =x x $114.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.76 54.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details. excavation of waste and domestic water lines 5' out

31  23   16   36 0007 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader in Loose Rock

131 $330.15CY

Installation =x x $330.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$4.41 62.00

User Note: For both the 6' wall and the 5' combo wall.

31  23   16   36 0007 For Quantities > 50 To 250 (> 39 m3 To 191 m3), Add132 Mod $131.76CY

Installation =x x $131.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.76 62.00

User Note: For both the 6' wall and the 5' combo wall.

31  23   16   36 0009 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hand in Soil133 $1,083.71CY

Installation =x x $1,083.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$49.86 18.00

User Note: digging the footing by hand under the building. will be done by the masonry contractor.

31  23   16   36 0009 For Excavation In Heavy/Wet Material (Class C), Add134 Mod $433.40CY

Installation =x x $433.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$19.94 18.00

User Note: digging the footing by hand under the building. will be done by the masonry contractor.

31  23   16   36 0014 Relocating On Site Excavated Material From Excavation For Building 

Foundations and Other Structures Over 500' to 1000'

135 $5,489.39CY

Installation =x x $5,489.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$5.74 792.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   16   36 0018 Backfilling Around Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader

136 $519.83CY

Installation =x x $519.83
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.87 150.00

User Note: Backfilling of the sewer lines, water lines, fire lines, storm drain, and exposing of the fiber optic line.

Page 16 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

31 - Earthwork

31  23   16   36 0018 For Quantities > 50 To 250 (> 39 m3 To 191 m3), Add137 Mod $208.29CY

Installation =x x $208.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.15 150.00

User Note: Backfilling of the sewer lines, water lines, fire lines, storm drain, and exposing of the fiber optic line.

31  23   16   36 0018 Backfilling Around Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hydraulic 

Excavator, Backhoe, Loader

138 $55.45CY

Installation =x x $55.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.87 16.00

User Note: Backfill of dirt over footings and up against the 6' and combination walls.

31  23   16   36 0019 Backfilling Around Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hand139 $458.66CY

Installation =x x $458.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.74 16.00

User Note: Backfill of dirt over footings and up against the 6' and combination walls.

31  23   16   36 0032 Spread Excess Or Imported Material On Site By Hand140 $1,084.35CY

Installation =x x $1,084.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$20.18 44.50

User Note: moving dirt out from the underside of the modular and cleaning the edge of trench so a footing can be 

prepped. For DG at the building. Additional drawings provide by Mark Guerena. grading of the DG behind the 

curbs per the new plans. 22CY added.

31  23   23   23 0002 Compaction Water, Water Truck And OperatorNote: Use this task in situations 

where fill, base material, etc. requires additional moisture to comply with the 

compaction specification. Includes delivery up to 15 miles. (Per 1000 Gallons)

141 $230.10MGL

Installation =x x $230.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$95.28 2.00

User Note: This is for the excavation that is required by the soils report at all the footings. This is figured for the walls at 

the stairs, the 6' wall, and the trash enclosure.

31  23   23   23 0002 Compaction Water, Water Truck And OperatorNote: Use this task in situations 

where fill, base material, etc. requires additional moisture to comply with the 

compaction specification. Includes delivery up to 15 miles. (Per 1000 Gallons)

142 $15,531.83MGL

Installation =x x $15,531.83
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$95.28 135.00

User Note: For the SWPP that was requested By Gila County we will have a water truck onsite to keep the dust down 

during digging and dust making operations outside of the scope of work of the earthwork. It is estimated at 

500 gallon truck will be fully used 3 times a day for 3 months.

31  23   23   23 0002 Compaction Water, Water Truck And OperatorNote: Use this task in situations 

where fill, base material, etc. requires additional moisture to comply with the 

compaction specification. Includes delivery up to 15 miles. (Per 1000 Gallons)

143 $11,505.06MGL

Installation =x x $11,505.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$95.28 100.00

User Note: Grading being figured without any soils report.

31  24   13   00 0010 Scarify Soil For Roadways, Parking Areas, Landscaping And Embankments By 

Machine

144 $1,796.27CSF

Installation =x x $1,796.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.95 504.27

User Note: plans indicate 5603 SY. SY converted into SF is SY x 9.

31  24   13   00 0010 For Area Quantities > 500 (> 4645 M2), Deduct145 Mod -$359.25CSF

Installation =x x $-359.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-0.59 504.27

User Note: plans indicate 5603 SY. SY converted into SF is SY x 9.

Page 17 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

31 - Earthwork

31  24   13   00 0019 Finish Grade For Curb146 $200.83LF

Installation =x x $200.83
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.54 308.00

User Note: Grading

31  24   13   00 0020 Finish Grade For Curb And Gutter147 $403.26LF

Installation =x x $403.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.66 506.00

User Note: Grading

31  25   14   26 0021 Wattles (Sterile Straw Filled Rolls), 9" x25'148 $3,722.00EA

Installation =x x $3,722.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$77.06 40.00

User Note: During the meeting on 11/30 we were asked to provide SWPP protection. There are 997 LF of wattles 

figures to cover from the southeast corner of the project, along the entire south edge of the project, and to 

run past DES and keep the separation between our project and their property.

31  32   19   16 0002 2.6 Oz/SY, 90 LB Grab Tensile Nonwoven Polypropylene Geotextile Paving 

Fabric

149 $273.70SY

Installation =x x $273.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.68 333.33

User Note: For the SWPP that was requested By Gila County we will have track out entering the site that is 30' wide by 

100' long.

31  32   19   16 0002 For Quantities > 250 To 500, Add150 Mod $16.10SY

Installation =x x $16.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.04 333.33

User Note: For the SWPP that was requested By Gila County we will have track out entering the site that is 30' wide by 

100' long.

31  37   00   00 0002 Rip Rap, 10# To 50# Average Pieces Random, Dumped From Truck151 $220.13CY

Installation =x x $220.13
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$36.46 5.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details. Per the new plans 3 CY added.

Subtotal for 31 - Earthwork: $74,707.95

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  11   16   00 0004 Bituminous Stabilized Base CourseNote: 3/4" ASTM C33.152 $127,219.07CY

Installation =x x $127,219.07
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$102.14 1,031.50

User Note: Aggregate base for parking lot. Per the SF listed on the plans. per the site plans stair details. ABC at the 

trash enclosure. ABC for all the walks on the project.

32  12   16   13 0018 3" Thick Surface Course, Includes Placement, Rolling, Finishing And Sweeping153 $96,883.71SY

Installation =x x $96,883.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$14.32 5,603.00

User Note: Asphalt. Per the square footage per the plans.

32  16   13   13 0020 6" X 18" Cast In Place Concrete Curb - Radius154 $4,340.19LF

Installation =x x $4,340.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$11.67 308.00

User Note: For the A curb

Page 18 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  16   13   13 0021 6" X 24" Cast In Place Concrete Curb155 $22,546.87LF

Installation =x x $21,337.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.07 1,464.00

Demolition x x = $1,209.77 1.2075$4.14 242.00

User Note: MAG 220 A. Demo 242 LF of Curb.

32  16   13   13 0021 For Quantities > 1000, Deduct156 Mod -$4,348.74LF

Installation =x x $-4,348.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-2.46 1,464.00

User Note: MAG 220 A. Demo 242 LF of Curb.

32  16   13   13 0022 6" X 24" Cast In Place Concrete Curb - Radius157 $11,906.00LF

Installation =x x $11,906.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$13.47 732.00

User Note: MAG 220 A

32  16   13   13 0022 For Quantities > 500 To 1000, Deduct158 Mod -$1,423.06LF

Installation =x x $-1,423.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-1.61 732.00

User Note: MAG 220 A

32  16   13   13 0025 Additional Finish For Handicap Drop Section In Curb159 $102.12EA

Installation =x x $102.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$28.19 3.00

User Note: This only happens at 3 of the 5 locations of the handicap ramps.

32  16   13   19 0006 4' Wide Valley Gutter, 6" Thick160 $4,895.34LF

Installation =x x $4,895.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$24.06 168.50

User Note: an additional 169 LF added because the valley gutter per MAG detail is 9" thick not 6" as the line item 

accounts for.

32  16   13   19 0006 For Quantities > 500 To 1000, Deduct161 Mod -$492.38LF

Installation =x x $-492.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$-2.42 168.50

User Note: an additional 169 LF added because the valley gutter per MAG detail is 9" thick not 6" as the line item 

accounts for.

32  17   13   19 0003 6" x 6" x 6' Precast Concrete Wheel Stop162 $1,149.06EA

Installation =x x $1,149.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$36.60 26.00

User Note: Per the new plans

32  17   23   11 0002 Mobilize Pavement Marking Crew And Equipment At New Location163 $260.65EA

Installation =x x $260.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$215.86 1.00

User Note: Parking lot Striping per Plan page 2 of 15.

32  17   23   13 0006 Single 12" (31 cm) Wide Solid Line, Epoxy Reflective Pavement Striping164 $21.16LF

Installation =x x $21.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.73 24.00

User Note: Per the  new drawings

Page 19 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  17   23   13 0021 Through Lane Arrow, Epoxy Reflective Pavement MarkingNote: Approximate 

overall dimensions: 3-1/2' width x 10' height.

165 $175.40EA

Installation =x x $175.40
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$48.42 3.00

User Note: Per the new drawings.

32  17   23   13 0066 Single 4" (10 cm) Wide Solid Line, Painted Pavement Striping for Parking Areas166 $3,428.88LF

Installation =x x $3,428.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.55 5,163.00

User Note: Parking lot Striping per Plan page 2 of 15. This includes yellow and white striping. Added 547 for the red 

paint.

32  17   23   13 0071 6" (15 cm) High, Letter/Number, Painted Pavement Marking For Parking Areas167 $614.18EA

Installation =x x $614.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.36 374.00

User Note: per the new drawings.

32  17   23   13 0083 Handicap Symbol For Standard Parking Stalls, Painted Pavement Marking For 

Parking AreasNote: Approximate overall dimensions: 2-2/3' width x 3' height. 

White or blue symbol. Excludes striping.

168 $59.94EA

Installation =x x $59.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$12.41 4.00

User Note: Parking lot Striping per Plan page 2 of 15.

32  17   26   00 0003 Cast In Place VPC Truncated Dome Detectable Warning SurfaceNote: Also 

raised strips or directional bars. All colors.

169 $2,042.49SF

Installation =x x $2,042.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$33.83 50.00

User Note: For handicap warning truncated domes.

32  31   13   00 0009 10" (25 cm) Diameter Hole, Auger By Machine Fence Post Hole In Soil170 $1,067.51VLF

Installation =x x $1,067.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$8.93 99.00

User Note: 33 posts figured. Depths per MAG 160.

32  31   13   00 0026 Concrete Fill, 10" (25 cm) Diameter Hole171 $1,233.68VLF

Installation =x x $1,233.68
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$10.32 99.00

User Note: 33 posts figured. Depths per MAG 160.

32  31   13   00 0147 6' Galvanized Chain Link Fence, 9 Gauge Coiled Spring Mesh, Top And Bottom 

Rails, 2-1/2" Line Post At 10' O.C., 3" Corner Post

172 $7,012.50LF

Installation =x x $6,122.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$18.99 267.00

Demolition x x = $890.07 1.2075$1.36 542.00

User Note: Per MAG 160. Removal of 542 LF per plan page.

32  31   13   00 0147 For Installation In Concrete (Not Including Drilling), Add173 Mod $196.67LF

Installation =x x $196.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.61 267.00

User Note: Per MAG 160. Removal of 542 LF per plan page.

32  31   13   00 0167 1-5/8" (4.1 cm) Galvanized Steel Fence Rail Includes Tie Wire And Fittings174 $876.93LF

Installation =x x $876.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.72 267.00

User Note: Per MAG 160, the detail shows a middle support rail.

Page 20 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

32 - Exterior Improvements

32  31   13   00 0275 4' (1.2 m) Wide x 6' (1.6 m) High Single Gate Galvanized Steel Without Barbed 

Wire

175 $14.15EA

Installation =x x $0.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$190.94 0.00

Demolition x x = $14.15 1.2075$11.72 1.00

User Note: Plans call to remove one gate.

32  31   19   00 0016 6' Single Wrought Iron Gate, Includes Hardware And Associated Trim176 $599.87LF

Installation =x x $599.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$119.42 4.16

User Note: Linear footage taken from DTL page 2 of 15. Fencing details on page 15 of 15. Remove one existing gate per 

demo plans.

32  39   13   00 0004 6" Steel Pipe Bollard, Schedule 40, Painted Or Powder Coated177 $3,715.60LF

Installation =x x $3,715.60
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$39.45 78.00

User Note: There are 13 bollards total. 6 at the building, 3 at the trash enclosure, and 4 at the spillways.

32  84   23   00 0355 3/4" (19mm) Schedule 40 PVC Pipe With Fittings178 $26.06LF

Installation =x x $26.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.66 13.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

Subtotal for 32 - Exterior Improvements: $284,123.85

33 - Utilities

33  01   30   73 0005 >3" To 4" Rise, Up To 26" Diameter, Adjustable Or Solid Manhole RisersNote: 

For manholes up to 26" in diameter.

179 $331.51EA

Installation =x x $331.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$274.54 1.00

User Note: Per the new drawings.

33  11   13   13 0006 8" (20 cm) Diameter Mechanical Joint, Ductile Iron Pipe180 $1,896.38LF

Installation =x x $1,896.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$31.41 50.00

User Note: 8" line for fire line.

33  31   00   00 0006 4" (10 cm) ABS-PVC Pipe Schedule 40181 $1,526.52LF

Installation =x x $1,526.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6.45 196.00

User Note: Sewer pipe all the way to the manhole and piping included for the cleanouts.

33  31   00   00 0031 4" Long Sweep 1/4 Bend, ABS-PVC Schedule 40182 $36.15EA

Installation =x x $36.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$29.94 1.00

User Note: to make the turn to the manhole.

33  31   00   00 0079 4" Double Combination Wye And 1/8 Bend, ABS-PVC Schedule 40183 $467.30EA

Installation =x x $467.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$96.75 4.00

User Note: Bends for cleanouts every 50' on the 4 inch sewer line.

Page 21 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

33 - Utilities

33  41   13   00 0003 12" (30 cm) Diameter Class III Concrete Pipe Reinforced Without Gaskets184 $1,062.68LF

Installation =x x $889.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$23.01 32.00

Demolition x x = $173.58 1.2075$6.25 23.00

User Note: Per plan

33  41   13   00 0038 12" (30 cm) Diameter Concrete Pipe Joint Gasket185 $14.59EA

Installation =x x $14.59
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.02 4.00

User Note: for four concrete pipes.

33  41   13   00 0347 4" (100mm) Perforated, Smooth Interior Corrugated HDPE Pipe, Coupled186 $239.09LF

Installation =x x $239.09
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.96 50.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

33  44   13   13 0050 4' Inside Dimension Precast Catch Basin, 8' Deep187 $1,540.99EA

Installation =x x $1,222.77
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,012.65 1.00

Demolition x x = $318.21 1.2075$263.53 1.00

User Note: Per plan and MAG 537. plans call to demo 1 catch basin.

33  46   26   00 0001 Plastic Filter Fabric Underground Drain Lines188 $182.36CSF

Installation =x x $182.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$50.34 3.00

User Note: per the site plans stair details.

Subtotal for 33 - Utilities: $7,297.57

$1,058,037.74Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 22 of 22

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

December 23, 2015

The Copper Administration Building proposal by: Keith Burns Estimator/Project Manager o - 480-832-1777 

c - 480-466-1135 kburns@sdcranebuilders.com The Following Scope of Work has been put together 

using the Gila County Copper Admin Building plans dated 4/20/2015, the site plans prepared by EPS 

Group and dated December 8, 2015, the soils plan as prepared by Speedie and Associated, and also per 

job site visits and preconstruction progress meetings. The project will consist of SD Crane Builders 

repurposing the 12 modular trailers on the interior to fit the needs of the County as directed per the plans, 

specifications and direction per Gila County. Also included into this project is the site work that is shown 

per plan from the EPS Group, and the soils plan prepared by Speedie and Associates. At the Direction of 

Gila County we have included the demolition and installation of new windows at the existing. We have also 

included pricing to trench for site lighting to be provided by APS. We have also priced out the State 

approved fire alarm plans dated December 12, 2015. We have also included full supply and installation of 

fiber and data. The fiber installation will begin in the third floor of the County Courthouse. We have also 

included $100,000 owners contingency. Per Discussions with Bob Hickman Gila County will provide the 

construction and final cores for all of the doors on the project. Gila County will also provide traffic control as 

needed along Monroe Street. Exclusions: - Abatement - Hard dig - Hazardous materials testing/Abatement 

- Building permits and fees - Cost associated with general building inspections - Traffic control plan and 

/or plan fees - Any pad prep or dirt work not associated with any of the above mentioned scopes of work.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Copper Administration Interior, Security Access

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$80,111.87

01 - General Requirements: $6,205.64

08 - Openings: $12,877.46

26 - Electrical: $2,635.64

28 - Electronic Safety And Security: $58,393.13

$80,111.87Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

December 23, 2015

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

1.2075-Option 3 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working Hours, 1.0500-Option 3 - Non 

Pre-Priced

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Copper Administration Interior, Security Access

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$80,111.87

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $1,454.42EA

Installation =x x $1,454.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,385.16

User Note: Bond

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $4,226.22EA

Installation =x x $4,226.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 4,024.97

User Note: Sales Tax

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $525.00EA

Installation =x x $525.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 500.00

User Note: Builders Risk

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $6,205.64

 2.00

Page 1 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

08 - Openings

08  71   16   00 0414 4 Wire Concealed Circuit Electric Hinge Option4 $2,550.42EA

Installation =x x $2,550.42
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$140.81 15.00

User Note: Electric hinges.

08  71   16   00 2110 3' Push Bar Exit Device, Electric Latch RetractionNote: Aluminum anodized 

finish. Von Duprin Series 98/99. Excludes power supply.

5 $7,168.02EA

Installation =x x $7,168.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,187.25 5.00

User Note: Electric push bar exit device.

08  71   16   00 2259 Stainless Steel Body Electric Strike (Von Duprin 6215)6 $519.97EA

Installation =x x $519.97
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$430.62 1.00

User Note: Stainless steel electric strike.

08  71   16   00 2274 Electrified Mortise Lock OptionNote: Excludes the lock. This task is used in 

conjunction with other locks in the CTC to electrify the lock.

7 $1,863.05EA

Installation =x x $1,863.05
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$102.86 15.00

User Note: Electric locks, lock not included.

08  71   16   00 2280 9 Amp At 12 VDC, 6 Amp At 24 VDC Door Hardware Power Supply8 $776.00EA

Installation =x x $776.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$642.65 1.00

User Note: for the door hardware on the 9k series lever with communicating function.

Subtotal for 08 - Openings: $12,877.46

26 - Electrical

26  05   19   00 0016 Receptacles, Direct Connected Single, Includes Box9 $1,314.44EA

Installation =x x $1,314.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$49.48 22.00

User Note: back boxes for card readers.

26  05   19   00 0056 #14 AWG Cable - Type THHN-THWN, 600 V Copper, Single Solid, Placed In 

Conduit

10 $1,321.20MLF

Installation =x x $1,321.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$273.54 4.00

User Note: Wiring for the card readers and the security access.

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $2,635.64

28 - Electronic Safety And Security

28  13   33   16 0062 DKS Proximity Card Reader, Exterior Stand Alone Access Controls11 $15,958.66EA

Installation =x x $15,958.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$600.74 22.00

User Note: Card readers.

28  13   33   16 0152 12 Volt, 7 Amp, Battery12 $143.13EA

Installation =x x $143.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$39.51 3.00

User Note: Battery backup

Page 2 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

28 - Electronic Safety And Security

28  13   33   16 0156 Recessed Contact For Steel Doors, Door Monitor Switch (Sentrol 1078C)13 $953.15EA

Installation =x x $953.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$34.32 23.00

User Note: Door contacts

28  13   33   16 0157 Access Control Systems Power Supply (Altronix AL400ULACMCB)14 $2,558.57EA

Installation =x x $2,558.57
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$353.15 6.00

User Note: 5 Individual power supplies for the doors that have the push bar exit devices. 1 power supply for the rest of 

the card readers.

28  13   33   16 0163 Microterm Stand Alone One Or Two Door Processing Panel (Continental 

Instruments CICP1100)Note: Up to 1,000 card capacity. Includes 2 alarm inputs, 

tamper alarm, and 3 relay outputs.

15 $1,842.91EA

Installation =x x $1,842.91
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$763.11 2.00

User Note: Lenel UL listed hardware enclosure.

28  13   33   16 0177 Smarterm Memory Board - 2MB (Continental Instrument CICP1400MB2-1)Note: 

Up to 50,000 cardholders.

16 $13,401.44EA

Installation =x x $13,401.44
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1,109.85 10.00

User Note: This is the boards that are a dual reader interface module.

28  13   33   16 0200 CA 3000 Bundled System, Supports 25 Users (Continental Instrument 

CA3B250P4O3V0R0)Note: System includes PC, monitor, keyboard, mouse, OS, 

Card Access 3000 file server software, MS SQL 2000, 1 SQL host license, 

and security key.

17 $21,213.43EA

Installation =x x $21,213.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$17,568.06 1.00

User Note: Intelligent dual reader controller.

28  31   23   00 0081 Passive Infrared Motion Detector (EST3 SIGA-MD)18 $2,321.84EA

Installation =x x $2,321.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$128.19 15.00

User Note: REX (Request to exit) Motion sensors.

Subtotal for 28 - Electronic Safety And Security: $58,393.13

$80,111.87Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 3 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

December 23, 2015

The Copper Administration Building proposal by: Keith Burns Estimator/Project Manager o - 480-832-1777 

c - 480-466-1135 kburns@sdcranebuilders.com The Following Scope of Work has been put together 

using the Gila County Copper Admin Building plans dated 4/20/2015, the site plans prepared by EPS 

Group and dated December 8, 2015, the soils plan as prepared by Speedie and Associated, and also per 

job site visits and preconstruction progress meetings. The project will consist of SD Crane Builders 

repurposing the 12 modular trailers on the interior to fit the needs of the County as directed per the plans, 

specifications and direction per Gila County. Also included into this project is the site work that is shown 

per plan from the EPS Group, and the soils plan prepared by Speedie and Associates. At the Direction of 

Gila County we have included the demolition and installation of new windows at the existing. We have also 

included pricing to trench for site lighting to be provided by APS. We have also priced out the State 

approved fire alarm plans dated December 12, 2015. We have also included full supply and installation of 

fiber and data. The fiber installation will begin in the third floor of the County Courthouse. We have also 

included $100,000 owners contingency. Per Discussions with Bob Hickman Gila County will provide the 

construction and final cores for all of the doors on the project. Gila County will also provide traffic control as 

needed along Monroe Street. Exclusions: - Abatement - Hard dig - Hazardous materials testing/Abatement 

- Building permits and fees - Cost associated with general building inspections - Traffic control plan and 

/or plan fees - Any pad prep or dirt work not associated with any of the above mentioned scopes of work.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Copper Administration Fiber and Data

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$75,416.32

01 - General Requirements: $5,606.32

26 - Electrical: $824.72

27 - Communications: $68,985.28

$75,416.32Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

December 23, 2015

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

1.2075-Option 3 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working Hours, 1.0000-No Adjustment, 

1.0500-Option 3 - Non Pre-Priced

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Copper Administration Fiber and Data

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$75,416.32

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $3,917.10EA

Installation =x x $3,917.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 3,730.57

User Note: Sales tax

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $525.00EA

Installation =x x $525.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 500.00

User Note: Builders risk.

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $1,164.22EA

Installation =x x $1,164.22
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 1,108.78

User Note: Bond

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $5,606.32

 2.00

Page 1 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   19   00 0024 Box, Wall, Flush With Cover4 $36.06EA

Installation =x x $36.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0000$36.06 1.00

User Note: 1 Wall mounted panel at the exterior for the building for the fiber optic cabling.

26  05   33   23 0043 10" x 10", Panel Adapter For Surface Mounted Wireway With Screw Cover5 $44.66EA

Installation =x x $44.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0000$44.66 1.00

User Note: To cover the exposed conduit along the wall.

26  05   36   00 0007 12" Steel Cable Tray, 4" Rung Spacing, Straight Section6 $744.00LF

Installation =x x $744.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity TotalExcludes 

Material  1.0000$7.44 100.00

User Note: Per the Group meeting on 12/21/2015 we are adding 100 LF of cable try. material cost has been eliminated.

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $824.72

27 - Communications

27  11   16   00 0002 4' x 4' x 3/4" Fire Retardant Plywood Phone Backboard7 $46.49EA

Installation =x x $46.49
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$38.50 1.00

User Note: for a wall mount and backing.

27  11   16   00 0023 19" x 84" Equipment Rack, Modular Networking Frame8 $289.90EA

Installation =x x $289.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$240.08 1.00

User Note: 1 data rack.

27  11   19   00 0014 48 Port, Category 6 Patch Panel9 $2,976.38EA

Installation =x x $2,976.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$352.13 7.00

User Note: Per our Meeting on 11/30/2015 we are to add (7) 48 port patch panels.

27  11   19   00 0033 12-Panel Capacity, Rack Mount, Fiber Optic Cable Connector Housing10 $2,214.74EA

Installation =x x $2,214.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$366.83 5.00

User Note: Per walk with Gila County.

27  14   13   16 0105 4-Pair Stranded UTP, 23 AWG, Category 6, Indoor Telecommunications Riser 

Cable, Installed Exposed

11 $36,399.65MLF

Installation =x x $36,399.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$814.72 37.00

User Note: Cat 6 for the data cabling.

27  14   23   16 0301 12-Fiber, 50 Micron Multimode, Break-Out Plenum Rated, Tight Buffer, Indoor 

Fiber Optic Cable, Installed Exposed

12 $22,661.38MLF

Installation =x x $22,661.38
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$6,255.73 3.00

User Note: Per the Meeting 11/30/2015 we are pricing multimode Fiber, and per the job walk the fiber is to be plenum 

rated.

27  32   19   00 0027 Level 5, RJ-45 Jack, Dual Flush Mounted - Complete13 $4,396.74EA

Installation =x x $4,396.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$24.77 147.00

User Note: Data plates and jacks at 147 locations to complete the 294 data drops. Conduit in the wall for the data drops.

Page 2 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

Subtotal for 27 - Communications: $68,985.28

$75,416.32Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 3 of 3

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior ImprovementsJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO11-013788-ez

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

December 23, 2015

The Copper Administration Building proposal by: Keith Burns Estimator/Project Manager o - 480-832-1777 

c - 480-466-1135 kburns@sdcranebuilders.com The Following Scope of Work has been put together 

using the Gila County Copper Admin Building plans dated 4/20/2015, the site plans prepared by EPS 

Group and dated December 8, 2015, the soils plan as prepared by Speedie and Associated, and also per 

job site visits and preconstruction progress meetings. The project will consist of SD Crane Builders 

repurposing the 12 modular trailers on the interior to fit the needs of the County as directed per the plans, 

specifications and direction per Gila County. Also included into this project is the site work that is shown 

per plan from the EPS Group, and the soils plan prepared by Speedie and Associates. At the Direction of 

Gila County we have included the demolition and installation of new windows at the existing. We have also 

included pricing to trench for site lighting to be provided by APS. We have also priced out the State 

approved fire alarm plans dated December 12, 2015. We have also included full supply and installation of 

fiber and data. The fiber installation will begin in the third floor of the County Courthouse. We have also 

included $100,000 owners contingency. Per Discussions with Bob Hickman Gila County will provide the 

construction and final cores for all of the doors on the project. Gila County will also provide traffic control as 

needed along Monroe Street. Exclusions: - Abatement - Hard dig - Hazardous materials testing/Abatement 

- Building permits and fees - Cost associated with general building inspections - Traffic control plan and 

/or plan fees - Any pad prep or dirt work not associated with any of the above mentioned scopes of work.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Contractor:

Copper Administration Light Poles

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$4,264.65

01 - General Requirements: $814.88

26 - Electrical: $2,012.03

31 - Earthwork: $1,437.74

$4,264.65Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Summary - CSI



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

December 23, 2015

16-GilaCounty-0002.00

ADSPO11-013788-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Copper Administration Interior, Exterior Improvements

1.2075-Option 3 - Owner-Funded Projects Normal Working Hours, 1.0500-Option 3 - Non 

Pre-Priced

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Copper Administration Light Poles

Arizona - SD Crane Builders, Inc.

$4,264.65

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

1 $68.52EA

Installation =x x $68.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 65.26

User Note: Bond

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

2 $525.00EA

Installation =x x $525.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 500.00

User Note: Builders risk

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesNote: Reimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for 

the actual cost of all permits, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is 

received.  The Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.00.  

The labor cost involved in obtaining all permits is in the Adjustment Factor.  The 

base cost of the Reimbursable Fee is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the 

base cost to the actual Reimbursable Fee (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 

Reimbursable Fee).  If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, each one shall be 

listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fees (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warrantee, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.).  A copy of each receipt shall be included with 

the Proposal.

3 $221.36EA

Installation =x x $221.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0500$1.00 210.82

User Note: Sales tax

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $814.88

 2.00

Page 1 of 2

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  05   19   00 0319 #8 AWG Cable - Type THHN-THWN 600 V Copper, Single Stranded, Placed In 

Conduit

4 $2,012.03MLF

Installation =x x $2,012.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$666.51 2.50

User Note: Wiring for the light poles.

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $2,012.03

31 - Earthwork

31  23   16   13 0018 Load Excess Material by Machine for Removal from Excavation for Trenching5 $15.21CY

Installation =x x $15.21
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$3.15 4.00

User Note: Removing the dirt after digging the light poles.

31  23   16   13 0018 For Quantities Up To 20 (Up To 15 M3), Add6 Mod $12.17CY

Installation =x x $12.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$2.52 4.00

User Note: Removing the dirt after digging the light poles.

31  23   16   13 0035 6" Wide, 36" Deep Trench, Medium Soil, Chain Trencher7 $1,014.30LF

Installation =x x $1,014.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$1.05 800.00

User Note: Trenching for light poles.

31  23   16   13 0047 Backfill 6" Wide, 36" Deep Trench, With Compaction8 $396.06LF

Installation =x x $396.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.2075$0.41 800.00

User Note: Backfill of the trenching for light poles.

Subtotal for 31 - Earthwork: $1,437.74

$4,264.65Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 2 of 2

12/23/2015

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



COPPER ADMINISTRATION BUILDING FINANCIAL EXPENSES

841,317.52$                  Total of Contracts issued prior to major construction (See Items 4 thru 16, Column D on detail breakdown)

483.30$                          Miscellaneous expenses (See Items 17 thru 19, Column E on detailed breakdown)

(109,598.21)$                 Savings gained on previously issued contracts (See Items 8, 11, and 12 on detailed breakdown)

732,202.61$                  Misc Contracts available  plus various expenses as of 12-24-2015

(658,281.35)$                 Known misc. contract expenses & misc expenses  (See Item 38, Column P on detailed breakdown)

73,921.26$                    Balance of misc. contracts (See Items 4 thru 20, Column P of detailed breakdown)

2,271,632.21$               SD Crane contract including $105,000 contingency

146,165.18$                  County contingency incl., I.T. equip. not in SD Crane contract, fuel move, HVAC unit unknowns, other

3,150,000.00$               Total estimated building costs including contingencies.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
20

21

22

23

24
25

26

27

28

29
30

31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38
39

40

41

42
43

A B C D E F I J K L M N O P

COPPER ADMINISTRATION BUILDING PROJECT AT  1350 E. Monroe Street in Globe 9/2/2015 9/24/2015 11/23/2015 11/25/2015 12/14/2015 12/16/2015 12/21/2015 12/24/2015

VENDOR DESCRIPTION CONTRACT NUMBER

 AMOUNT OF 

CONTRACT/OR WORK Invoiced Amt.

Balance of 

Contract

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Balance of 

Contracts

Speedie & Associates Compaction Testing for Pads 102814  contract changed 5,325.00$                      5,325.00$          -$                        295.00$              -$                      4,950.00$           -$                      -$                       -$                  -$                   

DJ'S Companies Porta John Rental & Service 100814-1 contracts changed 2,483.70$                      1,088.50$          1,588.74$              1,588.74$           1,414.98$            1,414.98$           1,414.98$            1,414.98$             1,414.98$        1,395.20$          

Earthquest Plumbing Service Camera Lines 10515 200.00$                         200.00$             -$                        -$                       -$                  -$                   

Bridgers & Paxton Engineers Electrical Engineering Design 110414 2,506.00$                      2,004.80$          501.20$                 626.50$              501.20$                501.20$              501.20$                501.20$                501.20$            501.20$             

Modular Solutions Used Modular Building GS07F0199L 482,094.87$                  433,711.25$      contract complete -$                       -$                  -$                   

Modular Solutions FBB State Const Permit GS07F0199L 27,500.00$                    12,500.00$        15,000.00$          15,000.00$         15,000.00$          15,000.00$           15,000.00$      15,000.00$        

Modular Solutions FBB State Installation Permit GS07F0199L 40,175.90$                    12,000.00$          12,000.00$         40,175.90$          40,175.90$           40,175.90$      40,175.90$        

City of Globe Procurement of Services and/or Goods Globe IGA111414   50,000.00$                    3,366.34$          46,633.66$            46,633.66$         not renewed for project -$                       -$                  -$                   

Copper State Sanitation Roll Off Dumpster Service 12715 18,000.00$                    3,419.07$          contract complete -$                       -$                  -$                   

EPS Group Civil Engineering Design 13015  contract changed 54,366.85$                    50,456.43$        3,910.42$              8,243.04$           8,243.04$            8,243.04$           8,243.04$            8,243.04$             8,243.04$        3,910.42$          

Pueblo Mechanical HVAC Design 14G-PMAC2-0903   13,550.01$                    13,550.01$        -$                        -$                       -$                  -$                   

Custom Roofing Company, Inc. Roofing Membrane, Copper Admin 121014-2    129,385.45$                  116,446.91$      12,938.54$            12,938.54$         12,938.54$          12,938.54$         12,938.54$          12,938.54$           12,938.54$      12,938.54$        

DD Haught Inc. Install Fire Hydrant 31015 15,729.74$                    15,729.74$        -$                        -$                       -$                  -$                   

Misc. CC Expenses cc charges for this project to-date -$                                413.20$             -$                        -$                       -$                  -$                   

AZ Silver Belt Advertising Bid Requests to-date -$                                124.10$             -$                       -$                  -$                   

FY15 Treasurer's Adjustments (54.00)$              -$                        -$                       -$                  -$                   
Known Totals Known Contracts and Expenses To-Date 1007.341.801 841,317.52$                  658,281.35$      65,572.56$            70,325.48$         50,097.76$          55,047.76$         78,273.66$          78,273.66$           $78,273.66 73,921.26$        

SD Crane Draft SD Crane Draft SD Crane Draft SD Crane Draft SD Crane Draft SD Crane Final

Still need expenses for: Planned Contract Expenses for Continuation of Project

Interior Remodel SD Crane draft bid amount incl Site Work, I.T., Security, Exterior Façade, $105K contingency 1,038,000.00$      1,038,000.00$   1,222,838.43$     1,068,053.26$   2,350,000.00$     2,341,693.60$     $2,273,575.69 2,271,632.21$  
Site Work EPS Engineers estimate minus stairs $18,750; use asphalt instead of concrete driveway minus $75,000 (SD Crane added) 609,000.00$         515,721.00$       ** 515,721.00$        1,011,741.72$   incl above

Electrical site work underground conduit, poles - set electrical site next to SES of Courthouse across driveway (SD Crane added) 170,000.00$         190,000.00$       ** 190,000.00$        -$                     incl above

Sewer / Water not in the site work under EPS estimate-plumber estimate including fire riser hook-up (SD Crane added) 10,000.00$            10,000.00$         ** 10,000.00$          -$                     incl above

Fiber and Data underground conduit move, server, and inside cabling (SD Crane added) 100,000.00$         100,000.00$       ** 150,000.00$        127,441.07$       incl above

Work Not Incl in current contracts I.T.equipment, fuel station costs, HVAC units on bldg, and other unknowns ∆∆ 50,000.00$         50,000.00$          100,000.00$        $144,055.99 146,165.18$     
Fuel Station Move electrical, piping, pad, fire Marshall state fee, move tank with another contractor 60,000.00$            50,000.00$         50,000.00$          50,000.00$         50,000.00$          incl above

Exterior Paint or New Siding depending upon product used (SD Crane added) 30,000.00$            30,000.00$         ** 30,000.00$          -$                     

Building Security quote from Stanley to conform with rest of the security in the County buildings (SD Crane added) 80,000.00$            80,000.00$         ** 80,000.00$          108,726.60$       incl SD Crane draft

Construction Manager** approx. 9 month contract  (JOC approx 5% of all costs they would oversee) (SD Crane/Gordian) 75,000.00$            112,494.00$       ** 46,286.00$         -$                     incl SD Crane draft

10% Contingency 10% of known contracts and needs estimates  (SD Crane Estimate) 230,783.00$         219,654.05$       100,000.00$        100,000.00$       incl SD Crane draft

Approximate Totals of New Expenses 2,468,355.56$      2,416,194.53$   2,444,943.19$     2,571,010.41$   2,528,273.66$     2,519,967.26$     $2,417,631.68 2,417,797.39$  

** based on items not integrated into SD Crane bid yet

*** brought in $1,200,000 from Capital Contingency for this project Estimate additional expenses to-date 2,468,355.56$      2,416,194.53$   2,444,943.19$     2,571,010.41$   2,528,273.66$     2,519,967.26$     $2,495,905.34 2,491,718.65$  

∆∆ I.T. $50K; Fuel move $50K; HVAC unknowns; other misc exp. Plus Amounts already expensed to-date 631,380.06$         636,399.60$       649,265.76$        649,144.66$       654,094.66$        654,094.66$        $654,094.66 658,281.35$     
Total Est Amount of Project 3,099,735.62$      3,052,594.13$   3,094,208.95$     3,220,155.07$   3,182,368.32$     3,174,061.92$     $3,150,000.00 3,150,000.00$  

Borrowed Money*** 1,950,000.00$      1,950,000.00$   *** 3,150,000.00$     3,150,000.00$   3,150,000.00$     3,150,000.00$     $3,150,000.00 3,150,000.00$  

Columns 9/3 & 9/8/15 hidden to provide better viewing

Cost Over/Under Estimate 1,149,735.62$      1,102,594.13$   (55,791.05)$         70,155.07$         32,368.32$          24,061.92$           $0.00 0.00$                 

C:\Users\jsgroi\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\JF2PAPC8\2015-12-28 CAB Expenses Known and Estimated with Jeannie's changes (2)



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3546     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of six (6) New Countywide Operational Policies that are currently
six (6) Merit System Rules and Policies.

Background Information
This is a continuation of the development of the Countywide Policy
Manual which was initiated by staff in 2010. The Manual currently
contains Board adopted policies as shown in the attached Table of
Contents.

Each policy is developed by the staff Policy Review Committee and fully
reviewed by the Management Team before it is placed on a Board of
Supervisors' (BOS) work session agenda. After the BOS has had the
opportunity to review, discuss and modify the policy in the work session,
the policy is placed on a BOS regular meeting agenda for adoption. 

The Human Resources Department has conducted a great deal of
research as well as staff and legal review to ensure the adoption of
meaningful, appropriate, and legal approaches to Human Resource
activities.  Laws change, meanings change, and even wording changes
over time. Other counties have begun moving to a policies and procedures
format.  It is the intent of the  Human Resources Department to adopt a
new approach to Human Resource policies and procedures taking all of
these factors into account.  The Human Resources Department began
converting the Merit System Rules and Procedures into Countywide
Policies in 2013 with BOS approval.

On November 24, 2015, the BOS reviewed the following six new
Countywide policies that are currently contained in the Gila County Merit
System Rules and Policies, as follows:

BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct (replaces Rule 6)
BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period (replaces Rule 19)



BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period (replaces Rule 19)
BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal (replaces Rule 20)
BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action (replaces Rule 21)
BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process [replaces Rule 22(a)]
BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission (replaces Rule 3)

Evaluation
These six new policies, in addition to the previously adopted policies, are
intended to improve and standardize internal operations in Gila
County. They will help establish consistency and fairness in the key
processes that effect all departments. 

These policies were thoroughly discussed with the BOS in its November
24, 2015, Work Session. 

Conclusion
The development of a Countywide Policy Manual will greatly assist in the
operational decisions of County government. It will provide uniformity,
consistency and fairness throughout all County Elected Offices and
Departments.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the BOS approve the following policies: 
BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct; BOS-HRS-215 Probationary
Employment Period; BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal; BOS-HRS-610
Disciplinary Action; BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process; and, BOS-HRS-625
Personnel Commission.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the following six Countywide
policies to be included in the Countywide Policy Manual that are currently
Merit System Rules and Policies:  BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct
(replaces Rule 6); BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period
(replaces Rule 19); BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal (replaces Rule
20); BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action (replaces Rule 21); BOS-HRS-615
Grievance Process [replaces Rule 22(a)]; and, BOS-HRS-625 Personnel
Commission (replaces Rule 3).  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Table of Contents for Countywide Policy Binder 1-5-16
BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct
BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period



BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal Program
BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action
BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process
BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission



GILA COUNTY 
COUNTYWIDE POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Note:  Policies in black have been adopted by the BOS.  Policies in blue are being presented to the BOS for adoption.  Policies in 

red are pending, so the number and name may change. 
 

Page 1 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE - 003 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-ADM-001 DEVELOPMENT, REVIEW & APPROVAL OF POLICIES & PROCEDURES  

BOS-ADM-002 COMPUTING AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY USE AND ETHICS 8/5/2014 
BOS-ADM-003 VACANT  
BOS-ADM-004 VACANT  
BOS-ADM-005 COUNTY VEHICLE USE & TAKE HOME ADMINISTRATION  
 
 

 
 CLERK OF THE BOARD - 004 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-COB-001 MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETINGS 8/5/2014 

BOS-COB-002 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES 2/5/2013/ 
Revised 2/18/14 

BOS-1-2005 REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS  
(New policy# BOS-COB-003 and name change to ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS) 

12/13/2005 

BOS-COB-003 ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS  

BOS-COB-004 CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
(Former policy# BOS-1-2009 adopted 02/17/09) 

9/3/2013 

 
 

 
 ELECTIONS - 006 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

ELS-001 ELECTION SECURITY AND INTEGRITY 6/5/2012 
 
 

 
 FINANCE - 007 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-FIN-001 DEPARTMENTAL BANK ACCOUNTS 9/20/2011 

BOS-FIN-002 PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS 9/20/2011 

BOS-FIN-003 PROCUREMENT PURCHASING 9/30/2014 
BOS-FIN-004 VACANT  
BOS-FIN-005 CAPITALIZATION OF FIXED ASSETS 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-006 TRAVEL & RELATED EXPENSES  

BOS-FIN-007 CREDIT CARD ISSUANCE & USE  

BOS-FIN-008 FUNDS TRANSFER 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-009 FUND BALANCE 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-010 CASH RECEIPT & DEPOSITS 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-011 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT  
BOS-FIN-012 VACANT  
BOS-FIN-013 MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS REIMBURSEMENT  

BOS-FIN-014 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS & INVENTORY 8/20/2012 

BOS-3-2005 ACCEPTING AND ADMINISTERING GRANTS  
(New policy# BOS-FIN-015 and name change to GRANTS MANAGEMENT) 

12/13/2005 

BOS-FIN-015 GRANTS MANAGEMENT  

BOS-FIN-016 COMMUNITY AGENCY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDING 2/5/2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GILA COUNTY 
COUNTYWIDE POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Note:  Policies in black have been adopted by the BOS.  Policies in blue are being presented to the BOS for adoption.  Policies in 

red are pending, so the number and name may change. 
 

Page 2 

 

 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES - 009 
Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-HRS-001 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES  

BOS-HRS-002 EMERGENCY EMPLOYEES  

BOS-HRS-003 VOLUNTEERS  

BOS-HRS-004 NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION  

BOS-HRS-005 PAYROLL TIME REPORTING  

BOS-HRS-006 PAYROLL AUTHORIZATIONS 9/20/2011 

BOS-HRS-007 DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
(New policy# BOS-HRS-150 and name change to CONFLICT OF INTEREST on 8/5/14) 

1/22/2013 

BOS-HRS-008 VACANT  
BOS-HRS-009 AUTHORIZED POSITION LIST  
BOS-HRS-010 VACANT  
BOS-HRS-110 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION, HARRASSMENT 

AND RETALIATION 
12/17/2013 

BOS-HRS-115 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES AND REASONABLE 
ACCOMMODATION 

12/17/2013 

BOS-HRS-120 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT   

BOS-HRS-135 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES  

BOS-HRS-140 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 8/5/2014 

BOS-HRS-145 NO EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY AND WORKPLACE SEARCHES  

BOS-HRS-215 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT PERIOD  

BOS-HRS-245 CLAIMS OF CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE  

BOS-HRS-310 PREVENTION OF WORKPLACE VIOLENCE  

BOS-HRS-405 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL  

BOS-HRS-410 COMPENSATION PLAN 4/29/2014 

BOS-HRS-415 CLASSIFICATION PLAN 4/29/2014 

BOS-HRS-610 DISCIPLINARY ACTION   

BOS-HRS-615 GRIEVANCE PROCESS  

BOS-HRS-625 PERSONNEL COMMISSION  

   SAFETY, SECURITY & EMERGENCY - 010 
Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-SSE-001 NOTIFICATION IN EMERGENCY SITUATIONS  

BOS-SSE-002 FACILITIES SECURITY PLAN  

BOS-SSE-003 DISASTER EVACUATION PLAN  

BOS-SSE-004 INCIDENT REPORTING  

BOS-SSE-005 BOMB THREATS  

BOS-SSE-006 DISASTER DRILLS  

BOS-SSE-007 HOSTILE INTRUDER  
BOS-SSE-008 VACANT  
BOS-SSE-009 BUILDING ACCESS-KEY & CARD ISSUANCE  



GILA COUNTY 
COUNTYWIDE POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Note:  Policies in black have been adopted by the BOS.  Policies in blue are being presented to the BOS for adoption.  Policies in 

red are pending, so the number and name may change. 
 

Page 3 

 

BOS-SSE-010 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CONTROL  

BOS-SSE-011 HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBILITY  

 



Gila County Human Resources 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-120 

Replaces:  Rule #6 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

1 of 2 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-120 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a code of conduct for Gila County employees. 

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Gila County elected officials and employees. 

III. POLICY:

It is the policy of Gila County to establish the Standards of Conduct expected of all County 

employees to create an environment of honesty, integrity, and impartiality. This Standard is 

essential to assure the proper performance of County business and the maintenance of confidence 

by citizens in their County Government. 

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-120 

Replaces:  Rule #6 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

2 of 2 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-120 

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. Employees shall be courteous, considerate and prompt in dealing with and serving the public 

and other Gila County employees. 

B. Employees shall not conduct themselves in a manner that will bring discredit or 

embarrassment to the County, both on and off the job. 

C. An employee’s official position shall not be used for personal gain.  Public influence and/or 

confidential or “inside” information must never be turned to personal advantage. 

D. Employees shall observe the applicable laws and regulations governing participation in 

political activities and conflict of interest. Employees shall avoid any discrimination because 

of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability.  

E. Employees shall economically utilize, protect and conserve property of Gila County entrusted 

to them, and conduct all their official activities in a manner which is above reproach and free 

from any indiscretions or acceptance of gratuities or favors which cast doubt or suspicion 

upon themselves or the County. 

F. Employees shall not perform any work in a private capacity which may be construed by the 

public to be an official act without prior written approval of the Appointing Authority. 

G. Employees must never permit themselves to be placed under any kind of personal obligation, 

which could lead any person to expect official favors of the employee’s position with the 

County. 

H. As public servants, Gila County employees should carry out their duties in a manner which 

would withstand public scrutiny.  Some employees handle confidential County-related or 

employee-related documents while others handle sensitive matters, such as health records and 

investigations.  Consequently, employees should maintain the confidentiality of matters they 

handle assuring information about these activities is made public only upon appropriate 

authorization. 

I. For the protection of employee privacy, the use of personal cameras, including phone 

cameras, audio recorders or other photographic, video or audio recording devices in the 

workplace is prohibited unless otherwise authorized in advance by the Appointing Authority 

for use for a specific business purpose. 

J. Employees may not solicit any other employee during working time, nor may employees 

distribute literature in work areas at any time. 



Gila County Human Resources 

PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT 

PERIOD 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-215 

Replaces: Rule 19 

Page 

Adopted:  01-05-2016 

Revised:  

1 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-215 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to provide an adequate time period within which to evaluate an 

employee’s job performance, as described in the job description.  

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Gila County full-time and part-time regular status employees. 

Temporary employees, consultants, and judge pro-tempores are not covered under this 

policy; compensation for these positions shall be individually established as necessary. 

III. POLICY:

The types of probation allowed in County service, as defined in this policy, are original 

probation, promotional probation, transferal probation, and demotion probation.  

SIGNATURE: 

__ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT 

PERIOD 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-215 

Replaces: Rule 19 

Page 

Adopted:  01-05-2016 

Revised:  

2 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-215 

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. Duration 

1. The probationary employment period for the County service shall be six (6) full

months starting at the first day of employment. If an employee is absent for more

than two weeks during the probationary period, the probationary period shall be

automatically extended for a period of time equal to the full period of absence.

2. The probationary employment period for the Sheriff’s Office will be one (1) year

starting at the first day of employment.

B. Original Probationary Period 

1. Completion of Probation

a. The Appointing Authority shall evaluate a probationary employee and provide a

performance appraisal to the Director prior to the expiration of the employee’s

probationary period.

b. If the Appointing Authority determines at any time during an original

probationary period that the services of the probationary employee are no longer

required or are unsatisfactory, the employee may be dismissed without the right

of appeal.  The Appointing Authority shall furnish the employee a letter of

dismissal.

C. Promotional Probation 

1. An employee who is promoted shall serve a three (3) month probationary

period under the same rules as an original probation, except for BOS-HRS-

215.B.1.b above.

2. An employee who fails to successfully complete a promotional probation shall

revert to a vacancy in the current employing agency in the class in which

regular status was held immediately prior to the promotion, without the right

of appeal.  If such vacancy does not exist, the employee shall be laid off in

accordance with Rule 18.4.E.  A reversion shall not preclude the imposition of

any disciplinary action.



Gila County Human Resources 

PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT 

PERIOD 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-215 

Replaces: Rule 19 

Page 

Adopted:  01-05-2016 

Revised: 

3 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-215 

D. Transferal Probation 

1. An employee who is transferred shall serve a transferal probationary period

under the same rules as an original probation, except that the employee retains

the right of appeal should they be dismissed due to failure to complete the

probationary period.

E. Demotion Probation 

1. An employee who is demoted shall serve a demotion probationary period

under the same rules as an original probation, except that the employee retains

the right of appeal should they be dismissed due to failure of the demotion

probationary period.

F. Reinstatement and Reemployment 

1. An Appointing Authority may require a former employee who is reinstated or

reemployed to complete a period of original probation.

2. An Appointing Authority shall require a former employee who is reinstated or

reemployed in a job class, other than a job class the employee has previously

held, to complete original probation.

3. If an employee is reemployed within six (6) months of departure in good

standing, sick leave accrual balance will be restored and sick leave and

vacation will accrue at the same rate as accrued at the time of departure, based

on years of County service.



Gila County Human Resources 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-405 

Replaces:  Rule #20 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

1 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-405 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a process to promote open and clear two-way 

communications that result in the continuous development of employees, to set goals and 

objectives, determine training needs and to appraise past performance based upon a standard 

performance review process.  

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Gila County employees except Elected Officials and temporary 

employees. 

III. POLICY:

The greatest assets of Gila County Government are its employees. The Performance Appraisal 

Program applies to all regular status employees who have completed the required probationary 

period. All eligible regular status employees who have successfully completed the required 

probationary period shall be evaluated under the terms of the Performance Appraisal Program. 

Performance management is the systematic process of planning work and setting expectations, 

continually monitoring performance, developing the capacity to perform, periodically rating 

performance in a summary fashion, and rewarding excellent performance.  

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-405 

Replaces:  Rule #20 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

2 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-405 

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. Administration of System 

The Human Resources Department shall be charged with the administration of the 

appraisal process including preparation, distribution and collection of forms and 

establishing reporting procedures. 

B. Appraisal Period 

At least one official performance appraisal shall be completed for each regular status 

County employee at the end of the probationary period and each year thereafter by 

December 31. Blank performance appraisal forms will be distributed or made available 

electronically by the Human Resources Department to all elected officials and appointed 

department heads during November of each year. 

C. Appraisal Forms 

Two forms will be used in the performance appraisal process. 

1. The “Core Employee” performance appraisal form shall be used for all regular

status County employees regardless of job function or classification except for

elected officials, managers, supervisors and directors. This form is used to

appraise performance based upon a set of standard skills and traits applicable to

all core employees.

2. The “Supervisor/Administrative” performance appraisal form shall be used for all

supervisors, managers and directors except elected officials. This form is used to

appraise leadership, supervisory and administrative performance against a set of

standard supervisory skills, traits and individually established and mutually

agreed upon goals and objectives.

D.  Appraisal Process 

1. Within 30 days of employment each employee shall be provided a copy of the

appropriate appraisal form (Core or Supervisory/Administrative) and the

employee’s immediate supervisor shall review the yet to be completed form and

discuss a list of performance expectations with the employee which, combined

with the yet to be completed form, constitute the employee’s performance plan.

2. Annually in November, draft performance appraisals shall be prepared for each

employee by the employee’s immediate supervisor without discussion or input

from the employee. The supervisor shall provide a list of the “overall average



Gila County Human Resources 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-405 

Replaces:  Rule #20 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

3 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-405 

scores” of the draft appraisals of his/her direct reports to his/her immediate 

supervisor who shall provide them to the elected official or appointed department 

head. The draft appraisal scores shall not be discussed with employees during this 

review period. 

3. Each elected official and appointed department head shall review the draft

appraisal scores for internal equity within their office or department. It is the

responsibility of the elected official or appointed department head to verify that

all divisions within his/her office or department are comparably appraised and not

to alter any of the individual appraisal scores given by the immediate supervisor.

(For example: An elected official or appointed department head may determine

that a given division within his/her office or department has appraisal scores that

are noticeably higher or lower than the rest of the office or department. The

elected official or appointed department head would notify the division head of

the anomaly and ask that it be further reviewed before resubmitting the drafts.)

4. Each elected official and appointed department head shall provide a copy of the

draft appraisal scores to the Human Resources Department to review for county-

wide equity. The same process and rules as outlined in number 3 above shall

apply to the county-wide review by the Human Resources Department.

5. The Human Resources Department shall notify elected officials and appointed

department heads when the equity check is complete and instruct them to proceed

with performing the final appraisals with their employees.

a. The performance appraisal is an interactive event where the employee and

the immediate supervisor review and discuss the employee’s previously

agreed upon performance plan.

b. During the appraisal meeting, the employee and the immediate supervisor

shall also establish the performance plan for the next performance period.

c. The employee will verify that the appraisal has been completed by signing

and dating the form. Signing the appraisal form does not necessarily

signify the employee’s agreement with the appraisal only that it was

reviewed and discussed with him/her. The employee may request that the

appraisal be reviewed at the next higher supervisory level by so indicating

on the form.

6. Each elected official and appointed department head shall provide the original of

each employee’s completed and signed final appraisal form to the Human

Resources Department.



Gila County Human Resources 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-405 

Replaces:  Rule #20 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 

4 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-405 

7. Annually in October the Human Resources Department shall prepare and distribute to elected

officials and appointed department heads (may be electronic) a schedule of Performance

Appraisal events with specific dates and deadlines for the current appraisal period.



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

1 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

 

 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a process of progressive discipline. Progressive 

discipline is designed to provide a structured corrective action process to improve and 

prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior and performance issues. Such a 

process ensures that employees are afforded adequate notice and opportunity to correct 

unacceptable behavior.  

 

II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

This policy applies to all Gila County employees except Elected Officials. 

 

III. POLICY: 

 

Gila County wishes to create and maintain a work environment that promotes efficiency, 

productivity, and positive reinforcement of actions through work standards met or exceeded.  

The County advocates the use of progressive discipline as a means toward maintaining a 

positive work environment. However, the seriousness of an offense may dictate overriding 

progressive discipline, and serious offenses may lead to administrative suspension or 

immediate dismissal. When circumstances dictate, a combination of disciplinary actions may 

be used. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS        DATE 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

2 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

 

 

 

IV. PROCEDURES: 

 

A. General 

 

1. Causes for disciplinary actions include, but are not limited to: 

 

a. Fraud in securing appointment; 

b. Incompetence; 

c. Neglect of duty; 

d. Insubordination; 

e. Sleeping while on duty; 

f. Disorderly conduct; 

g. Malicious gossip or false accusations which tend to destroy friendly relations 

between the County and the public or between employees or in any way hinder 

County operations; 

h. Dishonesty; 

i. Absence without leave; 

j. Commission or conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude 

which would affect the employee’s suitability for continued employment; 

k. Discourteous treatment of the public and/or co-workers; 

l. Willful disobedience; 

m. Engaging in prohibited political activity; 

n. Misuse of government property; 

o. Possessing, dispensing or being under the influence of a narcotic, barbiturate, 

marijuana, tranquilizing or hallucinogenic drug, alcohol, or other controlled 

substances on duty, except in accordance with medical authorization; 

p. Seeking to obtain financial, sexual or political benefit from another employee 

with his/her consent induced by wrongful use of force or fear, or under color of 

official right; 

q. Discrimination or harassment based upon race, color, religion, sex (including 

pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older), disability, genetic information, or 

Vietnam era or disabled veteran status; 

r. Revocation, suspension or loss of Arizona driving privileges where having an 

Arizona Driver’s License is a requirement for the position; 

s. Revocation, suspension or loss of certification issued by a governmental entity 

where such certification is a requirement for the position; 

t. Engaging in sexual harassment of an employee; 

u. Inefficiency; 

v. Unsatisfactory attendance; 

w. Mishandling of County funds; 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

3 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

x. Falsification or unauthorized use of County records; 

y. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons or explosives on County property; 

z. Unsafe actions; 

aa. Any other conduct or performance which constitutes cause for disciplinary action. 

 

2. Sworn law enforcement officers employed by the Sheriff’s Office shall be subject to 

being placed on administrative leave with or without pay consistent with these 

policies upon being formally charged with the commission of a felony offense. 

 

B. Types of Disciplinary Action 

 

Behavior that is illegal or violent will not be subject to the progressive discipline process 

and may be reported to local law enforcement agencies. All disciplinary actions must be 

discussed with Human Resources (HR) prior to implementing the disciplinary action. All 

disciplinary actions must be documented and the original sent to HR to be placed in the 

employee’s file.  

 

1. Verbal Warning 

 

A verbal warning creates an opportunity to bring attention to existing 

performance, conduct, or attendance issues with the employee. Expectations and 

steps that must be taken to improve performance or resolve the issue should be 

discussed here. Verbal warnings must be documented and sent to HR. 

 

2. Written Reprimand 

 

A written reprimand is a formal notice to an employee that further disciplinary 

action will be taken unless their behavior or performance improves.  A copy of 

the written reprimand is to be forwarded to the HR Department for placement into 

the employee's personnel file. A Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) may be 

applicable to assist the employee in meeting expectations.   

 

3. Suspension 

 

a. Before an employee with regular status can be suspended, the Appointing 

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives the notice of the charges, 

unless extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

b. The Appointing Authority may suspend any employee with regular status for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

4 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for suspension in sufficient detail to inform the employee of 

the facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs:  

 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the suspension letter personally served or 

served by mail; or, 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or, 

 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the suspension letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

c. Except as otherwise provided by statute or policy, suspensions shall not exceed a 

total of thirty working days during any twelve (12) month period.  The twelve 

(12) month period begins with the first day of the first suspension. 

 

4. Demotion 

 

a. A regular status employee may be demoted for cause by an Appointing Authority 

to any regular status position, provided the employee meets the minimum 

qualifications for such class.  

 

b. Before an employee with regular status can be demoted, the Appointing Authority 

shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless 

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

c. The Appointing Authority may demote any employee with regular status only for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for demotion in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the 

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs: 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

5 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the demotion letter personally served or 

served by mail; or 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or 

 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the demotion letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

d. An employee who is demoted shall serve a demotion probationary period under 

the same rules as an original probation, except that the employee retains the right 

of appeal should they be dismissed due to failure of the demotion probationary 

period. 

 

5. Dismissal 

 

Recommendations for dismissal must be approved by the Human Resources 

Director before the following steps occur:  

 

a. Before an employee with regular status can be dismissed, the Appointing 

Authority shall give the employee written notice of the charges, a summary of the 

Appointing Authority’s basis for the charges, and an opportunity for the employee 

to present a written response.  The employee’s response shall be made not later 

than three working days after the employee receives notice of the charges, unless 

extended in writing by the Appointing Authority. 

 

b. The Appointing Authority may dismiss any employee with regular status for 

cause, but not before attempting to serve the employee personally or by registered 

or certified mail, return receipt requested (addressee only), with written notice of 

the specific reasons for dismissal in sufficient detail to inform the employee of the 

facts, with a copy to the Director.  The Appointing Authority shall include a 

statement of the employee’s right to appeal.  The action is not effective until one 

of the following occurs: 

 

i. The employee signs for receipt of the dismissal letter personally served or 

served by mail; or 

 

ii. Three working days have passed since the letter was mailed to the employee; 

or 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS  

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-610 

 

Replaces:  Rule #21 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

6 of 6 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-610  
 

iii. An attempt is made to personally serve the dismissal letter, but the employee 

refuses to sign for the letter.  Such attempt to personally serve the letter shall 

be witnessed. 

 

c. If an employee is on an approved period of leave with pay, the action will be 

effective at the end of the approved period of leave with pay, and the dismissal 

letter shall be served on the employee in accordance with this subsection. 

 

d. Dismissal During Probation 

 

i. An employee on original probation may be dismissed without the right of 

appeal. 

 

ii. An employee on promotional probation may not be dismissed without the 

right of appeal. 

 

6. Administrative Leave 

 

Nothing in this policy shall preclude the Appointing Authority from immediately 

placing an employee on administrative leave pending implementation of procedures 

under this section, but no pay shall be withheld for such period. 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-615 

Replaces:  Rule #22 (a) 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

1 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-615 

I. PURPOSE: 

The purpose of the grievance process is to afford Gila County employees a written and 

systematic means of obtaining further consideration of disputes after every reasonable effort 

has failed to resolve them through informal discussions initiated with their immediate 

supervisor. 

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all Gila County employees except Elected Officials and unclassified 

employees. 

III. POLICY:

It is the policy of Gila County to establish a means through which employees may obtain 

consideration of grievances or problems in matters over which the Appointing Authority has 

complete or partial jurisdiction and for which redress is not provided elsewhere in these 

policies. 

SIGNATURE: 

_____________________________________  _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 



Gila County Human Resources 

GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-615 

Replaces:  Rule #22 (a) 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 

2 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-615 

IV. PROCEDURES:

A. General 

1. If an employee complaint of unlawful discrimination or harassment based upon race,

color, religion, sex (including pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older),

disability, genetic information, or Vietnam era or disabled veteran status is not

resolved through the procedures outlined in Policy BOS-HRS-110, EEO, Unlawful

Discrimination, Harassment and Retaliation the employee may file a grievance with

the Gila County Personnel Commission (Commission) in accordance with Policy

BOS-HRS-615, Grievance Process, section B.

2. If the employee alleges misinterpretation or misapplication of the policy,

departmental work rules, unsafe or unhealthy working conditions, an employee

complaint may be filed in accordance with Policy BOS-HRS-615, Grievance Process,

section C.

3. If an employee alleges improper suspension, demotion, reduction in pay, or dismissal

on any grounds including alleged unlawful discrimination, Policy BOS-HRS-620,

Appeals Procedure, shall be used.

B. Grievance Procedure for Claims of Discrimination or Harassment 

1. Within ten (10) calendar days after an employee has been informed of a remedial

action taken in response to an allegation of unlawful harassment or discrimination

filed under Policy BOS-HRS-110, the employee may grieve the action by requesting

a review of the determination by the Commission.  The employee must request the

review and relief requested on the Employee Grievance form and submit it to the

Human Resources Director.  The Commission shall designate one of its members to

investigate and hear the complaint and provide the Commission with a report.  The

Commission shall review the report on the complaint and issue a final determination

in writing upholding or reversing the report.  The Director shall furnish a notice of the

final determination to the employee and the Appointing Authority within ten (10)

calendar days of the determination by the Commission.

C. Grievance Procedure for Other Issues 

1. The grievance procedure may not be used:

a. By employees on original probation, except in cases alleging illegal

discrimination or compelled participation in any election campaign for public

office or partisan political activity; or,



Gila County Human Resources 

GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-615 

Replaces:  Rule #22 (a) 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016

Revised: 

3 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-615 

b. For matters involving compensation, classification schedules, classes of positions,

personnel records, performance appraisals, reprimands or employee counseling;

or,

c. For matters involving dismissal, demotion, or suspension.

All time frames specified on the form shall be met.  If the immediate supervisor or 

department head fail to meet the time frame requirements, the employee has the right 

to take the grievance to the next step.  If the employee fails to meet the time 

requirements, the grievance shall be deemed abandoned.  

2. The four steps of the grievance process are as follows:

a. Step 1: Using the “Employee Grievance form”, the employee shall state the

grievance and the remedy requested.  A copy shall be given to the immediate

supervisor and a copy sent to the Director within five (5) working days of the

incident giving rise to the grievance.  The immediate supervisor shall respond in

the designated portion of the form and send a copy to the employee and the

Director within five (5) working days of receipt.

b. Step 2: If the employee disagrees with the supervisor’s response, the Employee

Grievance form shall be sent to the Appointing Authority within five (5) working

days of the supervisor’s response to Step 1.  The Appointing Authority shall

respond by completing the designated section of the form and sending a copy to

the employee and the Director within five (5) working days of receipt of the

employee’s Step 2 grievance.  If the employee disagrees with the Appointing

Authority’s response and desires to continue the grievance process, the specific

reason shall be indicated on the form.  The employee may then proceed to Step 3.

c. Step 3: Within five (5) working days of receipt of the Appointing Authority’s

response, the employee shall submit the Employee Grievance form to the

Director.  The Director shall complete his/her section of the form by making a

recommendation and returning it to the employee, with a copy to the Appointing

Authority, within five (5) working days of receipt of the employee’s Step 3

grievance.  If either the employee or the Appointing Authority disagrees with the

recommendation of the Director at Step 3, and desires to continue the grievance

process, the employee or Appointing Authority shall indicate the disagreement on

the Employee Grievance form.  An appeal to Step 4 must be filed within ten (10)

working days of receipt of notice of action taken by the Director.

d. Step 4: The Employee Grievance form shall be resubmitted to the Director who

will notify the Commission within five (5) working days.  The Appointing



Gila County Human Resources 

GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-615 

Replaces:  Rule #22 (a) 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised:  

4 of 4 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-615 

Authority or designee shall be considered the respondent and shall be served with 

a copy of the form. 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

1 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission 

(Commission), identify the Commission’s authority, and set forth the situations under which 

eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.  

 

II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees. 

 

III. POLICY: 

It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission, 

a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County 

employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The 

Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County 

employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the 

standards of the Gila County Merit System. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________    _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS    DATE 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

2 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

IV. PROCEDURES: 

 

The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the 

County’s personnel administration system.  

 

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of 

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an 

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about 

specific adverse employment actions.  

 

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County 

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than 

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member 

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field. 

 

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed 

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two 

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall 

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other 

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the 

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall 

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new 

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated: 

 

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings; 

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or, 

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service. 

 

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson on an annual basis, 

changing who serves as Chairperson each year. The Chairperson shall also be willing to 

serve on other local boards within the County that are required, by statute, to be represented 

by the “head of the merit system” and which are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. 

Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 

majority of the commission membership shall constitute a majority vote. 

 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), and Adult and Juvenile Probation Officers (A.R.S. 38-1131 through 38-1141), the 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual and the Superior Court’s Merit 

Rules and Policies, and other adopted policies of the County. In addition, the Commission 

may assist the Board of Supervisors in the following areas: 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

3 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving 

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government;  

 

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of 

problems concerning personnel administration; 

 

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of 

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to 

improve personnel standards in the County service; and, 

 

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to 

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for 

improvements. 

 

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;  

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the 

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and, 

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  

 

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.  

 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  

 



   
ARF-3479     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto Apache Tribe and the Gila
County Sheriff's Office regarding the Arizona Criminal Justice Information
System (ACJIS) Holder of Record Agreement.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved an agreement to provide
dispatch services to the Tonto Apache Tribal Police Department on March
15, 2011. As part of the dispatch agreement, the Gila County Sheriff's
Office became the Holder of Record for the Tonto Apache Tribal Police
Department's records that are entered into the Arizona Criminal Justice
Information System (ACJIS) and the National Crime Information
Center (NCIC).

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office provides dispatch services to the Tonto
Apache Tribe. The Gila County Sheriff's Office is designated as the Holder
of Record for all information entered into the Arizona Criminal Justice
Information Center (ACJIS) and the National Crime Information Center
(NCIC) for the Tonto Apache Tribal Police Department.

Conclusion
The Memorandum of Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the Gila
County Sheriff's Office as the Holder of Record and the responsibilities of
the Tonto Apache Tribal Police Department as the Owner of Record when
entering, maintaining, and auditing records in the Arizona Criminal
Justice Information System (ACJIS) and the National Crime Information
Center (NCIC).

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of



It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of
Supervisors approve the Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto
Apache Tribe and the Gila County Sheriff's Office regarding the Arizona
Criminal Justice Information System (ACJIS) Holder of Record Agreement.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto Apache Tribe
and the Gila County Sheriff's Office regarding the Arizona Criminal
Justice Information System Holder of Record Agreement.

Attachments
Memorandum of Agreement 
Holder of Record Agreement 

















   

ARF-3525     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

December 31,
2015 through
December 31,
2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila
County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 

Background Information
On May 5, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Modification No. 4 to F.S.
Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004. Modification No. 4 changed the following: 1.
Funding amount changes from $75,980 to $74,800. 2. The performance period is
extended through December 31, 2015. 3. Exhibit A changes to from the Fiscal Year
2014 Annual Financial and Operating Plan to the Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Financial
and Operating Plan. 

Evaluation
Forest Service Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 replaces Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004. The 2016 Annual Operating and Financial Plan will be
incorporated as Exhibit A to this agreement. The amount of the agreement is $74,400
for the performance period of December 31, 2015, through December 31, 2016.

Conclusion
It is imperative that F.S. Agreement No.16-LE-11031200-004 is approved and signed
by the Board of Supervisors to ensure that there is no lapse in the cooperative
enforcement services provided on National Forest Service lands within Gila County by
the Gila County Sheriff's Office Deputies, and to ensure that reimbursement of those
services occurs on a timely basis.

Recommendation
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 in the amount of
$74,400 for the performance period of December 31, 2015, through December 31,
2016. The FY 2016 Annual Operating and Financial Plan will be incorporated as
Exhibit A to this agreement.



Suggested Motion
Approval of Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004
replacing Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office
and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service in the amount of $74,400 for
the performance period of December 31, 2015, through December 31, 2016.

Attachments
Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004
Exhibit A-2016 Annual Operating and Financial Plan 





































   

ARF-3538     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Approve the adjustment to the appointment of John Perlman as Justice of the Peace
Pro Tempore. 

Background Information
Due to a clerical error, John Perlman was inadvertently appointed as Justice of the
Peace Pro Tempore for the Globe Regional Justice Court.  As John Perlman actively
practices and litigates in that court, the potential for case conflict exists.  Upon being
so informed, Superior Court Administration coordinated with the Presiding Judge to
correct the error. 

Evaluation
Because of exigent circumstances requiring qualified judicial officers when conflicts
arise, or in the event a Justice of the Peace is absent or unavailable, pursuant to
A.R.S. 22-121, appointments are requested for individuals to serve as Justices of the
Peace Pro Tempore for the Payson and Globe Regional Justice Courts. All Justices of
the Peace Pro Tempores may serve from time to time as requested and subject to the
availability of funds of the respective Justice Courts. All terms of service shall expire on
December 31, 2015, unless terminated earlier by order of the Presiding Judge.

As John Perlman was inadvertently appointed in the Globe Regional Justice Court,
and, as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore services are still needed in the Payson
Regional Justice Court, the Presiding Judge of Gila County has issued an
Administrative Order rescinding John Perlman's appointment to the Globe Regional
Justice Court and affirming his appointment as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore in
the Payson Regional Justice Court. 

Conclusion
The Presiding Judge of the Superior Court in Gila County has issued an Administrative
Order to correct the clerical error resulting in the appointment of John Perlman to
serve as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore, pursuant to A.R.S. 22-121. 

Recommendation
Presiding Judge Timothy Wright recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approve the adjustment made to John Perlman's appointment as Justice
of the Peace Pro Tempore.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the adjustment to the appointment of John Perlman as Justice of the



Approval of the adjustment to the appointment of John Perlman as Justice of the
Peace Pro Tempore, specifically, the termination of appointment in the Globe Regional
Justice Court and the affirmation of appointment in the Payson Regional Justice Court.

Attachments
Board of Supervisors' Approval re Perlman
Memo to BOS re Perlman Adjustment
Admin Order re Perlman









   

ARF-3533     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Bradley Beauchamp 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. 2016-004 with the Office of the
Attorney General.

Background Information
Monies are distributed and received by the Attorney General pursuant to A.R.S.
41-2401 and A.R.S. 8-418 and constitute a continuing appropriation.  These monies
are also subject to legislative appropriation.  The allocated funding received from the
Attorney General's Office provides for salary and employee-related expenses of a
full-time Victim-Advocate / Notification Clerk within the Gila County Attorney's
Office.  FY2016 award in the amount $33,890 has no financial impact on Gila County
and requires no matched funds from the County.

Evaluation
The award of $33,890 is used to cover existing employee salaries and employee related
expenses commencing July 1, 2015, and terminating on June 30, 2016. The funding
agreement is used to support costs of implementing victims' rights laws mandated
by the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 13, Crime Victims' Rights, and
Title 8, Victims' Rights for Juvenile Offenses.

Conclusion
The intent of the program funds is two-fold:  1)To provide financial support to the Gila
County Attorney's Office charged with performing the duties under A.R.S. Title 13 and
A.R.S. Title 8, and 2) to encourage efficient and effective use of resources to
meet statutory requirements aimed at ensuring victims' rights and access to justice. 
Mandated services provided to victims include, but are not limited to notification of all
court hearings, court escorts, victim compensation, provide emotional support, assist
in transportation, scheduling interviews with prosecutors and to assist with any other
social service needs.  These funds are essential to carrying out these duties.

Recommendation
It is recommended by the Gila County Attorney that the Board accept and approve the



It is recommended by the Gila County Attorney that the Board accept and approve the
FY2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG No. 2016-004 in the amount
of $33,890 for the salary/benefits of a full-time Victim Advocate in the County
Attorney's Office.

Suggested Motion
Approval of FY 2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG No. 2016-004
between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona Attorney General's Office in
the amount of $33,890 to cover the existing salary and employee-related expenses for
a full-time advocate, with no cash match funds required, for the period July 1, 2015,
through June 30, 2016.

Attachments
FY2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement







   

ARF-3512     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services
Department: Community Services Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: Program Years

2014 and 2015
Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 1, 2013 -
June 30, 2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-055408) between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Contract ADES14-055408 on August 6, 2013.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADES14-055408 on
September 16, 2014.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES14-055408 on
May 5, 2015.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 3 to the Intergovernmental Agreement  (Contract No. ADES14-055408) will decrease the
un-obligated fund balances for the Program and Fiscal years 2014 and 2015.  This is a decrease of
$724,787.

The reimbursement ceiling is decreased from $4,876,020 to $4,151,233.

Attachment B, Allocation by Program and Fiscal Year, was updated on October 8, 2015, it reflects all
current totals by program and Fiscal Year.

This amendment also revises the contract end date from June 30, 2018, to December 31, 2016.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 3 to Contract ADES14-055408 will decrease the reimbursement ceiling and will revise
the end date for this contract.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. ADES14-055408.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-055408)
between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Economic Security which will decrease
the un-obligated fund balances and will change this contract end date to December 31, 2016, all of
which pertain to funding for the former Gila/Pinal Counties Workforce Investment Area.



Attachments
Amend. No. 3 ADES14-055408
Amend No. 2 ADES14-055408
Amend No 1 ADES14-055408
Contract No. ADES14-055408





























































   

ARF-3523     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services
Department: Community Services Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No.
108-15 Closeout Report.

Background Information
On June 3, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Funding Agreement Arizona
Department of Housing (ADOH) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Contract No. 108-15.
 

Evaluation
Funding received from ADOH Contract No. 108-15 enabled Gila County Division
of Community Services, Housing Services to rehabilitate three homes belonging to low
income residents of Gila County.  The closeout report reflects that the amount
expended on these homes was $174,945.27

By the Gila County Board of Supervisors signing ADOH CDBG Contract No.108-15
Closeout Report, it will enable Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing
Services to finalize the contractual obligations to the Arizona Department of Housing
for said grant.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors signing ADOH CDBG Contract No. 108-15 Closeout
Report, all contractual requirements will be met and finalization of said contract will
be performed.

Recommendation
The Gila County Division of Community Services Director recommends that the Board
of Supervisors approve this closeout report.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) Community Development Block
Grant Contract No. 108-15 Closeout Report to finalize the contract between the ADOH
and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services, which will
successfully end the contract and ensure that Gila County Housing Services has met
all requirements of said contract.



Attachments
108-15 Close-out Report
Approved as to Form















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3524     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services
Department: Community Services Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No. 103-15 Closeout
Report.

Background Information
On October 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Funding Agreement Arizona Department of
Housing (ADOH) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract No. 103-15.
 

Evaluation
Funding received from ADOH Contract No. 103-15 enabled Gila County Division of Community Services,
Housing Services to rehabilitate two homes belonging to low income residents of Gila County.  The
closeout report reflects that the amount expended on these homes was $111,543.49.

By the Gila County Board of Supervisors signing ADOH CDBG Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report, it
will enable Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services to finalize the contractual
obligations to the Arizona Department of Housing for said grant.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors signing ADOH CDBG Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report, all contractual
requirements will be met and finalization of said contract will be performed.

Recommendation
The Gila County Division of Community Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this closeout report.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) Community Development Block Grant Contract No.
103-15 Closeout Report to finalize the contract between the ADOH and the Gila County Division of
Community Services, Housing Services, which will successfully end the contract and ensure that Gila
County Housing Services has met all requirements of said contract.

Attachments

103-15 Close-out Report















   

ARF-3544     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services
Department: Community Services Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 - June
30, 2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) with the
Arizona Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved Contract No. ADES15-089113 on June 23, 2015. 
The BOS approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADES15-089113 on September 1, 2015.
The BOS approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113 on December 15, 2015; however,
the Gila County Attorney did not sign the document because of questionable language that was added
on the Amendment.  
When signed Amendment No. 2 was sent back to the State, the State decided to revise the Amendment
by taking out the language in question.  
Due to a deadline given by the State, Chairman Pastor signed the revised document on December 21,
2015. If this revised Amendment was not signed and sent back to the State at this time, Gila County
would have lost $26,000 in funding.

Evaluation
Amendment 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113 will increase the reimbursement ceiling for Case
Management from $301,731 to $315,971; an increase of $14,240. It will also increase the
reimbursement ceiling for Community Services from $150,000 to $159,545; an increase of $9,545.

The cumulative reimbursement ceiling for the contract period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, is
$475,516.
An Itemized Service Budget for the services of Case Management (Attachment A) and Community
Services (Attachment B) are revised and attached.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving revised Amendment No. 2  to Contract No. ADES15-089113,
the Gila County Community Action Program will have additional funding to provide case management
services and community services to eligible residents of Gila County of which the intent is to assist the
household in resolving crisis situations in order to move closer to self-sufficiency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve revised Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113.

Suggested Motion
Approval of revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.



Approval of revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADES15-089113) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Division of
Community Services, Community Action Program, revising the Itemized Service Budget for Case
Management and Community Services whereby the cumulative reimbursement ceiling has been
increased from $451,731 to $477,916 for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Attachments
Revised Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
Attachment A to Amendment No. 2
Attachment B to Amendment No. 2
Amendment No. 1 to Contract ADES15-089113
Contract ADES15-089113
Contract ADES15-089113 cont.
Supplemental Information Regarding Amendment No. 2
Approval as to Form



































































































































































































































































































































From: Sheppard, Marian
To: Kline, Laurie
Subject: FW: Amendment 2 to contract ADES15-089113
Date: Tuesday, December 08, 2015 3:05:47 PM
Importance: High

 
 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk
Gila County Board of Supervisors
1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, AZ  85501
Phone:  (928) 402-8757
Fax:  (928) 402-8755
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail message and its attachments are for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain
 confidential and privileged information.  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or an agent responsible for delivering
 it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this document in error and that any review, dissemination,
 distribution or copying of this message is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender by e-
mail and delete the e-mail and any attachments.  Unintended recipient(s) are prohibited from making any other use of this e-mail.

 

From: Dalton, Jeff 
Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2015 11:54 AM
To: Sheppard, Marian
Cc: Dalton, Jeff
Subject: FW: Amendment 2 to contract ADES15-089113
Importance: High
 
Marian,
 
The state’s proposed amendment, section 32.7, adds a new concept: that services may be provided
 outside of Gila County.  A.R.S. § 11-254.04 allows for economic development activities outside of the
 county, however, the assistance must still be found and determined to benefit the inhabitants of
 the county.  I attempted to add some language to bring that requirement into the agreement but
 the state doesn’t want to make any changes now. 
 
For this reason, I am unable to approve the agreement as to form.
 
Best regards,
 
Jeff
 
 
Jefferson R. Dalton
Deputy Gila County Attorney
Civil Bureau Chief
1400 E. Ash St.
Globe, Arizona 85501
(928) 402-8638
jdalton@gilacountyaz.gov

mailto:/O=GILA COUNTY/OU=GLO_ENG_EXCH/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MSHEPPA
mailto:lkline@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jdalton@gilacountyaz.gov


 
 
 
 

From: Griffin, Leitha 
Sent: Monday, December 07, 2015 10:56 AM
To: Dalton, Jeff
Subject: FW: Amendment 2 to contract ADES15-089113
Importance: High
 
Jeff,
 
This is the response from the state.
 

From: Jennings, Cynthia [mailto:CJennings@azdes.gov] 
Sent: Monday, December 07, 2015 10:38 AM
To: Griffin, Leitha
Cc: Buzan, Malissa; Montague, Nick; Prine, Dorine; Lecrone, Mathew (Matt)
Subject: RE: Amendment 2 to contract ADES15-089113
Importance: High
 
Good Morning Leitha,
 
It is imperative that amendment 2 is signed and returned as soon as possible.  The amendment

 needs to be signed and fully executed by December 31st and any delay may lead to the loss of your
 carryover funds.  Also any changes/updates to the Terms and Conditions can be considered on the
 next amendment or any future amendments.  This request would have be to reviewed by the
 Attorney General’s office and could take weeks which would again jeopardize your carryover funds. 
 Thanks for your attention to this urgent matter.
 
Best Regards,
 

Cynthia Jennings
Contracts Management Specialist
Arizona Department of Economic Services
Division of Aging and Adult Services
1789 West Jefferson Street, Site Code 950A
Phoenix AZ 85007
Phone:  602-542-6656
Fax:  602-542-6655
Email:  cjennings@azdes.gov
 
 
 

From: Griffin, Leitha [mailto:lgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov] 
Sent: Monday, December 07, 2015 10:06 AM
To: Jennings, Cynthia
Cc: Buzan, Malissa
Subject: Amendment 2 to contract ADES15-089113

mailto:CJennings@azdes.gov
mailto:cjennings@azdes.gov
mailto:lgriffin@gilacountyaz.gov


 
Good morning,
What our legal department would like added is highlighted.
 
ADD
Terms and Conditions, Levels of Service, section 32.7
A Contractor may request, and the Department may approve, the coordination and provision
 of emergency assistance outside the designated geographic service area for a specified
 timeframe if.  No amendment to the contract shall be required. Contractor will not make a
 request to the Department, unless Contractor, pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-254.04, has found and
 determined that the assistance will assist in the creation of jobs or will otherwise improve or
 enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.
 
Thank you,
 
Leitha Griffin
Gila County Division of Community Services
Administrative Assistant
5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200
Globe, Arizona 85501
Ph: (928) 402-8697
Fax: (928) 425-9468
E-mail: lgriffin@gilacountaz.gov
 
 

NOTICE: This e-mail (and any attachments) may contain PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL information and is intended
 only for the use of the specific individual(s) to whom it is addressed. It may contain information that is privileged and
 confidential under state and federal law. This information may be used or disclosed only in accordance with law, and
 you may be subject to penalties under law for improper use or further disclosure of the information in this e-mail and
 its attachments. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the person named above by reply
 e-mail, and then delete the original e-mail. Thank you.

mailto:lgriffin@gilacountaz.gov


 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3530     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for November 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court November 2015





















   
ARF-3543     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 2015

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for November
2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
November 2015 Report













   
ARF-3529     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 2015

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr., Justice

Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for November
2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
November 2015 Report









   
ARF-3537     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for November 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for November
2015





















































   
ARF-3528     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, December 15,
2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, and December 15, 2015, Board
of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, and December
15, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 12-15-15 Meeting Minutes
BOS 12-01-15 Meeting Minutes
BOS 11-24-15 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 16 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  December 15, 2015 

 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 

 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 

Manager; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 

this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Sherry Grice led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Minister Bart Campbell of the Church of Christ in 

Globe delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action regarding endorsement of the Taliesin 
West, Frank Lloyd Wright School of Architecture revitalization project for 

the Globe/Miami area of Gila County.   
 

Chairman Pastor stated that this item would be addressed when the presenter 
arrives at the meeting.   
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider approving a Memorandum 
of Understanding establishing a partnership between the Industrial 

Development Authority of Gila County and Gila County government to 
make application and promote the designation of the Central Arizona 
Transformation Corridor Promise Zone.   

 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that the Industrial Development 
Authority (IDA) presented information to the Board at a recent work session 



Page 2 of 16 

 

(11-24-2015) regarding the nature of the Promise Zone and the need for the 
IDA to partner with a governmental agency; hence, the IDA has asked Gila 

County to be a partner.  Since that time there have been discussions relating to 
this partnership and there are some legal issues that need to be resolved with 

regard to the Memorandum of Understanding and whether or not the Board 
should take action today or continue this item to a future Board meeting.  
Chairman Pastor asked Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau 

Chief, to address this issue.  Mr. Dalton stated that he prepared a 
memorandum regarding his concerns.  He added that Mr. McDaniel forwarded 
a memo to him from the IDA’s attorney, Kelly A. McGuirre of Kutak Rock, LLP; 

however, he hasn’t had an opportunity to review it yet, so he recommended 
that the Board continue this item to a future meeting.   

 
Chairman Pastor reiterated that the Gila County Attorney’s Office has issued a 
legal opinion, which was provided to the IDA.  Sandy Palmer, IDA 

Administrative Manager, was asked to provide the legal opinion to Ms. 
McGuirre, who then returned an explanation late last night; however, Mr. 

Dalton has not had the opportunity to review the information.  Chairman 
Pastor requested a motion to continue this item to the January 5, 2016, Board 
meeting and instruct the County Attorney’s Office to confer with Ms. McGuirre 

in order to come to an understanding.  The Board can then re-visit this item at 
its January 5th meeting.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously continued this item to the 

Board’s January 5, 2016, regular meeting to allow time for further review by 
the County Attorney’s Office and, at that time, the Board will make a decision.   

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals Rebid No. 092815 - Document Scan Conversion for 

the Gila County Recorder's Office.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that the scope of work in the 

previously issued Request for Proposals (RFP) needed to be revised as 
evidenced by the number of questions posed by the bidders, and by the 

disparity in the bids received.  Subsequently, a revised RFP has been prepared 
for this item which uses language that models an RFP and contract that is 
used by the State of Arizona for similar services.  Upon motion by Vice-

Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals Rebid No. 092815. 

  
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Superior 
Court's submission of a "Fill the Gap" application in the amount of $3,750 

to the Court Services Division, Administrative Office of the Courts, which 
will facilitate the transition of the Limited Jurisdiction Courts to the new 



Page 3 of 16 

 

document imaging case management system known as AJACS (Arizona 
Judicial Automated Case System). 

 
Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, stated that this grant is for the 

continuation of a program implemented last year in order to allow the limited 
jurisdiction courts to participate in digital document imaging.  This is a 
preparatory step for providing the imaging case management system 

throughout the courts.   
 
Chairman Pastor advised that Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil 

Bureau Chief, has some concerns regarding this item and the two following 
agenda items (2E and 2F) which pertain to three separate “Fill the Gap” grant 

applications.  He called upon Mr. Dalton to explain his concerns.  Mr. Dalton 
referenced Arizona Revised Statute § 12-102.02 and he advised that each of the 
three grant applications do not contain a signature line for “an elected justice of 
the peace of the county” as prescribed by statute; therefore, Mr. Dalton is 
opposed to the Board of Supervisors approving the applications because they 

are not in proper legal form. 
 
Mr. Bearup commented that the application and two subsequent applications 

were vetted through the Administrative Office of the Courts and they contain 
the same language as in last year’s applications.  He expressed a concern that 

this project and others may be compromised by delaying the submission of the 
applications by the deadline of January 1, 2016.   

  

Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Court, added that she asked the 
Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) to provide direction regarding this 

concern; however, the question was deferred to their legal department and she 
has not received an answer yet regarding the interpretation of this 
aforementioned statute.  Chairman Pastor inquired if there was an anticipated 

time frame to receive an answer from the AOC’s legal counsel to which Ms. 
Aguilar replied that a time frame was not provided.   
 

Supervisor Marcanti stated that he doesn’t see the need to delay this 
application for interpretation since it has been approved in the past.  Vice-

Chairman Martin stated that if there is something wrong with the application, 
it can be returned to the County; however, she concurred that the application 
process should not be delayed.  The Board members all agreed that it was 

important to move forward by submitting the application.   
 

Mr. McDaniel advised that it would be the best course of action for the Board to 
authorize the submission of the application, given the fact that the State is 
providing the funding and the application has met the State’s standards.  He 

appreciated Mr. Dalton’s comments regarding the statute and added that 



Page 4 of 16 

 

statute may be poorly written; therefore, he agreed that the Board should move 
forward and approve the application.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 

seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Gila 
County Superior Court's submission of this "Fill the Gap" application in the 

amount of $3,750 to the Court Services Division, Administrative Office of the 
Courts. 

  

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Globe Regional Justice 
Court's "Fill the Gap" application to the Court Services Division, 
Administrative Office of the Courts, in the amount of $8,000 in order to 

enhance existing court facilities and expedite case processing.   
 

Mr. Bearup stated that with County support and assistance, an additional 
courtroom/hearing room, and waiting room/jury assembly area have been 
established, which has enabled the Justice Court to conduct hearings in 

multiple locations.  He added that the funds received from this grant as 
described above will be used to purchase additional chairs for the waiting 

room, digital recording equipment, an industrial capacity paper shredder and 
media equipment to improve facilities, and expedite the process of criminal 
cases without additional cost to the citizens of Gila County.   

 
Chairman Pastor stated that, for the record, the County Attorney’s Office has 
issued a memo regarding a concern that the application is missing a statutorily 

required signature line, which mirrors the explanation provided in the previous 
agenda item.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 

Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved the Globe Regional Justice Court's 
"Fill the Gap" application in the amount of $8,000 to the Court Services 
Division, Administrative Office of the Courts. 

 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Clerk of 
Superior Court's "Fill the Gap" application to the Court Services Division, 

Administrative Office of the Courts, in the amount of $12,506.09 in order 
to purchase the ST ViewScan III Universal Base and complete 

workstation.   
 
Ms. Aguilar advised that one of the responsibilities of the Clerk of the Superior 

Court is to be a “keeper of records.”  She explained that the scanning 
equipment currently in use for archival searching is at least 21 years old, 

antiquated, and doesn’t work to full capacity.  It is necessary to be able to 
provide the most efficient means of access to Superior Court criminal archival 
cases to all users of Gila County court records.  The equipment that will be 

purchased if this “Fill the Gap” grant application is approved will provide 
quality reproduction, searchable text tools for identifying documents quickly, 



Page 5 of 16 

 

and it will increase the camera magnification for better reproduction and end 
product.   

 
Chairman Pastor stated that, for the record, the County Attorney’s Office has 

issued a memo regarding a concern that the application is missing a statutorily 
required signature line, which mirrors the explanation provided in regular 
agenda item number 2D.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 

Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Gila County Clerk 
of Superior Court's "Fill the Gap" application in the amount of $12,506.09 to 
the Court Services Division, Administrative Office of the Courts. 

  
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to prioritize the projects submitted by 

Public Works and direct staff to present the Board of Supervisors' 
recommendation to the Eastern Arizona Resource Advisory Council at its 
upcoming meeting.   

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that it is time to submit 

proposed County road improvement projects to the Eastern Arizona Resource 
Advisory Council (RAC) for review and possible funding through the Secure 
Rural Schools Title II, United States Department of Agriculture Forest Service 

grant.  Upon Board approval, the amount requested for each of the following 
three projects would be $350,000.  The three road projects for consideration at 
this time are: 1) resurfacing approximately four miles of Control Road; 2) mill 

and repave approximately one mile of the Gisela Road; and, 3) mill and replace 
approximately one mile of Baker Ranch Road.  All three projects meet the 

requirements to receive the grant funding.  He added that all three projects are 
important to the County and will be budgeted and completed at some point in 
the future.  The Board held a discussion regarding each of the road projects to 

determine which road has the most urgent need for repairs, the amount of 
traffic upon each road, and which project would provide the most benefit for 
the residents of the area.  Mr. Sanders stated that hauling of materials to be 

used on Control Road would be done “in-house” and that is the reason four 
miles of Control Road can be resurfaced for approximately the same amount of 

money it costs to resurface one mile of road for Baker Ranch Road or Gisela 
Road.  He also made it clear that the order of priority determined by the Board 
today would certainly be conveyed to the RAC; however, the RAC could approve 

or deny the request altogether because the RAC is the ultimate decision maker 
with regard to the distribution of funds.  He did say that the RAC would 

probably ask the County which road project would be its number one priority, 
which would be taken into consideration.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously supported 

and prioritized the projects submitted by Public Works as follows:  Baker 
Ranch Road, Gisela Road and Control Road and directed staff to present the 



Page 6 of 16 

 

Board of Supervisors' recommendation to the Eastern Arizona Resource 
Advisory Council at its upcoming meeting. 

  
H.  Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of S. 

Burnham Street as shown on Official Map No. 48 and to accept a bid in 
the amount of $35.00 from Jarrett Amado for that portion of S. Burnham 
Street adjacent to parcel 207-06-106.   

 
Mr. Sanders stated that on February 17th the Board approved staff beginning 
the process of abandoning a portion of S. Burnham Street, which was done in 

accordance with County policies.  Mr. Jarrett Amado purchased a home with 
an addition that is situated on this piece of land and he has requested to 

purchase this portion of S. Burnham Street.  Mr. Sanders added that the land 
has never been used as a road, nor will it ever be used as a road; it runs into a 
hill that is unbuildable.  He added that no other bids have been received for 

this land.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously accepted a bid in the amount of $35.00 from 

Jarrett Amado for the purchase of that portion of S. Burnham Street adjacent 
to parcel 207-06-106.   

  

I.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition to begin 
the process to establish Gambel Drive located in Central Heights as a 
Country Dirt Road.   

 
Mr. Sanders stated that a Citizens’ Petition was submitted to establish Gambel 

Drive as a Country Dirt Road.  The Board must accept the Citizens’ Petition as 
the first step in the County’s process to establish said road.  The road is 
located off of Roberts Road in Central Heights; the road serves five to seven 

residents; and, the petition meets the County’s requirements for a Country Dirt 
Road.  If the residents sign the required easements, the item will be presented 
to the Board at a future meeting for approval to establish Gambel Drive as a 

Country Dirt Road.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously accepted a Citizens' Petition to 

begin the process to establish Gambel Drive located in Central Heights as a 
Country Dirt Road.   

  

J.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-12-02 for a 
roadway exchange (roadway is located north of Payson) between Pedro and 

Sandra K. Navarro and Gila County, and to authorize the Chairman’s 
signature on a Quit Claim Deed for said roadway exchange.   
 

Mr. Sanders stated that Pedro Navarro conducted a recent survey of his 
property which showed a portion of Houston Mesa Road on his property.  Gila 
County had previously acquired a portion of the property now owned by the 



Page 7 of 16 

 

Navarros for Houston Mesa Road; however, the County didn’t acquire quite 
enough of the road.  The roadway exchange will allow the County to acquire the 

additional right-of-way needed.  It will also let the County return a platted 
roadway on the Navarro property that is of no benefit to the County.  The 

County has previously abandoned this road on adjacent parcels.  The exchange 
is equitable:  1,566 square feet will be deeded by Gila County to Pedro and 
Sandra K. Navarro, and 1,434 square feet will be deeded by Pedro and Sandra 

K. Navarro to Gila County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 15-12-
02, and authorized the Chairman’s signature on a Quit Claim Deed for said 

roadway exchange.  (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
K.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-12-01 
authorizing the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion 

of Canal Street located in Little Acres between Lot 12 and Lot 21, as 
shown on the map of Fairmont Acreage, Official Map No. 45, Gila County 

Records, Gila County, Arizona, and authorize the Chairman's signature on 
the Quit Claim Deed conveying the abandoned roadway to Clyde A. 
Elmer.   

 
Mr. Sanders stated that on November 17, 2015, the Board accepted a bid in 
the amount of $145.00 from Clyde A. Elmer for the purchase of a portion of 

Canal Street.  Staff recommends adoption of the resolution and that the 
Chairman sign the Quit Claim Deed for the conveyance of land to Mr. Elmer.  

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 15-12-01, and authorized the 
Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed conveying the abandoned 

roadway to Clyde A. Elmer.  (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

L.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-11-01 
which authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(ADOT File No. IGA/JPA 15-0005498-I) between Gila County and the State 
of Arizona, Department of Transportation for the appropriation standards 
for railroad crossing appurtenances on Grover Canyon Road located in the 

Claypool area of Gila County.   
 

Mr. Sanders stated that Public Works received notification from the Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) that Grover Canyon Road railroad 
crossing had been identified as the highest priority need on the railroad line; 

therefore, this project has been moved to the front of the project list of which 
the County is grateful.  The County will be required to match funds in the 
amount of approximately $6,500.  There will be a signalized concrete crossing 



Page 8 of 16 

 

and a gate at the Grover Canyon Road railroad crossing.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 

unanimously adopted Resolution No. 15-11-01.  (A copy of the resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
M.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize a waterline easement 
between Gila County and the Arizona Water Company whereby the County 

will grant a waterline easement to Arizona Water Company.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that in September 2015, Gila County granted a waterline 

easement to Arizona Water Company for the installation of a waterline needed 
to complete the loop of new waterlines that were installed for the Public Works 

Complex on Besich Boulevard and Rose Mofford Way.  When the contractor 
began excavation for the waterline, the depth of the line and the type of soil 
encountered necessitated moving the line to the south in order to keep the 

work away from Besich Boulevard.  The move required that an additional 20 
feet needed to be granted by the County for the placement of the waterline so 

as not to impact Besich Boulevard.  Mr. Sanders advised that authorization of 
the waterline easement would not impact any County roadway or otherwise 
negatively affect any other roadway.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 

seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized a 
waterline easement between Gila County and the Arizona Water Company 
whereby the County will grant a waterline easement to Arizona Water 

Company.   
  

N.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the quarterly posting of 
a public notice of on-line auction of surplus materials in the Arizona 
Silver Belt newspaper per A.R.S. §11-251(9).   

 
Mr. Hessenius stated that this item is a request to publish a public notice of 
on-line auction of County surplus materials on a quarterly basis (January, 

April, July, and October of 2016) in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.  Vice-
Chairman Martin acknowledged that the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper is the 

official County newspaper (for 2015); however, she wanted to know the reason 
the public notice would not also be published in the Payson Roundup 
newspaper.  Mr. Hessenius replied that could be done, and he added that in 

addition to publishing the notice in the newspaper, it is also posted on the 
County’s website and a press release is issued.  Vice-Chairman Martin 

commented that it is important to also publish the notice in the Payson 
Roundup newspaper because she believes many people only receive news 
updates from the newspaper.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the Finance Division 

creates a financial report of the auction results to which Mr. Hessenius replied 
that the Finance Division has all of the related figures, so a report could be 
easily generated.  Chairman Pastor requested that each of the Supervisors be 



Page 9 of 16 

 

sent a written summary of the results of each auction.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
requested that Mr. Hessenius also email each Supervisor advance notice of 

each auction to which he replied that both requests could easily be fulfilled.  
Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to authorize the publication of a public 

notice on a quarterly basis regarding the County’s on-line surplus auction in 
the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.  Vice-Chairman Martin amended the motion 
to include also publishing the public notice in the Payson Roundup newspaper.  

The Board voted unanimously to authorize the quarterly publication of a public 
notice for the County’s on-line auction of surplus materials in the Arizona 
Silver Belt and Payson Roundup newspapers. 

  
O.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Call 

for Bids No. 110615 to provide all advertising, publications and printing 
required to be done or made by all departments of Gila County for 
calendar year 2016; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; 

and authorize the Chairman's signature on the contract for the winning 
bidder.   

 
Mr. Hessenius introduced this item and stated that a call for bids is issued 
annually for a qualified newspaper to become the official newspaper of record 

for the County for a period of one year.  He advised that there was only one 
bidder, which was the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.  He added that the 
Payson Roundup newspaper, the only other qualified newspaper in Gila 

County, did not submit a bid.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract in 

response to Call for Bids No. 110615 to the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper at a 
price of $4.40 per column inch to provide all advertising, publications and 
printing required to be done or made by all departments of Gila County for 

calendar year 2016. 
 
P.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve performance pay 

increases ranging from 3.0% to 1.0% for qualified employees at a cost of 
approximately $499,000.   

 
Mr. McDaniel stated that this is staff’s proposal to increase employee salaries 
based on the recently completed performance appraisal.  Staff is proposing to 

recognize the hard work of employees and management by providing 
performance pay increases for all qualified employees.  This would be the third 

year employees could receive a pay increase based on their performance.  The 
prior two years were lump-sum payments rather than an increase to the rate of 
pay.  The fiscal year 2010-2011 adopted budget authorized 699.88 full time 

equivalent (FTE) employees; whereas, the fiscal year 2015-2016 adopted budget 
authorizes 620.39 FTE employees.  Part of the reduction in employees was due 
to attrition and the elected officials and department heads voluntarily reduced 



Page 10 of 16 

 

their departmental budgets while working to stay within their budget.  The 
current budget provides for pay increases for employees to be funded out of the 

“CPI/Performance Pay Increases” line item.  The average pay increase for each 
employee is 2.0% at a cost of approximately $499,000, and the goal is to keep a 

balanced budget while paying employees accordingly. 
 
Each Board member provided comments in support of paying employees 

accordingly and getting quality performance.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved 
performance pay increases ranging from 3.0% to 1.0% for qualified employees 

at a cost of approximately $499,000.   
  

Q.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment Nos. 2 and 3 
to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) 
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County 

Division of Community Services, Community Action Program, revising the 
Itemized Service Budget for Case Management and Community Services 

whereby the cumulative reimbursement ceiling has been increased from 
$451,731 to $477,916, and to make some other minor contract changes 
for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.   

 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, stated that this item is 
to approve two amendments.  Amendment No. 2 contains an adjustment to the 

Community Action Program budget, which has a carry-over balance of 
approximately $26,000 and some other minor contract changes.  She deferred 

to Mr. Dalton as he has some concerns with Amendment No. 2.  Mr. Dalton 
advised that the Arizona Department of Economic Security’s (ADES) proposed 
Amendment No. 2, Section 32.7, adds a new concept; that services may be 

provided outside of Gila County.  He stated that A.R.S. § 11-254.04 allows for 
economic development activities outside of the county; however, the assistance 

must still be found and determined to benefit the inhabitants of the county.  
Mr. Dalton requested that DES add the following language to the Amendment:   
Contractor will not make a request to the Department, unless Contractor, 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-254.04, has found and determined that the assistance 
will assist in the creation of jobs or will otherwise improve or enhance the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.  Mr. Dalton stated that 

adding that sentence would bring the Amendment into compliance with the 
statute, and without it, DES leaves him in a situation of not being able to 

approve Amendment No. 2 as to form.  He clarified that the Board may still 
choose to approve the Amendment even though he cannot approve it as to 

form.  Ms. Buzan stated that she asked DES to add the language and DES 
replied that the added language could be considered for future contracts.  DES 
added that in any case, the Amendment would have to be sent to the Attorney 

General’s Office and it could take several weeks to receive a response.  She 



Page 11 of 16 

 

clarified that this money is from the federal government and it must be added 
to the contract before December 31st or else Gila County loses the money.   

 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board could impose upon itself the restriction so 

that the Amendment could be approved subject to the understanding that the 
County would not make application for funds or would not spend the funds, 
and then add the paragraph provided by the County Attorney’s Office, which 

would indicate that it is not the Board’s intention to go outside of that, and 
that wouldn’t have anything to do with the contract, but it would be part of the 
Board’s action.  Mr. Dalton stated that he thought this was an excellent idea 

because the County would have to ask DES for funds before it could spend any 
funds out of County, which is built into the contract.  Upon motion by Vice-

Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
approved Amendment Nos. 2 and 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADES15-089113) between the Arizona Department of Economic 

Security and Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action 
Program for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, subject to the 

Community Services Division making a determination on each project that the 
assistance will assist in the creation of jobs or will otherwise improve or 
enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.   

 
R.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-12-03 
accepting the resignations of two (2) governing Board Members of the 

Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District (STDWID); revoking 
the authority of the STDWID; naming the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors as the Board of Directors for the STDWID; and reserving the 
authority to call for new election of the STDWID.   
 

Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, stated that on November 14, 2015, the 
STDWID held a Board meeting at which time Mark Fumusa and Mark 
Peschman tendered their resignations as members of the STDWID Board of 

Directors (BOD).  STDWID had a three member board so it left the STDWID 
without a quorum and unable to conduct business.  It has been 31 days since 

this has occurred and according to Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) § 48-1016, 
“the board of supervisors of the county in which a domestic water improvement 
district or domestic wastewater improvement district is located may at any time 
revoke the authority of an elected board of directors in order to protect the 
residents of the district.  Any district in which the authority of an elected board of 
directors is revoked pursuant to this section shall be governed by the board of 
supervisors as provided by section 48-908 and the board of supervisors shall 
have the option of calling for new elections for the district board of directors.”  
Mr. Mariscal recommended that the Board move forward with this action as 
stated in the agenda item.   

 



Page 12 of 16 

 

Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the status of the third member of the 
BOD.  Mr. Mariscal explained that if the Board of Supervisors takes action to 

revoke the authority of the STDWID BOD, the remaining Board member’s 
authority would be revoked and that member would have to be elected at the 

time the other two members would be elected.     
 
Chairman Pastor asked if any member of the public wished to speak to this 

issue.  Stephen Wetherell, residing at 5448 Foxtail View within the STDWID, 
stated that he was addressing the Board as a STDWID member and as a newly 
appointed member of the STDWID BOD.  He requested that the Board of 

Supervisors not adopt a resolution to revoke the authority of the STDWID BOD, 
and that the Board of Supervisors not adopt an Order to call for a special 

election in the spring to elect new STDWID BOD members.  He advised that 
after the 2 STDWID BOD members resigned, the remaining STDWID Board 
member was authorized, per A.R.S. § 48-1012 (C), to appoint new BOD 

members.  The existing BOD member requested letters of interest and resumes 
from those residing within the STDWID who were interested in serving on the 

STDWID BOD.  Mr. Wetherell advised that he and one other person were 
appointed to the STDWID BOD by the one remaining Board member on 
approximately December 2nd or 3rd of this year.  Mr. Wetherell advised that on 

December 5th, within 30 days from the date the prior resignations were 
submitted and after a notice of the STDWID BOD’s meeting was posted, a 
meeting of the STDWID BOD was held at which time he and another newly 

appointed member were sworn into office and seated as members of the BOD. 
 

Mr. Dalton reviewed the A.R.S. and he stated, “If the district board lacks a 
quorum for any reason for more than 30 days, the county board of supervisors 
may revoke the authority of the appointed or elected board of directors 

pursuant to Section 48-1016…It would appear that is what has occurred here; 
once those two members resigned, the Board lacked a quorum.  As soon as 30 
days lapsed from that date, the Board of Supervisors then has the authority to 

revoke the authority of the Board.”  Mr. McDaniel further clarified that once the 
two Board members resigned, the STDWID BOD no longer existed.  Mr. Dalton 

proceeded to read further portions of A.R.S. § 48-1016.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
exclaimed that if only one BOD member chose to resign, then the other two 
remaining BOD members could have appointed a third member.  The other 

member could have resigned and then the newly appointed member and the 
existing member could have appointed a new BOD member.  She pointed out 

that it was the choice of the two BOD members to resign at the same time, 
which resulted in a lack of a quorum on said Board.  
 

Chairman Pastor called on Roger Miotto to address the Board.  Mr. Miotto 
stated, “I’ve been on this board for years and I haven’t had any problems 
supplying water to the district.  We are very capable of doing just that.  I have 



Page 13 of 16 

 

obligated to the residents of the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement 
District and I have lived in the district for the past 20 years.”  He then stated 

that the new BOD members that he recently appointed and he are very capable 
of continuing to handle the business of the STDWID.    

 
There being no more public comment, Chairman Pastor asked for a motion 
from the Board.  Vice-Chairman Martin made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 

15-02-03 to accept the resignations of 2 governing Board members of the 
STDWID; revoke the authority of the STDWID; name the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors as the Board of Directors for the STDWID; and reserve the 

authority to call for special election of the STDWID.  The motion was seconded 
by Supervisor Marcanti and passed with a unanimous vote of the Board.  (A 

copy of the resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 

S.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider adopting an Order to call 
for a Special Election to be held May 17, 2016, to elect a new Board of 

Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District.   
 
Mr. Mariscal stated that this item is on the agenda today should the Board 

decide to call for the special election at this time.  The deadline to call for the 
special election is January 18, 2016, and the special election would be held on 
May 17, 2016.  It is up to the Board to call for the special election now, review 

it, and/or have a meeting with the population of the area, etc.  
 

Chairman Pastor stated that he didn’t feel that the Board was ready to call for 
the special election at this time.  The Board will take authority over the 
STDWID today; the Board will give direction as to the upcoming events with 

respect to the residents of the STDWID; and, the Board will call for a public 
meeting in Pine at the Pine Community Center.  The Board will start working 
on the logistics and direct staff to move forward with administration, and the 

audit of the STDWID.   
 

Mr. McDaniel stated that all of the aforementioned proposed actions will take 
place based on the action taken in the previous agenda item.  He recommended 
continuing this item to the Board’s January 5, 2016, meeting.  Chairman 

Pastor agreed with the recommendation and asked for a motion from the 
Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 

Marcanti, the Board unanimously continued regular item number 2S to the 
January 5, 2016, Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors.   

  

T.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Service 
Agreement No. 101415 with Jean Turney-Shaw, FNP to provide medical 
services on an "as needed" basis to the Gila County Sheriff's Office Jail 



Page 14 of 16 

 

Facility and Juvenile Detention Facility for a period of November 1, 2015, 
through October 31, 2016, with the option to renew the contract term for 

two one-year periods, at an hourly rate of $50.00, with a not to exceed 
amount of $63,000 for the term of the contract.  

 
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd thanked and acknowledged the participants who 
made it possible for this item to be on the agenda today.  He stated that the 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office (GCSO) is required by law to provide medical 
services to detainees in the GCSO Jail Facility and Juvenile Detention Facility.  
Through various recruiting campaigns and salary issues, the GCSO has been 

unable to fill the vacant registered nurse position in Detention Health Services; 
therefore, it has been difficult to solve a long existing problem of attracting 

health care professional to provide services at the jail facility.  The option of 
hiring a locally established, family nurse practitioner, on an as-needed basis is 
a viable option when staffing issues may arise.  He added that at least half of 

the detainees need medical attention multiple times during the day; therefore, 
this is critical and a much needed addition to the operations of the GCSO.  

Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Professional Service Agreement No. 101415. 
 

Item 3 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 

Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Acknowledgment of the certified copy of the Official Canvass of the 
Tri-City Regional Sanitary District's election that was held on November 
3, 2015.  

 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 12 to an Agreement for Energy Wise Low-
Income Weatherization Program Implementation (Contract 

No. 700518523) between Arizona Public Service (APS) and the Gila County 
Division of Community Services, Weatherization Program, whereby APS 

will provide funding in an amount not to exceed $106,429 to be used to 
provide weatherization services to eligible low-income citizens residing in 
Gila County for the period from January 1, 2016, through December 31, 

2016.  
 

C.  Approval to appoint Justices of the Peace Pro Tempore for the period 
January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016, as follows: Payson Regional 
Justice Court - John Perlman, Don Calendar, Paul Larkin, Ronnie 

McDaniel, Paul Julien, Rebecca Baeza, Gary Scales; and Globe Regional 
Justice Court - John Perlman, Don Calendar, Paul Larkin, Ronnie 
McDaniel, Paul Julien, Rebecca Baeza, Gary Scales.  



Page 15 of 16 

 

 
D.  Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report 

submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 

E.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
December 8, 2015, and December 15, 2015.  
 

December 8, 2015 
 
$2,356,989.08 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273849 

through 274017.  
 

December 15, 2015 
 
$361,564.77 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 274018 

through 274121.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
Upon motion by Vice Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action Items 3A – 3E. 

 
Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  

 
There were no comments from the public. 

 
Item 5 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  

 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:16 p.m. 



Page 16 of 16 

 

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



Page 1 of 12 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  December 1, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Steve Sanders led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Byron Mills of the St. John’s Episcopal 
Church in Globe delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Public recognition of four employees for December's "Spotlight on 
Employees" Program, as follows: Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney, 
Celena Cates, and Todd Whitney.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency Services Division Director, invited 
Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney and Celena Cates to join him at the podium; 
he then read aloud letters of nomination so they could be recognized.  He 
stated that Ms. Williams, Ms. Cheney and Ms. Cates worked to promote and 
educate the public on the many health and financial benefits that would be 
associated with the construction of the Pinal Creek Trail.  He exclaimed that 
they exhibited teamwork and an abundance of initiative.  The Pinal Creek Trail 
Health Impact Assessment (HIA) recommendation paper and associated 
promotional material earned the team a first place award for the Statewide 
2015 Health Education Media Maker Yearly Award (HEMMY) from the Arizona 
Public Health Association.  The Gila County Health and Emergency 
Management Department conducted research for an HIA in the Globe 



Page 2 of 12 

 

community.  This HIA is meant to measure the health outcomes, both positive 
and negative, of a proposed project in a community.  The Pinal Creek Trail HIA 
team hosted a community walking event at the site of Globe’s first disc golf 
course.  The event was designed to educate the public on the Pinal Creek Trail 
efforts and the health benefits of getting the recommended amounts of physical 
activity per week.  Nearly 200 people of all ages visited the park, some 
participated in the walking event and others played disc golf.  An onsite bounce 
house provided entertainment for children under the age of ten, while the older 
children accompanied the adults in walking the trails and course.  The 
education booth provided material about the benefits of physical activity and 
the chronic disease rate of Gila County residents.  A story board with Gila 
County specific health statistics, information about the Pinal Creek Trail 
Project, and a summary of the HIA process were displayed for community 
members.  Volunteers from the Gila County Health Department answered 
questions, handed out prizes, and registered participants for the event.   
 
Mr. O’Driscoll then introduced the fourth Spotlight award recipient, Todd 
Whitney, and he stated, “We recently received a letter of praise for Todd 
Whitney’s dedication to customer service and initiative in solving a major 
communications issue in northern Gila County.  The Town of Payson and the 
Rim Country Broadband Team welcomed Todd as an Emergency Management 
team member.  They praised his experience as the Gila County Emergency 
Management Communications Specialist and his ‘can do’ attitude.  Within the 
first two weeks, Todd solved a major problem with Banner Payson Medical 
Center communications during outages.  Banner Payson Medical Center is a 
paperless origination and sends all CT scans to Chicago for review by 
telemedicine.  During the latest 13 hour broadband outage in the Rim Country, 
three patients there at that time incurred the cost of a flight to Phoenix for CT 
scans at a cost of $15,000 each.  Todd’s fast response and initiative have led to 
the addition of satellite Internet capabilities to send any future CT scans during 
outages.  This is just one of the many ideas and solutions that he has brought 
to the table within a short two weeks.  Todd’s passion for customer service 
resulted in a call received from Mr. Lance Porter, CEO of Banner Payson 
Medical Center, giving thanks to Mr. Whitney as a true professional and a 
pleasure to work with.” 
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he has been working with the Gila County 
Emergency Planning Committee with Mr. Whitney, and he thanked Mr. 
Whitney for his hard work and collaboration with other local agencies in setting 
up an emergency disaster relief program in Gila County.  Chairman Pastor 
thanked and congratulated the employees that received this special 
recognition.    
 
At 10:10 a.m., phone connection was lost with Vice-Chairman Martin. 
 



Page 3 of 12 

 

B.  Presentation from Erin Collins and Associates staff updating member 
county boards of supervisors regarding the Arizona Local Government 
Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) Wellness Program and changes in the 
coming program year.  
 
Brandy Rossiano, Worksite Wellness Consultant with Erin Collins and 
Associates, provided a slide presentation with an overview of changes to the 
Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) program for 
2016.  The highlights are as follows: 
 
New Health Risk Assessment (HRA) and scoring system: 

• Results are easy to interpret through a letter grade system 
• Provides objective levels of health measure 
• Compares biometric data to self-reported data 
• Shortened questionnaire 
• Online access 
• Participate in the HRA to earn a $10 per pay period premium waiver 
Paired with: 
• health coaches;  
• Goals set and progress measured over time 
• FitBits 
 

Addition of Nurse Consultations 
• Moderate to high risk employees, as defined by the individual’s HRA 

results, will meet quarterly with a nurse to set and work toward, specific, 
measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-base (S.M.A.R.T.) health 
goals.   

Focus on evidence based measurement 
• Biometrics – self reporting 
• More direct link back to claims data 

FitBit Activity Trackers 
A FitBit is a tool to help motivate movement through daily tracking of your 
habits. Fitbit tracks daily movement, exercise, feed, weight and sleep.   
 
All employees who participate in the HRA can earn a FitBit.  Moderate and high 
risk employees will need to complete their HRA, attend an initial nurse consult 
and set two S.M.A.R.T health goals with the nurse.  Low risk members will 
need to complete their HRA and an online wellness survey.  Upon completion, 
the employee will receive a unique code in order to order a FitBit tracking 
device.  The Sweet Savings Diabetes Program will remain unchanged as well 
the cancer, cardiac, and organ screenings.   
 
Chairman Pastor encouraged all employees to take advantage of the wellness 
programs and thanked Ms. Rossiano for the informative presentation.   



Page 4 of 12 

 

Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of S. 
Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) as shown on Official Map No. 25, Gila 
County Records, and to accept a bid in the amount of $209 from John 
and Barbara Stemm for that portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami 
Street) adjacent to parcel 206-03-175.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, provided information that on 
April 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved staff’s request to begin the 
process to dispose of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of S. 
Marion Canyon, also known as Miami Street.  Abandonment of this road will 
not deny anyone access to private property in the area, nor does it serve a 
public purpose; and, no other bids have been received for this portion of road.  
This action would be mutually beneficial to the bidder and the County, as it 
would put this portion of road back on the tax rolls.  He stated that the bid 
submitted by John and Barbara Stemm meets the minimum requirements set 
for the subject portion of the road; therefore, staff recommends accepting the 
bid in the amount of $209.  Chairman Pastor opened the public sale and no 
comments or offers were received from the public; therefore, he closed the 
public sale.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Chairman 
Pastor, the Board accepted a bid in the amount of $209 from John and 
Barbara Stemm for the purchase of a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami 
Street) as shown on Official Map No. 25, Gila County Records.   
 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-04, an 
amendment to the Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance, to allow 
for the establishment of accessory dwelling units in all single family 
residential districts and to delete references to guest houses.   
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director (via ITV) stated that 
during the September 15, 2015, Board of Supervisors’ meeting, a vote on the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-04 was tabled by the Board and remanded to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission for further consideration regarding park 
models being used as accessory dwelling units.  A survey of ten Arizona 
counties was conducted regarding the use of park models as accessory dwelling 
units, and seven counties responded to the survey.  Mr. Gould advised that 
other than in RV parks, Cochise County allows park models as approved 
accessory living quarters which include guest houses and quarters for the ill, 
elderly or disabled, or their caretakers.  Graham County allows park models on 
residential parcels as long as there are no CC&Rs (Covenants, Conditions, and 
Restrictions) restricting them as well as RV parks.  As for use as an accessory 
dwelling, Graham County was not aware of any currently being used as such 



Page 5 of 12 

 

but thought they would be allowed as a temporary caretaker residence.  The 
remaining counties only allow park models in RV parks.  The concern of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and that of Gila County staff is the potential 
liability of allowing park models to be used as permanent dwelling units 
because park models have a tag affixed to the outside of them which states 
that they cannot be used for year round dwelling units.  After consideration, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission has returned the Ordinance with 
references to park models being deleted, but wishes to state that further 
consideration of the Ordinance will be completed; however, at this time they 
are submitting the amendment to the Ordinance as stated above.   Supervisor 
Marcanti stated that he believes it to be a good idea to leave the park models 
out of the Ordinance because of the potential life/safety issues they could 
present.  Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-04, 
an amendment to the Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance, to allow for 
the establishment of accessory dwelling units in all single family residential 
districts and to delete references to guest houses, which was seconded by 
Chairman Pastor.  Chairman Pastor called for the vote on the motion, but prior 
to the vote being taken, Don McDaniel, County Manager, inquired if the motion 
was correct in that references to guest houses were being deleted from 
Ordinance No. 2015-04 to which Mr. Gould clarified that was correct because 
the newly added definition for an Accessory Dwelling Unit includes guest 
houses.  Mr. McDaniel asked Mr. Gould if guest houses were being deleted in 
any specific sections of the Ordinance or if they were being deleted wherever 
mentioned in the Ordinance to which Mr. Gould advised that all references to 
guest houses in the Ordinance were being deleted.  Chairman Pastor then 
called for the vote whereby the motion passed.  (A copy of the Amended 
Ordinance is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
At 10:43 a.m., Chairman Pastor announced that Vice-Chairman Martin re-
joined the meeting via telephone. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the results of the Miami 
Unified School District No. 40 election that was held on November 3, 
2015, in Gila County, Arizona and declare the results official.   
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, reviewed the packet of information containing 
the election results.  Of the 3,165 registered voters, there were 898 total ballots 
that were tabulated for a 28.4% voter turnout, which Mr. Mariscal advised is 
the average voter turnout for special district elections such as this one.  The 
measure passed with 582 votes in favor or 72.84%, and 217 votes in opposition 
or 27.16%.  There was one provisional ballot which was accepted and 
tabulated.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if this election was to allow the Miami Unified School 
District No. 40 Board of Directors to sell the Los Lomas Elementary School 



Page 6 of 12 

 

property.  Mr. Mariscal replied that it is his understanding that the election 
was held for the voters to determine if the District Board of Directors would be 
given authority to sell or lease existing properties that are no longer useful in 
their inventory or to purchase new properties without going out for a vote of the 
public. Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously declared the results official for the Miami 
Unified School District No. 40 election that was held on November 3, 2015.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept an Application and Citizens' 
Petition to begin the process to abandon a portion of Blake, Coplen, and 
Hobart Streets.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that Public Work received an Application and Citizen’s 
petition to abandon a portion of Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Street in Arlington 
Heights, which is just to the west side of City of Globe limits.  Some of the 
roads in this area have been previously abandoned and some of the roads in 
the subdivision have never been constructed due to the topography of the land.  
Staff supports and recommends Board approval to begin this process.  Mr. 
Sanders further clarified that this is a public road in the middle of private 
property and serves no purpose.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously accepted an 
Application and Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon a portion of 
Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Streets.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a purchase requisition to 
Pioneer Title Agency in the amount of $44,956.83 for the purchase of 
three parcels of land in Tonto Basin to be used for right-of-way for the 
Tonto Creek Bridge, and authorize the Chairman’s signature on all 
documents needed to complete the purchase.   
 
Mr. Sanders provided a brief history of the events since April 2009, which have 
transpired with respect to the Tonto Creek Bridge project in Tonto Basin.  He 
stated that the acquisition of these properties is critical in order to finalize the 
design of this project.  Once all right-of-ways have been acquired, the plans can 
be finalized and presented to the Board, and the Public Works Division staff 
can begin applying for federal funds that may be available to assist with the 
construction of the project.  He stated that the cost to obtain these properties is 
minimal in relation to the cost of the entire project.  This project will be paid for 
out of the 2014 ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax Fund.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
approved a purchase requisition to Pioneer Title Agency in the amount of 
$44,956.83 for the purchase of three parcels of land in Tonto Basin to be used 
for right-of-way for the Tonto Creek Bridge, and authorized the Chairman’s 
signature on all documents needed to complete the purchase.   
 



Page 7 of 12 

 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action regarding appointments or 
reappointments of members of the Board of Supervisors to the following 
boards, committees and organizations for calendar year 2016:  1) 
Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office 
Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers; 2) Correctional Officers 
Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office Dispatchers; 3) Public 
Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board; 4) Gila County Board of 
Health; 5) Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee; 6) Central 
Arizona Governments Regional Council; 7) County Supervisors 
Association Legislative Policy Committee; 8) Eastern Arizona Counties 
Organization; 9) San Carlos Apache Tribe Partnership Steering 
Committee; 10) Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico Counties; 11) Gila 
Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee; and 12) Gila 
Community College Industry and Mining Advisory Board.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that each year the Board of 
Supervisors (BOS) appoints its members of the BOS to various other boards, 
committees, and commissions (BCCs) to serve from January 1st through 
December 31st.  In the background section of the staff report attached to this 
agenda item, it shows that last year the Board appointed a BOS member to 11 
different BCCs.  This year one additional committee appointment is being 
added, which is the Gila Community College Industry and Mining Advisory 
Board.  Chairman Pastor asked each Board member if they would like to be 
reappointed to the same BCC as last year to which all members agreed to be 
reappointed, except that Supervisor Marcanti requested to also be appointed to 
the Gila Community College Industry and Mining Advisory Board. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously voted to appoint BOS members to the following BCCs to 
serve for calendar year 2016:  1) Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local 
Board for Sheriff's Office Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers-
Supervisor Pastor; 2) Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for 
Sheriff's Office Dispatchers-Supervisor Pastor; 3) Public Safety Personnel 
Retirement System Local Board-Supervisor Marcanti; 4) Gila County Board of 
Health-Supervisor Pastor; 5) Gila County Local Emergency Planning 
Committee-Supervisor Marcanti; 6) Central Arizona Governments Regional 
Council-Supervisor Pastor; 7) County Supervisors Association Legislative 
Policy Committee-Supervisor Martin; 8) Eastern Arizona Counties 
Organization-Supervisor Martin; 9) San Carlos Apache Tribe Partnership 
Steering Committee-Supervisor Marcanti; 10) Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico 
Counties-Supervisor Martin; 11) Allied Health Care Advisory Committee-
Supervisor Pastor; and, 12) Gila Community College Industry and Mining 
Advisory Board-Supervisor Marcanti.   
 



Page 8 of 12 

 

Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract #ADHS16-098369) with the Arizona Department of Health 
Services to integrate Phase 3 grants (Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family 
Planning, and Maternal and Child Health Services) into one contract 
entitled "Healthy People Healthy Communities."  
 
B.  Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Arizona Community 
Action Association and Gila County Community Services to receive a one-
time lump sum of $7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila County 
Community Services in the operation of the CAP60 case management 
software.  
C.  Approval of the reappointment of Mike Hanich and Peter Oddonetto to 
the Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board for another 4-
year term of office beginning January 1, 2016, through December 31, 
2019.  
 
D.  Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of October 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
H.  Approval of the November 17, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting 
minutes.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
November 3, 2015, November 10, 2015, November 17, 2015, and 
November 24, 2015.  
 
NOVEMBER 3, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Jason Fajardo – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 10/20/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 07/14/14 
NEW HIRES: 



Page 9 of 12 

 

2.  Donald Hayes III – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/09/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Marina Cohn 
3.  Megan Dillon – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 11/09/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jessica Madrid 
4.  David Tavares – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/09/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Cynthia Reid 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Keith Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/20/15 – General Fund  
6.  Amy Farley – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 1 – To Deputy 
Probation Officer 2 – 11/10/15 – State Aid Enhancement Fund  
7.  Beverly Valenzuela – Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk (.48) – 10/06/15 – 
General Fund  
8.  Gabriel Lagunas – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/01/15 – General 
Fund 
9.  Dwight Payne – Sheriff’s Office – IT Support Specialist – 07/21/15 – General 
Fund 
10.  Lowell Brown – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/10/15 – General 
Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
11.  John Garrett – From Community Development – To Health and Emergency 
Services – Environmental Engineer Manager – 11/16/15 – General Fund 
12.  Svanhildur Jafestdottir – From Community Development – To Health and 
Emergency Services – Environmental Engineering Specialist – 11/16/15 – 
General Fund 
REQUEST TO POST: 
13.  Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Jerry M. 
Moore 
 
NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
NEW HIRES: 
1.  Jonathan Bearup – Superior Court – Deputy Court Administrator – 
11/16/15 – General Fund – Replacing Jonathan Bearup 
2.  Audrey Schmitt – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 11/30/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Rhonda Rolf 
3.  Stella Gore – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior 
– 11/16/15 – Immunization Fund – Replacing Debra Blevins 
4.  Manuel Abeyta – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 
11/20/15 – Immunization (.95)/TB (.05) Funds – Replacing Ramona Scales 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  John Scott – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 11/27/15 – Public 
Works Fund  
6.  Arthur Epperson II – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 
Supervisor – 11/18/15 – Public Works Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 



Page 10 of 12 

 

7.  Michael O’Driscoll – Health and Emergency Services – Director of Health 
and Emergency Services – 11/02/15 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes 
8.  Bethany Cheney – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Policy Analyst – 10/19/15 – From Population Health Policy Initiative 
(.50)/Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Ed. (.50) Funds – To 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Ed. Fund – Change in fund codes 
9.  Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency 
Management/Public Health and Emergency Preparedness Manager – 11/02/15 
– Various Funds – Change in fund codes 
REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – Vacated by 
Jessica Palmer  
 
NOVEMBER 17, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Evelyn Guevera – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
11/07/15 – CAP (.40)/GEST(.60) Funds – DOH 08/10/15 
2.  Stephanie Dean – Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – 
10/31/15 – Library District Fund – DOH 10/04/12 
3.  Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/13/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 04/14/14 
4.  Ramon Garcia – Probation – Chief Deputy Probation Officer – 11/30/15 – 
General (.80)/Adult Intensive Probation Supervision (.20) Funds – DOH 
08/26/85 
NEW HIRES: 
5.  Eric Dawson – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – 11/23/15 - 
General Fund – Replacing Michael Lorka 
6.  Roy Bruno – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 11/23/15 - General 
Fund – Replacing Emelle Silvers  
7.  Kristin Hulbert – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 
11/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing Sally Denny 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
8.  Emily Leverance – Probation – Grant Project Assistant – 12/15/15 – 
Juvenile Evening/Weekend Resources Center Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
9.  Marion R. Barajas – Public Works – From Building Maintenance Technician 
– To Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 11/23/15 - Facilities 
Management Fund – Replacing William McDaniel 
OTHER ACTIONS 
10.  Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 11/24/15 – 
General Fund – Extend temporary employment an additional week 
11.  Frank Gonzales - Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 01/05/16 
– General Fund – Extend temporary employment an additional week 
REQUEST TO POST: 



Page 11 of 12 

 

12.  Community Development – Director of Community Development – Vacated 
by Robert Gould 
13.  Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – Vacated by 
Stephanie Dean 
14.  Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator Senior – Vacated 
by David Slaughter  
 
NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Rebecca Guadiana – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician 
– 11/20/15 – General Fund – DOH 05/19/03 
2.  Nichelle Ridenour – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
11/06/15 – Court Appointed Special Advocate(.50)/Court Improvement 
Project(.50) Funds – DOH 12/22/14 
NEW HIRES: 
3.  Laura Real – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 
11/30/15 – General Fund – Replacing Linda Lemon 
4.  Melanie Sabbatino-Tackett – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
11/30/15 - Court Appointed Special Advocate (.50)/Court Improvement Project 
(.50) Funds – Replacing Nichelle Ridenour 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
5.  Christine Lopez – Community Development – Temporary Administrative 
Clerk – 11/30/15 – General Fund 
REQUEST TO POST: 
6.  Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – New 
position 
 
J.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of November 2, 2015, 
through November 6, 2015; November 9, 2015, through November 13, 
2015; and, November 16, 2015, through November 20, 2015.  
 
K.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
November 24, 2015, and December 1, 2015.  
November 24, 2015 
 
$2,226,082.04 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273624 
through 273784.   
 
December 1, 2015 
 
$119,818.90 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273785 
through 273848.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 



Page 12 of 12 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action Items 5A – 5K. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:57 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



Page 1 of 10 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 24, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
There was no County attorney present. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Eric Mariscal led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion regarding establishing a partnership between 
the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County and Gila County 
government to make application and promote the designation of the 
Central Arizona Transformation Corridor Promise Zone.   
 
Cliff Potts, President of the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County 
(IDA) Board of Directors, thanked the Board of Supervisors for the opportunity 
to present information on this topic and he acknowledged the following IDA 
Board members who were present in the audience:  Stan Gibson and Tim 
Humphrey.  He then asked Sandy Palmer, IDA Administrative Manager, to 
proceed with the presentation.     
 
Ms. Palmer advised that in 2013, the federal government established an 
initiative to designate a number of high-poverty urban, rural and tribal 
communities as Promise Zones, where they would partner with and invest in 
communities to accomplish the following goals:  create jobs, leverage private 
investment, increase economic activity, expand educational opportunities, and 
reduce violent crime.  This year, the IDA announced its interest in pursuing the 



Page 2 of 10 
 

application process to establish a Promise Zone designation for the Central 
Arizona Transformation Corridor which includes Superior, Globe, Miami, San 
Carlos and Canyon Day on the San Carlos Indian Reservation, Hayden, 
Winkelman, Young/Pleasant Valley, and Tonto Basin.  This is the third and 
final year for Promise Zone designation.  The Promise Zone designation 
partners the federal government with local leaders who are addressing multiple 
community revitalization challenges in a collaborative way and have 
demonstrated a commitment to results.  Promise Zone designees will receive: 
 

• Opportunity to engage Five AmeriCorps VISTA member in the Promise 
Zone 

• A federal liaison assigned to assist with navigating federal programs 
• Priority for certain competitive federal programs and technical assistance 

from participating agencies 
• Promise Zone tax incentives, if enacted by Congress. 

 
AmeriCorps VISTA  
VISTA members will assist with coordinating efforts, overcoming obstacles, 
launching program/initiatives, and administrative duties throughout the 
Promise Zone region. 
Bonus Points 
Bonus points range from 5 to 50 points, each federal department determines 
their own point system. 
Federal Liaisons 
Each federal department will assign a point of contact to help the Promise Zone 
region identify and apply for grants and navigate federal hurdles.  
 
Altogether, this package of assistance will help local leaders accelerate efforts 
to revitalize their communities.  The Promise Zone designation is for a term of 
10 years, and may be extended as necessary to capture the full term of tax 
incentives, if enacted by Congress.  In 2016, 5 urban, 1 rural and 1 tribal 
designation will be awarded.  To date, 9 urban, 2 rural and 2 tribal 
communities have received a Promise Zone designation.  By the end of 2016, 
there will be a total of 20 Promise Zone designations across the United States.  
The Promise Zone must be comprised of a contiguous geographical region that 
meets the poverty threshold requirements set forth by the Promise Zone 
Initiative.  The Central Arizona Transformation Corridor will apply for a rural 
designation.  The Rim Country (northern Gila County) was not included in this 
application because the median household income is too high; however, if the 
Promise Zone is designated, the IDA has offered to revise the application to 
include as much of northern Gila County as possible.  The San Carlos Apache 
Tribe will be a part of the rural designation, yet continue to function 
independently as a Sovereign Nation.   
 
Ms. Palmer then reviewed the governing structure of the Promise Zone, and 
stated that regional transformation requires a team effort which will be 



Page 3 of 10 
 

comprised of representatives from each partner to include key stakeholders in 
education, housing, economic development, health and human services, and 
drug and violent crime.  Focus groups will meet with federal department 
liaisons monthly to devise and implement programs and initiatives.  The IDA 
will apply for the Promise Zone designation as the lead applicant, which 
includes the duties of: writing the application, coordinating monthly meetings, 
keeping meeting minutes, communicating with liaisons and partners, and 
administrative and reporting duties as set forth by the Promise Zone.  In order 
to demonstrate sustainability and financial feasibility, the application requires 
a narrative outlining the budget projection for funding project coordination for 
the first 5 years of designation.  The IDA needs to show financial commitment 
from Promise Zone partners to sustain the Promise Zone Program for up to 5 
years or until grant funds cover related costs.  The federal departments 
reviewing applications must ensure the Promise Zone designation will be 
awarded to a region that will utilize the full potential of the Promise Zone 
Initiative for the entire 10 year term.  The IDA has been receiving the 
mentorship and the technical assistance training from federal departments for 
several months; therefore, it would be a good steward of the Promise Zone 
funding.   
 
One of the requirements in the application is to make sure a financial 
commitment from Promise Zone partners is received until grant funds are 
received.  The application stated the financial commitment to be for 5 years; 
however, the IDA believes the grant funds will be received before that time.  Ms. 
Palmer stated that it is hard to get a financial commitment from impoverished 
areas; however, those areas bring demographics and statistics to the table.  
Also, the Promise Zone designation is highly coveted; therefore, it will be 
fiercely competitive to receive the last rural designation.  Consequently, the IDA 
and the County, which may have more cash flow to commit to the financial 
requirements, would be obliged to provide the financial commitment required 
for the Promise Zone application.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked the names of the rural designees.  Ms. Palmer 
could not recall the exact designation, but she named the Choctaw Tribe in 
South Dakota and North Carolina as being recipients.  She added that once the 
designation is given, the IDA would not be in competition with other rural and 
tribal designations.  As for this particular application, the competition is with 
multiple submissions from around the country.  Vice-Chairman Martin also 
asked for the number of applications that were submitted, to which Ms. Palmer 
stated that, to her knowledge, approximately 50 applications have been 
submitted.  She added that last year, Phoenix, Tucson and Mesa applied for an 
urban designation and they were all turned down.  Ms. Palmer advised that the 
reviewer is trying to “get the biggest bang for their buck,” so it was advised that 
the San Carlos Apache Tribe be included in the application as they are a small 
tribe.  Vice-Chairman Martin asked Ms. Palmer to explain the difference 
between a small tribe and a large tribe because she believes the San Carlos 
Apache Tribe to be a larger tribe.  She then asked if it would be more beneficial 



Page 4 of 10 
 

to not only include the San Carlos Apache Tribe in the application, but to also 
include the Tonto Apache Tribe.  Ms. Palmer liked Vice-Chairman Martin’s 
suggestion and stated that she would ask if both Tribes could be included in 
the application.  She commented that the San Carlos Apache Tribe’s 
application was turned down last year, so that is the reason partnering with 
that Tribe was mentioned.  Chairman Pastor stated that Canyon Day was 
included in the Central Arizona Transformation Corridor where members of the 
White Mountain Apache Tribe live, so he asked if they were contacted.  Ms. 
Palmer affirmed that Tribe was contacted but because no one responded to her 
phone calls and emails, she had to move on without them to meet certain 
application deadlines.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if Gisela could be 
included.  Ms. Palmer replied that Gisela could possibly be included if/when 
the designation is received.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked for the dollar amount that Gila County is 
expected to commit.  Ms. Palmer referred to another entity that was awarded a 
Promise Zone rural designation whereby their commitment was $110,000 per 
year for 5 years that was split between 3 entities.  Her expectation is that the 
IDA and Gila County would each commit $25,000 per year for 5 years; 
however, she believes the commitment would be necessary for not more than 2 
years because it is expected to receive grant funds sooner than 5 years.  Ms. 
Palmer acknowledged that she may be questioned about a lower financial 
commitment, and she stated, “Really and truly, if you’re applying for 10 grants 
in the first year and you have the bonus points, you’re going to be awarded and 
there is a 12% administrative fee built into each grant.”  Vice-Chairman Martin 
expressed a concern that the lower amount may affect the application.  Ms. 
Palmer feels that the amount of $110,000 was initially set to make sure that 
the entity applying for the designation is fully committed to “doing something 
and not putting that designation on the shelf,” so she is not concerned with a 
lower amount.  The Board agreed that the local tribes need to be included in 
the conversation, and that the Board would like to see a financial commitment 
from the local tribes to the Promise Zone Program.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that he appreciated the presentation and that he didn’t 
have a problem with moving forward with the adoption of a resolution in 
support of this effort.  Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that staff would 
work with the IDA to get a Memorandum of Understanding or a Board 
resolution of support on a Board agenda, perhaps as soon as the Board’s 
December 15th meeting.   
 
Mr. Potts stated that with Board support it would be possible for the IDA to 
continue to garner support from other entities in the region.  It would also be 
possible to reach both the north and south areas of Gila County with programs 
that target the specifics needs of each area.  Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. 
Potts and Ms. Palmer for the presentation.   
 



Page 5 of 10 
 

B.  Information/Discussion regarding converting six (6) Rules currently 
contained in the Merit System Rules and Policies (Probationary 
Employment Period; Standards of Conduct; Personnel Commission; 
Performance Appraisals; Disciplinary Actions; and, Grievance Process) to 
policies for inclusion in the Countywide Policy Manual.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Countywide Policy Review Committee is 
comprised Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Shelley McPherson, 
Human Resources & Risk Management Director; Jeff Hessenius, Finance 
Director; Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and himself.  The Committee 
has been working on the Countywide policy manual for approximately 4 years.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if there had been any employee input in the policy 
discussions.  Mr. McDaniel stated that previously when staff was asked to 
include employees in the discussions with regard to revising policies, it was a 
different process whereby the goal was to revise the County’s Merit System 
Rules and Policies; however, the present goal is to convert the Merit System 
Rules and Policies into policies.   
 
Ms. McPherson stated that the content of the Merit System Rules and Policies 
have not been completely changed in this process, but rather they have been 
brought up to Human Resources’ (H.R.) best practices.  Changes have also 
been made to antiquated terms in order to bring the policies up to date with 
changes in federals laws with regard to the Department of Labor and the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to references in the policies to “Appointing 
Authority” as he did not see any definition for that term.  Ms. McPherson 
replied that Merit System Rule No. 1 contains the definitions which are used 
throughout the Merit System Rules and Policies, and they remain unchanged 
at this point.  The definition of Appointing Authority is as follows:  The 
“Appointing Authority” is the single administrative or executive head of a 
County department, office, authority, or governmental budget unit operated 
within the governmental structure of Gila County, or designee of same.  She 
also clarified that the “Director” in the Merit System Rules definitions is the 
H.R. Director.   
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-215 - Probationary Employment Period 
Chairman Pastor expressed concern regarding extending the probationary 
period if an employee is absent for more than two weeks during the 
probationary period.  Ms. McPherson stated that if there has been an absence 
for more than two weeks at a time and should a serious event occur; every 
opportunity is provided to the employee to be judged on their entire 
probationary period.  She added that the absence should not take away from 
the employee’s training period.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin added that it may be helpful for employees to provide 
feedback regarding policies through the County’s Intranet.  She added that it’s 



Page 6 of 10 
 

good for the County departments to be able to determine if the employee is a 
good fit as well, and that the County shouldn’t change a job to fit the employee 
and that it is important to foster communication.  Ms. McPherson stated that 
she has made an effort and will continue to go to the different departments on 
a regular basis to ensure employees understand the policies and she thinks 
there has been a lot more participation with regard to feedback given by 
employees.  She added that H.R. is working on implementing monthly training 
for supervisors and appointing authorities which will be beneficial to 
communication as well.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that some departments have a lot of employee 
turnover.  Ms. McPherson advised that she is very involved in visiting elected 
offices and County departments so that employees know that she and her staff 
are accessible and ready to help.  As an example, she recently assisted the 
Assessor’s Office with some personnel issues as that office had a high employee 
turnover rate.  Since that time, the Assessor and her employees are much 
happier.  She added that one of the reasons that the County experiences a 
higher employee turnover rate is because it’s a rural community.  She also 
stated that, nationally, the average length of time employees stay at one job has 
shortened to only 1½ years.  H.R. is working to make Gila County a more 
attractive employer.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if there may be a conflict in Policy No. BOS-HRS-
610, Section IV (B) (4) (d) which states, “Except as otherwise provided in these 
policies, a demoted employee shall not be required to serve a probationary 
period in the position to which demoted.” Ms. McPherson stated that H.R. 
would take another look at that statement.   
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-120 - Standards of Conduct 
Chairman Pastor inquired if this policy supersedes the Code of Conduct for the 
judicial employees.  Mr. McDaniel replied that, to his knowledge, no County 
policy shall supersede the Code of Conduct for the courts.  It is his 
understanding that, for the most part, court employees adhere to the County’s 
Merit Rules and Policies, so he doesn’t perceive there will be any issues with 
these proposed changes.  Chairman Pastor stated that there may be a conflict 
and it would be wise to exchange ideas regarding policies to ensure that there 
are no conflicts or areas which need clarification.  Ms. McPherson commented 
that H.R. has a good working relationship with the courts and that 
communication is very open with regard to policies and any other issues.  H.R. 
has received requests from the courts for professional opinions with regard to 
discipline and she stated that policy issues are taken on a case by case basis.  
She added that monthly meetings have been held with court personnel, and to 
date all issues that have surfaced have been resolved.  Chairman Pastor 
inquired if these policies will supersede any departmental policies.  Ms. 
McPherson believes that the Merit System Rules and Policies and those that 
have been converted into policies will supersede departmental policies, with the 
possible exception of the courts.   



Page 7 of 10 
 

Chairman Pastor referred to Section IV (A) which states, “Employees shall be 
courteous, considerate and prompt in dealing with and serving the public and 
other Gila County employees.”  He hopes that this message will be conveyed to 
all employees throughout the County.  Ms. McPherson stated that this is an 
area that will be addressed next year as customer service training will be 
provided to employees.  Chairman Pastor then referred to Section IV (B) which 
states, “Employees shall not conduct themselves in a manner that will bring 
discredit or embarrassment to the County, both on and off the job.”  He added 
that this rule applies to statements posted by employees on social media, to 
which Ms. McPherson agreed.  He wanted this message to especially be 
conveyed during new employee orientations to which Vice-Chairman Martin 
agreed.   
 
The Board held additional discussion regarding employees doing side-jobs 
outside of work.  Any employee doing work outside of their job at the County 
must fill out a form and file it with the H.R. Department.  It was also 
mentioned that any literature which does not pertain to work is not allowed to 
be distributed at the work place; this also includes printed information that 
someone from the public may ask to be posted.   
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission 
Chairman Pastor mentioned that under Section II. - Applicability, the policy 
states, “The policy applies to all classified Gila County employees.”  He 
questioned whether that meant all employees.  Ms. McPherson replied that she 
would take another look at that statement to determine those employees that 
would be included in this policy.  He then inquired as to the process to appoint 
members to the Personnel Commission.  Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, 
explained that all department heads have been designated as staff liaisons for 
the boards, commissions and committees that fall under the responsibilities of 
their department.  Ms. McPherson is the staff liaison for the Personnel 
Commission.  The staff liaison has the responsibility to notify Ms. Sheppard 
whenever someone’s term of office is about to expire or if a vacancy occurs.  
Ms. Sheppard would then notify the Board members to consider reappointing 
an individual or to appoint someone new.  The name of the candidate would 
then be placed on an upcoming Board agenda for the Board to vote on the 
appointment.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if there is a process for the 
Board to critique the individuals to be considered for appointment as she feels 
it is important to ensure that the person being appointed has the knowledge 
and expertise, and has the best interests of the County in mind.   
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to the term of office for the Personnel 
Commission and Ms. McPherson replied that each member shall hold office for 
a term of 4 years or until his successor is appointed and qualified.  The terms 
of office are also staggered terms.  Vice-Chairman Martin further clarified that 
most times an appointed board, commission or committee member serves more 
than one term of office.  She likes the idea of having two or three people to 
choose from and to have H.R. and Administration “weigh in” on the selection 
process.   



Page 8 of 10 
 

Chairman Pastor stated that he has not received an annual report from the 
Personnel Commission.  Ms. McPherson stated that she has asked that 
question in the H.R. Department and an annual report was not received there 
either.  Should the Board of Supervisors decide to adopt this policy, Ms. 
McPherson advised that it will be disseminated to County employees and the 
Personnel Commission.  Chairman Pastor commented that the policy requires 
that at least 1 member of the Commission shall have prior work experience in 
the law enforcement or probation field.  Ms. McPherson added that the policy 
also requires that the Commission shall elect 1 of its members as the 
Chairperson on an annual basis, changing who serves as Chairperson each 
year.    
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-405 - Performance Appraisals  
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to the person(s) who conducts the County 
Manager’s performance appraisal.  Ms. McPherson replied that the Board of 
Supervisors would conduct Mr. McDaniel’s performance appraisal.   
 
Chairman Pastor asked for clarification regarding the applicability to which Ms. 
McPherson stated that this policy applies to all Gila County employees except 
temporary employees.  Chairman Pastor expressed his appreciation that an 
employee has the option to have their performance appraisal reviewed at a 
higher level.   
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-610 - Disciplinary Actions 
Chairman Pastor was pleased that progressive discipline has been defined and 
developed into a policy.  Ms. McPherson stated that while it is good to have a 
progressive policy in place, there may be times, based on the severity of the 
action, that it may not be possible to follow the policy, normally because of 
incidence of violence or something of that nature.  Ms. McPherson stated that 
the County policies will not supersede the courts’ policies.  She believes that 
H.R. has a good working relationship with court staff in resolving disciplinary 
actions.  Chairman Pastor inquired as to the general procedures regarding 
discrimination and he inquired as to veterans not being discriminated against 
in the application process.  Ms. McPherson stated that veterans are given a 
small preference and definitely are not discriminated against.  There was also 
discussion about medical marijuana and Ms. McPherson stated that according 
to the national H.R. best practices theory, medical marijuana will become no 
different than when alcohol was legalized.  She added that an employee cannot 
be under the influence of medical marijuana, prescription drugs, or alcohol 
while on the job whereby such use would impair the employee’s ability to work 
effectively.  Each incident will have to be addressed on a case by case basis.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that if an employee is authorized to use a 
medically prescribed drug and it negatively impacts their job, she believes that 
something may have to be done to correct that issue or maybe alter their job 
while they are under medical authorization to be using drugs.  Ms. McPherson 
replied that the law would determine whether or not an accommodation could 



Page 9 of 10 
 

be made.  She added that according to privacy laws, the County cannot require 
employees to provide a list of their medication; however, if there is an incident 
that occurs, information may be required to be disclosed and it will be 
addressed on a case by case basis.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if grieving and depression are taken into 
consideration with regard to an employee’s inefficiency or incompetency.  Ms. 
McPherson stated that tragic events which occur in employees’ lives are taken 
into consideration.  She added that the County now has a contract with a 
doctor of psychology to offer counseling to employees, and that H.R. will let the 
department heads and elected officials and their employees know that this 
service is available to employees. 
 
Chairman Pastor questioned the various types of disciplinary action, 
specifically verbal warnings.  He wanted to know if the employee is provided a 
copy of the documentation that is sent to H.R. regarding notification of the 
verbal warning.  Ms. McPherson stated that documentation of a verbal warning 
can be provided in an email, and it is simply to aid the department head in 
keeping documentation in one place.  Vice-Chairman Martin asked if the 
employee has the ability to also send documentation to H.R. to which Ms. 
McPherson replied that the employee can send email documentation to H.R. as 
well.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that if a suspension letter is served on an employee, a 
witness needs to be present which was not previously required.  He also had 
Ms. McPherson explain the reason an employee would be placed on 
administrative leave and the timeframe.   
 
Policy No. BOS-HRS-615 - Grievance Process 
Chairman Pastor wanted assurance that all employees are provided a thorough 
explanation of this policy and related procedures as he believes there are 
employees that don’t understand the process.  Ms. McPherson commented that 
the policy has changed very little.  Many of the Merit System Rules and Policies 
have already been converted into policies; therefore, the references have been 
changed to correspond to the policy instead of a rule accordingly.  He also 
stated that in reference to, “All time frames specified on the form shall be met.  
If the immediate supervisor or department head fail to meet the time frame 
requirements, the employee has the right to take the grievance to the next step.  
If the employee fails to meet the time requirements, the grievance shall be 
deemed abandoned.”  He feels that if the supervisor forgets to proceed to the 
next step, it should fall back on the supervisor more so than the employee 
within reason.  Ms. McPherson stated that there is a time frame that H.R. 
follows and that multiple reminders are sent out to the supervisor and 
employee.  Vice-Chairman Martin asked if there was a way to confirm receipt of 
the reminder.  Ms. McPherson stated that reminder emails are sent with a 
“read receipt.”  If an employee doesn’t have an email address, one of the H.R. 
employees would be sent to deliver the message personally.  She added that 



Page 10 of 10 
 

there hasn’t been a problem getting information to and from employees thus 
far.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she wanted staff to make the changes as 
discussed so they can be presented to the Board for adoption in the near 
future.  Chairman Pastor was hopeful that the final policies will be placed on a 
Board meeting in January 2016.   
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:08 p.m. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3519     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 27, 2015; December 4, 2015; and December
11, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 11-27-15; 12-4-15; and 12-11-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of November 23, 2015, through
November 27, 2015; November 30, 2015, through December 04, 2015;
and, December 07, 2015, through December 11, 2015.

Attachments
Weekly Report
Service Agreement No. 111315-Pueblo Mechanical
Amendment No. 2-Juvenile Detention-HMWS
Amendment No. 1-Sheriff's Office Jail-HMWS
Amendment No. 1-Health Services Immunization-HMWS
Amendment No. 1-Wrangler Plumbing
Amendment No. 1-Caruso Turley Scott
Contract No. 070215-1-Watson Chevrolet
Amendment No. 1-John Perlman
Contract Agreement Form-Contract Extension-SD Crane Builders
Agreement No. 102915-Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
Service Agreement No. 103015-Earthquest Plumbing
Service Agreement No. 111315-1-Little Stinker Septic Service LLC
Professional Services Contract 120115-1 - Sarah Stone
Service Agreement No. 120115-Kachina Heat Transfer





  
Page 1 

 
  

 
COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
November 23, 2015 thru November 27, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

111315 
Pueblo Mechanical 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

111315 
Emergency Jail Boiler 

Repair 

 

 
$3,000.00 

 

 
11-24-15 to 11-30-15 

 
11-24-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Globe jail boiler is not working.  
Contractor shall provide troubleshooting 
and recommendations for repair.  Pricing 
is based on Mohave’s co-op agreement. 
 

 
Healthcare Medical 

Waste Services  
 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Containment of Medical 
Waste Agreement  

 

 

 
$898.92  

 

 
10-07-15 to 10-06-16 

 
11-24-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Home 
has a need for the containment, 
transportation, treatment of and disposal 
of medical waste.  
 

 
Healthcare Medical 

Waste Services  
 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Containment of Medical 
Waste Agreement  

 

 

 
$1,446.00  

 

 
10-07-15 to 10-06-16 

 
11-24-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office Jail has a 
need for the containment, transportation, 
treatment of and disposal of medical 
waste.  

 
Healthcare Medical 

Waste Services  
 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Containment of Medical 
Waste Agreement  

 

 

 
$1,000.00  

 

 
10-07-15 to 10-06-16 

 
11-24-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Immunization Program, 
through the Division of Health & 
Emergency Management Services, has a 
need for the containment, transportation, 
treatment of and disposal of medical 
waste.  
 

 
082814-2 

Wrangler Plumbing, Inc.  
 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
082814-2 

Emergency & Regular 
Maintenance Plumbing 

Needs 
Payson and Star Valley 

 

 
$2,000.00  

 

 
09-10-15 to 09-09-16 

 
11-24-15 

 
Option to renew for one 

one-year period 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the contract term for one additional year.  
Contractor will perform emergency and 
regular plumbing needs in the Payson 
and Star Valley areas, when requested by 
the County.  This is for issuance of a 
blanket P.O.  

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

November 30, 2015 thru December 04, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

100915 
Caruso Turley Scott, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 100915 

Former NAPA Parts-110 W. 
Main Street-Payson, AZ. 

Structural Review 
 

 

 
N/A 

 

 
11-28-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-01-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform a structural 
review of the building at 110 W. Main 
Street in Payson, AZ. to identify any 
evidence of past or future structural 
problems.  Amendment No. 1 will extend 
the contract term from 11-28-15 to 06-
30-16.  Staff anticipates needing their 
services during the design phase of the 
project. 
  

 
070215-1 

Watson Chevrolet  
 

 

 
Contract No. 070215-1 

Purchase New or Used Full 
Size 4 Door Cross Over 

Vehicle 
(Buick Enclave or equal) 

 

 

 
$43,057.96 

 
12-01-15 to 12-31-15 

 
12-01-15 

 
Expires 

 
An Informal Bid Request was sent out to 
obtain competitive pricing for one new 
or used, full size 4 door, cross over 
vehicle, Buick Enclave or Equal for 
Supervisor Martin. Capital Improvements 
monies will be used for this purchase. 
  
 

 
112613 

John S. Perlman 
Attorney at Law 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 112613 

Between Gila County and 
John Perlman, Attorney at 

Law 
 

 

 
$30,000.00 

 

 
12-12-15 to 12-11-17 

 
12-01-15 

 
Expires 

 
Attorney Perlman serves as an 
independent contractor as Attorney for 
the Public Fiduciary and is responsible 
for generating pleadings pertinent to 
Guardianship, Conservatorship and 
Probate matters.  The contract expires on 
December 11, 2015. Amendment No. 1 
will allow for a two year extension to Mr. 
Perlman’s contract term. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
December 07, 2015 thru December 11, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

ADSPO12-013788 
SD Crane Builders 

 
Contract Agreement 

Amendment No. 1 – Jail 
Kitchen Renovations 
Walls and Flooring 

 
 

 

 
N/A 

 

 
12-04-15 to 12-31-15 

 
12-09-15 

 
Expires 

 
Gila County is utilizing the State JOC 
contract with SD Crane Builders on the 
Jail Kitchen Renovation of the walls and 
floors.  The original Notice to Proceed 
allowed for 32 days completion time, 
beginning November 02, 2015, which 
would make the project completion date 
December 03, 2015.  Due to conflicts 
with the contractor and jail 
administration staffing schedules, the 
project got off to a late start, but is 
proceeding smoothly now.  Facilities 
would like to extend the project 
completion date to December 31, 2015 to 
allow ample time for completion. 
   
  

 
102915 

Globe-Miami Regional 
Chamber of Commerce 

 
Agreement No. 102915 

Between Gila County and 
Globe-Miami Regional 
Chamber of Commerce 

 

 

 
$30,000.00 

 

 
12-09-15 to 06-30-16 

 

 
12-09-15 

 
Expires 

 
Each year Gila County budgets for an 
Economic Development Grant for the 
Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of 
Commerce to assist in their advertising 
costs to promote Gila County.    

 
103015 

Earthquest Plumbing 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

103015 
Remove Existing Two 

Commercial Natural Gas 
Water Heaters and Install 

New Water Heaters 
Provided by Gila County at 

the Juvenile Detention 
Facility 

 

 

 
$3,898.02  

 

 
12-09-15 to 12-31-15 

 

 
12-09-15 

 
Expires 

 
The two existing hot water heaters at the 
Juvenile Detention Facility are old and 
need to be replaced.  In an effort to 
replace the existing hot water heaters as 
economically as possible, staff first 
obtained quotes from five vendors for 
the purchase of the water heaters.  The 
County purchased the two new hot 
waters at a cost of $14,079.99.  Staff then 
issued a request for quote for the 
installation of the new water heaters.  
Only one contractor submitted a price – 
Earthquest Plumbing. 
 

 



  
Page 4 

 
  

December 07, 2015 thru December 11, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

111315-1 
Little Stinker Septic 

Service, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

111315-1 
Porta-Jon Rental for 

Payson Courthouse Stairs 
Remodel Project 

Payson Courthouse 
 

 

 
$350.00  

 

 
11-16-15 to 11-30-15 

 

 
12-09-15 

 
Expires 

 
The County needed to rent 2 portable 
toilets at the Payson Courthouse due to 
the restrooms being inaccessible during 
the stair remodel from 11/16/15 
through 11/18/15. 
 

 
120115-1 

Sarah Stone 

 

 
Professional Services 

Contract No. 120115-1 
Legal Services 

 

 

 
$16,135.00 

 

 
12-17-15 to 02-29-16 

 
12-09-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one-month 
periods 

 
Gila County Superior Court provides 
criminal representation for indigent 
citizens. Due to unavailability of a regular 
attorney, additional coverage is 
temporarily needed. 
  

 
120115 

Kachina Heat Transfer, 
Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

120115 
Radiator Repair on 

Caterpillar Motor Grader 
Equipment No. J-11 
Consolidated Roads 

 

 
$998.32 

 

 
12-09-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-09-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Timber Region has equipment that 
needs radiator work done from time to 
time. 
 
They have used Kachina Heat Transfer 
services for several years and have had 
good results with workmanship and 
customer service. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















































































































































   

ARF-3535     Executive Session Item      7. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 01/05/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January
2012-/January
2013

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Consideration of the claim of Carson Construction Inc. regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road
Construction Project against Gila County.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4), the
Board may vote to go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney regarding this item
and to discuss or consult with the attorney of the public body in order to consider its position and
instruct its attorney regarding the public body's position in order to avoid or resolve litigation. 

Background Information
Carson Construction Inc. received the contract to complete the Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction
Project in 2012.  Carson claims that it was delayed in the project because of issues involving utility
easements which caused it to idle equipment and incur financial losses in the amount of $155,019.00.  

On November 18, 2014, the Board of Supervisors met in Executive Session regarding this issue.  After
reconvening into the Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting, the Board voted to continue this issue to
the December 2, 2014, Regular Meeting, and at that time it will consider voting to go into Executive
Session to discuss this issue.

Evaluation
Gila County needs to attend a mediation session. 

Conclusion
Because Gila County has received this claim, the Board of Supervisors should direct its attorney on
settlement instructions on behalf of Gila County.

Recommendation
The Board of Supervisors should go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) in order to receive legal advice from its attorney regarding this item and to discuss or
consult with the attorney of the public body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorney
regarding the public body's position in order to avoid or resolve litigation. 

Suggested Motion
Move to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) in order to
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding a Notice of Claim from Carson Construction regarding
the Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction Project and to discuss or consult with the attorney of the
public body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorney regarding the public body's
position in order to avoid or resolve litigation.  Then, after executive session has concluded move to
direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in executive session.  (Jefferson Dalton)



Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Gila County Order LL-15-06 - M&M Reno Creek Cafe Liquor License Application
	Att1_LL-15-06 Local Governing Body Recommendation
	Att2_LL-15-06 Affidavit of Posting
	Att3_LL-15-06 Interoffice Memos
	Att4_GC Order LL-15-06 Liquor License Application
	 Item 3.A. - Promise Zone Initiative Memorandum of Understanding
	Att1_Memorandum of Understanding with the IDA for Promise Zone
	Att2_IDA-Promise Zone Overview
	Att3_IDA-Promise Zone PowerPoint Presentation
	 Item 3.B. - Order Calling for a Special Election - Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District
	Att1_Order to Call Election
	Att2_Arizona Revised Statute 48-1016
	Att3_Arizona Revised Statute 16-204
	 Item 3.C. - Victims of Crimes Act Grant - Court Appointed Special Advocate Program of Gila County
	Att1_VOCA Grant Application
	Att2_VOCA Guidelines
	I. Background
	a. Definitions:
	ii. Child is any person under the age of 18 or as otherwise defined by State law.
	iii. Elder Abuse is defined as abuse of vulnerable adults including the mistreatment of older persons through physical, sexual, psychological or physical violence; neglect; or economic exploitation and fraud.
	iv. Federal Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an offense that violates a federal criminal statute or regulation.  Federal crimes also include crimes that occur in an area where the federal government has jurisdiction, such as Indian reservations,...
	v. Native American Tribe/Organization is defined as any tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the US to Native Americans because of their status as...
	vi. Hate Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an act of intimidation, harassment, physical force, or threat of physical force directed against any person, or family, or their property, or advocate, motivated either in whole or in part by hostility b...
	vii. Economic Exploitation and Fraud Victim is defined as an individual victimized by the perpetrators of bogus vacation opportunities, fly-by-night home repair companies, advance fee schemes, mail fraud, computer fraud, health care fraud, insurance f...

	b. Primary Purpose:
	c. Eligible services are further defined:
	i. Crisis Counseling is defined as in-person crisis intervention, emotional support, and guidance and counseling on an individual basis provided by advocates, counselors, mental health professionals or peers.  Such counseling may occur:  a) at the sce...
	ii. Follow-up Contact is defined as in-person contacts, telephone contacts and written communication with the victims to offer individual emotional support, provide empathetic listening, check on victim’s progress, and offer guidance for other-than-cr...
	iii. Therapy is defined as intensive professional psychological and/or psychiatric treatment for individuals, couples, and family members, related to counseling, to provide emotional support in crisis arising from the occurrence of crime.  This includ...
	iv. Crisis Counseling via phone/hotline is defined as telephone contact to provide crisis counseling after a victimization.
	v. Group Treatment/Support is defined as the coordination and provision of supportive group activities.  This includes self-help, peer, social support, drop-in groups, and community crisis intervention in a group setting.
	vi. Shelter/Safe House is defined as short-term and long-term housing and related support services provided to victims and non-offending members of their family following a victimization.
	vii. Information, Referral, and Connection is defined as in-person contacts with the victim, identifying services offered and support available by network and other community agencies, and/or completing linkage (actual personal or telephonic introduct...
	viii. Criminal Justice Support/Advocacy is defined as support, assistance and advocacy provided to crime victims at any stage of the criminal justice process.  Included in this definition are: court related support, i.e. court orientation, court escor...
	ix. Emergency Financial Assistance is defined as the utilization of VOCA or matching funds for security measures (replacement of locks, and temporary repair of doors and windows to prevent revictimization), and payment for taxis, buses, food, shelter ...
	x. Emergency Legal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in filing temporary restraining orders (injunctions and other protective orders), and elder or child abuse petitions.  This does not include criminal prosecution or the use of VOCA funds in t...
	xi. Assistance in Filing Compensation Claims is defined as making victims aware of the availability of crime victim compensation and/or assisting the victim in completing the required forms and in gathering the needed documentation.  (Provision of thi...
	xii. Personal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in securing rights, remedies, and services from other agencies, locating financial support, intervening with employers, creditors and others on behalf of the victim; assistance with filing for los...
	xiii. Telephone Contact (information & referral) is defined as contacts with victims during which time services and available support are identified and provided over the telephone.  This does not include calls during which counseling is the primary f...
	xiv. Other is defined as other VOCA allowable services not previously listed.


	II. Allocation of VOCA Victim Assistance Funds
	III. VOCA Victim Assistance Application Process
	a. Subrecipient Application Process:
	b. Protest of Funding Decisions:
	c. Applicant Organization Eligibility Requirements:
	i. Public Agency or Nonprofit Organization:  Applicant agency must be operated by a public agency or nonprofit organization, or a combination of such agencies or organizations, and provide services to crime victims.
	ii. Record of Effective Services:  Demonstrate a record of providing effective services to crime victims for at least one year.  This includes having the support and approval of its services by the community, a history of providing direct services in ...
	iii. Program Match Requirements:  The purpose of matching contributions is to increase the amount of resources available to the projects supported by grant funds.  Matching contributions of 20 percent (cash or in-kind) of the total cost of each VOCA p...
	iv. Volunteers:  Subrecipient organizations must use volunteers unless the state grantee determines there is a compelling reason to waive this requirement.  A “compelling reason” may be a statutory or contractual provision concerning liability or conf...
	v. Promote Community Efforts to Aid Crime Victims:  Promote, within the community, coordinated public and private efforts to aid crime victims.  Coordination may include, but is not limited to, serving on state, federal, local, or Native American task...
	vi. Help Victims Apply for Compensation Benefits:  Such assistance must include notifying crime victims of the availability of crime victim compensation, and/or assisting victims with application forms and procedures, obtaining necessary documentation...
	vii. Inform Victims of their Legal Rights:  To notify victims of their legal rights (A.R.S. 13-4401, et seq.) and offer to connect the victim with a representative from the prosecutor’s or county attorney’s office if the victim so chooses.
	viii. Comply with Federal Rules Regulating Grants:  Subrecipients must comply with the applicable provisions of the VOCA Guidelines and OJP Financial Guide, effective edition, which include maintaining appropriate programmatic and financial records th...
	ix. Ensure Access to Federally Assisted Programs:  Federal laws prohibit recipients (and subrecipients) of federal financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability or sex in funded programs or...
	Certain VOCA subrecipients are required to provide civil rights certification to the US Department of Justice with a copy to DPS-VOCA.  (Refer to http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/eeop.htm to determine your agency’s EEO requirement.)
	x. Maintain Civil Rights Information:  Subrecipient agencies must maintain statutorily required civil rights statistics on victims served by race, national origin, sex, age, and disability; and permit reasonable access to its books, documents, papers,...
	xi. Comply with State Criteria:  Subrecipients must abide by state eligibility or service criteria as established by DPS-VOCA including submission of monthly financial reports, quarterly statistical and programmatic reports, client feedback surveys ut...
	xii. Services to Victims of Federal Crimes:  Subrecipients must provide services to victims of federal crimes on the same basis as victims of state/local crimes.
	xiii. No Charge to Victims for VOCA-funded Services:  Subrecipients must provide services to crime victims, at no charge, through the VOCA-funded project.  The purpose of the VOCA victim assistance grant program is to provide services to all crime vic...
	xiv. Client-Counselor and Research Information Confidentiality:  Subrecipients are required to maintain confidentiality of client-counselor information, as required by state and federal law.
	xv. Confidentiality of Research Information:  Except as otherwise provided by federal law, no recipient of monies under VOCA shall use or reveal any research or statistical information furnished under this program by any person and identifiable to any...

	d. Eligible Subrecipient Organizations:
	i. Criminal Justice Agencies:  Law enforcement agencies, prosecutors’ offices, courts, corrections departments, and probation and paroling authorities are eligible to receive VOCA funds to help pay for victim services.  For example, prosecutor-based v...
	ii. Faith-Based Organizations:  Such organizations may receive VOCA funds but must ensure that services are offered to all crime victims without regard to religious affiliation and that the receipt of services is not contingent upon participation in a...
	iii. State Crime Victim Compensation Agencies:  Compensation programs, including both centralized and decentralized programs, may receive VOCA assistance funds if they offer direct services to crime victims that extend beyond the essential duties of c...
	iv. Hospitals and Emergency Medical Facilities:  Such organizations must offer crisis counseling, support groups, and/or other types of victim services.
	v. Others:  State and local public agencies such as mental health service organizations, state/local public child and adult protective services, state grantees, legal services agencies and programs with a demonstrated history of advocacy on behalf of ...

	e. Ineligible Recipients of VOCA Funds:
	i. Federal agencies:  This includes US Attorneys Offices and FBI Field Offices.  Receipt of VOCA funds would constitute an augmentation of the federal budget with money intended for state agencies.  However, private non-profit organizations that opera...
	ii. In-Patient Treatment Facilities:  For example, those designed to provide treatment to individuals with drug, alcohol, and/or mental health-related conditions.

	f. Services, Activities, and Costs at the Subrecipient Level
	i. Allowable Costs for Direct Services:  The following is a listing of services, activities, and costs that are eligible for support with VOCA victim assistance grant funds within a subrecipient’s organization:
	1. Immediate Health and Safety:  Those services which respond to the immediate emotional and physical needs (excluding medical care) of crime victims such as crisis intervention; accompaniment to hospitals for medical examinations; hotline counseling;...
	2. Mental Health Assistance:  Those services and activities that assist the primary and secondary victims of crime in understanding the dynamics of victimization and in stabilizing their lives after a victimization such as counseling, group treatment,...
	3. Assistance with Participation in Criminal Justice Proceedings:  In addition to the cost of emergency legal services noted above in section 1. “Immediate Health and Safety”, there are other costs associated with helping victims participate in the cr...
	4. Forensic Examinations:  For sexual assault victims, forensic exams are allowable costs only to the extent that other funding sources (such as state compensation or private insurance or public benefits) are unavailable or insufficient and, such exam...
	5. Costs Necessary and Essential to Providing Direct Services:  This includes pro-rated costs of rent (mortgage costs are not allowed), telephone service, transportation costs for victims to receive services, emergency transportation costs that enable...
	6. Special Services:  Services to assist crime victims with managing practical problems created by the victimization such as acting on behalf of the victim with other service providers, creditors, or employers; assisting the victim to recover property...
	7. Personnel Costs:  Costs that are directly related to providing direct services, such as staff salaries and fringe benefits, including professional malpractice insurance; the cost of advertising to recruit VOCA-funded personnel; and the cost of trai...
	8. Restorative Justice:  Opportunities for crime victims to meet with perpetrators, if such meetings are requested or voluntarily agreed to by the victim and have possible beneficial or therapeutic value to crime victims.



	g. Other Allowable Costs and Services:
	i. Skills Training for Staff:  VOCA funds designated for training are to be used exclusively for developing the skills of direct service providers including paid staff and volunteers, so that they are better able to offer quality services to crime vic...
	1. Victim Compensation Training:  Subrecipients will designate a victim compensation coordinator within their agency.  This coordinator must have received victim compensation training from their county attorney’s office or completed the Arizona Crimin...
	(http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/victim/cbttraining.aspx). If this training has not been received, subrecipients will ensure training has been received within 90 days from the start of the subgrant award agreement or 90 days after re-assignment of new ...
	2. Victims’ Rights Training:  Non-criminal justice agencies will ensure that all DPS VOCA-funded staff and their first line supervisor have received victims’ rights training from the Arizona Attorney General’s Office or another criminal justice agency.
	3. Civil Rights and Non-discrimination Training:  Subrecipients will designate a Civil Rights Contact Person within their agency.  This person must complete the on-line civil rights training program developed by the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Offi...

	ii. Training Materials:  VOCA funds can be used to purchase materials such as books, training manuals, and videos for direct service providers, within the VOCA-funded organization, and can support the costs of a trainer for in-service staff developmen...
	iii. Training Related Travel:  VOCA funds can support costs such as travel, meals, and lodging to attend skills building conference training within Arizona or a similar geographic area so that travel costs will be minimal.  Rental car costs may be all...
	iv. Equipment and Furniture:  VOCA funds may be utilized to purchase furniture and equipment that supports or enhances direct services to crime victims, as demonstrated by the VOCA subrecipient.  VOCA funds cannot support the entire cost of an item th...
	v. Purchasing or Leasing Vehicles:  VOCA funds may be used to purchase or lease vehicles if it can be demonstrated to DPS-VOCA that such an expenditure is essential to delivering services to crime victims.
	vi. Advanced Technologies:  At times, technology may increase a subrecipient’s ability to reach and serve crime victims.  For example, satellite Orders of Protection locations have dramatically improved the efficiency of criminal justice participation...
	vii. Contracts for Professional Services:  VOCA funds generally should not be used to support contracted services, and subrecipients are prohibited from using a majority of VOCA funds for contracted services.  Principal activities of the project may n...
	viii. Operating Costs:  Examples of allowable operating costs include supplies; equipment use fees, when supported by usage logs; printing, photocopying, and postage; brochures which describe available services; and books and other victim related mate...
	ix. Supervision of Direct Service Providers:  VOCA funds may be used for supervision of direct service providers when it is determined by DPS-VOCA personnel that such supervision is necessary and essential to providing direct services to crime victims...
	x. Repair and/or Replacement of Essential Items:  VOCA funds may be used for repair and replacement of items that contribute to maintaining a healthy and/or safe environment for crime victims, such as a furnace in a shelter.  Each request for VOCA fun...
	xi. Public Presentations:  VOCA funds may be used to support presentations that are made in schools, community centers, or other public forums, and that are designed to identify crime victims and provide or refer them to needed services.  Specifically...

	h.  Non-Allowable Costs and Activities:
	i. Lobbying and Administrative Advocacy:  VOCA funds cannot support victim legislation or administrative reform, whether conducted directly or indirectly.
	ii. Perpetrator Rehabilitation and Counseling:  Subrecipients cannot use VOCA funds to offer rehabilitative services to offenders.  Likewise, VOCA funds cannot support services to incarcerated individuals, even when the service pertains to the victimi...
	iii. Needs Assessments, Surveys, Evaluations, and Studies:  VOCA program funds may not be used to pay for efforts conducted by individuals, organizations, task forces, or special commissions to study and/or research particular crime victim issues.
	iv. Prosecution Activities:  VOCA funds cannot be used to pay for activities that are directed at prosecuting an offender and/or improving the criminal justice system’s effectiveness and efficiency, such as witness notification and management activiti...
	v. Fundraising Activities.
	vi. Indirect Organizational Costs:  The costs of liability insurance on buildings; capital improvements; security guards and body guards; occupancy charges; property losses and expenses; real estate purchases; mortgage payments; and construction may n...
	vii. Property Loss:  Reimbursing crime victims for expenses incurred as a result of a crime such as insurance deductibles, replacement of stolen property, funeral expenses, lost wages, and medical bills is not allowed.
	viii. Most Medical Costs:  VOCA victim assistance funds cannot support medical costs resulting from a victimization, except for forensic medical examinations for sexual assault victims only to the extent that other funding sources (such as state compe...
	VOCA funds cannot pay for nursing home care, home healthcare costs, in-patient treatment costs, hospital care, and other types of emergency and non-emergency medical and/or dental treatment.
	ix. Relocation Expenses:  VOCA funds cannot support relocation expenses for crime victims such as moving expenses, security deposits on housing, ongoing rent, and mortgage payments.  However, VOCA funds may be used to support staff time in locating re...
	x. Administrative Staff Expenses:  VOCA funds may not support salaries, fees, and reimbursable expenses associated with administrators, board members, executive directors, consultants, coordinators, and other individuals, unless these expenses are inc...
	xi. Development of Protocols, Interagency Agreements, and Other Working Agreements:  These activities benefit crime victims, but are considered examples of the types of activities that subrecipients undertake as part of their role as a victim services...
	xii. Costs of Sending Individual Crime Victims to Conferences.
	xiii. Activities Exclusively Related to Crime Prevention.


	IV. Subrecipient Responsibilities
	a. Financial and Program Reporting:
	i. Monthly Financial Reports are due the 15th of each month following the end of the monthly report period.  This report must reflect actual federal and match expenditures.
	ii. Quarterly Statistical and Programmatic Reports are due no later than 30 days following the end of the quarter.  This report includes quarterly victim service and performance measure activities.
	iii. Annual Narrative Report is due no later than 30 days following the end of the project period.
	iv. Year-end Agreement Amendment Request must be submitted on line when a subrecipient has remaining funds in their budgets to reflect actual expenditures.  This process will automatically revert unexpended funds to DPS.  Year-end amendments are due n...
	v. DPS Annual Crime Victim Assistance survey is due annually upon request.

	b. Amendments:
	c. Beginning the Project:
	d. Funding Acknowledgement:
	e. Notice of Crime Victim Service Availability:
	f. Civil Rights Policy and Disclosure of Findings of Discrimination:
	g. Reporting Suspected Fraud, Waste and Abuse:
	h. Audit Responsibilities for Subrecipients:

	V. State and Federal Financial and Programmatic Monitoring
	VI. Suspension and Termination of Funding

	 Item 3.D. - Department of Economic Security Access and Visitation Grant
	Att1_DES A and V Grant FFY15
	Att2_DES A and V Supplemental Funds FFY15
	Att3_DES IGA FFY16
	 Item 3.E. - Request to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFP NO. 110615-1-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
	Att3_Approved as to Form
	 Item 3.F. - Adoption of Resolution No. 16-01-01 authorizing the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway, and authorizing the Chairman to sign quit claim deed.
	Att1_Resolution 16-01-01
	Att2_Quit Claim Deed Stemm
	QUIT CLAIM DEED
	See Exhibit “A” attached and made part hereof
	Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3

	ACKNOWLEDGMENT


	Att3_Maps
	 Item 3.G. - City of Globe - Globe Active Adult Center (GAAC) Funding Request - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415
	Att2_GAAC Request Letter
	Att3_Approved as to Form
	 Item 3.H. - Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, Inc. for the renovation of the Copper Administration Building
	Att1_Contract Agreement Form
	Att2_Summary of Costs
	Att3_Interior Building Proposal
	Att4_Site Work (Civil) Proposal
	Att5_Security Access Proposal
	Att6_Fiber and Data Proposal
	Att7_Light Poles Proposal
	Att8_CAB Expenses-Recap
	Att9_CAB Expenses-Detailed
	Att10_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.I. - Approval to Convert Six (6) Merit System Rules and Policies to Six (6) New Countywide Operational Policies
	Att1_Table of Contents for Countywide Policy Binder 1-5-16
	Att2_BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct
	Att3_BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period
	Att4_BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal Program
	Att5_BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action
	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Gila County Order LL-15-06 - M&M Reno Creek Cafe Liquor License Application
	Att1_LL-15-06 Local Governing Body Recommendation
	Att2_LL-15-06 Affidavit of Posting
	Att3_LL-15-06 Interoffice Memos
	Att4_GC Order LL-15-06 Liquor License Application
	 Item 3.A. - Promise Zone Initiative Memorandum of Understanding
	Att1_Memorandum of Understanding with the IDA for Promise Zone
	Att2_IDA-Promise Zone Overview
	Att3_IDA-Promise Zone PowerPoint Presentation
	 Item 3.B. - Order Calling for a Special Election - Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District
	Att1_Order to Call Election
	Att2_Arizona Revised Statute 48-1016
	Att3_Arizona Revised Statute 16-204
	 Item 3.C. - Victims of Crimes Act Grant - Court Appointed Special Advocate Program of Gila County
	Att1_VOCA Grant Application
	Att2_VOCA Guidelines
	I. Background
	a. Definitions:
	ii. Child is any person under the age of 18 or as otherwise defined by State law.
	iii. Elder Abuse is defined as abuse of vulnerable adults including the mistreatment of older persons through physical, sexual, psychological or physical violence; neglect; or economic exploitation and fraud.
	iv. Federal Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an offense that violates a federal criminal statute or regulation.  Federal crimes also include crimes that occur in an area where the federal government has jurisdiction, such as Indian reservations,...
	v. Native American Tribe/Organization is defined as any tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the US to Native Americans because of their status as...
	vi. Hate Crime Victim is defined as a victim of an act of intimidation, harassment, physical force, or threat of physical force directed against any person, or family, or their property, or advocate, motivated either in whole or in part by hostility b...
	vii. Economic Exploitation and Fraud Victim is defined as an individual victimized by the perpetrators of bogus vacation opportunities, fly-by-night home repair companies, advance fee schemes, mail fraud, computer fraud, health care fraud, insurance f...

	b. Primary Purpose:
	c. Eligible services are further defined:
	i. Crisis Counseling is defined as in-person crisis intervention, emotional support, and guidance and counseling on an individual basis provided by advocates, counselors, mental health professionals or peers.  Such counseling may occur:  a) at the sce...
	ii. Follow-up Contact is defined as in-person contacts, telephone contacts and written communication with the victims to offer individual emotional support, provide empathetic listening, check on victim’s progress, and offer guidance for other-than-cr...
	iii. Therapy is defined as intensive professional psychological and/or psychiatric treatment for individuals, couples, and family members, related to counseling, to provide emotional support in crisis arising from the occurrence of crime.  This includ...
	iv. Crisis Counseling via phone/hotline is defined as telephone contact to provide crisis counseling after a victimization.
	v. Group Treatment/Support is defined as the coordination and provision of supportive group activities.  This includes self-help, peer, social support, drop-in groups, and community crisis intervention in a group setting.
	vi. Shelter/Safe House is defined as short-term and long-term housing and related support services provided to victims and non-offending members of their family following a victimization.
	vii. Information, Referral, and Connection is defined as in-person contacts with the victim, identifying services offered and support available by network and other community agencies, and/or completing linkage (actual personal or telephonic introduct...
	viii. Criminal Justice Support/Advocacy is defined as support, assistance and advocacy provided to crime victims at any stage of the criminal justice process.  Included in this definition are: court related support, i.e. court orientation, court escor...
	ix. Emergency Financial Assistance is defined as the utilization of VOCA or matching funds for security measures (replacement of locks, and temporary repair of doors and windows to prevent revictimization), and payment for taxis, buses, food, shelter ...
	x. Emergency Legal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in filing temporary restraining orders (injunctions and other protective orders), and elder or child abuse petitions.  This does not include criminal prosecution or the use of VOCA funds in t...
	xi. Assistance in Filing Compensation Claims is defined as making victims aware of the availability of crime victim compensation and/or assisting the victim in completing the required forms and in gathering the needed documentation.  (Provision of thi...
	xii. Personal Advocacy is defined as assisting victims in securing rights, remedies, and services from other agencies, locating financial support, intervening with employers, creditors and others on behalf of the victim; assistance with filing for los...
	xiii. Telephone Contact (information & referral) is defined as contacts with victims during which time services and available support are identified and provided over the telephone.  This does not include calls during which counseling is the primary f...
	xiv. Other is defined as other VOCA allowable services not previously listed.


	II. Allocation of VOCA Victim Assistance Funds
	III. VOCA Victim Assistance Application Process
	a. Subrecipient Application Process:
	b. Protest of Funding Decisions:
	c. Applicant Organization Eligibility Requirements:
	i. Public Agency or Nonprofit Organization:  Applicant agency must be operated by a public agency or nonprofit organization, or a combination of such agencies or organizations, and provide services to crime victims.
	ii. Record of Effective Services:  Demonstrate a record of providing effective services to crime victims for at least one year.  This includes having the support and approval of its services by the community, a history of providing direct services in ...
	iii. Program Match Requirements:  The purpose of matching contributions is to increase the amount of resources available to the projects supported by grant funds.  Matching contributions of 20 percent (cash or in-kind) of the total cost of each VOCA p...
	iv. Volunteers:  Subrecipient organizations must use volunteers unless the state grantee determines there is a compelling reason to waive this requirement.  A “compelling reason” may be a statutory or contractual provision concerning liability or conf...
	v. Promote Community Efforts to Aid Crime Victims:  Promote, within the community, coordinated public and private efforts to aid crime victims.  Coordination may include, but is not limited to, serving on state, federal, local, or Native American task...
	vi. Help Victims Apply for Compensation Benefits:  Such assistance must include notifying crime victims of the availability of crime victim compensation, and/or assisting victims with application forms and procedures, obtaining necessary documentation...
	vii. Inform Victims of their Legal Rights:  To notify victims of their legal rights (A.R.S. 13-4401, et seq.) and offer to connect the victim with a representative from the prosecutor’s or county attorney’s office if the victim so chooses.
	viii. Comply with Federal Rules Regulating Grants:  Subrecipients must comply with the applicable provisions of the VOCA Guidelines and OJP Financial Guide, effective edition, which include maintaining appropriate programmatic and financial records th...
	ix. Ensure Access to Federally Assisted Programs:  Federal laws prohibit recipients (and subrecipients) of federal financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability or sex in funded programs or...
	Certain VOCA subrecipients are required to provide civil rights certification to the US Department of Justice with a copy to DPS-VOCA.  (Refer to http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/eeop.htm to determine your agency’s EEO requirement.)
	x. Maintain Civil Rights Information:  Subrecipient agencies must maintain statutorily required civil rights statistics on victims served by race, national origin, sex, age, and disability; and permit reasonable access to its books, documents, papers,...
	xi. Comply with State Criteria:  Subrecipients must abide by state eligibility or service criteria as established by DPS-VOCA including submission of monthly financial reports, quarterly statistical and programmatic reports, client feedback surveys ut...
	xii. Services to Victims of Federal Crimes:  Subrecipients must provide services to victims of federal crimes on the same basis as victims of state/local crimes.
	xiii. No Charge to Victims for VOCA-funded Services:  Subrecipients must provide services to crime victims, at no charge, through the VOCA-funded project.  The purpose of the VOCA victim assistance grant program is to provide services to all crime vic...
	xiv. Client-Counselor and Research Information Confidentiality:  Subrecipients are required to maintain confidentiality of client-counselor information, as required by state and federal law.
	xv. Confidentiality of Research Information:  Except as otherwise provided by federal law, no recipient of monies under VOCA shall use or reveal any research or statistical information furnished under this program by any person and identifiable to any...

	d. Eligible Subrecipient Organizations:
	i. Criminal Justice Agencies:  Law enforcement agencies, prosecutors’ offices, courts, corrections departments, and probation and paroling authorities are eligible to receive VOCA funds to help pay for victim services.  For example, prosecutor-based v...
	ii. Faith-Based Organizations:  Such organizations may receive VOCA funds but must ensure that services are offered to all crime victims without regard to religious affiliation and that the receipt of services is not contingent upon participation in a...
	iii. State Crime Victim Compensation Agencies:  Compensation programs, including both centralized and decentralized programs, may receive VOCA assistance funds if they offer direct services to crime victims that extend beyond the essential duties of c...
	iv. Hospitals and Emergency Medical Facilities:  Such organizations must offer crisis counseling, support groups, and/or other types of victim services.
	v. Others:  State and local public agencies such as mental health service organizations, state/local public child and adult protective services, state grantees, legal services agencies and programs with a demonstrated history of advocacy on behalf of ...

	e. Ineligible Recipients of VOCA Funds:
	i. Federal agencies:  This includes US Attorneys Offices and FBI Field Offices.  Receipt of VOCA funds would constitute an augmentation of the federal budget with money intended for state agencies.  However, private non-profit organizations that opera...
	ii. In-Patient Treatment Facilities:  For example, those designed to provide treatment to individuals with drug, alcohol, and/or mental health-related conditions.

	f. Services, Activities, and Costs at the Subrecipient Level
	i. Allowable Costs for Direct Services:  The following is a listing of services, activities, and costs that are eligible for support with VOCA victim assistance grant funds within a subrecipient’s organization:
	1. Immediate Health and Safety:  Those services which respond to the immediate emotional and physical needs (excluding medical care) of crime victims such as crisis intervention; accompaniment to hospitals for medical examinations; hotline counseling;...
	2. Mental Health Assistance:  Those services and activities that assist the primary and secondary victims of crime in understanding the dynamics of victimization and in stabilizing their lives after a victimization such as counseling, group treatment,...
	3. Assistance with Participation in Criminal Justice Proceedings:  In addition to the cost of emergency legal services noted above in section 1. “Immediate Health and Safety”, there are other costs associated with helping victims participate in the cr...
	4. Forensic Examinations:  For sexual assault victims, forensic exams are allowable costs only to the extent that other funding sources (such as state compensation or private insurance or public benefits) are unavailable or insufficient and, such exam...
	5. Costs Necessary and Essential to Providing Direct Services:  This includes pro-rated costs of rent (mortgage costs are not allowed), telephone service, transportation costs for victims to receive services, emergency transportation costs that enable...
	6. Special Services:  Services to assist crime victims with managing practical problems created by the victimization such as acting on behalf of the victim with other service providers, creditors, or employers; assisting the victim to recover property...
	7. Personnel Costs:  Costs that are directly related to providing direct services, such as staff salaries and fringe benefits, including professional malpractice insurance; the cost of advertising to recruit VOCA-funded personnel; and the cost of trai...
	8. Restorative Justice:  Opportunities for crime victims to meet with perpetrators, if such meetings are requested or voluntarily agreed to by the victim and have possible beneficial or therapeutic value to crime victims.



	g. Other Allowable Costs and Services:
	i. Skills Training for Staff:  VOCA funds designated for training are to be used exclusively for developing the skills of direct service providers including paid staff and volunteers, so that they are better able to offer quality services to crime vic...
	1. Victim Compensation Training:  Subrecipients will designate a victim compensation coordinator within their agency.  This coordinator must have received victim compensation training from their county attorney’s office or completed the Arizona Crimin...
	(http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/victim/cbttraining.aspx). If this training has not been received, subrecipients will ensure training has been received within 90 days from the start of the subgrant award agreement or 90 days after re-assignment of new ...
	2. Victims’ Rights Training:  Non-criminal justice agencies will ensure that all DPS VOCA-funded staff and their first line supervisor have received victims’ rights training from the Arizona Attorney General’s Office or another criminal justice agency.
	3. Civil Rights and Non-discrimination Training:  Subrecipients will designate a Civil Rights Contact Person within their agency.  This person must complete the on-line civil rights training program developed by the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Offi...

	ii. Training Materials:  VOCA funds can be used to purchase materials such as books, training manuals, and videos for direct service providers, within the VOCA-funded organization, and can support the costs of a trainer for in-service staff developmen...
	iii. Training Related Travel:  VOCA funds can support costs such as travel, meals, and lodging to attend skills building conference training within Arizona or a similar geographic area so that travel costs will be minimal.  Rental car costs may be all...
	iv. Equipment and Furniture:  VOCA funds may be utilized to purchase furniture and equipment that supports or enhances direct services to crime victims, as demonstrated by the VOCA subrecipient.  VOCA funds cannot support the entire cost of an item th...
	v. Purchasing or Leasing Vehicles:  VOCA funds may be used to purchase or lease vehicles if it can be demonstrated to DPS-VOCA that such an expenditure is essential to delivering services to crime victims.
	vi. Advanced Technologies:  At times, technology may increase a subrecipient’s ability to reach and serve crime victims.  For example, satellite Orders of Protection locations have dramatically improved the efficiency of criminal justice participation...
	vii. Contracts for Professional Services:  VOCA funds generally should not be used to support contracted services, and subrecipients are prohibited from using a majority of VOCA funds for contracted services.  Principal activities of the project may n...
	viii. Operating Costs:  Examples of allowable operating costs include supplies; equipment use fees, when supported by usage logs; printing, photocopying, and postage; brochures which describe available services; and books and other victim related mate...
	ix. Supervision of Direct Service Providers:  VOCA funds may be used for supervision of direct service providers when it is determined by DPS-VOCA personnel that such supervision is necessary and essential to providing direct services to crime victims...
	x. Repair and/or Replacement of Essential Items:  VOCA funds may be used for repair and replacement of items that contribute to maintaining a healthy and/or safe environment for crime victims, such as a furnace in a shelter.  Each request for VOCA fun...
	xi. Public Presentations:  VOCA funds may be used to support presentations that are made in schools, community centers, or other public forums, and that are designed to identify crime victims and provide or refer them to needed services.  Specifically...

	h.  Non-Allowable Costs and Activities:
	i. Lobbying and Administrative Advocacy:  VOCA funds cannot support victim legislation or administrative reform, whether conducted directly or indirectly.
	ii. Perpetrator Rehabilitation and Counseling:  Subrecipients cannot use VOCA funds to offer rehabilitative services to offenders.  Likewise, VOCA funds cannot support services to incarcerated individuals, even when the service pertains to the victimi...
	iii. Needs Assessments, Surveys, Evaluations, and Studies:  VOCA program funds may not be used to pay for efforts conducted by individuals, organizations, task forces, or special commissions to study and/or research particular crime victim issues.
	iv. Prosecution Activities:  VOCA funds cannot be used to pay for activities that are directed at prosecuting an offender and/or improving the criminal justice system’s effectiveness and efficiency, such as witness notification and management activiti...
	v. Fundraising Activities.
	vi. Indirect Organizational Costs:  The costs of liability insurance on buildings; capital improvements; security guards and body guards; occupancy charges; property losses and expenses; real estate purchases; mortgage payments; and construction may n...
	vii. Property Loss:  Reimbursing crime victims for expenses incurred as a result of a crime such as insurance deductibles, replacement of stolen property, funeral expenses, lost wages, and medical bills is not allowed.
	viii. Most Medical Costs:  VOCA victim assistance funds cannot support medical costs resulting from a victimization, except for forensic medical examinations for sexual assault victims only to the extent that other funding sources (such as state compe...
	VOCA funds cannot pay for nursing home care, home healthcare costs, in-patient treatment costs, hospital care, and other types of emergency and non-emergency medical and/or dental treatment.
	ix. Relocation Expenses:  VOCA funds cannot support relocation expenses for crime victims such as moving expenses, security deposits on housing, ongoing rent, and mortgage payments.  However, VOCA funds may be used to support staff time in locating re...
	x. Administrative Staff Expenses:  VOCA funds may not support salaries, fees, and reimbursable expenses associated with administrators, board members, executive directors, consultants, coordinators, and other individuals, unless these expenses are inc...
	xi. Development of Protocols, Interagency Agreements, and Other Working Agreements:  These activities benefit crime victims, but are considered examples of the types of activities that subrecipients undertake as part of their role as a victim services...
	xii. Costs of Sending Individual Crime Victims to Conferences.
	xiii. Activities Exclusively Related to Crime Prevention.


	IV. Subrecipient Responsibilities
	a. Financial and Program Reporting:
	i. Monthly Financial Reports are due the 15th of each month following the end of the monthly report period.  This report must reflect actual federal and match expenditures.
	ii. Quarterly Statistical and Programmatic Reports are due no later than 30 days following the end of the quarter.  This report includes quarterly victim service and performance measure activities.
	iii. Annual Narrative Report is due no later than 30 days following the end of the project period.
	iv. Year-end Agreement Amendment Request must be submitted on line when a subrecipient has remaining funds in their budgets to reflect actual expenditures.  This process will automatically revert unexpended funds to DPS.  Year-end amendments are due n...
	v. DPS Annual Crime Victim Assistance survey is due annually upon request.

	b. Amendments:
	c. Beginning the Project:
	d. Funding Acknowledgement:
	e. Notice of Crime Victim Service Availability:
	f. Civil Rights Policy and Disclosure of Findings of Discrimination:
	g. Reporting Suspected Fraud, Waste and Abuse:
	h. Audit Responsibilities for Subrecipients:

	V. State and Federal Financial and Programmatic Monitoring
	VI. Suspension and Termination of Funding

	 Item 3.D. - Department of Economic Security Access and Visitation Grant
	Att1_DES A and V Grant FFY15
	Att2_DES A and V Supplemental Funds FFY15
	Att3_DES IGA FFY16
	 Item 3.E. - Request to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFP NO. 110615-1-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
	Att3_Approved as to Form
	 Item 3.F. - Adoption of Resolution No. 16-01-01 authorizing the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway, and authorizing the Chairman to sign quit claim deed.
	Att1_Resolution 16-01-01
	Att2_Quit Claim Deed Stemm
	QUIT CLAIM DEED
	See Exhibit “A” attached and made part hereof
	Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3

	ACKNOWLEDGMENT


	Att3_Maps
	 Item 3.G. - City of Globe - Globe Active Adult Center (GAAC) Funding Request - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415
	Att2_GAAC Request Letter
	Att3_Approved as to Form
	 Item 3.H. - Approval to use State of Arizona Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, Inc. for the renovation of the Copper Administration Building
	Att1_Contract Agreement Form
	Att2_Summary of Costs
	Att3_Interior Building Proposal
	Att4_Site Work (Civil) Proposal
	Att5_Security Access Proposal
	Att6_Fiber and Data Proposal
	Att7_Light Poles Proposal
	Att8_CAB Expenses-Recap
	Att9_CAB Expenses-Detailed
	Att10_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.I. - Approval to Convert Six (6) Merit System Rules and Policies to Six (6) New Countywide Operational Policies
	Att1_Table of Contents for Countywide Policy Binder 1-5-16
	Att2_BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct
	Att3_BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period
	Att4_BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal Program
	Att5_BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action
	Att6_BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process
	Att7_BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission
	 Item 4.A. - Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto Apache Tribe and the Gila County Sheriff's Office regarding ACJIS 
	Att1_Memorandum of Agreement 
	Att2_Holder of Record Agreement 
	 Item 4.B. - Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest S
	Att1_Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004
	Att2_Exhibit A-2016 Annual Operating and Financial Plan 
	 Item 4.C. - Adjustment to Appointment of John Perlman as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore
	Att1_Board of Supervisors' Approval re Perlman
	Att2_Memo to BOS re Perlman Adjustment
	Att3_Admin Order re Perlman
	 Item 4.D. - Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement
	Att1_FY2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement
	 Item 4.E. - Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Dept. of Economic Security
	Att1_Amend. No. 3 ADES14-055408
	Att2_Amend No. 2 ADES14-055408
	Att3_Amend No 1 ADES14-055408
	Att4_Contract No. ADES14-055408
	 Item 4.F. - Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No. 108-15 Closeout Report
	Att1_108-15 Close-out Report
	Att2_Approved as to Form
	 Item 4.G. - Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report
	Att1_103-15 Close-out Report
	 Item 4.H. - Revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
	Att1_Revised Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
	Att3_Attachment A to Amendment No. 2
	Att4_Attachment B to Amendment No. 2
	Att5_Amendment No. 1 to Contract ADES15-089113
	Att6_Contract ADES15-089113
	Att7_Contract ADES15-089113 cont.
	Att8_Supplemental Information Regarding Amendment No. 2
	Att9_Approval as to Form
	 Item 4.I. - November 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Court November 2015
	 Item 4.J. - November 2015
	Att1_November 2015 Report
	SPR04PAYCNT15120215040.pdf
	jp 0404 dec 2015

	 Item 4.K. - November 2015
	Att1_November 2015 Report
	 Item 4.L. - November 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for November 2015
	 Item 4.M. - November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, December 15, 2015
	Att1_BOS 12-15-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_BOS 12-01-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_BOS 11-24-15 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.N. - November 27, 2015_ December 4, 2015_ and December 11, 2015
	Att1_Weekly Report
	Att2_Service Agreement No. 111315-Pueblo Mechanical
	Att3_Amendment No. 2-Juvenile Detention-HMWS
	Att4_Amendment No. 1-Sheriff's Office Jail-HMWS
	Att5_Amendment No. 1-Health Services Immunization-HMWS
	Att6_Amendment No. 1-Wrangler Plumbing
	Att7_Amendment No. 1-Caruso Turley Scott
	Att8_Contract No. 070215-1-Watson Chevrolet
	Att9_Amendment No. 1-John Perlman
	Att10_Contract Agreement Form-Contract Extension-SD Crane Builders
	Att11_Agreement No. 102915-Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
	Att12_Service Agreement No. 103015-Earthquest Plumbing
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 111315-1-Little Stinker Septic Service LLC
	Att14_Professional Services Contract 120115-1 - Sarah Stone
	Att15_Service Agreement No. 120115-Kachina Heat Transfer
	 Item 7.A. - Carson Construction Notice of Claim

	Att6_BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process
	Att7_BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission
	 Item 4.A. - Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto Apache Tribe and the Gila County Sheriff's Office regarding ACJIS 
	Att1_Memorandum of Agreement 
	Att2_Holder of Record Agreement 
	 Item 4.B. - Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest S
	Att1_Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-11031200-004
	Att2_Exhibit A-2016 Annual Operating and Financial Plan 
	 Item 4.C. - Adjustment to Appointment of John Perlman as Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore
	Att1_Board of Supervisors' Approval re Perlman
	Att2_Memo to BOS re Perlman Adjustment
	Att3_Admin Order re Perlman
	 Item 4.D. - Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement
	Att1_FY2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement
	 Item 4.E. - Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Dept. of Economic Security
	Att1_Amend. No. 3 ADES14-055408
	Att2_Amend No. 2 ADES14-055408
	Att3_Amend No 1 ADES14-055408
	Att4_Contract No. ADES14-055408
	 Item 4.F. - Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No. 108-15 Closeout Report
	Att1_108-15 Close-out Report
	Att2_Approved as to Form
	 Item 4.G. - Arizona Department of Housing Community Development Block Grant Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report
	Att1_103-15 Close-out Report
	 Item 4.H. - Revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
	Att1_Revised Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADES15-089113
	Att3_Attachment A to Amendment No. 2
	Att4_Attachment B to Amendment No. 2
	Att5_Amendment No. 1 to Contract ADES15-089113
	Att6_Contract ADES15-089113
	Att7_Contract ADES15-089113 cont.
	Att8_Supplemental Information Regarding Amendment No. 2
	Att9_Approval as to Form
	 Item 4.I. - November 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Court November 2015
	 Item 4.J. - November 2015
	Att1_November 2015 Report
	SPR04PAYCNT15120215040.pdf
	jp 0404 dec 2015

	 Item 4.K. - November 2015
	Att1_November 2015 Report
	 Item 4.L. - November 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for November 2015
	 Item 4.M. - November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, December 15, 2015
	Att1_BOS 12-15-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_BOS 12-01-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_BOS 11-24-15 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.N. - November 27, 2015_ December 4, 2015_ and December 11, 2015
	Att1_Weekly Report
	Att2_Service Agreement No. 111315-Pueblo Mechanical
	Att3_Amendment No. 2-Juvenile Detention-HMWS
	Att4_Amendment No. 1-Sheriff's Office Jail-HMWS
	Att5_Amendment No. 1-Health Services Immunization-HMWS
	Att6_Amendment No. 1-Wrangler Plumbing
	Att7_Amendment No. 1-Caruso Turley Scott
	Att8_Contract No. 070215-1-Watson Chevrolet
	Att9_Amendment No. 1-John Perlman
	Att10_Contract Agreement Form-Contract Extension-SD Crane Builders
	Att11_Agreement No. 102915-Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
	Att12_Service Agreement No. 103015-Earthquest Plumbing
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 111315-1-Little Stinker Septic Service LLC
	Att14_Professional Services Contract 120115-1 - Sarah Stone
	Att15_Service Agreement No. 120115-Kachina Heat Transfer
	 Item 7.A. - Carson Construction Notice of Claim

